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The Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the “Series 2009-1 Bonds”), Project Revenue Bonds, Senior 
Series 2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds - Direct Pay to Issuer) (the “Series 2009-2 Bonds”) and 
Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2009-3 Bonds” and together with the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds and Series 2009-2 Bonds, the “Bonds”) will be issued by the University of Massachusetts Building 
Authority (the “Authority”) as fully registered bonds and will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York.  Individual purchases of beneficial ownership 
of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in the denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  No 
physical delivery of the  Bonds will be made to purchasers.  So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the 
Bonds, principal and semiannual interest (payable May 1 and November 1, commencing May 1, 2010) are payable to 
DTC by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, as Trustee.  See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.”  
The Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity as more 
fully described herein.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds shall also be subject to extraordinary optional redemption prior to 
maturity as more fully described herein.

The Authority intends to elect to treat the Series 2009-2 Bonds as “Build America Bonds” for purposes of the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and to receive a cash subsidy from the United States Treasury in 
connection therewith. See “INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT - Designation of Series 2009-2 Bonds as Build America 
Bonds.”

The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority payable solely from funds provided under the Enabling Act 
(defined herein), the Trust Agreement (defined herein) and the Series Resolutions (defined herein), including payments 
made by the Board of Trustees of the University of Massachusetts (the “University”), all as more fully described under 
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS” herein.

The Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a general obligation of the authority or 
a debt or liability of the COMMONWEALTH OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF. NEITHER THE 
FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION 
THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR THE INTEREST ON THE BONDS. THE 
ENABLING ACT OF THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT IN ANY WAY CREATE A SO-CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF 
THE COMMONWEALTH OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF TO PAY DEBT SERVICE WITH RESPECT 
TO THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING POWER.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Authority and received by the Underwriters,† subject to the 
approval of legality by Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel.  
Certain matters will be passed upon for the Authority by its counsel, Burns & Levinson LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, 
for the Underwriters by their counsel, McCarter & English, LLP, Boston, Massachusetts.  It is expected that the Bonds 
in definitive form will be available for delivery through DTC in New York on or about October 27, 2009.

	 Citi	 J.P.Morgan	
Barclays	 Fidelity Capital Markets	 Loop Capital Markets, LLC	 Merrill Lynch & Co.	 Morgan Stanley

Dated: October 15, 2009

†	� The Series 2009-1 Bonds will be underwritten by all of the Underwriters.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds 
will be underwritten by Citigroup Global Markets Inc., J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Barclays Capital Markets and Merrill Lynch, 
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.



AMOUNTS, MATURITIES, INTEREST RATES, AND YIELDS 

  SERIES 2009-1 BONDS   
  $208,310,000 Serial Bonds   
     

Due 
May 1 

 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate Yield CUSIP* 

2010 $  3,400,000     2.000%     0.558% 914440JE3 
2011       4,290,000 2.000 1.260 914440JF0 
2012     11,455,000 3.000 1.660 914440JG8 
2013     11,795,000 3.000 2.100 914440JH6 
2014       7,190,000 4.000 2.560 914440JK9 
2014       5,595,000 3.000 2.560 914440JJ2 
2015       9,245,000 5.000 2.960 914440JM5 
2015       3,355,000 4.000 2.960 914440JL7 
2016       7,845,000 5.000 3.220 914440JP8 
2016       5,685,000 4.000 3.220 914440JN3 
2017       8,240,000 5.000 3.430 914440JR4 
2017       8,045,000 4.000 3.430 914440JQ6 
2018     14,570,000 5.000 3.620 914440JS2 
2019     15,285,000 5.000 3.810 914440JT0 
2020   15,890,000 5.000   3.920C 914440JU7 
2021     15,435,000 5.000   4.000C 914440JW3 
2021       1,250,000 4.250   4.000C 914440JV5 
2022     17,500,000 5.000   4.070C 914440JX1 
2023     18,380,000 5.000   4.140C 914440JY9 
2024     10,000,000 5.000   4.210C 914440JZ6 
2025       2,530,000 5.000   4.250C 914440KA9 
2026       2,660,000 4.250 4.300 914440KB7 
2027       2,770,000 4.250 4.350 914440KC5 
2028       2,890,000 4.250 4.410 914440KD3 
2029       3,010,000 4.375 4.470 914440KE1 

 
$1,305,000 4.500% Term Bond due May 1, 2034 to Yield 4.650% - CUSIP* 914440KF8 

$16,055,000 5.000% Term Bond due May 1, 2034 to Yield 4.650%C - CUSIP* 914440KG6 

$22,140,000 5.000% Term Bond due May 1, 2039 to Yield 4.730%C - CUSIP* 914440KH4 

 

 

$104,765,000 6.423% Term Bond due May 1, 2029 at a Price of 100.000% - CUSIP* 914440KJ0 

$167,090,000 6.573% Term Bond due May 1, 2039 at a Price of 100.000% - CUSIP* 914440KK7 

 

 

$12,650,000 5.823% Term Bond due May 1, 2029 at a Price of 100.000% - CUSIP* 914440KL5 

$15,920,000 6.173% Term Bond due May 1, 2039 at a Price of 100.000% - CUSIP* 914440KM3 

                                                           
*  The CUSIP (Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures) numbers on the inside cover of this Official Statement have been 
assigned by an organization not affiliated with the Authority, the Underwriters or the Trustee, and such parties are not responsible for the 
selection or use of the CUSIP numbers.  The CUSIP numbers are included solely for the convenience of Bondholders and no representation is 
made as to the correctness of the CUSIP numbers printed on the inside cover hereof.  CUSIP numbers assigned to securities may be changed 
during the term of such securities based on a number of factors including but not limited to the refunding or defeasance of such issue or the use of 
secondary market financial products.  None of the Authority, the Underwriters or the Trustee has agreed to, nor is there any duty or obligation to, 
update this Official Statement to reflect any change or correction in the CUSIP numbers printed on the inside cover hereof. 
 
C  These maturities are priced to the call date of May 1, 2019. 

  SERIES 2009-2 BONDS   
  (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds - Direct Pay to Issuer)   
  $271,855,000 Term Bonds   

  SERIES 2009-3 BONDS   
  (Federally Taxable)   
  $28,570,000 Term Bonds   



 
 
 

Addresses of Principal Parties 
 
 
 
 
 

Authority 

University of Massachusetts Building Authority 

333 South Street, 4th Floor,  
Shrewsbury, Massachusetts 01545 

Attention:  Executive Director 
 
 

Trustee 

U.S. Bank National Association 

One Federal Street, 3rd Floor 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 

Attention:  Corporate Trust Department 
 
 

Senior Underwriter 

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. 

390 Greenwich Street, 2nd Floor 
New York, New York 10013 

Attention:  John Malpiede, Director 



The information set forth or incorporated by reference herein has been obtained from the Authority, the University and other 
sources which are believed to be reliable, but, as to information from other than the Authority, it is not to be construed as a 
representation by the Authority.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither 
the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there 
has been no change in the affairs of the Authority since the date hereof, except as expressly set forth herein. 

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The Underwriters have 
reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their respective responsibilities to investors 
under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the 
accuracy or completeness of such information. 

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation 
other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be 
relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation 
of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds offered hereby by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for 
such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of provisions of laws, the Trust Agreement, the Contract, the Bonds, the 
Series Resolutions and other documents herein do not purport to be complete; reference is made to said laws, the Trust Agreement, the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds, Series 2009-2 Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds and other documents for full and complete statements of their 
provisions.  Copies of the above are available for inspection at the principal office of the Trustee. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT 
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY AT 
A LEVEL ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH STABILIZING, IF 
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$247,810,000 $271,855,000 $28,570,000 
University of Massachusetts Building Authority University of Massachusetts Building Authority University of Massachusetts Building Authority 

Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-2 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 
 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds -  

Direct Pay to Issuer) 
(Federally Taxable) 

   

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

General 

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the appendices hereto, is to 
furnish information in connection with the offering by the University of Massachusetts Building Authority (the 
“Authority”) of its $247,810,000 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the “Series 2009-1 Bonds”), its 
$271,855,000 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds - Direct Pay 
to Issuer) (the “Series 2009-2 Bonds”) and its $28,570,000 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally 
Taxable) (the “Series 2009-3 Bonds,” and together with the Series 2009-1 Bonds and the Series 2009-2 Bonds, the 
“Bonds”). 

Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth in 
Appendix D - “Summary of Legal Documents.” 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to Chapter 773 of the Acts of 1960 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
as amended (the “Enabling Act”) and the Trust Agreement dated as of November 1, 2000 (the “Trust Agreement”), 
between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, as successor trustee (the 
“Trustee”).  The Series 2009-1 Bonds are issued pursuant to the Series Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of 
Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the “2009-1 Series Resolution”), adopted by the Authority on 
September 18, 2009 and October 6, 2009.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds are issued pursuant to the Series Resolution 
Authorizing the Issuance of Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds 
- Direct Pay to Issuer) (the “2009-2 Series Resolution”), adopted by the Authority on September 18, 2009.  The 
Series 2009-3 Bonds are issued pursuant to the Series Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Project Revenue 
Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally Taxable) (the “2009-3 Series Resolution”, and together with the 2009-1 
Series Resolution and the Series 2008-2 Series Resolution, the “Series Resolutions”), adopted by the Authority on 
September 18, 2009. 

The Authority was created by the Enabling Act as a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality 
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) for the general purpose of aiding and contributing 
to the performance of the educational and other purposes of the University of Massachusetts (the “University”) by 
providing dormitories, dining commons and other buildings and structures for the use of the University, its students, 
staff and their dependents and for lease to certain other entities related to the University, all in accordance with the 
Enabling Act.  See “THE AUTHORITY.” 

The Series 2009-1 Bonds are being issued to finance projects which meet certain conditions set forth in the 
2009-1 Series Resolution (collectively, the “2009-1 Projects”), including (i) construction and equipping of a data 
center by the Worcester City Campus Corporation on the Worcester campus of the University, (ii) construction of 
the Edward M. Kennedy Institute for the United States Senate on the Boston campus, (iii) a portion of the costs of 
construction of the Albert Sherman Center on the Worcester campus, (iv) a portion of the costs of construction of 
The Emerging Technology Innovation Center, purchase, acquisition and development of an Inn and Conference 
Center, acquisition and renovation of an athletic and civic facility, and certain renovation and maintenance projects 
on the Lowell campus, (v) a portion of the costs of certain renovation and maintenance projects on the Boston 
campus, and (vi) a portion of the costs of certain renovation and maintenance projects on the Amherst campus.  The 
proceeds of the Series 2009-1 Bonds will be used to finance the costs of the 2009-1 Projects, to fund capitalized 
interest on a portion of the Series 2009-1 Bonds and to pay costs of issuing the Series 2009-1 Bonds.   
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The Series 2009-2 Bonds are being issued to finance projects which meet certain conditions set forth in the 
2009-2 Series Resolution (collectively, the “2009-2 Projects”), including portions of the  projects described in 
clauses (iii) through (vi) above as part of the 2009-1 Projects and in Appendix A.  The proceeds of the Series 2009-2 
Bonds will be used to finance the costs of the 2009-2 Projects, to fund capitalized interest on a portion of the Series 
2009-2 Bonds and to pay costs of issuing the Series 2009-2 Bonds. 

The Series 2009-3 Bonds are being issued to finance the acquisition and renovation of a laboratory facility 
on the Worcester campus of the University (the “Biotech IV Property”) or such other projects that meet the 
conditions set forth in the 2009-3 Series Resolution (collectively, the “2009-3 Projects,” and together with the Series 
2009-1 Projects and the Series 2009-2 Projects, the “Projects”).  The proceeds of the Series 2009-3 Bonds will be 
used to finance the costs of the 2009-3 Projects, to fund capitalized interest on the Series 2009-3 Bonds and to pay 
costs of issuing the Series 2009-3 Bonds. 

See Appendix A under the heading “UNIVERSITY REVENUES AND BUDGETING - Current and Future 
Capital Plans” for additional information about the Projects. 

The Enabling Act prohibits the Authority from initiating any project except upon request made by authority 
of the Board of Trustees of the University (the “University Trustees”) and upon written approval from the 
Commissioner of Administration of the Commonwealth.  In connection with the Bonds, such request has been made 
and all such approvals have been obtained. 

As more fully described herein, the Bonds will be special obligations of the Authority and, as to the 
payment of principal and redemption price, if any, of and interest thereon, are payable solely from, and secured by 
amounts pledged under the provisions of the Enabling Act, the Trust Agreement and the Series Resolutions.  See 
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS.” 

The Bonds are payable solely from funds provided under the Enabling Act, the Trust Agreement and the 
Series Resolutions, including payments made by the University Trustees under the Contract for Management and 
Services dated as of October 27, 2009 (the “Contract”) among the Commonwealth, acting by and through the 
University Trustees, the University Trustees and the Authority. 

The obligations of the University Trustees to make payments under the Contract are limited to funds of the 
University lawfully available for such purpose.  The obligations of the University Trustees in connection with the 
Bonds and the Contract do not constitute a debt or obligation of the Commonwealth, and (a) neither the 
Commonwealth nor any political subdivision thereof shall be obligated to pay the Bonds, and (b) neither the faith 
and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the 
payment of the Bonds. The Enabling Act does not in any way create a so-called moral obligation of the 
Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt service in the event of default. The Authority does 
not have taxing power.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS.” 

Designation of Series 2009-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds 

The Authority intends to elect to treat the Series 2009-2 Bonds as “Build America Bonds” for purposes of 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, enacted February 17, 2009 (the “ARRA”) and to receive a 
cash subsidy from the United States Treasury (“Interest Subsidy Payments”) in connection therewith.  As a result of 
such election, interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds will be included in the gross income of holders thereof for federal 
income tax purposes, and the holders will not be entitled to any federal tax credits as to Build America Bonds in 
connection with their holding of Series 2009-2 Bonds.  Pursuant to ARRA, the Authority is entitled to receive 
Interest Subsidy Payments equal to 35% of the interest payable on the Series 2009-2 Bonds.  Such Interest Subsidy 
Payments received by the Authority are not pledged to pay the Series 2009-2 Bonds, nor are their receipt a condition 
of payment of any portion of the Series 2009-2 Bonds.  Federal tax law imposes certain requirements for 
qualification of the Series 2009-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds, including that interest on such Series 2009-2 
Bonds would be, but for the Authority’s election, excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  
There can be no assurance that the Series 2009-2 Bonds will qualify as Build America Bonds nor as to the receipt, or 
timing of receipt, of Interest Subsidy Payments.  The Authority is obligated to make payments of the principal of 
and interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds whether or not it receives Interest Subsidy Payments. 
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Purpose and Content of Official Statement 

This Official Statement describes the terms and use of proceeds of, and security for, the Bonds. This 
introduction is subject in all respects to the additional information contained in this Official Statement, including 
Appendices A through F.  All descriptions of documents contained herein are only summaries and are qualified in 
their entirety by reference to each such document. 

Information about the University is set forth in Appendix A.  Financial Statements of the Authority and of 
the University, respectively, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 are set forth in Appendices B and C.  A 
summary of certain provisions of the Trust Agreement and the Contract is included as Appendix D.  The proposed 
form of opinion of Bond Counsel is included in Appendix E.  Appendix F includes a summary of the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement with respect to the Authority and the University. 

The summaries of the agreements and other documents herein do not purport to be comprehensive or 
definitive and all references to any contract, agreement and other document described herein are qualified in their 
entirety by reference to each such contract, agreement and other document. All references herein to the Bonds are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to the definitive forms thereof and to the Trust Agreement and the Series 
Resolutions.  Definitive copies of all contracts, agreements and other documents described in the Official Statement 
are available for inspection prior to the date of issuance of the Bonds at the offices of the Authority, located at 333 
South Street, 4th Floor, Shrewsbury, Massachusetts 01545, and subsequent to the date of issuance of the Bonds, at 
the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee. 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS 

Series 2009-1 Bond Proceeds 

Project Costs  $240,265,374 
Capitalized Interest  20,306,396 
Costs of Issuance (including any Underwriters’ discount)  1,401,902 

 
  Total 

  
$261,973,672 

Series 2009-2 Bond Proceeds 

Project Costs  $248,229,179 
Capitalized Interest  21,231,188 
Costs of Issuance (including any Underwriters’ discount)  2,394,633 

 
  Total 

  
$271,855,000 

Series 2009-3 Bond Proceeds 

Project Costs  $24,000,859 
Capitalized Interest  4,317,482 
Costs of Issuance (including any Underwriters’ discount)  251,659 

 
  Total 

  
$28,570,000 
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THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book entry system, with bond certificates immobilized at The 
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and not available for distribution to the public, 
evidencing ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, with transfers of 
ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC 
and its participants.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable as stated above, and principal of the Bonds will be paid, at 
maturity or upon earlier redemption, to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal 
and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest 
payments to beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such participants and other 
nominees of beneficial owners.  The record date for interest payments by DTC to its participants will be the 15th day 
of the month preceding the applicable interest payment date.  Accordingly, debt service will be payable to 
participants of DTC, shown on the records of DTC, at the close of business on the 15th day of the month preceding 
such interest payment date.  Neither the Authority nor the Trustee will be responsible or liable for maintaining, 
supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such 
participants.  See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 

Series 2009-1 Bonds 

General  
 
The Series 2009-1 Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $247,810,000.  The Series 

2009-1 Bonds will be dated the date of initial delivery thereof, will mature (unless redeemed prior to maturity) on 
May 1 of each of the years and will bear interest from their date at the rates per annum, all as set forth on the inside 
cover page of this Official Statement.  Interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds will be payable on May 1 and November 
1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2010.  The Series 2009-1 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking 
fund redemption as described below.   

Redemption Provisions 
 
Redemption by Sinking Fund Installments.  Series 2009-1 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2034 and 

bearing interest at the rate of 4.500% per annum shall be redeemed as provided in the 2009-1 Series Resolution by 
mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each of the following years in the principal amount set forth 
opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2030 $ 240,000 
2031    250,000 
2032    260,000 
2033    270,000 

 2034*    285,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 
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Series 2009-1 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2034 and bearing interest at the rate of 5.000% per annum 
shall be redeemed as provided in the 2009-1 Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of 
each of the following years in the principal amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2030 $2,905,000 
2031   3,050,000 
2032   3,205,000 
2033   3,365,000 

 2034*   3,530,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 

The Series 2009-1 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2039 shall be redeemed as provided in the 2009-1 
Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each of the following years in the principal 
amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2035 $4,010,000 
2036   4,205,000 
2037   4,420,000 
2038   4,635,000 

 2039*   4,870,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 

On each of the foregoing dates, the Trustee shall call for redemption in the manner provided in the Trust 
Agreement and redeem the principal amount of such Series 2009-1 Bonds subject to redemption by mandatory 
Sinking Fund Installments.  The Redemption Price of such Series 2009-1 Bonds so redeemed shall be at the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption. 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2009-1 Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2019 shall be subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Authority, in whole or in part on any date not earlier than May 1, 
2019, at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount of the Series 2009-1 Bonds or portions thereof to be 
redeemed, without premium, plus in each case interest accrued thereon to the date set for redemption. 

Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee is required to give notice of redemption of any Series 2009-1 Bonds, 
specifying the date of redemption, the portions of the principal amounts thereof to be redeemed and the redemption 
price, by mailing, not more than sixty (60) days nor less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the 
registered owners of any Series 2009-1 Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed.  Notice of redemption will be 
mailed to DTC or its nominee, as registered owner of the Series 2009-1 Bonds.  The Trustee will not be responsible 
for mailing notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC or its nominee.  The Authority is not responsible for 
mailing any notice of redemption. 

Selection of Series 2009-1 Bonds To Be Redeemed Upon Partial Redemption.  If the Series 2009-1 Bonds 
are to be redeemed in part, the Series 2009-1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee in such manner 
as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate; provided (a) that such portion of any Series 2009-1 
Bond to be redeemed shall be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, (b) that, in selecting 
Series 2009-1 Bonds for redemption, the Trustee shall treat each Series 2009-1 Bond as representing that number of 
Series 2009-1 Bonds which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Series 2009-1 Bond by $5,000, and 
(c) that, to the extent practicable, the Trustee will not select any Series 2009-1 Bond for partial redemption if the 
amount of such Series 2009-1 Bond remaining Outstanding would be reduced by such partial redemption to less 
than the lowest Authorized Denomination.  If, however, the Series 2009-1 Bonds are to be redeemed in part while 
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the book-entry-only system through DTC is in effect, the Series 2009-1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by 
DTC in increments of $5,000 and otherwise as described in the foregoing sentence in such manner as DTC may 
determine. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been given in the manner provided above, and money 
sufficient for the redemption being held by the Trustee for the purpose, the Series 2009-1 Bonds so called for 
redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and interest thereon shall cease to accrue and the 
owners of the Series 2009-1 Bonds so called for redemption shall thereafter no longer have any security or benefit 
under the Trust Agreement except to receive payment of the redemption price for such Series 2009-1 Bonds.  If such 
moneys are not available on the redemption date, the Series 2009-1 Bonds or portions thereof will continue to bear 
interest until paid at the same rate they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.  If, at the time of 
mailing of the notice of optional redemption, moneys have not been deposited with the Trustee in an amount 
sufficient to redeem all the Series 2009-1 Bonds called for redemption, such notice shall state that it is a conditional 
notice subject to the deposit of sufficient moneys not later than the opening of business on the redemption date, and 
any such notice shall be of no effect unless such moneys are deposited. 

Series 2009-2 Bonds 

General  
 
The Series 2009-2 Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $271,855,000.  The Series 

2009-2 Bonds will be dated the date of initial delivery thereof, will mature (unless redeemed prior to maturity) on 
May 1 of each of the years and will bear interest from their date at the rates per annum, all as set forth on the inside 
cover page of this Official Statement.  Interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds will be payable on May 1 and November 
1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2010.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds are subject to optional, extraordinary optional 
and mandatory sinking fund redemption as described below.  

Redemption Provisions 
 
Redemption by Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2029 shall 

be redeemed as provided in the 2009-2 Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each 
of the following years in the principal amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2024 $  8,875,000 
2025   17,645,000 
2026   18,375,000 
2027   19,145,000 
2028   19,950,000 

 2029*   20,775,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 
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The Series 2009-2 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2039 shall be redeemed as provided in the 2009-2 
Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each of the following years in the principal 
amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2030 $14,235,000 
2031   14,840,000 
2032   15,470,000 
2033   16,135,000 
2034   16,830,000 
2035   16,450,000 
2036   17,155,000 
2037   17,880,000 
2038   18,650,000 

 2039*   19,445,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 

On each of the foregoing dates, the Trustee shall call for redemption in the manner provided in the Trust 
Agreement and redeem the principal amount of such Series 2009-2 Bonds subject to redemption by mandatory 
Sinking Fund Installments.  The Redemption Price of such Series 2009-2 Bonds so redeemed shall be at the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption. 

Optional Redemption.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at the 
option of the Authority, in whole or in part on any date not earlier than May 1, 2019, at a Redemption Price equal to 
the principal amount of the Series 2009-2 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, without premium, plus in each 
case interest accrued thereon to the date set for redemption. 

Extraordinary Optional Redemption.  The Series 2009-2 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity 
at the option of the Authority at any time, in whole or in part, upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event, at a 
redemption price equal to the greater of: (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2009-2 Bonds to be 
redeemed; or (2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest to the 
maturity date of the Series 2009-2 Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest 
accrued and unpaid as of the date on which the Series 2009-2 Bonds are to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, 
assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, at the  Treasury Rate, plus 100 basis points (1.00%); 
plus, in each case, accrued interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds to be redeemed to the redemption date.  The 
“Treasury Rate” is, as of any redemption date, the yield to maturity as of such redemption date of United States 
Treasury securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve 
Statistical Release H.15 (519) that has become publicly available at least two (2) Business Days prior to the 
redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any 
publicly available source of similar market data)) most nearly equal to the period from the redemption date to the 
maturity date of the Series 2009-2 Bonds to be redeemed; provided, however, that if the period from the redemption 
date to such maturity date is less than one (1) year, the weekly average yield on actually traded United States 
Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one (1) year will be used. 

An “Extraordinary Event” will have occurred if a material adverse change has occurred to Section 54AA or 
6431 of the Code (as such Sections were added by Section 1531 of ARRA, pertaining to “Build America Bonds”) or 
there is a guidance published by the Internal Revenue Service or the United States Treasury with respect to such 
Sections or any other determination by the Internal Revenue Service or United States Treasury pursuant to which 
Interest Subsidy Payments are reduced or eliminated.  The redemption price of the Series 2009-2 Bonds to be 
redeemed pursuant to the extraordinary optional redemption provision described above will be determined by an 
independent accounting firm, investment banking firm or financial advisor retained by the Authority at the 
Authority’s expense to calculate such redemption price.  The Trustee and the Authority may conclusively rely on the 
determination of such redemption price by such independent accounting firm, investment banking firm or financial 
advisor and will not be liable for such reliance. 
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Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee is required to give notice of redemption of any Series 2009-2 Bonds, 
specifying the date of redemption, the portions of the principal amounts thereof to be redeemed and the redemption 
price, by mailing, not more than sixty (60) days nor less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the 
registered owners of any Series 2009-2 Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed.  Notice of redemption will be 
mailed to DTC or its nominee, as registered owner of the Series 2009-2 Bonds.  The Trustee will not be responsible 
for mailing notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC or its nominee.  The Authority is not responsible for 
mailing any notice of redemption. 

Selection of Series 2009-2 Bonds To Be Redeemed Upon Partial Redemption.  If the Series 2009-2 Bonds 
that are Term Bonds are not registered in book-entry only form, any redemption of less than all of the Series 2009-2 
Bonds shall be allocated among the registered owners of such Series 2009-2 Bonds that are Term Bonds as nearly as 
practicable in proportion to the principal amounts of the Series 2009-2 Bonds that are Term Bonds owned by each 
registered owner, subject to the authorized denominations applicable to the Series 2009-2 Bonds that are Term 
Bonds.  This will be calculated based on the formula: (principal to be redeemed) x (principal amount owned by 
owner) / (principal amount outstanding).  The particular Series 2009-2 Bonds that are Term Bonds to be redeemed 
shall be determined by the Trustee, using such method as it shall deem fair and appropriate.  If the Series 2009-2 
Bonds that are Term Bonds are registered in book-entry only form and so long as DTC or a successor securities 
depository is the sole registered owner of the Series 2009-2 Bonds that are Term Bonds, partial redemptions will be 
done in accordance with DTC procedures.  It is the Authority’s intent that redemption allocations made by DTC, the 
DTC Participants or such other intermediaries that may exist between the Authority and the Beneficial Owners be 
made in accordance with these same proportional provisions.  However, the Authority can provide no assurance that 
DTC, the DTC Participants or any other intermediaries will allocate redemptions among Beneficial Owners on such 
a proportional basis. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been given in the manner provided above, and money 
sufficient for the redemption being held by the Trustee for the purpose, the Series 2009-2 Bonds so called for 
redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and interest thereon shall cease to accrue and the 
owners of the Series 2009-2 Bonds so called for redemption shall thereafter no longer have any security or benefit 
under the Trust Agreement except to receive payment of the redemption price for such Series 2009-2 Bonds.  If such 
moneys are not available on the redemption date, the Series 2009-2 Bonds or portions thereof will continue to bear 
interest until paid at the same rate they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.  If, at the time of 
mailing of the notice of optional redemption, moneys have not been deposited with the Trustee in an amount 
sufficient to redeem all the Series 2009-2 Bonds called for redemption, such notice shall state that it is a conditional 
notice subject to the deposit of sufficient moneys not later than the opening of business on the redemption date, and 
any such notice shall be of no effect unless such moneys are deposited. 

Series 2009-3 Bonds 

General  
 
The Series 2009-3 Bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $28,570,000.  The Series 

2009-3 Bonds will be dated the date of initial delivery thereof, will mature (unless redeemed prior to maturity) on 
May 1 of each of the years and will bear interest from their date at the rates per annum, all as set forth on the inside 
cover page of this Official Statement.  Interest on the Series 2009-3 Bonds will be payable on May 1 and November 
1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2010.  The Series 2009-3 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking 
fund redemption as described below.   
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Redemption Provisions 
 
Redemption by Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series 2009-3 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2029 shall 

be redeemed as provided in the 2009-3 Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each 
of the following years in the principal amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2012 $  415,000 
2013     440,000 
2014     465,000 
2015     495,000 
2016     520,000 
2017     550,000 
2018     585,000 
2019     620,000 
2020     655,000 
2021     690,000 
2022     735,000 
2023     775,000 
2024     820,000 
2025     870,000 
2026     920,000 
2027     975,000 
2028   1,030,000 

 2029*   1,090,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 

The Series 2009-3 Bonds stated to mature on May 1, 2039 shall be redeemed as provided in the 2009-3 
Series Resolution by mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on May 1 of each of the following years in the principal 
amount set forth opposite the applicable year: 

Year Amount 

2030 $1,195,000 
2031   1,265,000 
2032   1,345,000 
2033   1,430,000 
2034   1,520,000 
2035   1,615,000 
2036   1,720,000 
2037   1,825,000 
2038   1,940,000 

 2039*   2,065,000 
_________________________ 
*  Final Maturity. 

On each of the foregoing dates, the Trustee shall call for redemption in the manner provided in the Trust 
Agreement and redeem the principal amount of such Series 2009-3 Bonds subject to redemption by mandatory 
Sinking Fund Installments.  The Redemption Price of such Series 2009-3 Bonds so redeemed shall be at the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued thereon to the date of redemption. 

Optional Redemption of Series 2009-3 Bonds With Make-Whole Payment.  The Series 2009-3 Bonds are 
subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to their stated maturity date, in whole or in part, on any 
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Business Day, at the Make-Whole Redemption Price, plus accrued and unpaid interest on the Series 2009-3 Bonds 
to be redeemed on the date fixed for redemption. 

The “Make-Whole Redemption Price” is the greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2009-
3 Bonds to be redeemed and (ii) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and 
interest on the Series 2009-3 Bonds to be redeemed, not including any portion of those payments of interest accrued 
and unpaid as of the date on which such Series 2009-3 Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted to the date on which 
the Series 2009-3 Bonds are to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 
30-day months, at the Treasury Rate (defined below) plus 25 basis points. 

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2009-3 Bond, the rate 
per annum, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount, equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity 
or interpolated maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming that the Comparable Treasury Issue is 
purchased on the redemption date for a price equal to the Comparable Treasury Price, as calculated by the 
Designated Investment Banker. 

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2009-3 
Bond, the United States Treasury security or securities selected by the Designated Investment Banker which has an 
actual or interpolated maturity comparable to the remaining average life of the Series 2009-3 Bond to be redeemed, 
and that would be utilized in accordance with customary financial practice in pricing new issues of debt securities of 
comparable maturity to the remaining average life of the Series 2009-3 Bond to be redeemed. 

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series 2009-3 
Bond: 

(1) the most recent yield data for the applicable U.S. Treasury maturity index from the Federal Reserve 
Statistical Release H.15 Daily Update (or any comparable or successor publication) reported, as of 11:00 a.m. New 
York City time, on the Valuation Date; or  

 
(2) if the yield described in (1) above is not reported as of such time or the yield reported as of such time is 

not ascertainable, the average of four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for that redemption date, after 
excluding the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, or if the Designated Investment 
Banker obtains fewer than four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all quotations obtained by the 
Designated Investment Banker.  

 
 “Designated Investment Banker” means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by the Authority.  
 
 “Reference Treasury Dealer” means each of not less than two firms, specified by the Authority from time 
to time, that are primary United States Government securities dealers in the City of New York (each, a “Primary 
Treasury Dealer”); provided, that if any of them ceases to be a Primary Treasury Dealer, the Authority will 
substitute another Primary Treasury Dealer.  
 
 “Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations” means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any 
redemption date for a particular Series 2009-3 Bond, the average, as determined by the Designated Investment 
Banker, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its 
principal amount) quoted in writing to the Designated Investment Banker by such Reference Treasury Dealer at 3:30 
p.m., New York City time, on the Valuation Date.  
 

“Valuation Date” means the third Business Day preceding the redemption date. 

Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee is required to give notice of redemption of any Series 2009-3 Bonds, 
specifying the date of redemption, the portions of the principal amounts thereof to be redeemed and the redemption 
price, by mailing, not more than sixty (60) days nor less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the 
registered owners of any Series 2009-3 Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed.  Notice of redemption will be 
mailed to DTC or its nominee, as registered owner of the Series 2009-3 Bonds.  The Trustee will not be responsible 
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for mailing notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC or its nominee.  The Authority is not responsible for 
mailing any notice of redemption. 

Selection of Series 2009-3 Bonds To Be Redeemed Upon Partial Redemption.  If the Series 2009-3 Bonds 
that are Term Bonds are not registered in book-entry only form, any redemption of less than all of the Series 2009-3 
Bonds shall be allocated among the registered owners of such Series 2009-3 Bonds that are Term Bonds as nearly as 
practicable in proportion to the principal amounts of the Series 2009-3 Bonds that are Term Bonds owned by each 
registered owner, subject to the authorized denominations applicable to the Series 2009-3 Bonds that are Term 
Bonds.  This will be calculated based on the formula: (principal to be redeemed) x (principal amount owned by 
owner) / (principal amount outstanding).  The particular Series 2009-3 Bonds that are Term Bonds to be redeemed 
shall be determined by the Trustee, using such method as it shall deem fair and appropriate.  If the Series 2009-3 
Bonds that are Term Bonds are registered in book-entry only form and so long as DTC or a successor securities 
depository is the sole registered owner of the Series 2009-3 Bonds that are Term Bonds, partial redemptions will be 
done in accordance with DTC procedures.  It is the Authority’s intent that redemption allocations made by DTC, the 
DTC Participants or such other intermediaries that may exist between the Authority and the Beneficial Owners be 
made in accordance with these same proportional provisions.  However, the Authority can provide no assurance that 
DTC, the DTC Participants or any other intermediaries will allocate redemptions among Beneficial Owners on such 
a proportional basis. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been given in the manner provided above, and money 
sufficient for the redemption being held by the Trustee for the purpose, the Series 2009-3 Bonds so called for 
redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date, and interest thereon shall cease to accrue and the 
owners of the Series 2009-3 Bonds so called for redemption shall thereafter no longer have any security or benefit 
under the Trust Agreement except to receive payment of the redemption price for such Series 2009-3 Bonds.  If such 
moneys are not available on the redemption date, the Series 2009-3 Bonds or portions thereof will continue to bear 
interest until paid at the same rate they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.  If, at the time of 
mailing of the notice of optional redemption, moneys have not been deposited with the Trustee in an amount 
sufficient to redeem all the Series 2009-3 Bonds called for redemption, such notice shall state that it is a conditional 
notice subject to the deposit of sufficient moneys not later than the opening of business on the redemption date, and 
any such notice shall be of no effect unless such moneys are deposited. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority payable solely from the funds provided under the 
provisions of the Enabling Act, the Trust Agreement and the Series Resolutions. 

Pledge of Revenues and the Contract 

The Trust Agreement assigns and pledges to the Trustee and grants to the Trustee a security interest in all 
rights of the Authority under the Contract to receive all Revenues payable to the Authority thereunder and pledged 
under the Trust Agreement.  The Trust Agreement pledges to the Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds 
and all other bonds issued under the Trust Agreement (i) all moneys paid or payable for deposit in or on deposit in 
any Fund, Account or subaccount created under the Trust Agreement, all investments received or receivable for 
deposit in or on deposit in any Fund, Account or subaccount created under the Trust Agreement and all interest or 
other income on such investments paid or payable for deposit in or on deposit in any Fund, Account or subaccount 
created thereunder and all rights of the Authority to receive such moneys, investments and interest or other income 
(except for the Rebate Fund), subject to application of such moneys, investments and other income as provided in 
the Trust Agreement; (ii) (a) subject to the Trust Agreement, the Revenues from each Project financed or refinanced 
under the Trust Agreement and (b) the Revenues, including Secondary Revenues payable to the Authority from 
Other Projects, except the pledge made in clauses (ii)(a) and (b) does not include amounts necessary to pay for 
maintenance, repair and operation of any Project financed under the Trust Agreement, fees and expenses of the 
Trustee, any paying agent, insurance premiums, rent payable under lease agreements between the Authority and the 
Commonwealth, allocable operating and administrative expenses of the Authority and any amounts required by 
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Section 19C of the Enabling Act to be paid to the Treasurer and Receiver-General of the Commonwealth out of such 
Revenues. 

Pursuant to the Enabling Act, Revenues pledged by the Trust Agreement and received by the Authority in 
connection with the Projects financed or refinanced by any Series of Bonds issued under the Trust Agreement are 
pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest on all Outstanding Bonds under the Trust Agreement as they 
become due, the redemption price or the purchase price of Outstanding Bonds redeemed or purchased as provided in 
the Trust Agreement, and other costs payable with respect to Outstanding Bonds under the Trust Agreement. 

Interest Subsidy Payments received by the Authority with respect to the Series 2009-2 Bonds do not 
constitute Revenues under the Trust Agreement and are not pledged to the Bonds or other Senior Bonds.  See 
“INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT – Designation of Series 2009-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds.” 

The Bonds are on a parity with all other Senior Bonds previously issued and Outstanding under the Trust 
Agreement and with all Senior Bonds hereafter issued and Outstanding under the Trust Agreement dated as of 
December 1, 2000 (the “Facilities Trust Agreement”), between the Authority and the Trustee. 

As authorized by the Enabling Act, the University Trustees have agreed in the Contract to maintain, repair 
and operate the Projects financed or refinanced by the Bonds or to cause such Projects to be so maintained, repaired 
and operated and have agreed in the Contract to remit to the Trustee Revenues in an aggregate amount at least equal 
to debt service on the Bonds and related expenses.  See Appendix D under the heading “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT.” 

With respect to the aggregate of all Revenues from the Projects and from any other projects or property the 
Revenues from which are pledged under the Trust Agreement, the Contract requires that the Authority fix and revise 
fees, rents, rates and other charges so as to: (1) maintain, insofar as consistent with such requirements, reasonable 
uniformity in charges for like accommodations at the University and (2) provide Revenues sufficient to (a) pay the 
cost of maintaining, repairing and operating the Projects and such other projects and property, if any, to the extent 
that the University Trustees have not undertaken to provide such maintenance, repair and operation, (b) pay the fees 
and expenses of the Trustee, fees and expenses of any paying or fiscal agent appointed by the Authority in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds or any other notes or bonds secured or provided for under the Trust 
Agreement, premiums of insurance maintained by the Authority with respect to the Projects and such other projects 
and property and rentals payable by the Authority under any lease or leases of land on which the Projects or any 
other such project or property may be located, (c) pay the principal of (including Sinking Fund Installments) and the 
interest on the Bonds and notes and bonds issued to finance or refinance such other projects or property, as such 
principal and interest shall become due and payable, (d) pay such portions of the operating and administrative 
expenses of the Authority (which shall include any amount (the “Rebate Amount”) required by the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) or other applicable law to be rebated by the Authority with respect to the 
Series 2009-1 and the Series 2009-2 Bonds, as applicable, to the United States of America and not provided from 
other funds of the Authority) as the Authority shall deem properly allocable to the Projects and such other projects 
and property, (e) pay amounts payable by the Authority under the Series Resolutions and any other contract or other 
arrangement with respect to the Bonds, (f) create or maintain reserves, if any, for any of the foregoing purposes as 
may be required under any resolution of the Authority as may be required or permitted by the Trust Agreement, and 
(g) pay the amount, if any, required by Section 19C of the Enabling Act to be paid to the Commonwealth to repay 
certain appropriations or other expenditures, if any. 

Under the Contract, the Authority shall certify to the University Trustees (with a copy to the Trustee) on or 
before December 1, 2009 (for the period through October 31, 2010) and each March 1 thereafter for the twelve-
month period commencing the next succeeding November 1, the amount estimated for each component of the 
Projects, detailing (i) the Authority’s projected debt service costs and fees and expenses related to the Bonds, (ii) the 
Authority’s projected operating and administrative costs, (iii) any projected required deposits to reserves, (iv) any 
projected payments to the Commonwealth pursuant to Section 19C of the Act, (v) any additional reserves it may 
propose to create or augment consistent with the Trust Agreement and (vi)  the amount, if any, payable to the 
University Trustees to reimburse Specific Revenue Project expenses incurred by the University Trustees 
(collectively, the “Certified Amount”). Such certificate, which may be revised from time to time as necessary, shall 
state the dates within such period when any portion of the Certified Amount shall be due, the portion of the Certified 
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Amount due on such dates, the payee of such amount and payment instructions, the source of such payments and the 
amount payable from each source.  The Certified Amount shall also detail the fees, rents, rates and other charges 
proposed for the use of the Projects, which shall be fixed so as to be sufficient, in the aggregate, together with other 
available moneys, to cover all of the costs and transfers to reserves as aforesaid allocable to the Projects.  The 
Certified Amount shall be paid from Revenues generated from Specific Revenue Projects, University Eligible Gifts 
(as defined in Appendix D), Authority Eligible Gifts (as defined in Appendix D), other available Revenues of the 
Authority and all funds of the University permitted by law to be applied thereto, including without limitation 
amounts available in the University’s Unrestricted Net Assets (as defined in Appendix D).  See Appendix D under 
the heading “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT.” 

Under the Contract, the University Trustees pledge to the making of payments required thereunder all 
available funds of the University, including trust funds and other funds administered by the University Trustees as 
gifts, grants or trusts, or as provided in the University enabling act. 

The University shall cause to be available in the Unrestricted Net Assets at all times amounts sufficient to 
pay such portion of the Certified Amount required to be paid therefrom and to provide for any other payments 
required under the Prior Contracts or under the HEFA Financing Agreements (as defined in Appendix D).  See 
Appendix D under the heading “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT.” 

On or before April 1, 2010, and on or before April 1 of each year thereafter, the President of the University 
or the Senior Vice President for Administration, Finance and Technology and University Treasurer, or such other 
officer as delegated pursuant to the provisions of the Contract, shall certify in writing to the Authority whether or 
not there are sufficient funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets to pay the amounts so required to be paid therefrom and, 
if so, that such funds will be held in trust in the Unrestricted Net Assets for the equal and ratable benefit of the 
Authority and each other person or entity for whose benefit amounts will be applied to the payment of amounts 
required to be paid therefrom and will not be expended for any other purpose. Such funds will be so held and not 
expended for any other purpose; provided, however, that if any portion of the Certified Amount is paid from 
University Eligible Gifts, Authority Eligible Gifts, other Authority revenues or Revenues from Specific Revenue 
Projects, then after any such payment an amount equal to such portion so paid need no longer be held in the 
Unrestricted Net Assets. 

If such certification states that sufficient funds are not available in the Unrestricted Net Assets to pay such 
amounts, such certification shall state the amount of funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets that are available to pay a 
portion of such amounts and a ratable portion of such funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets shall be held in trust for 
the benefit of the Authority to be applied to the payment pro rata of all amounts payable to or for the account of the 
Authority from the Unrestricted Net Assets.  The University will continue to be obligated to pay any portion (or, if 
applicable, all) of the Certified Amount payable from all funds of the University permitted by law to be applied 
thereto notwithstanding any shortfall in amounts available in the Unrestricted Net Assets. 

If such certification states that sufficient funds are not available in the Unrestricted Net Assets to pay such 
amounts, or if the Authority has not received such certificate as required by the Contract, the Authority will 
promptly adopt or revise mandatory fees, rates, rents and other charges for the use of the Projects and any portion 
thereof to be charged and billed to and collected from students in the University and provide for the billing, 
collection and remittance of such fees rates, rents and other charges by the University Trustees at such times and in 
such manner as in the judgment of the Authority will produce moneys sufficient and available to meet the 
requirements hereof.  The Authority shall promptly notify the University Trustees in writing of the matters set forth 
in the foregoing sentence.  Although the Contract requires that any fixing or revision of charges by the Authority 
receive the prior written approval of the University Trustees, the University Trustees have agreed in the Contract to 
approve, and have agreed to confirm such approval from time to time, all fees, rents, rates and other charges adopted 
or revised by the Authority as described in this paragraph and have agreed to cause the same to be billed to and 
collected from students in the University as the Authority may provide and remitted as the Authority may provide. 

The undertakings by the University Trustees to perform or cause to be performed maintenance, repair and 
operation of the Projects are declared by the Contract to constitute that portion of fees, rents, rates and other charges 
which are necessary to pay the cost of maintenance, repair and operation. 
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All Revenues collected or received by the Commonwealth or the University, from whatever source, as 
payment of fees, rents, rates or other charges for the use and occupancy of a Project, including without limitation 
Revenues from Specific Revenue Projects and from the Unrestricted Net Assets, shall be held in trust for the 
Authority separate from all other moneys, held by the University or the Commonwealth.  Such Pledged Funds shall 
be applied solely as provided in the Enabling Act, the Contract (including the Certified Amount), the Series 
Resolutions or the Trust Agreement and shall be remitted by the University Trustees to the Trustee under the Trust 
Agreement at such times and in such amounts as may be directed in writing by the Authority in accordance with the 
Authority’s annual Certified Amount. 

Rate Covenant 

Under the Trust Agreement, the Authority covenants that it will fix, revise, adjust and collect Charges for 
use of each Project and any other projects or property the Revenues from which are pledged under such Trust 
Agreement to provide Revenues sufficient in the aggregate to pay all expenses of the Authority allocable to projects 
financed or refinanced under such Trust Agreement and debt service on all bonds issued and outstanding under such 
Trust Agreement, all as set forth in Appendix D – “Summary of Legal Documents.” 

Additional Indebtedness 

The Trust Agreement provides that the Authority may issue additional bonds on a parity with or 
subordinate to the Bonds issued under the Trust Agreement. See Appendix D – “Summary of Legal Documents.” 

Pursuant to the Financing Agreement dated as of September 12, 2006 by and between Massachusetts 
Health and Educational Facilities Authority (“MHEFA”) and the University, acting in the name and on behalf of the 
Commonwealth, and pursuant to the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of September 12, 2006 among MHEFA, 
the University and Chittenden Trust Company, as Trustee providing for the issuance of Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, University of Massachusetts Issue, Series D (2007), Worcester 
City Campus Corporation Issue (University of Massachusetts Project) Series E (2007) and Worcester  City Campus 
Corporation Issue (University of Massachusetts Project) Series F (2007), the University agreed not to request or 
permit the Authority to issue additional indebtedness on behalf of the University except (i) indebtedness that is 
payable from all available funds of the University or (ii) indebtedness secured by pledged revenues derived from the 
project or projects being financed, new or increased student fees, existing pledged revenues or any combination of 
the foregoing, provided, that the maximum annual debt service on all such revenue-backed indebtedness then 
outstanding, including the proposed additional indebtedness, does not exceed 10% of the amount shown on the then 
most recent audited financial statements of the University as total available revenues. In addition, no such 
indebtedness shall be subject to acceleration.  For a description of the Authority’s bonds outstanding as of June 30, 
2008 under the Trust Agreement and the Facilities Trust Agreement, see Appendix B. 
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Annual Debt Service Requirements on the Bonds 

The following table sets forth for each fiscal year ending June 30 the debt service on outstanding bonds 
under the Trust Agreement and the Facilities Trust Agreement, following the issuance of the Bonds, including 
principal (whether at maturity or by mandatory sinking fund redemption), interest and total debt service. 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

Debt Service 
on 

Outstanding 
Authority 
Bonds* 

Principal of 
Series  
2009-1 
Bonds 

Interest on 
Series 
2009-1 
Bonds 

Principal of 
Series  
2009-2 
Bonds 

Interest on 
Series 
2009-2 
Bonds 

Principal 
of Series  
2009-3 
Bonds 

Interest on 
Series 
2009-3 
Bonds 

Total Debt 
Service 

Requirements 
for the Bonds 

Total Debt 
Service on 
Authority 

Bonds 
          

2010 $74,513,540 $3,400,000 $ 5,746,441 - $ 9,052,740 - $  878,779 $19,077,960 $ 93,591,500 
2011   77,888,337   4,290,000 11,175,038  - 17,711,882 -  1,719,351 34,896,270  112,784,607 
2012   77,379,479 11,455,000 11,089,238 - 17,711,882 $ 415,000  1,719,351 42,390,470  119,769,949 
2013   76,116,710 11,795,000 10,745,588 - 17,711,882    440,000  1,695,186 42,387,655  118,504,365 
2014   74,793,797 12,785,000 10,391,738 - 17,711,882    465,000  1,669,564 43,023,184  117,816,980 
2015   71,905,488 12,600,000   9,936,288 - 17,711,882    495,000  1,642,488 42,385,657  114,291,145 
2016   69,944,497 13,530,000   9,339,838 - 17,711,882    520,000  1,613,664 42,715,383  112,659,880 
2017   67,036,807 16,285,000   8,720,188 - 17,711,882    550,000  1,583,384 44,850,453  111,887,260 
2018   67,064,896 14,570,000   7,986,388 - 17,711,882    585,000  1,551,358 42,404,627  109,469,523 
2019   66,955,737 15,285,000   7,257,888 - 17,711,882    620,000  1,517,293 42,392,062  109,347,799 
2020   67,016,624 15,890,000   6,493,638 - 17,711,882    655,000  1,481,190 42,231,710  109,248,333 
2021   67,070,027 16,685,000   5,699,138 - 17,711,882    690,000  1,443,050 42,229,069  109,299,096 
2022   55,451,176 17,500,000   4,874,263 - 17,711,882    735,000  1,402,871 42,224,015   97,675,192 
2023   55,538,070 18,380,000   3,999,263 - 17,711,882    775,000  1,360,072 42,226,216   97,764,286 
2024   55,639,792 10,000,000   3,080,263 $ 8,875,000 17,711,882    820,000  1,314,944 41,802,088   97,441,880 
2025   47,972,507   2,530,000   2,580,263 17,645,000 17,141,840    870,000  1,267,195 42,034,298   90,006,805 
2026   48,049,095   2,660,000   2,453,763 18,375,000 16,008,502    920,000  1,216,535 41,633,800   89,682,895 
2027   44,931,588   2,770,000   2,340,713 19,145,000 14,828,276    975,000  1,162,963 41,221,952   86,153,540 
2028   44,349,242   2,890,000   2,222,988 19,950,000 13,598,592 1,030,000  1,106,189 40,797,769   85,147,011 
2029   41,079,474   3,010,000   2,100,163 20,775,000 12,317,204 1,090,000  1,046,212 40,338,579   81,418,053 
2030   38,315,563   3,145,000   1,968,475 14,235,000 10,982,826 1,195,000     982,742 32,509,042   70,824,605 
2031   28,197,036   3,300,000   1,812,425 14,840,000 10,047,159 1,265,000     908,974 32,173,558   60,370,595 
2032   28,272,781   3,465,000   1,648,675 15,470,000   9,071,726 1,345,000     830,886 31,831,287   60,104,068 
2033   28,346,803   3,635,000   1,476,725 16,135,000   8,054,883 1,430,000     747,859 31,479,467   59,826,270 
2034   13,181,977   3,815,000   1,296,325 16,830,000   6,994,329 1,520,000     659,585 31,115,239   44,297,216 
2035   13,200,485   4,010,000   1,107,000 16,450,000   5,888,093 1,615,000     565,755 29,635,849   42,836,334 
2036     6,639,851   4,205,000      906,500 17,155,000   4,806,835 1,720,000     466,062 29,259,396   35,899,248 
2037     6,648,748   4,420,000      696,250 17,880,000   3,679,237 1,825,000     359,886 28,860,373   35,509,121 
2038     6,648,881   4,635,000      475,250 18,650,000   2,503,984 1,940,000     247,229 28,451,463   35,100,344 
2039 -   4,870,000      243,500 19,445,000   1,278,120 2,065,000     127,472 28,029,092   28,029,092 

____________________ 
*  Includes interest on the Authority’s Series 2008-1 Bonds, 2008-A Bonds, 2008-3 Bonds and 2008-4 Bonds each issued as variable rate debt, 
outstanding as of June 30, 2008 in the principal amounts of $232,545,000, $26,580,000, $138,635,000 and $104,000,000, respectively, and 
amortizing in accordance with the terms thereof, assumed at the rates of 3.388%, with respect to the Series 2008-1 Bonds; 3.378%, with respect 
to the Series 2008-A Bonds; and 3.482%, with respect to the Series 2008-3 Bonds and Series 2008-4 Bonds, respectively.  These assumed rates 
are based on the fixed rates being paid to the counterparties under interest rate swap agreements associated with such Series 2008-1 Bonds, Series 
2008-A Bonds, and Series 2008-3 Bonds and Series 2008-4 Bonds.  See Appendix A under the heading  “INDEBTEDNESS OF THE 
AUTHORITY - The Authority” and Note 5 to the Financial Statements of the Authority for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 attached 
hereto as Appendix B. 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully 
registered Bond certificate will be issued for each stated maturity of Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of the 
applicable stated maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
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Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity 
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s 
participants (“Participants” or “Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through 
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the 
need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding 
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which 
are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC 
system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating:  AAA.  The DTC 
Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information 
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will 
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond 
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners 
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to 
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, 
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of 
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing 
their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is 
discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC.  The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such 
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 
accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice 
is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such Bonds to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds 
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy 
assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Authority or 
Trustee on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case 
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the 
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responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Trustee, 
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to the Authority or Paying Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

THE INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 
HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE AUTHORITY BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT 
NEITHER THE AUTHORITY NOR THE UNDERWRITER TAKE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY 
THEREOF. 

No Responsibility of the Authority or the Trustee 

NEITHER THE AUTHORITY NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR 
OBLIGATIONS TO DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE FOR DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, 
INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, AS NOMINEE OF 
DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE HOLDERS OR REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE BONDS SHALL 
MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS. 

Certificated Bonds 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority and the Trustee.  In addition, the Authority may determine that 
continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the 
best interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  If for either reason the Book-Entry Only system is 
discontinued, Bond certificates will be delivered as described in the Agreement and the Beneficial Owner, upon 
registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the holder of such Bond.  Thereafter, 
the Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of the Bonds in other authorized 
denominations and of the same maturity, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.  
The transfer of the Bonds may be registered on the books maintained by the Trustee for such purpose only upon the 
assignment in the form satisfactory to the Trustee.  For every exchange or registration of transfer of the Bonds, the 
Authority and the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge 
required to be paid with respect to such exchange or registration of transfer, but no other charge may be made to the 
holder of such Bond for any exchange or registration of transfer of the Bonds.  The Trustee will not be required to 
transfer or exchange the Bonds during the notice period preceding any redemption if such Bonds (or any part 
thereof) are eligible to be selected or have been selected for redemption. 

THE AUTHORITY 

General 

The Authority was created by the Enabling Act as a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality 
placed in the Commonwealth’s Department of Education, but not subject to the supervision or regulation of that 
Department or of any other department, commission, board, bureau or agency of the Commonwealth except as 
specifically provided in the Enabling Act. 
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The Authority was created for the general purpose of aiding and contributing to the performance of the 
educational and other purposes of the University by providing dormitories, dining commons and other buildings and 
structures primarily (i) for the use of the University, its students, staff and their dependents, (ii) for lease to or use by 
an organization or association of students or others, the activities of which are a part of the activities at the 
University and subject to regulation by the University Trustees, (iii) for a research foundation or other research 
organization the operation of which in conjunction with the University is approved by the University Trustees, or 
(iv) any other entity the activities of which are approved by the University Trustees as furthering the purposes of the 
University. 

The Enabling Act prohibits the Authority from refunding outstanding bonds except upon approval of the 
University Trustees. 

The Authority is empowered, among other things, to acquire, construct, remove, demolish, add to, alter, 
enlarge, reconstruct, remodel and do other work upon any building or structure and to provide and install 
furnishings, furniture, machinery, equipment, approaches, driveways, walkways, parking areas, planting, 
landscaping and other facilities therein.  The Enabling Act authorizes the Authority, among other things, to acquire 
property from the Commonwealth or others (but the Authority has no eminent domain power), to rent or lease as 
lessor or lessee any portion of a project, to operate projects, to employ experts and other persons, to enter into 
contracts, to borrow money to finance and refinance projects it undertakes and to issue and sell its revenue bonds 
and notes therefor payable solely from its revenues. 

The Enabling Act establishes a $200,000,000 limit on the total outstanding principal amount of notes and 
bonds issued by the Authority which are guaranteed by the Commonwealth (excluding refunded notes or bonds), of 
which $156,245,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2008.  Since June 30, 2008 the Authority has issued no 
additional bonds guaranteed by the Commonwealth.  The Bonds are not guaranteed by the Commonwealth. 

The Enabling Act requires approval by the Treasurer and Receiver General of the Commonwealth and the 
Commissioner of Administration of the Commonwealth, or by their designees, of the sale and terms of bonds or 
notes sold by the Authority, which approval the Authority will obtain prior to the sale of the Bonds. 

Members, Officers and Staff 

The Authority consists of eleven members appointed by the Governor of the Commonwealth, five of whom 
shall be appointive members of the University Trustees and may, but need not, be graduates of the University, and 
two others of whom shall be graduates of the University.  Members from the University Trustees serve while they 
are University Trustees; each other member serves for a term expiring on June 30 in the sixth calendar year after the 
calendar year in which his or her term began (unless appointed to fill a vacancy in which case such member shall 
serve for the unexpired term).  Each member continues in office until his or her successor is appointed and qualified. 
The Authority annually elects a chairman and vice-chairman from its members and also elects a secretary-treasurer 
and may elect an assistant secretary-treasurer, neither of whom needs to be a member of the Authority. There are 
currently three vacancies in the members of the Authority. 
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The present members and officers of the Authority and the dates of expiration of their respective terms are 
as follows: 

Member’s Name, Position, Residence and Profession Date of Appointment Term Expires 

Robert K. Sheridan, Chair, Hingham 
Chief Executive Officer, Savings Bank Life Insurance 

2002 June 30, 2013 

Richard J. Lawton,* Vice Chair, North Easton 
Attorney 

2006 September 1, 2011 

Paul J. Carney, Secretary-Treasurer, San Francisco, California 2006 June 30, 2011 

Matthew E. Carlin,* Member, Natick 
President and Chief Executive Officer, Resource Options, Inc. 

2006 **  

Robert L. Fortes, Member, Boston 
Independent Transportation Consultant 

2006 June 30, 2012 

William F. Kennedy, Member, Quincy 
Attorney, Nutter McClennen & Fish, LLP 

2002 June 30, 2010 

Brian W. McNally, Member, Sudbury 
Principal, Atlantic Benefit Group 

2007 ** 

Stephen P. Tocco,* Member, Reading 
President and Chief Executive Officer, ML Strategies+ 

2006 September 1, 2011 

__________________________ 
*     University Trustee 
**  Term expired.  Member serves until successor is appointed. 
+     ML Strategies is an affiliate of Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Bond Counsel to the      
          Authority. 
 

David J. MacKenzie is the Executive Director of the Authority.  Prior to his appointment in 2004, Mr. 
MacKenzie was the Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance at the Boston campus of the University.  Mr. 
MacKenzie has also served as the Interim Chancellor at the UMass Boston and at the UMass Lowell campuses, as 
General Counsel to the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority and as the Staff Director of the 
Massachusetts Senate Committee on Ways and Means. 

Steven W. Dansby is the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Secretary-Treasurer of the Authority.  Mr. 
Dansby has previously served as Chief Financial Officer of the Massachusetts Housing Partnership Fund and 
American Red Cross of Massachusetts Bay.  He has also served as Director of Administration and Finance of the 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority. 

The Authority maintains offices at 333 South Street, 4th Floor, Shrewsbury, Massachusetts 01545.  The 
Authority’s telephone number is (774) 455-7250. 

For information about outstanding indebtedness of the Authority, see Appendix A under the heading 
“INDEBTEDNESS OF THE UNIVERSITY – The Authority.”  See Appendix B for a copy of the Authority’s 
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. 
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LITIGATION 

There is no litigation of any nature now pending or, to the knowledge of the Authority or its independent 
general counsel, threatened seeking to restrain or enjoin or restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale, execution or 
delivery of the Bonds or in any way contesting the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the Authority taken 
with respect to the issuance or sale thereof, the validity of the Contract, or any proceedings of the Authority or of the 
Commonwealth taken with respect thereto, or of the pledge of any moneys or security provided under the Trust 
Agreement for the payment of the Bonds or the existence or powers of the Authority or the titles of its officers to 
their offices. 

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT 

As declared by the Enabling Act, the Bonds are securities in which all public officers and public bodies of 
the Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all savings banks, insurance companies, trust companies in their 
commercial departments, and, within the limits set by Section 40 of Chapter 172 of the General Laws of the 
Commonwealth, banking associations, investment companies, executors, trustees and other fiduciaries, and all other 
persons whatsoever who are now or may hereto be authorized to invest in bonds or other obligations of a similar 
nature, may properly and legally invest funds, including capital, in their control or belonging to them.  The Bonds 
are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any state or municipal officer or 
any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or other 
obligations of the Commonwealth is now or may hereto be authorized by law. 

TAX MATTERS 

Series 2009-1 Bonds 

Bond Counsel is of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds, including any 
accrued original issue discount, as discussed below, will not be included in the gross income of the holders of the Series 
2009-1 Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  This opinion is expressly conditioned upon compliance with certain 
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), which requirements must be satisfied 
subsequent to the date of issuance of the Series 2009-1 Bonds in order to ensure that interest on the Series 2009-1 
Bonds is and continues to be excludable from the gross income of the holders thereof.  Failure to so comply could 
cause the interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds to be included in the gross income of the holders thereof, retroactive to 
the date of issuance of the Series 2009-1 Bonds.  In particular, and without limitation, those requirements include 
restrictions on the use, expenditure and investment of proceeds and payment of rebate, or penalties in lieu of rebate, to 
the United States, subject to certain exceptions.  The Authority has provided covenants and certificates as to continued 
compliance with such requirements. 

Certain of the Series 2009-1 Bonds will be used to finance facilities which will be used by the Worcester City 
Campus Corporation and the Edward M. Kennedy Institute for the Senate (the “EMK Institute”), each of which is a 
corporation which has received a determination from the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal 
income taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or by a successor entity which has received such a 
determination (the “Exempt Users”).  Such Bonds will be treated as “qualified 501(c)(3) bonds” under the Code and the 
maintenance of exempt status of each corporation requires compliance with general rules governing the organization 
and operation of tax-exempt entities, including its operation for charitable, educational, and scientific purposes, and its 
avoidance of transactions that may cause its earnings or assets to inure to the benefit of private individuals.  Failure of 
the Exempt Users to comply with the Internal Revenue Service’s requirements for the maintenance of their status 
as organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, or to operate their facilities financed by such Bonds in a 
manner that is substantially related to their charitable purpose under Section 513(a) of the Code, may result in interest 
payable with respect to such qualified 501(c)(3) Bonds being included in federal gross income, possibly from the date 
of the original issuance of such Bonds.  To maintain continued compliance, the Authority will obtain from the Exempt 
Users covenants and certificates with the requirements for maintaining their exempt status.  In addition, Bond Counsel 
has relied, among other things, on the opinion of counsel to the EMK Institute, regarding the current qualification of the 
EMK Institute as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  Such opinion is subject to a number of 
qualifications and limitations.  Bond Counsel has also relied on representations of the Exempt Users concerning their 
“unrelated trade or business” activities as defined in Section 513(a) of the Code. 



 21 
 

 In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds will not constitute a 
preference item under section 57(a)(5) of the Code for purposes of computation of the alternative minimum tax 
imposed on certain individuals and corporations under section 55 of the Code and will not be included in “adjusted 
current earnings” when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income under section 56(g) of the Code.  
The foregoing opinions reflect the enactment of ARRA, which includes provisions that modify the treatment under the 
alternative minimum tax of interest on certain bonds, such as the Series 2009-1 Bonds, issued in 2009 and 2010. 

 Interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds includes any accrued original issue discount.  Original issue discount 
with respect to a Series 2009-1 Bond is equal to the excess, if any, of the stated redemption price at maturity of a 
Series 2009-1 Bond over the initial offering price at which price a substantial amount of all Series 2009-1 Bonds 
with the same maturity were sold (other than to underwriters and other intermediaries).  Original issue discount 
accrues actuarially over the term of a Series 2009-1 Bond and results in a corresponding increase in the holder’s tax 
basis in such Series 2009-1 Bond.  Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the computation of 
original issue discount during the period in which any such Series 2009-1 Bond is held. 

 An amount equal to the excess, if any, of the purchase price of a Series 2009-1 Bond over the principal 
amount payable at maturity generally constitutes amortizable bond premium.  The required amortization of such 
premium during the term of a Series 2009-1 Bond will result in reduction of the holder’s tax basis in such Series 
2009-1 Bond.  Such amortization also will result in reduction of the amount of the stated interest on the Series 2009-
1 Bond taken into account as interest for tax purposes.  Holders of Series 2009-1 Bonds purchased at a premium 
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination and treatment of such premium. 

 Bond Counsel has not opined as to other federal tax consequences of holding the Series 2009-1 Bonds. 
However, prospective purchasers should be aware that (i) section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on 
indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the Series 2009-1 Bonds or, in the case of a financial 
institution, that portion of the holder’s interest expense allocated to such Bonds, provided, however, that under ARRA, 
the Series 2009-1 Bonds, and certain other similar bonds issued in 2009 and 2010 and held by such financial institution 
may not be required to be taken into account in such allocation to the extent they do not in the aggregate exceed 2% of 
the average adjusted basis of the assets of the holder, subject to the requirement that interest on indebtedness otherwise 
allocable to bonds which are for that reason excluded from such allocation be treated as a financial institution 
preference item as to which deductibility is reduced by 20%, (ii) with respect to insurance companies subject to the tax 
imposed by section 831 of the Code, section 832(b)(5)(B)(1) reduces the deduction for losses incurred by 15% of the 
sum of certain items, including interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds, (iii) interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds earned by 
certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States could be subject to a foreign branch profits tax imposed 
by section 884 of the Code, (iv) passive investment income, including interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds, may be 
subject to federal income taxation under section 1375 of the Code for an S Corporation that has Subchapter C earnings 
and profits at the close of the taxable year if greater than 25% of the gross receipts of such S Corporation is passive 
investment income, (v) section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain Railroad 
Retirement benefits to take into account in determining gross income receipts or accruals of interest on the Series 2009-
1 Bonds and (vi) receipt of investment income, including interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds, may, pursuant to section 
32(i) of the Code, disqualify the recipient from obtaining the earned income credit otherwise provided by section 32(a) 
of the Code. 

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance of the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds may affect the tax exempt status of interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds or the tax 
consequences of ownership of the Series 2009-1 Bonds.  No assurance can be given that future legislation, or 
amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, will not contain provisions which could directly or indirectly reduce 
the benefit of the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes.  

 Interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2009-1 Bonds is now generally required to be 
reported by payors to the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and to recipients in the same manner as interest on taxable 
obligations.  In addition, such interest may be subject to “backup withholding” if the Series 2009-1 Bond owner fails to 
provide the information required on IRS Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, or 
the IRS has specifically identified the Series 2009-1 Bond owner as being subject to backup withholding because of 
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prior underreporting.  Neither the information reporting requirement nor the backup withholding requirement affects 
the excludability of interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds from gross income for federal tax purposes. 

Series 2009-2 Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds 

The following discussion briefly summarizes the principal U.S. federal tax consequences of the acquisition, 
ownership, and disposition of the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds for holders who acquire any 
Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 2009-3 Bonds in the initial offering and hold such Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 
2009-3 Bonds as “capital assets.”  It does not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation which may apply to 
a particular holder, nor does it discuss U.S. federal income tax provisions which may apply to particular categories 
of holders, such as partnerships, insurance companies, financial institutions, regulated investment companies, real 
estate investment trusts, employee benefit plans, tax-exempt organizations, dealers in securities or foreign 
currencies, persons holding Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 2009-3 Bonds as a position in a “hedge” or “straddle,” or 
holders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.  It is based upon provisions of existing law which are 
subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect. 

Except as otherwise explicitly noted below, this summary addresses only “U.S. Holders”, that is, individual 
citizens or residents of the United States, corporations or other business entities organized under the laws of the 
United States, any state, or the District of Columbia, estates with income subject to United States federal income tax, 
trusts subject to primary supervision by a United States court and for which United States persons control all 
substantial decisions, and certain other trusts that elect to be treated as United States persons.  Except as otherwise 
explicitly noted in the discussion of Massachusetts taxes below, this discussion relates only to U.S. federal income 
taxes and not to any state, local or foreign taxes or U.S. federal taxes other than income taxes. 

 Interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds that is “qualified stated interest” generally 
will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest income at the time such payments are accrued or are received (in 
accordance with the U.S. Holder’s regular method of tax accounting).  Generally, “qualified stated interest” means 
stated interest that is unconditionally payable in cash or property (other than debt instruments of the issuer) at least 
annually at a single fixed rate and includes the semi-annual interest payments as set forth on the inside cover hereof. 

Because the Authority will elect to receive Interest Subsidy Payments, holders of the Series 2009-2 Bonds 
will not be entitled to any federal tax credits as to Build America Bonds in connection with their holding of Series 
2009-2 Bonds. See “INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT — Designation of Series 2009-2 Bonds as Build America 
Bonds.” 

 Interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds includes any accrued original issue 
discount.  Original issue discount with respect to a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond is equal to the 
excess, if any, of the stated redemption price at maturity of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond over the 
initial offering price thereof, excluding underwriters and other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of 
all Series 2009-2 Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds with the same maturity were sold, provided that such excess 
equals or exceeds a de minimis amount (generally ¼% of the stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the 
number of complete years from its issue date to its maturity).  A U.S. Holder of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 
2009-3 Bond with original issue discount must include the discount in income as ordinary interest for federal income 
tax purposes as it accrues in advance of receipt of the cash payments attributable to such income, regardless of the 
U.S. Holder’s regular method of tax accounting.  Original issue discount accrues actuarially over the term of a Series 
2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond and results in a corresponding increase in the holder’s tax basis in such Series 
2009-2 Bond or Series 2009-3 Bond.  Holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the computation 
of original issue discount during the period in which any such Series 2009-2 Bond or Series 2009-3 Bond is held. 

 An amount equal to the excess, if any, of the purchase price of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 
Bond over the principal amount payable at maturity generally constitutes amortizable bond premium.  A holder of a 
Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond may elect to amortize such premium during the term of such Series 
2009-2 Bond or Series 2009-3 Bond by claiming a deduction to offset interest otherwise required to be included in 
income during any taxable year by the amortizable amount of such premium for the taxable year.  Such amortization 
will result in a corresponding reduction of the holder’s tax basis in such Series 2009-2 Bond or Series 2009-3 Bond.  
Any election to amortize bond premium applies to all taxable debt instruments held by the holder at the beginning of 
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the first taxable year to which the election applies and to all taxable debt instruments acquired on or after such date 
and may be revoked only with the consent of the Internal Revenue Service.  Holders of Series 2009-2 Bonds or 
Series 2009-3 Bonds purchased at a premium should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the determination 
and treatment of amortizable bond premium. 

Unless a non-recognition provision of the Code applies, upon the sale, exchange, redemption, or other 
disposition (including a legal defeasance) of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond, a U.S. Holder will 
recognize taxable gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized (other than amounts 
representing accrued but unpaid interest) and such holder’s adjusted tax basis in such Series 2009-2 Bond or Series 
2009-3 Bond.  Such gain or loss generally will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Series 2009-2 Bond or the 
Series 2009-3 Bond was held for more than one year.  If the U.S. Holder is an individual, long-term gains will be 
subject to reduced rates of taxation.  The deductibility of losses is subject to limitations. 

A non-U.S. Holder of Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 2009-3 Bonds whose income from such Series 2009-2 
Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds is effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business generally will 
be taxed as if the holder were a U.S. Holder.  Otherwise: (i) a Non-U.S. Holder who is an individual or corporation 
(or an entity treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes) holding Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 2009-3 
Bonds on its own behalf generally will not be subject to federal income taxes on payments of principal, premium, 
interest or original issue discount on a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond, as long as the Non-U.S. Holder 
makes an appropriate filing with a U.S. withholding agent; and (ii) a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to federal 
income taxes on any amount which constitutes capital gain upon retirement or disposition of a Series 2009-2 Bond 
or a Series 2009-3 Bond unless such Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 
days or more in the taxable year of the disposition and such gain is derived from sources within the United States. 

Information as to interest on or proceeds from the sale or other disposition of Series 2009-2 Bonds or Series 
2009-3 Bonds is required to be reported by payors to the IRS and to recipients.  In addition, backup withholding 
may apply unless the holder of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond provides to a withholding agent its 
taxpayer identification number and certain other information or certification of foreign or other exempt status.  Any 
amount withheld under the backup withholding rules is allowable as a refund or credit against the holder’s actual 
U.S. federal income tax liability. 

To ensure compliance with Internal Revenue Service Circular 230, prospective purchasers of Series 
2009-2 Bonds and Series 2009-3 Bonds are hereby informed that (1) any federal tax advice contained herein is 
not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for purposes of avoiding penalties 
that may be imposed on the taxpayer, (2) any such federal tax advice is written to support the promotion or 
marketing of the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds, and (3) each purchaser of a Series 2009-2 
Bond or a Series 2009-3 Bond should seek advice based on such purchaser’s particular circumstances from 
an independent tax advisor. 

State Tax Matters 

 In the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on the sale thereof are exempt 
from Massachusetts personal income taxes and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  
Bond Counsel has not opined as to the other Massachusetts tax consequences resulting from holding the Bonds.  
However, prospective purchasers should be aware that the Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate 
and inheritance taxes, and the Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the measure of Massachusetts corporate 
excise and franchise taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to the taxability of the Bonds, their transfer and the income 
therefrom, including any profit made on the sale thereof, under the laws of states other than the Commonwealth. 

On the date of delivery of the Bonds, the original purchasers of the Bonds will be furnished with an opinion 
of Bond Counsel substantially in the form shown in “Proposed Form of Opinions of Bond Counsel” attached hereto 
as Appendix E. 
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RATINGS 

The Series 2009-1 Bonds have been rated “Aa3” and “A+”, respectively, by Moody’s Investors Service 
(“Moody’s”) and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services , a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. (“Standard 
&Poor’s”).  The Series 2009-2 Bonds have been rated “Aa3” and “A+”, respectively, by Moody’s and Standard & 
Poor’s.  The Series 2009-3 Bonds have been rated “Aa3” and “A+”, respectively, by Moody’s and Standard & 
Poor’s. 

Such ratings reflect only the respective views of such organizations, and an explanation of the significance 
of such ratings may be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same. There is no assurance that a rating will 
continue for any given period of time or that a rating will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by any or all of such 
rating agencies, if in its or their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or withdrawal of a 
rating could have an adverse effect on the market prices of the Bonds. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

All legal matters related to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the approval of Mintz, 
Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel for the Authority. The 
approving opinions of Bond Counsel, substantially in the form attached hereto as Appendix E, will be delivered on 
the date of delivery of the Bonds.  Certain matters will be passed upon for the Authority by its counsel, Burns & 
Levinson LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, and for the Underwriters by their counsel, McCarter & English, LLP, 
Boston, Massachusetts. 

DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES 

At the time of delivery of the Bonds, the Executive Director of the Authority will furnish a certificate to the 
effect that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date and the Official 
Statement as of its date and as of the date of delivery of the Bonds do not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the 
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading.  To the extent that such certificate covers information 
regarding the University, the Executive Director of the Authority will rely solely upon the certificates of the 
University discussed in the following paragraphs. 

At the time of delivery of the Bonds, the President and Senior Vice President for Administration, Finance 
and Technology, and Treasurer, of the University will deliver a certificate to the effect that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, the information set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the University, as of 
the date of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the information set forth in the Official Statement relating to the 
University, as of the date of the Official Statement and the date of delivery of the Bonds did not contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of 
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by the applicable Underwriters, for whom Citigroup Global 
Markets Inc., is acting as representative.  The applicable Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to 
purchase all of the Series 2009-1 Bonds from the Authority at a purchase price of $260,838,458.47, which is equal 
to the par amount of the Series 2009-1 Bonds, plus net original issue premium of $14,163,671.80, less Underwriters’ 
discount of $1,135,213.33.  The applicable Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all 
of the Series 2009-2 Bonds from the Authority at a purchase price of $269,752,931.93, which is equal to the par 
amount of the Series 2009-2 Bonds, less Underwriters’ discount of $2,102,068.07.  The applicable Underwriters 
have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase all of the Series 2009-3 Bonds from the Authority at a 
purchase price of $28,349,087.83, which is equal to the par amount of the Series 2009-3 Bonds, less Underwriters’ 
discount of $220,912.17.  The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers 
depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the 
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inside cover page hereof.  The principal offering prices of the Bonds set forth on the inside cover hereof may be 
changed from time to time after the initial offering by the Underwriters. 

Citigroup Inc. and Morgan Stanley, the respective parent companies of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and 
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, each an underwriter of the Bonds, have entered into a retail brokerage joint 
venture.  As part of the joint venture each of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated 
will distribute municipal securities to retail investors through the financial advisor network of a new broker-dealer, 
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC.  This distribution arrangement became effective on June 1, 2009.  As part of 
this arrangement, each of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated will compensate 
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its selling efforts in connection with their respective allocations of Bonds. 

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., one of the underwriters of the Bonds, has entered into an agreement (the 
“Distribution Agreement”) with UBS Financial Services Inc. for the retail distribution of certain municipal securities 
offerings at the original issue prices.  Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement (if applicable for this transaction), J.P. 
Morgan Securities Inc. will share a portion of its underwriting compensation with respect to the Bonds with UBS 
Financial Services Inc. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Authority and the University will undertake to provide annual reports and notices of certain events. A 
description of these undertakings is set forth in Appendix F attached hereto. 

To date, the Authority and the University have complied with all of their undertakings under paragraph 
(b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Public Financial Management, Inc. (“PFM”) is serving as financial advisor to the Authority for the issuance 
of the Bonds.  PFM is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken, either to make an independent verification 
of or to assume responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this 
Official Statement.  PFM is an independent financial advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of 
underwriting, trading, or distributing securities. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE AUTHORITY 

The financial statements of the Authority as of June 30, 2008 and for the fiscal year then ended, included in 
this Official Statement as Appendix B, have been audited by Carlin, Charron & Rosen, LLP, certified public 
accountants, as stated in their report, dated October 14, 2008, which report is also included in Appendix B. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY 

The audited financial statements of the University, except as they relate to the Authority and the University 
of Massachusetts Dartmouth Foundation, Inc., as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and for each of the fiscal years then 
ended, included in this Official Statement as Appendix C, have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 
independent accountants, as set forth in their report dated December 5, 2008.  The audited financial statements of the 
University of Massachusetts Dartmouth Foundation, Inc., not separately presented in this Official Statement, have 
been audited by O’Connor & Drew, P.C. whose report thereon is not included herein.  Insofar as such financial 
statements, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, relate to the financial statements of the Authority, such financial 
statements have been audited by Carlin, Charron & Rosen, LLP, certified public accountants, whose report thereon 
appears herein in Appendix B.  

MISCELLANEOUS 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Enabling Act, the Trust Agreement, the Series 
Resolutions and the Contract contained herein do not purport to be complete and reference is made to said laws and 
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documents for full and complete statements of their provisions.  The Appendices attached hereto are a part of this 
Official Statement.  Copies, in reasonable quantity, of the Trust Agreement, the Series Resolutions and the Contract 
may be obtained upon request directed to the University of Massachusetts Building Authority, 333 South Street, 4th 
Floor, Shrewsbury, Massachusetts 01545, Attention: Executive Director. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving estimates or matters of opinion, whether or not 
expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be 
construed as a contract or agreement between the Authority and the purchasers or holders of any of the Bonds. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Executive Director have been duly authorized 
by the Authority. 

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BUILDING AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By: ___/s/ David J. MacKenzie_______ 
 David J. MacKenzie 
 Executive Director 
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APPENDIX A 

 

 
           October 15, 2009  
 
 
Members of the University of Massachusetts Building Authority: 
 
 In connection with the issuance by the University of Massachusetts Building Authority (the “Authority”) of 
its Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the “Series 2009-1 Bonds”), Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 
2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds - Direct Pay to Issuer) (the “Series 2009-2 Bonds”) and Project 
Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally Taxable) (the “Series 2009-3 Bonds” and collectively with the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds and the Series 2009-2 Bonds, the “Bonds”), we are pleased to submit the following information 
with respect to the University of Massachusetts (the “University” or “UMass”) and other pertinent matters for 
inclusion in this Official Statement.  Unless otherwise indicated by context, all utilization and financial data for any 
year refers to the fiscal year ended June 30.  Unless otherwise indicated, the University is the source of all 
information included in this Appendix A. 
 
 

University of Massachusetts 

 

 
HISTORY AND MISSION 

 
 The University is a state coeducational institution for higher education with separate campuses at Amherst, 
Boston, Dartmouth, Lowell and Worcester in The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the "Commonwealth"). The 
University was established in 1863 in Amherst, under the provisions of the 1862 Morrill Land Grant Acts, as the 
Massachusetts Agricultural College. It became known as the Massachusetts State College in 1932 and in 1947 
became the University of Massachusetts. The Boston and Worcester campuses were opened in 1965 and 1970, 
respectively. The Lowell and Dartmouth campuses (previously the University of Lowell and Southeastern 
Massachusetts University, respectively) were made a part of the University by a legislative act of the 
Commonwealth, effective September 1, 1991. 

 
The fundamental mission of the University is to provide within available resources the highest possible 

quality of instruction, research and public service to the widest possible segment of the citizens of the 
Commonwealth. In the fall of 2008, the University enrolled approximately 53,140 full-time equivalent (“FTE”) 
students. The University is committed to providing, without discrimination, diverse program offerings to meet the 
needs of the state's population. The University's five campuses are geographically dispersed throughout the 
Commonwealth and possess unique and complementary missions. 
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UNIVERSITY CAMPUSES 
 
Amherst Campus 
 

The Amherst campus, the University’s flagship campus approximately 90 miles west of Boston, is the 
largest in the University system.  With a student body of approximately 19,929 FTE undergraduate and 
approximately 4,347 FTE graduate students enrolled in the fall of 2008, the Amherst campus offers the most 
comprehensive and varied programs of the campuses in the University system, including liberal arts and 
professional programs, in addition to doctoral and research programs. It offers six associate-level programs and 84 
bachelor’s, 73 master’s and 52 doctoral degree programs.  During the 2007-2008 academic year, 73 associate, 4,431 
bachelor and 1,546 advanced degrees were conferred. Students may enroll in the Commonwealth College (the 
Commonwealth’s honors college), School of Education, College of Engineering, College of Natural Resources and 
the Environment, College of Humanities and Fine Arts, Isenberg School of Management, School of Nursing, 
College of Natural Sciences and Mathematics, School of Public Health and Health Sciences, College of Social and 
Behavioral Sciences and the Stockbridge School of Agriculture, which offers associate level programs. 

 
The 1,400-acre Amherst campus includes the 28-story W.E.B. Du Bois Library, containing approximately 

three million volumes as well as governmental documents and law collections, the 9,000-seat state-of-the-art multi-
purpose arena, the William D. Mullins Center, and 45 campus residence halls in six unique residential areas.  In the 
last year, the campus opened the Studio Arts Building and the Central Heating Plant (which will maximize the 
production and use of energy) and completed renovations to a landmark academic building.  In the coming year, the 
campus will complete a new student recreation center and an integrated sciences building.  Over the last few years, 
the campus has made great strides in its commitment to sustainability and green initiatives reducing its carbon 
footprint by 30%, water use by 43%, steam use by 24% and electricity by 9%.  The 2008 report of The Top 

American Research Universities (The Center) ranks UMass 76th in federal research expenditures among public 
research institutions.  On a number of other measures of competitive success – national academy memberships, 
faculty awards, doctorates awarded, and postdoctoral appointees – the Amherst campus ranks in the top 50 among 
public research universities.  
 
Boston Campus 
 

The 175-acre Boston campus, which is located three miles from downtown Boston on a harbor peninsula 
with the John F. Kennedy Presidential Library and the Massachusetts State Archives and Commonwealth Museum, 
is currently a non-residential campus.  In April 2004, the Boston campus opened its new 331,000 square foot state-
of-the-art Campus Center to better serve its students.  The Boston campus focuses on the academic needs of the 
local urban and non-traditional population and research and policy needs of business, government, and communities 
in the greater Boston metropolitan region.  The Boston campus has a diverse student body, consisting of 
approximately 7,965 FTE undergraduate students and approximately 2,477 FTE graduate students enrolled in the 
fall of 2008.  The Boston campus offers 65 undergraduate degree programs, 24 undergraduate certificate programs, 
63 master’s programs and graduate certificate programs and 23 doctoral programs (including tracks) through the 
College of Liberal Arts, College of Science and Mathematics, College of Management, College of Nursing and 
Health Science, College of Public and Community Service, McCormack School of Policy Studies and the Graduate 
College of Education.  During the 2007-2008 academic year, 51 certificate, 1,505 bachelor and 974 advanced 
degrees were conferred.  
 

The Boston campus is the only educational institution in the Northeast to share its campus with a 
presidential library.  The students and faculty have access to the John F. Kennedy Library, as well as to the State 
Archives building, which houses valuable Massachusetts state government records.  The Boston campus also has 
over 550,000 books and journals at its Healey Library.  The master plan for the Boston campus includes new 
construction over the next decade of an Integrated Sciences Complex, a general academic building, a dormitory for 
1,000 students, and a 1,200-space above-ground parking structure. 
 
Dartmouth Campus 
 

The Dartmouth campus distinguishes itself as a vibrant public university actively engaged in personalized 
teaching and innovative research, and acting as an intellectual catalyst for regional economic, social, and cultural 
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development. The Dartmouth campus offers over 40 undergraduate and 27 graduate programs (including five at the 
Ph.D. level) through the College of Arts and Sciences, the Charlton College of Business, the College of Engineering, 
the College of Nursing, the College of Visual and Performing Arts, the School for Marine Science and Technology 
and the School of Education, Public Policy, & Civic Engagement.  The main campus, designed by the eminent 
architect Paul Rudolf, is located on 710 acres in North Dartmouth and is approximately 55 miles south of Boston 
and 35 miles east of Providence, Rhode Island. Other Dartmouth campus sites include the School for Marine 
Science and Technology on the waterfront in New Bedford, the Star Store Center for the Arts in New Bedford,  the 
Advanced Technology and Manufacturing Center in Fall River, a state-of-the-art technology facility for small 
business incubation, and Professional and Continuing Education Centers located in New Bedford, Fall River and 
Fairhaven.  

 
The Dartmouth campus had approximately 7,214 FTE undergraduate and approximately 776 FTE graduate 

students enrolled in the fall of 2008. During the 2007-2008 academic year, 1,140 bachelor and 321 advanced 
degrees were conferred. The 2008 edition of U.S. News and World Report’s “America’s Best Colleges”, ranks the 
University of Massachusetts Dartmouth, in the “Best Universities – Master’s” category, as number one in New 
England and 12th among all northern public universities, which in addition to the New England states, also includes 
New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, and Maryland.  The campus – fully engaged in a strategic growth plan 
entitled Engaged, Embedded, Evolving – weaves its research, creative, and community service activities of faculty 
and graduate students into the undergraduate experience and into the economic and cultural life of southeastern 
Massachusetts.  Areas of focus include marine science, bio-materials, public policy, K-12 schools, Portuguese-
American Studies and the creative economy. 
 
Lowell Campus 
 

The mission of the Lowell campus is to enhance the intellectual, personal and cultural development of its 
students through excellent, affordable educational programs. The Lowell campus seeks to meet the needs of the 
Commonwealth today and into the future and supports the development of sustainable technologies and 
communities through its teaching, research, scholarship and engagement. 

 
Located in the historic industrial city of Lowell, approximately 30 miles northwest of Boston, the campus 

spans more than 125 acres along the Merrimack River on three campus clusters – North, South and East.  The 
Lowell campus had a student body of approximately 7,659 FTE undergraduate and approximately 1,755 FTE 
graduate students in the fall of 2008. The Lowell campus offers oneassociate’s, 57 bachelor’s, 33 master’s and 21 
doctoral degree programs through the College of Arts and Sciences, the College of Engineering, the School of 
Health and Environment, the College of Management and the Graduate School of Education.  During the 2007-2008 
academic year, 23 associate, 1,362 bachelor, and 576 advanced degrees were conferred. 
 
Worcester Campus 

 
The Worcester campus provides general and specialized medical education and engages in a comprehensive 

program of basic scientific and clinical research.  Located approximately 40 miles west of Boston and 50 miles east 
of Amherst, the campus is home to the School of Medicine (the “Medical School”), the Graduate School of 
Biomedical Sciences and the Graduate School of Nursing; a $194 million research enterprise; public service 
initiatives throughout the Commonwealth, and the University Campus hospital of UMass Memorial, which was 
formerly the Clinical Services Division of the University.  Effective March 31, 1998, as enacted by Chapter 163 of 
the Acts of 1997 of the Commonwealth, the Clinical Services Division of the University and the subsidiaries of a 
University-related organization, UMASS Health System, were contributed to and merged with and into an 
independent Massachusetts not-for-profit corporation named UMass Memorial Health Care, Inc. (“UMass 
Memorial”).  The University maintains certain relationships with UMass Memorial through the arrangements 
presented in detail in the notes to the University’s financial statements.  See Appendix C hereto. 
 

Created in 1962, UMass Worcester provides medical education at an affordable cost to Massachusetts 
residents, and graduate education to science and nursing students, offering incentives to graduates who practice 
primary care and other medical disciplines in underserved areas in Massachusetts.  Ranked 13th in primary care 
education among the nation’s accredited medical schools and schools of osteopathic medicine by weekly news 
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magazine U.S. News & World Report in its 2008 edition of “America’s Best Graduate Schools,” the School of 
Medicine also ranked 51st among medical schools based on research criteria.  

 
Comprising Basic & Biomedical Sciences and Clinical & Population Health Research divisions, the 

Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences trains students in their selected specialty area, while emphasizing a broad 
background in the basic medical sciences in preparation for research with direct relevance to human disease.  The 
Graduate School of Nursing provides high quality master’s and doctoral-level preparation for advanced practice 
nurses and nurse educators.  

     
In 2006, Professor of Molecular Medicine Craig C. Mello, PhD, a Howard Hughes Medical Institute 

(HHMI) investigator, was co-recipient of the Nobel Prize in Physiology or Medicine with Andrew Fire, PhD, of 
Stanford University for their discovery of RNA interference (RNAi), a naturally occurring gene-silencing process 
with the potential to revolutionize medicine.  This unprecedented honor was followed in quick succession by 
additional high-profile scientific honors recognizing the critical mass of RNAi investigators at the Worcester 
campus. 

 
 With the signing of the $1 billion Life Sciences Bill by Massachusetts Governor Deval Patrick on June 16, 
2008, UMass Worcester assumed a key role in helping realize the Commonwealth’s potential as a global leader in 
life sciences.  The bill provides funding for a facility that will house the new Advanced Therapeutics Cluster (ATC), 
composed of the Gene Therapy Center, the RNAi Therapeutics Center and the Center for Stem Cell Biology and 
Regenerative Medicine.  The Life Sciences Bill also provides for the Massachusetts Human Embryonic Stem Cell 
(hESC) Bank and the Massachusetts hESC Registry to be located at the Worcester campus. 

 
 To help address physician workforce shortages in the Commonwealth, the Worcester campus has begun to 
increase the incoming class size for the Medical School over the next several years. In the fall of 2008, the 
Worcester campus had approximately 1,018 FTE graduate and medical students enrolled in six master’s and six 
doctoral degree programs, as well as approximately 549 post-graduate students enrolled in 68 medical residency 
programs.  During the 2007-2008 academic year, 219 advanced degrees were conferred. The Worcester campus 
provides general and specialized medical care and engages in a comprehensive program of basic scientific and 
clinical research that benefits the recipients of clinical services and contributes to the national effort to understand, 
prevent and treat disease. 
 
UMassOnline 

 
In February 2001, the University launched UMassOnline, the University’s system-wide online education 

consortium.  Headquartered at the President's Office Collaborative Services Facility in Shrewsbury, Massachusetts, 
UMassOnline enables the University to provide greater access to its educational programs and to increase revenues 
that can be used to support the campuses.  In fiscal year 2008, UMassOnline and the Continuing Education units at 
the five campuses collaboratively generated tuition revenue of close to $37,000,000 and supported over 33,900 
enrollments.  Since 2001, UMassOnline has realized average annual gross revenue and enrollment growth rates of  
32 percent and 26 percent, respectively. 

 
UMassOnline’s mission is to provide access to a University of Massachusetts education to students who are 

unable to attend one of the campuses; serving community needs for education in the critical areas of economic 
development, health and welfare and education; and raising revenues for support of students, faculty, teaching, 
outreach, and research.  To this end, the 13-member UMassOnline team supports the campuses in developing, 
growing and marketing online programs by funding the development of new online programs; providing faculty 
support, development and training; providing technology support and by creating and maintaining a robust platform 
for online learning; assessing new teaching and learning technologies; and deploying marketing programs that will 
position the University as a high-quality national player in online higher education and increase online course and 
program enrollments in the Massachusetts, New England, national and international markets. 

   
Currently, the University offers close to 82 online degrees, certificates and continuing medical education 

programs, as well as over 1,500 courses annually.   
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The University of Massachusetts Collaborative Service Facility 
 

 The University established the University of Massachusetts Collaborative Services Facility (“CSF”) in 
November 2003. The CSF is located in Shrewsbury, Massachusetts.  The CSF was created for the purpose of 
consolidating a number of departments within the University President’s Office and other UMass organizations in an 
effort to both reduce costs and better serve the University system.  In February 2009, in an effort to further reduce 
operating costs, the majority of the President’s Office staff moved from an office located in downtown Boston to the 
CSF.  
 
 The Worcester City Campus Corporation (“WCCC”), as described below under “UNIVERSITY 
RELATED ORGANIZATIONS”, acquired the property at 333 South Street, Shrewsbury, which is the present 
location of the CSF, from Maxtor Realty Corporation and Seagate Technology, LLC.  The purchase price was $27.5 
million, which consisted of approximately 83 acres of property and two buildings containing approximately 670,000 
gross square feet of space.  This acquisition allows WCCC to provide major benefits to the University and the 
Medical School by providing immediate available off campus space to meet the needs of the University, the Medical 
School and its clinical partner, UMass Memorial.  This property provides substantial capital cost avoidance as the 
acquisition cost of approximately $45 per square foot compares favorably with new building costs of $150 - $300 
per square foot for office or laboratory construction.  
   
The University of Massachusetts Club 

 
 The University, acting through the Authority, has established an Alumni dining club, known as “The 
University of Massachusetts Club.” The club opened on October 31, 2005 and is located on the 33rd floor of 225 
Franklin Street in downtown Boston.  The club is managed by a national hospitality management firm. 
 

UNIVERSITY RELATED ORGANIZATIONS 
 

The financial statements of the University include the University and certain other organizations that have a 
significant relationship with the University. The statements include the University’s blended component units, which 
are the Authority, a public instrumentality of the Commonwealth created by Chapter 773 of the Acts of 1960 of the 
Commonwealth, as amended, and WCCC, a tax-exempt organization, and the University of Massachusetts Amherst 
Foundation, Inc. (the “UMass Amherst Foundation”), a tax-exempt organization that was established in fiscal year 
2003.  The purposes of the Authority are to provide dormitories, dining commons and other buildings and structures 
for use of the University and other entities associated with the University and to issue bonds to finance such 
projects.  On November 4, 1992, the University created WCCC to purchase various assets of Worcester City 
Hospital, to operate as a real estate holding company and to foster and promote the growth, progress and general 
welfare of the University.  WCCC includes the Worcester Foundation for Biomedical Research, Inc. (“WFBR”) as a 
subsidiary.  During fiscal year 2009 the board of trustees of Public Sector Partners, Inc. (“PSP”), a Massachusetts 
corporation formed under M.G.L.c. 180, which is comprised equally of representation from the Medical School and 
UMass Memorial Health Ventures, Inc. (a subsidiary of UMass Memorial) voted to amend the bylaws of PSP 
naming WCCC to be the sole member of the corporation.  Upon acceptance of WCCC to be the sole member of the 
corporation, PSP is now a component unit of WCCC, and as such it will be blended into the financial statements of 
the University for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. The University’s discrete component units are the University 
of Massachusetts Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) and the University of Massachusetts Dartmouth Foundation, 
Inc. (the “Dartmouth Foundation”).  These foundations are tax-exempt organizations related to the University and 
established to foster and promote the growth, progress and general welfare of the University and to solicit, receive, 
and administer gifts and donations for such purposes.  The Foundation manages the majority of the University’s 
endowments, including the endowment of the UMass Amherst Foundation.  The Foundation and the Dartmouth 
Foundation are reported in the financial statements of the University as part of the University Related Organizations. 
 

GOVERNANCE 
 

Under the General Laws of the Commonwealth (the “General Laws”), the University is governed by a 
Board of Trustees (the body herein called the “University Trustees” or the “Board of Trustees of the University”) 
under the coordinating authority of the Commonwealth’s Department of Higher Education (“DHE”) (successor to 
the Board of Higher Education, which was the successor to the Higher Education Coordinating Council).  The day-
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to-day operations of the University are directed by a team of administrative officers of the University, the chief 
executive officer being the President.  
 

The General Laws give the University Trustees the authority to govern the University and to appoint the 
President of the University, the Chancellors (the senior administrative officers of each campus) and other officers 
and members of the professional staff.  The General Laws also grant to the University Trustees the legal right to 
establish and manage non-appropriated funds, which funds include, for example, certain student fees, grants and 
contracts and funds used to support certain self-sufficient operations within the University.  See “UNIVERSITY 
REVENUES AND BUDGETING” below.  The University Trustees consist of 19 voting members and three non-
voting members. Seventeen voting members of the University Trustees are appointed by the Governor of the 
Commonwealth.  One of these appointees is the Secretary of Education, as mandated by Chapter 27 of the Acts of 
2008, and at least five of those appointed must be alumni of the University and one must be a representative of 
organized labor.  Two of the voting members are full-time students of the University, and three additional full-time 
students act as non-voting members. The student members are elected annually from each of the five campuses, and 
the two voting student positions are rotated annually among the members representing the five campuses. The 
University Trustees, except for the student members, serve five-year staggered terms.   
 

The President of the University is responsible for implementing the policies of the University Trustees and 
for providing leadership for the activities and operations of the University. The President's Office is responsible for 
the development of academic and financial policy, overall coordination of University activities and certain 
University-wide operational activities, including Internal Audit, the Treasurer's and Controller's functions, 
Information Systems and Human Resources. 
 
Education System Reorganization 

 
 In February 2008, legislation was passed that reorganized the leadership structure of education in the 
Commonwealth.  A cabinet-level executive office of education was established with comprehensive education 
oversight, including the following departments: Early Education, Elementary and Secondary Education, and Higher 
Education.  The legislation also established a position of Secretary of Education whose authority includes 
authorizing the hiring of the respective Commissioners of the education departments, approving long-term planning, 
and approving budget and capital requests.  In addition, the reorganization increased the size of each of the 
education boards by two members and designated the Secretary of Education as a voting member on the three 
education boards as well as a voting member of the Board of Trustees of the University.  The reorganization also 
provided the Governor with the authority to appoint the chair of the University Trustees. 

 
Department of Higher Education 
 

The University is subject to the coordinating authority of the DHE, which has the statutory responsibility 
under Chapter 15A of the General Laws of the Commonwealth to develop, foster and advocate for the public higher 
education system in Massachusetts (which consists of the University, nine state colleges and 15 community 
colleges), to review and approve tuition at the University, to review and establish tuition at the state colleges and the 
community colleges, to approve changes in academic programs at these institutions, and to collaborate with the 
public institutions of higher education in order to identify and define institutional missions. 
 

The DHE consists of 13 voting members; one of whom is the Secretary of Education, nine members 
appointed by the Governor reflecting regional geographic representation, and three members chosen to represent 
public institutions of higher education.  Of the members appointed by the Governor, at least one must be a 
representative of organized labor, one must be a representative of the business community, and one must be a full-
time undergraduate student at a public institution of higher education.  Of the members chosen to represent public 
institutions of higher education, one must be a member of the Board of Trustees of the University as voted by the 
University Trustees, one must be a member of a board of trustees of a state college chosen by vote of the chairs of 
the boards of trustees of each of the state colleges, and one must be a member of a board of trustees of a community 
college chosen by vote of the chairs of the boards of trustees of each of the community colleges.  Three of the DHE 
members appointed by the Governor shall be appointed for terms coterminous with that of the Governor.  The 
remaining members of the DHE shall be appointed to serve five-year terms, except that the undergraduate student 
members will be appointed annually.  The chairperson of the DHE is selected by the Governor. 
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Board of Trustees 
 

The present members and officers of the University Trustees, their original appointment dates and the 
expiration dates of their respective current terms are set forth below.  The term expiration date is September 1 of the 
applicable year; however University Trustees generally continue to serve until a successor University Trustee is 
appointed. 
 
Name and Position; Month and Year Initially Appointed Current Term 

Expiration Date 
  
Robert J. Manning, Board of Trustees Chair, Swampscott 
Appointed September 2006 
President and CEO, MFS Investment Management 
 

2011 

James J. Karam, Board of Trustees Vice Chair, Tiverton, Rhode Island 
Appointed January 2002 

President, First Bristol Corporation 
 

2011 

Ruben J. King-Shaw, Jr., Board of Trustees Vice Chair, Carlisle 
Appointed September 2005 

Chairman & CEO, Mansa Equity Partners, Inc. 
 

2010 

Emily Bloch, Brookline 
Non-Voting Student Member, elected April 2009 

University of Massachusetts, Amherst 

2010 

  
Lawrence F. Boyle, J.D., Milton 
Appointed January 2002 

Senior Partner, Morrison, Mahoney & Miller, LLP 
 

2011 

Jennifer C. Braceras, J.D., Concord 
Appointed September 2006 

Attorney and Writer 

2011 

 
Edward W. Collins, Jr., Springfield 
Appointed September 2007 

International Representative, IBEW 
 

2012 
 

Tara-Jean DeSisto, Newton 
Non-Voting Student Member, elected April  2009 

University of Massachusetts, Boston 

2010 

  
John A. DiBiaggio, D.D.S., Snowmass Village, Colorado 
Appointed October 2003 

Former President, Tufts University (retired) 
 

2013 
 

Matthew Hoyt, Whitinsville 
Non-Voting Student Member, elected April 2009 

University of Massachusetts, Dartmouth 

2010 
 

  
Philip W. Johnston, Marshfield                                                                                               
Appointed September 2007 

President, Philip W. Johnston Associates 
 

2012 

David Koffman, Woburn                                                                                    
Voting Student Member, re-elected April 2009 

University of Massachusetts, Lowell 
 

2010 
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Richard J. Lawton, J.D., North Easton 
Appointed September 2006 

Attorney, Law Offices of Richard J. Lawton 
 

2011 

Kenneth A. MacAfee, II, D.M.D., Needham 
Appointed September 2006 

Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeon   
                                                                                                                                                                            

2011 

Kerri Osterhaus-Houle, M.D., Hudson 
Appointed September 2007 

Partner, Women’s Health of Central Massachusetts, PC 
 

2013 

Janet D. Pearl, M.D., Wellesley 
Appointed October 2004 

Medical Director, Interventional Pain Specialist  
Complete Pain Care, LLC 
 

2009 

R. Norman Peters, J.D., Paxton 2014 
Appointed September 2009 

Attorney, Peters & Sowyrda 
 

 

Paul Reville, Boston 
Appointed September 2008 

Secretary of Education, Executive Office of Education 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 

N/A 

Henry M. Thomas, III, J.D., Springfield  
Appointed September 2007 

President and CEO, Urban League of Springfield, Inc. 
 

2012 

 

Stephen P. Tocco*, Reading 
Appointed September 2006 

President and CEO, ML Strategies 

2011 

  
James Young, Worcester 
Voting Student Member, elected April  2009 
University of Massachusetts, Worcester 

2010 

 
*ML Strategies, LLC, a limited liability company of which Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C. is the sole member, is a 
multidisciplinary consulting firm. Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., is serving as bond counsel in connection with the Bonds. 

 
Administrative Officers 

 
Jack M. Wilson, Ph.D., President, age 64 

 
 Jack M. Wilson, Ph.D., was appointed President of the University on March 24, 2004. Since September 
2003, he had served as the interim President.  Previously, he had served as the Vice President for Academic Affairs 
of the University and he was the founding Chief Executive Officer of UMassOnline, the University’s system wide 
online education consortium. A physicist of national distinction, Dr. Wilson came to the University on January 21, 
2001 after 11 years at Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, where he was the J. Erik Jonsson ’22 Distinguished 
Professor of Physics, Engineering Science, Information Technology, and Management and where he was the 
founding Director of the Anderson Center for Innovation in Undergraduate Education and Co-Director of the 
Severino Center for Technological Entrepreneurship.  Dr. Wilson was also the co-founder and chairman of 
LearnLinc Corporation, a supplier of software systems for corporate training to Fortune 1000 corporations.  Dr. 
Wilson received B.A. and M.A. degrees from Thiel College and a Ph.D. from Kent State University. 
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James R. Julian, Jr., J.D., Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, age 48 

 
James R. Julian, Jr., J.D., has been the Executive Vice President at the University since January 1996.  Prior 

to joining the University, he served as Chief of Staff and Counsel for the former Massachusetts Senate President, 
William M. Bulger, from 1991 to 1996.  He holds a B.S. degree in Political Science from Suffolk University in 
Boston, Massachusetts and a J.D. degree from the New England School of Law in Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Marcellette G. Williams, Ph.D., Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs, Student Affairs and International 

Relations, age 68  

 
 Marcellette G. Williams, Ph.D., has been the Senior Vice President for Academic and Student Affairs and 
International Relations since July 2005.  Dr. Williams served as interim Chancellor of the Amherst campus from 
July 2001 through July 2002.  Prior to becoming interim Chancellor, Dr. Williams was deputy chancellor and 
professor of English and Comparative Literature at the Amherst campus.  Prior to joining the University, Dr. 
Williams served in a variety of academic and administrative positions at Michigan State University, where she 
earned her bachelor's, master's and doctoral degrees.      
 

David J. Gray, Senior Vice President for Administration, Finance and Technology, and Treasurer, age 55 

 
 David J. Gray was appointed to the position of Senior Vice President for Administration, Finance and 
Technology, effective February 1, 2009. Previously, he had served as the Chief Information Officer and Vice 
President for Information Services from 2000 through January 2009 and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of 
UMassOnline from 2004 through January 2009. He had served as interim CEO of UMassOnline from September 
2003.  Prior to joining the University, he served as Vice Chancellor for Information Technology for the 
Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education from 1995 to 2000 and as the Assistant Vice Chancellor for 
Financial Management from 1990 to 1995.  Mr. Gray received a B.A. degree in political science and a Master of 
Public Administration degree from The Pennsylvania State University.  
 

Thomas J. Chmura, Vice President for Economic Development, age 60 

 
Thomas J. Chmura has been Vice President for Economic Development at the University since January 

1993.  He also served as Chief of Staff for the President's Office in 1995.  Previously, Mr. Chmura was Director of 
Economic Development for the Greater Baltimore Committee, the business leadership organization for the 
Baltimore metropolitan area from 1989 to 1992.  Mr. Chmura received a B.S. degree in Engineering and an M.S. 
degree in Urban and Environmental Studies from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute in Troy, New York. 
 
Robert P. Connolly, Vice President for Strategic Communications, age 56 

 

 Robert P. Connolly, Vice President for Strategic Communications, joined the University of Massachusetts 
in April 1996. Prior to joining the University, he had a career in journalism, serving as the Boston Herald’s State 
House bureau chief and also working for the Worcester Telegram and the Patriot Ledger. He holds a bachelor’s 
degree from the University of Massachusetts at Boston and master’s degrees from Harvard University and Boston 
College. 
  

Deirdre Heatwole, J.D., Interim General Counsel, age 60 

 

 Deirdre Heatwole, J.D., was appointed Interim General Counsel at the University of Massachusetts 
effective February 7, 2009.  She previously served as Associate Counsel for the University of Massachusetts, 
advising the University and its officers and employees and representing them in civil litigation since 1988, and was 
appointed Deputy General Counsel in 2008.  Prior to joining the University, Ms. Heatwole served as a prosecutor in 
Kings County, Brooklyn, New York and in Middlesex County, Massachusetts, and was in private litigation practice 
in Boston law firms.  Ms. Heatwole received a B.A. degree in Political Science from Boston University in 1971, a 
Masters in Urban Affairs degree from Boston University in 1978, and a Juris Doctor degree from New York Law 
School in 1981. 
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Stephen W. Lenhardt, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, age 68 

 
Stephen W. Lenhardt is the Deputy Chief Operating Officer for the University.  Previously, he had served 

as the Vice President for Management and Fiscal Affairs from 1987 through January 2009 and University Treasurer 
from 1991 through January 2009. Prior to assuming his duties with the University, Mr. Lenhardt served in several 
executive positions for the New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation, ultimately as Vice President for 
Facilities Management and Operations.  He received a B.A. degree in Social Welfare from The Pennsylvania State 
University, University Park, Pennsylvania and M.S.W. and M.P.A. degrees from the University of Pittsburgh. 
 

Katherine V. Smith, Vice President for University Advancement and Executive Vice President, University of 

Massachusetts Foundation, age 46 

 

Katherine V. Smith became Vice President for Advancement and Chief Operating Officer for the UMass 
Foundation in September 2007.  Prior to joining the UMass Foundation, she was Associate Vice President for 
School Relations and Corporate and Foundation Fundraising at Boston College. She worked for many years at 
Brown University, serving as Associate Vice President of Research and Associate Vice President of Development.   
She received a bachelor’s degree from Cleveland State University in 1986 and a master’s from the Rhode Island 
School of Design in 1988.  
 

Ken Udas, Ph.D., Chief Executive Officer, UMassOnline, age 46 

 

 Ken Udas, Ph.D., was named Chief Executive Officer of UMassOnline in September, 2009. Previous to 
joining UMassOnline, Dr. Udas was the Executive Director, Penn State World Campus and Online Programs, The 
Pennsylvania State University which is The Pennsylvania State University’s online learning provider, serving adult 
learners studying in all 50 U.S. states and on all 7 continents. The World Campus is part of Penn State Outreach and 
provides a wide range of curriculum development, faculty, program, and student support services to more than 
10,000 learners in over 65 programs. Dr. Udas received his first degree from University of Massachusetts Dartmouth 
in 1986 earning a Bachelor of Science in Biology. In 1990 he received his Master of Business Administration in 
Management, from Salem State College. Dr. Udas earned his Master of Science in Management Information 
Systems from Texas A&M University, College Station, TX in 1992 and a Doctor of Philosophy in Higher 
Educational Administration in 1992 also from Texas A&M University. 
 

Robert C. Holub, Ph.D., Chancellor Amherst campus, age 60 

 

 Robert C. Holub, Ph.D., became the Chancellor of the Amherst campus in August 2008.  Prior to becoming 
Chancellor, Dr. Holub was the Provost and Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs at the University of Tennessee’s 
flagship campus in Knoxville, Tennessee.  In 2003, Dr. Holub was named Dean of Berkeley’s Undergraduate 
Division of College of Letters and Science at The University of California at Berkeley.  Dr. Holub was also a 
professor at The University of California at Berkeley, where he was the Chair of the German Department from 
1991-1997.  He holds a B.S. from the University of Pennsylvania, two M.A. degrees and a Ph.D. from the 
University of Wisconsin.  
 
J. Keith Motley, Ph.D., Chancellor Boston campus, age 53 

 
J. Keith Motley, Ph.D., became the Chancellor of the Boston campus in July 2007.  Previously, Dr. Motley 

held the position of Vice President for Business and Public Affairs since 2005.  Dr. Motley served as Interim 
Chancellor of the Boston campus from August 2004 until June 5, 2005.  Prior to becoming Interim Chancellor, Dr. 
Motley served as the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs at the Boston campus. Previously, Dr. Motley held a 
variety of student-service positions at Northeastern University including Dean of Student Services, Associate 
Dean/Director of the John D. O’Bryant African-American Institute, and Assistant Dean/Director of the Office of 
Minority Student Affairs.  Dr. Motley is a founder of the Roxbury Preparatory Charter School and chair emeritus of 
the school’s board of trustees.  He also serves on the board of trustees of Newbury College in Brookline.  Dr. 
Motley holds B.S. and M.Ed. degrees from Northeastern University, and a Ph.D. from Boston College. 
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Jean F. MacCormack, Ed.D., Chancellor Dartmouth campus, age 63 

 
Jean F. MacCormack, Ed.D., became the Chancellor of the Dartmouth campus in February 2001.  Dr. 

MacCormack previously served as the Interim Chancellor of the Dartmouth campus from September 1999.  Dr. 
MacCormack also previously served as Deputy Chancellor and Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance on 
the University’s Boston campus.  Dr. MacCormack holds a Master’s and Doctorate in Education from the University 
of Massachusetts, Amherst and a Bachelor of Arts from Emmanuel College.   
 

Martin T. Meehan, J.D., Chancellor Lowell campus, age 52 

 

Martin T. Meehan, J.D., became the Chancellor of the Lowell Campus in July 2007.  Mr. Meehan 
previously represented the Fifth Congressional District of Massachusetts in the U.S. House of Representatives since 
1993.  He has also served as the First Assistant District Attorney for Middlesex County from 1991-1992.  Mr. 
Meehan was also the Director of Public Affairs for the Massachusetts Secretary of the Commonwealth and the 
Deputy Secretary of State for Securities and Corporations from 1986-1990.  Mr. Meehan earned his B.S. degree 
from the University of Massachusetts, Lowell, an M.P.A. from Suffolk University and a J.D. from Suffolk 
University Law School.   

 
Michael F. Collins, M.D., Chancellor Worcester campus and Senior Vice President for Health Sciences, age 54 

 
 Michael F. Collins, M.D., was appointed Chancellor of the University of Massachusetts Medical School on 
September 26, 2008. Dr. Collins served as interim Chancellor of the University of Massachusetts Medical School 
from June 2007 to September 2008.  In June 2007, Dr. Collins was appointed Senior Vice President for Health 
Sciences at the University of Massachusetts.  Dr. Collins served as Chancellor of the UMass Boston campus from 
2005 through 2007. Prior to joining the University of Massachusetts, Dr. Collins served as President and Chief 
Executive Officer of Caritas Christi Health Care from 1994 to 2004, and from 1994 to 2001, he served as President 
of St. Elizabeth’s Medical Center in Brighton, a university academic medical center affiliated with Tufts University 
School of Medicine. A board certified physician in internal medicine and a Fellow of the American College of 
Physicians, Dr. Collins has held a number of faculty and academic leadership positions over the course of his career, 
first at Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center, where his posts included Assistant Professor of Internal 
Medicine and Assistant Dean for Patient Care Resources, and at Tufts University, where he served as Clinical 
Professor of Internal Medicine and Associate Dean of Government and Medical Affairs in the School of Medicine 
and as a senior fellow, Jonathan M. Tisch College of Citizenship and Public Service. Dr. Collins received a B.A. 
degree from the College of the Holy Cross and earned an M.D. from Tufts University School of Medicine.   

 
Faculty and Staff 
 

The University had approximately 4,863 faculty members in the fall of 2008, including approximately 
3,459 full-time faculty.  Of the full-time faculty (excluding Worcester faculty), approximately 59 percent were 
tenured, approximately 26 percent were on track for tenure and the remaining approximately 15 percent were not on 
tenure track.  In addition, the University had approximately 6,840 professional and 4,858 classified staff members in 
the fall of 2008, of which approximately 91 percent and 86 percent were full-time, respectively.  The University 
faculty have received some of the world’s most prestigious awards and honors, including the MacArthur Fellowship, 
the Pulitzer Prize, the National Book Award, and the Nobel Prize.  The University faculty also includes National 
Science Foundation grant winners and Fulbright Scholars.  The University student FTE to faculty FTE ratios, 
excluding continuing education, are 18:1, 16:1, 16:1 and 15:1 for the Amherst, Boston, Dartmouth and Lowell 
campuses, respectively.  The Worcester campus ratio is not presented because the delivery of graduate medical 
education is not comparable to that of campuses offering a traditional range of undergraduate and graduate 
programs.  
 

ACADEMIC PROGRAMS AND ACCREDITATION 
 

The University offers a broad spectrum of academic programs, granting Bachelor of Arts degrees in over 60 
fields, Bachelor of Science degrees in over 50 fields and bachelor degrees in a number of other areas, including fine 
arts and business administration.  Master of Arts degrees are granted in more than 25 fields, Master of Science 
degrees in over 45 academic fields and a variety of other master’s degrees are granted in specialized areas including 
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education, teaching, business administration and public health.  In addition to the foregoing, the University grants 
Doctor of Philosophy degrees in 54 fields, as well as Doctor of Education, Doctor of Science, Doctor of Engineering 
and Doctor of Medicine degrees.  The academic resources of the University are also accessible to part-time students, 
to local, national and international businesses and to the general community through the continuing education 
programs. 

 
 Each campus of the University is accredited by the New England Association of Schools and Colleges, Inc. 
(“NEASC”), the major accrediting body for institutions of higher education in New England.  In addition, the Center 
for Professional Education is accredited as a branch campus of the University's Amherst and Lowell campuses by 
NEASC and the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education.  The Medical School at the Worcester campus is a 
member of the Association of American Medical Colleges and was given full accreditation through the 2011-2012 
academic year by the Liaison Committee on Medical Education, the major accrediting body for programs leading to 
the M.D. degree.  In addition to the foregoing, individual schools and academic programs are accredited by the 
appropriate agencies in their particular fields. 
 
 The University is also an institutional member of numerous organizations of higher learning and 
professional societies, including, among others, the Association of American Colleges, the National Association of 
State Universities and Land Grant Colleges, the American Council on Education, the American Association of 
Colleges for Teacher Education, the American Association of Colleges of Nursing, the Council of Colleges of Arts 
and Sciences and the New England Board of Higher Education. 

 
ENROLLMENT 

 
Except for the Medical School, which admits only Massachusetts residents (as required by Massachusetts 

Session Laws, Chapter 199, Section 99), admission to the University is open to residents and non-residents of the 
Commonwealth on a competitive basis.  In the fall 2008 semester, Massachusetts residents accounted for 
approximately 86 percent and 58 percent of the University's total undergraduate and graduate fall enrollment, 
respectively. 
 

The University's enrollment has been fairly level over the last five years. In the fall of 2008, total full-time 
equivalent enrollment at the University (including continuing education) was 53,140, representing an increase of 
approximately 13 percent over the five-year period.     

 
Total Full-Time Equivalent Enrollment, Fall 2004-2008 

 
       2004 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
Undergraduate  35,588 38,287 39,282 40,805 42,767 
Graduate  8,702 9,628 9,883 10,264 10,373 
Continuing Education*  2,647          -                 -                  -           - 
Total   46,937 47,915 49,165 51,069 53,140 

 
The following tables show opening fall head count enrollment for each of the five campuses since 2004.  
 

Amherst Campus 

 
      2004** 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
In-state undergraduate  14,738 15,670 15,820 16,018 16,402 
Out-of-state undergraduate  3,401 3,724 4,003 4,096 4,137 
In-state graduate  2,300 2,270 2,342 2,357 2,355 
Out-of-state graduate  3,380 3,429 3,428 3,402 3,465 
Continuing Education*       827           -           -           -               - 
Total  24,646 25,093 25,593 25,873 26,359 
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Boston Campus 

 
      2004** 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
In-state undergraduate  7,397 7,797 8,219 8,890 9,493 
Out-of-state undergraduate+  630 1,161 1,027 1,118 985 
In-state graduate  1,995 2,204 2,352 2,514 2,666 
Out-of-state graduate  378 700 764 911 973 
Continuing Education*  1,837           -           -           -             - 
Total  11,682 11,862 12,362 13,433 14,117 

______________ 
+
In 2006, Boston campus undergraduate unknown residency (326) and graduate unknown residency (219) included in out-of-state total. 

 

Dartmouth Campus 

 
      2004** 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
In-state undergraduate  6,181 7,114 7,245 7,586 7,633 
Out-of-state undergraduate  354 405 381 341 349 
In-state graduate  397 657 707 769 825 
Out-of-state graduate  329 373 423 384 348 
Continuing Education*  1,407         -         -         -           - 
Total  8,299 8,549 8,756 9,080 9,155 

 
Lowell Campus 

 
      2004** 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
In-state undergraduate  5,665 7,407 7,640 7,715 8,336 
Out-of-state undergraduate  651 902 1,009 1,164 1,370 
In-state graduate  1,557 1,671 1,814 1,857 1,793 
Out-of-state graduate  615 686 745 899 972 
Continuing Education*     2,873           -           -             -             - 
Total  11,089 10,666 11,208 11,635 12,471 

 

Worcester Campus 
          

  2004** 
 

   2005* 
 

    2006* 
 

    2007* 
 

    2008* 
       

Medical School  419 412 423         435 445 
Other  452 596 597         578 580 
Total++  871 1,008 1,020      1,013 1,025 

______________ 
 ++

Does not include the head count of registrants in the various continuing medical education programs offered at the Worcester campus. 

 

Total Headcount Enrollment 

 
       2004** 2005*     2006*     2007*     2008* 

       
In-state undergraduate  33,981 37,988 38,924 40,209 41,864 
Out-of-state undergraduate  5,036 6,192 6,420 6,719 6,841 
In-state graduate  6,918 7,552 7,970 8,223 8,357 
Out-of-state graduate  4,929 5,446 5,625 5,883 6,065 
Continuing Education*    6,944           -           -             -             - 
Total  56,587 57,178 58,939 61,034 63,127 

______________ 
*Beginning in 2005, continuing education enrollment numbers have been included in the undergraduate and graduate enrollment totals. 
 
**Duplicate headcounts in continuing education and state-supported programs have been removed from the 2004 totals. 
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 From fall 2007 to fall 2008, total new freshmen enrollees remained fairly level, while total new transfer 
enrollees increased by 5.3 percent for the system as a whole.  The number of total new freshmen enrollees reflected 
a 3.3 percent planned decrease in the size of the entering class at the Amherst campus, a 2.3 percent increase in new 
freshmen at the Boston campus, an 8.5 percent planned decrease at the Dartmouth campus, and a 22.9 percent 
increase at the Lowell campus. Over the past few years, the Amherst campus has had large classes and enrollment 
has increased annually.  The smaller number of entering students in the fall of 2008 was planned by the Amherst 
campus for the purpose of maintaining rather than increasing undergraduate enrollment in the 2008-2009 academic 
year.  The Dartmouth campus enrolled a large class in the fall of 2007.  In the fall of 2008, the Dartmouth campus 
targeted a smaller incoming freshmen class as a corrective measure.  The long-range goal of the Dartmouth campus 
is to achieve a proper balance in class size.  The number of total new transfer enrollees reflected a 4.6 percent 
increase at the Amherst campus, a 3.1 percent increase at the Boston campus, a 0.4 percent decrease at the 
Dartmouth campus and a 15.2 percent increase at the Lowell campus.  

 
The University saw an increase in freshmen applications in fall 2008 compared to fall 2007.  The increase in 

total freshmen applications included a 6.6 percent increase at the Amherst campus, an 8.6 percent increase at the 
Boston campus, a 2.8 percent increase at the Dartmouth campus, and a 12.9 percent increase at the Lowell campus.  
Transfer applications included a 1.7 percent decrease at the Amherst campus, a 5.2 percent increase at the Boston 
campus, a 2.4 percent increase at the Dartmouth campus, and a 13.1 percent increase at the Lowell campus.  
 

The following tables provide aggregate data for the campuses (except the Worcester campus) on University 
applications, acceptances and matriculations for first year undergraduates and for transfer students: 
 

First Year Applicants, Acceptances and Matriculants, Fall 2004-2008 
 

         2004 2005       2006       2007       2008 
       

Applications Received  31,200 34,571 37,627 43,688 46,689 
Number of Acceptances  22,835 25,904 26,099 28,098 30,590 
Percent of Applicants Accepted  73% 75% 69% 64% 65% 
Number of Matriculants  7,126 7,840 7,990 8,226 8,248 
Percent Matriculated of Those Accepted  31% 30% 31% 29% 27% 

 

Transfer Student Applicants, Acceptances and Matriculants, Fall 2004-2008 

 
  2004 2005     2006       2007       2008 

       
Applications Received  8,313 8,183 8,258 8,341 8,648 
Number of Acceptances  5,895 5,971 6,148 6,190 6,625 
Percent of Applicants Accepted  71% 73% 74% 74% 77% 
Number of Matriculants  3,588 3,601 3,753 3,891 4,098 
Percent Matriculated of Those Accepted  61% 60% 61% 63% 62% 

 

Estimated Freshmen and Transfer Applications, Fall 2009  
 

 The University received a combined total of approximately 63,325 freshmen and transfer applications for 
fall 2009.  The following table shows the total freshmen and transfer applications by campus:   
 

Estimated Campus Totals, Fall 2009 
 

Amherst Campus (as of 9/1/09) 34,005 

Boston Campus (as of 8/31/09) 11,906 

Dartmouth Campus (as of 9/1/09) 8,886 

Lowell Campus (as of 9/4/09) 8,528 

Total 63,325 
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The following tables show the latest retention and graduation rates for freshmen entering the University.  
The level and changes in retention and graduation rates reflect the diversity of the entering students. 

 
One Year Retention Rates - Fall Term (%) 

  
2004 

 
2005 

 
  2006 

 
  2007 

 
  2008 

      
Range of Campus Averages 71-82 71-84 70-83  75-84 75-87 
      

Six Year Graduation Rates (%) 
  

2004 
 

2005 
 

2006 
 

2007 
 

2008 
      
Year of Entry 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 
Graduation After: 6 Years - range of 
campus averages* 

 
28-62 

 
34-65 

 
36-66 

 
33-67 

 
33-69 

______________ 
*The low-end averages of the University data  result from the Boston campus, which focuses on the needs of non-traditional students.   

 
 The following table shows the average Scholastic Aptitude Test (“SAT”) scores for entering University 
freshmen.   
 

SAT Scores for Incoming Freshmen 
 

Academic Year 2006-2007 2007-2008 2008-2009 
    
Range of Campus Averages 1046-1146 1053-1142 1050-1155 
    

 
Degrees Awarded 

 
The University awards four levels of degrees: associate, bachelor’s, master’s and doctoral/professional 

degrees.  Trends in University degrees and certificates awarded for the past five years are shown in the following 
table. 

 
Trends in Degrees Awarded 

 
 

Academic Year  2003-04 2004-05 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008 

Associate/ Certificate  192 148 242 162 147 
Bachelor  7,773 8,206 8,091 8,191 8,438 
Master/ CAGS*  2,578 2,731 2,642 2,785 3,097 
Doctorate/Professional  536 528 488 566 539 

______________ 
 *CAGS means Certificate of Advanced Graduate Studies. 
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TUITION AND FEES 
 

The University strives to provide students with the opportunity to obtain a quality education.  In this effort, 
between fiscal years 1995 and 2001, the average student charge (tuition and mandatory fees) for undergraduate 
students was actually reduced by approximately 3.4 percent.  Steady increases in Commonwealth appropriations 
during this period supported University efforts to stabilize tuition and fees relative to other institutions in New 
England. However, a series of reductions in Commonwealth appropriations beginning in the fall of 2000 required 
that the University take actions to stabilize the finances of the University, including student fee increases approved 
by the University Trustees for fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004.   

 
Over the last several years, the University followed a strategy of limiting the annual increases for 

mandatory student charges (the combined total of tuition and mandatory fees) to levels below the estimated current 
inflation rate. The University believed that this “at or below inflation” approach for student charge increases would 
provide reasonable stability and predictability for students, their families, and institutional planners.  In February 
2004, the University Trustees approved mandatory tuition and fee increases for fiscal year 2005.  The mandatory 
student fee increases (with the exception of the new Ph.D./MD program rates for non-residents at the Worcester 
campus) were inflation-based increases of no more than 2.8 percent over the annualized fiscal year 2004 spring 
semester rates.  In February 2005, the University Trustees approved inflation-based increases of approximately 3.2 
percent for the fiscal year 2006 mandatory student charges for resident students at the Amherst, Boston, Dartmouth 
and Lowell campuses (the Worcester campus’s only fee increase for fiscal year 2006 was a $32 equipment fee 
increase for all medical and graduate students).  In February 2006, the University Trustees approved the President’s 
recommendation for continuing this program of inflation-based increases in mandatory student charges for fiscal 
year 2007.  The rate increase approved for fiscal year 2007 averaged 3.4 percent over fiscal year 2006 rates for 
resident undergraduate students.  In March 2007, the University Trustees approved increases of approximately 3.4 
percent, in mandatory student charges for resident undergraduate students for fiscal year 2008.  In March 2008, the 
University Trustees approved a 3.1 percent increase in mandatory student charges for resident undergraduate 
students for fiscal year 2009.  

 
The University was able to maintain these limits on its student charge increases because of stable support 

from the Commonwealth.  However, due to the national economic recession and significant declines in projected 
revenue collections for the Commonwealth, the University’s fiscal year 2009 base state appropriation was reduced 
by approximately $24.6 million in October 2008 and reduced further by approximately $2.8 million in January  
2009.  In response to these mid-year reductions of the University’s fiscal year 2009 state appropriation and the 
anticipated further reduction of the state appropriation for fiscal year 2010, the University departed from its five-
year practice of limiting student charge increases to at or below the rate of inflation. On February 27, 2009, the 
University Trustees approved a mandatory student charge increase of up to $1,500, which is an average increase of 
approximately 15.7 percent, for in-state undergraduate students for fiscal year 2010. The approved increase included 
specific language that authorized rebates of the charge increases based upon the level of federal support provided by 
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”).  

 
The Commonwealth’s budget for fiscal year 2010 approved on June 29, 2009 reduced the University’s state 

appropriation by $52.9 million in comparison to the final fiscal year 2009 state appropriation after the reductions 
made in October 2008 and January 2009.  The fiscal year 2010 state budget also eliminated $10.2 million of line 
item funding specific to the University.  In addition to cost-reduction strategies implemented at the University’s 
campuses and central offices, the University was prepared for this additional reduction because of the $1,500 student 
charge increase approved for fiscal year 2010.   
 
 The increase in the mandatory student charge was expected to increase the University’s revenue from 
tuition and fees by approximately $68.7 million.  However, the University has formalized an agreement with the 
Commonwealth’s Executive Office of Education that mandates the distribution to the University $118.6 million of 
the federal education stabilization funds available to the Commonwealth from ARRA.  The receipt of this federal 
revenue allows the University to remain consistent with the Board of Trustee vote on student charges taken on 
February 27, 2009 and offer a partial rebate of the $1,500 student charge increase.  For fiscal year 2010, the 
University will issue a $1,100 rebate to in-state undergraduate students.  The University’s campuses have already 
begun implementing the rebate for the fall semester and the rebate program will continue for the remainder of fiscal 
year 2010 as long as there are no mid-year reductions in the University’s state appropriation.   
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 The $118.6 million distribution of ARRA funding is a one-time event for fiscal year 2010. The 
Commonwealth has already distributed 87.5% of its education stabilization funds, of which the University has 
received approximately 17%.  There remains the possibility that the University will receive an additional allocation 
of education stabilization funds in either fiscal year 2010 or fiscal year 2011, but the Commonwealth only has $102 
million remaining to be allocated among all education departments.  The mandatory charges approved for fiscal year 
2010 remain in place and will serve as the base amount when the University reviews its student charges for fiscal 
year 2011. 

 
For additional information see “UNIVERSITY REVENUES AND BUDGETING – Management of 

Appropriated Funds” below.  The following tables show tuition and mandatory fees for full-time graduate and 
undergraduate students in effect at the Amherst, Boston, Dartmouth, Lowell and Worcester campuses for fiscal 
years 2006 through 2010. 
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AMHERST CAMPUS 
Tuition & Mandatory Fees: FY 2006 – 2010 

 
  Actual 

20061  
Actual 
20072 

Actual 
20083 

Actual 
20094 

Actual 
20105 

       
TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  9,937 9,937 9,937 9,937 9,937 
Graduate (MA resident)  2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 
Graduate (non-resident)  9,937 9,937 9,937 9,937 9,937 
       
CURRICULUM & OTHER MANDATORY 
FEES 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $7,564 $7,881 $ 8,207 $ 8,518 $10,018 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  8,460 9,380 10,562 11,792 13,292 
Graduate (MA resident)  6,917 7,242 7,455 7,766 8,286 
Graduate (non-resident)  8,069 8,969 9,241 10,471 11,491 
       
TOTAL MANDATORY FEES & TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 9,278 $ 9,595 $ 9,921 $10,232 $11,732 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  18,397 19,317 20,499 21,729 23,229 
Graduate (MA resident)  9,557 9,882 10,095 10,406 10,926 
Graduate (non-resident)  18,006 18,906 19,178 20,408 21,428 
       
DORMITORY RESIDENTS ONLY       
Average Room & Board  $6,517 $6,989 $7,478 $8,114 $8,276 
       
MANDATORY FEES, TUITION, ROOM & 
BOARD 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $15,795 $16,584 $17,399 $18,346 $20,008 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  24,914 26,306 27,977 29,843 31,505 
Graduate (MA resident)  16,074 16,871 17,573 18,520 19,202 
Graduate (non-resident)  24,523 25,895 26,656 28,522 29,704 

_______________________ 
 
1
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 16, 2005. 

2Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 15, 2006. 
3
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 14, 2007. 

4
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 19, 2008. 

5
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 27, 2009.  The “Actual 2010” fees do not reflect the $1,100 rebate 

to in-state undergraduate students in fiscal year 2010.  
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BOSTON CAMPUS 

Tuition & Mandatory Fees: FY 2006 – 2010 

 
  Actual 

20061 
Actual 
20072 

Actual 
20083 

Actual 
20094 

Actual 
20105 

       
TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 $1,714 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  9,758 9,758 9,758 9,758 9,758 
Graduate (MA resident)  2,590 2,590 2,590 2,590 2,590 
Graduate (non-resident)  9,758 9,758 9,758 9,758 9,758 
       
CURRICULUM & OTHER MANDATORY 
FEES 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $6,551 $ 6,832 $ 7,123 $ 7,397 $ 8,897 
Undergraduate (non-resident)   9,562 10,219 10,898 11,539 13,039 
Graduate (MA resident)  6,589 7,238 7,572 7,887 9,387 
Graduate (non-resident)  9,574 10,231 10,911 11,551 13,051 
       
TOTAL MANDATORY FEES & TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 8,265 $ 8,546 $ 8,837 $ 9,111 $10,611 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  19,320 19,977 20,656 21,297 22,797 
Graduate (MA resident)  9,179 9,828 10,162 10,477 11,977 
Graduate (non-resident)  19,332 19,989 20,669 21,309 22,809 
       

_______________________ 
 
1
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 16, 2005. 

2
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 15, 2006. 

3
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 14, 2007. 

4
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 19, 2008. 

5
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 27, 2009.  The “Actual 2010” fees do not reflect the $1,100 rebate 

to in-state undergraduate students in fiscal year 2010.  
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DARTMOUTH CAMPUS 
Tuition & Mandatory Fees: FY 2006 – 2010 

 
  Actual 

20061 
Actual 
20072 

Actual 
20083 

Actual 
20094 

Actual 
20105 

       
TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  8,099 8,099 8,099 8,099 8,099 
Graduate (MA resident)  2,071 2,071 2,071 2,071 2,071 
Graduate (non-resident)  8,099 8,099 8,099 8,099 8,099 
       
CURRICULUM & OTHER MANDATORY FEES       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 6,619 $ 6,892 $ 7,175 $ 7,441 $ 8,941 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  9,539 9,710 10,075 10,462 11,962 
Graduate (MA resident)  7,117 7,375 7,658 7,946 9,446 
Graduate (non-resident)  9,539 9,710 10,075 10,462 11,962 
       
TOTAL MANDATORY FEES & TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 8,036 $ 8,309 $ 8,592 $ 8,858 $10,358 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  17,638 17,809 18,174 18,561 20,061 
Graduate (MA resident)  9,188 9,446 9,729 10,017 11,517 
Graduate (non-resident)  17,638 17,809 18,174 18,561 20,061 
       
DORMITORY RESIDENTS ONLY       
Average Room & Board  $8,268 $8,893 $9,163 $9,428 $9,670 
       
MANDATORY FEES, TUITION, ROOM & 
BOARD 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $16,304 $17,202 $17,755 $18,286 $20,028 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  25,906 26,702 27,337 27,989 29,731 
Graduate (MA resident)  17,456 18,339 18,892 19,445 21,187 
Graduate (non-resident)  25,906 26,702 27,337 27,989 29,731 
      

_______________________ 

 
1
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 16, 2005. 

2
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 15, 2006. 

3
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 14, 2007. 

4
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 19, 2008. 

5
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 27, 2009.  The “Actual 2010” fees do not reflect the $1,100 rebate 

to in-state undergraduate students in fiscal year 2010.  
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LOWELL CAMPUS 
Tuition & Mandatory Fees: FY 2006 – 2010 

 
  Actual 

20061 
Actual 
20072 

Actual 
20083 

Actual 
20094 

Actual 
20105 

       
TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $1,454 $1,454 $1,454 $1,454 $1,454 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  8,567 8,567 8,567 8,567 8,567 
Graduate (MA resident)+  2,183 1,637 1,637 1,637 1,637 
Graduate (non-resident)+  8,567 6,425 6,425 6,425 6,425 
       
CURRICULUM & OTHER MANDATORY 
FEES 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 6,712 $ 6,990 $ 7,277 $ 7,552 $ 9,052 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  10,499 11,147 11,817 12,459 14,959 
Graduate (MA resident)++  6,070 6,332 6,603 6,862 8,362 
Graduate (non-resident)++  8,810 9,328 10,037 10,805 12,955 
       
TOTAL MANDATORY FEES & TUITION       
Undergraduate (MA resident)  $ 8,166 $ 8,444 $ 8,731 $ 9,006 $10,506 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  19,066 19,714 20,384 21,026 23,526 
Graduate (MA resident)   7,707 7,969 8,240 8,499 9,999 
Graduate (non-resident)   15,235 15,753 16,462 17,230 19,380 
       
DORMITORY RESIDENTS ONLY       
Average Room & Board  $6,311 $6,520 $6,978 $7,519 $8,635 
       
MANDATORY FEES, TUITION, ROOM & 
BOARD 

      

Undergraduate (MA resident)  $14,477 $14,964 $15,709 $16,525 $19,141 
Undergraduate (non-resident)  25,377 26,234 27,362 28,545  32,161 
Graduate (MA resident)   14,018 14,489 15,218 16,018 18,634 
Graduate (non-resident)   21,546 22,273 23,440 24,749 28,015 
       

_______________________ 
 
1
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 16, 2005. 

2
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 15, 2006. 

3Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 14, 2007. 
4
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 19, 2008. 

5
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 27, 2009.  The “Actual 2010” fees do not reflect the $1,100 rebate 

to in-state undergraduate students in fiscal year 2010.  
+Fiscal year 2006,  2007 and 2008 graduate tuition charges at UMass Lowell are on a 9-credit load basis.  
++

Fiscal year 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 graduate fee charges at UMass Lowell are on a 9-credit load basis.  
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WORCESTER CAMPUS 
Tuition & Mandatory Fees: FY 2006 – 2010 

 
  Actual 

20061 
Actual 
20072 

Actual 
20083 

Actual 
20094 

Actual 
20105 

       
TUITION       
Medical School  $8,352 $8,352 $8,352 $8,352 $8,352 
Graduate (MA resident)  2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 2,640 
Graduate (non-resident)  9,856 9,856 9,856 9,856 9,856 
       
CURRICULUM & OTHER MANDATORY 
FEES 

      

Medical School   $ 5,685 $ 5,710 $ 5,735 $ 5,886 $ 7,386 
Graduate School of Nursing  5,685 5,710 5,735 5,788 7,288 
Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences  3,942 3,942 3,942 3,975 4,010 
Ph.D./MD (MA resident) +  20,508 20,508 20,508 20,541 22,041 
Ph.D./MD Years 1-2 (non-resident) +  35,508 35,508 35,508 35,541 37,041 
Ph.D./MD Years 3 plus (non-resident) +  25,652 25,652 25,652 25,685 27,185 
       
TOTAL MANDATORY FEES & TUITION       
Medical School   $14,037 $14,062 $14,087 $14,238 $15,738 
Graduate School of Nursing (MA resident)  8,325 8,350 8,375 8,428 9,928 
Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences (MA 
resident) 

 6,582 6,582 6,582 6,615 6,650 

Graduate School of Nursing (non-resident)  15,541 15,566 15,591 15,644 17,144 
Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences (non-
resident) 

 13,798 13,798 13,798 13,831 13,866 

Ph.D./MD (MA resident)   23,148 23,148 23,148 23,181 24,681 
Ph.D./MD Years 1-2 (non-resident)   45,364 45,364 45,364 45,397 46,897 
Ph.D./MD Years 3 plus (non-resident)  35,508 35,508 35,508 35,541 37,041 
      

_______________________ 
 
1
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 16, 2005. 

2
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 15, 2006. 

3
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 14, 2007. 

4
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on March 19, 2008. 

5
Includes an increase in fees approved by the University Trustees on February 27, 2009. 

+
The University Trustees established and approved three separate fees for the Ph.D./MD program on February 4, 2004 for fiscal year 2005: “MA 

resident”, “Years 1-2 (non-resident)” and “Years 3 plus (non-resident)”. 
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Student Financial Aid 
 

Eligible University students receive financial aid packages primarily awarded from the federal government, 
with varying combinations of grants and scholarships, loans, and part-time employment.  Grants and scholarships 
represent financial aid that does not require repayment by the student.  The primary federal grants and scholarships 
awarded to eligible University students were Federal Pell Grants of approximately $31,636,003 and Federal 
Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants of approximately $3,870,765 for the year ended June 30, 2008.  Federal 
Pell Grants and Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants have increased from approximately $8,600,000 
and $1,900,000, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 1996.  New loans processed by the University for eligible 
students under federal student loan programs and federally guaranteed loan programs totaled approximately 
$116,325,699 for the year ended June 30, 2008.  Eligible University students also received approximately 
$5,086,159 through the Federal Work-Study Program for the year ended June 30, 2008. 

 
UNIVERSITY REVENUES AND BUDGETING 

 
In general, the University receives revenues from three major sources: Commonwealth appropriations, 

student fees and self-supporting activities for which fees are charged to cover the cost of providing the service, and 
federal and state contracts.  In fiscal year 2008, Commonwealth appropriations (net of tuition) provided 
approximately 27 percent of all operating and non-operating revenues of the University (not including University 
Related Organizations), tuition and fees accounted for approximately 20 percent of all operating and non-operating 
revenues, and other non-appropriated funds provided the remaining 53 percent. 
 

The University's internal accounting is maintained on a budgetary basis.  Additionally, the University 
prepares annual audited financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles on an 
accrual basis.  The financial statements of the University as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 and for each of the fiscal 
years then ended have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, as stated in their 
report which references the reports of other auditors.  The combined audited financial statements of the University 
should be read in their entirety, including the footnotes and the Management Discussion and Analysis attached 
thereto. 
 
Current and Future Capital Plans 
  

The University must follow certain procedures for state capital spending as defined by the 
Commonwealth’s Executive Office for Administration and Finance (“EOAF”). Such spending may be financed 
through the issuance of Commonwealth general or special obligation bonds or other designated revenue, including 
transfers from budgeted funds.  The Commonwealth's Division of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance 
(“DCAMM”) manages a five-year capital-spending limit, which is assigned by the Commonwealth’s Secretary of 
Administration and Finance.  The University works closely with DCAMM to ensure that the priorities of the 
University are included in the five-year capital plan for state funding.     

 
The University Trustees have reviewed and approved a five-year approximately $3.70 billion capital plan 

for fiscal years 2010-2014, including projects already in process with prior approval of the University Trustees as 
well as new projects recommended by the University Trustees’ Committee on Administration and Finance.  The 
University generally has funded its capital plans through a combination of funds received from University 
operations, bonds issued by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (“MHEFA”), bonds 
issued by the Authority, Commonwealth appropriations, and private fund raising.  

 
The major projects in the 2010-2014 capital plan and their estimated total project cost include (a) at the 

Amherst campus, the construction of a new 144,000 square foot laboratory science building for approximately 
$144,000,000, the construction of a recreation center for approximately $53,300,000, the planning and construction 
of an Academic Classroom Building for approximately $85,000,000, the renovation of the Morrill Science Center 
Complex for approximately $51,300,000, repairs to DuBois Library interior for approximately $13,000,000, the 
construction of a Life Sciences Research Facility for approximately $95,000,000, repairs and renovations to the Fine 
Arts Center for approximately $43,100,000, installation of housing sprinkler systems for approximately 
$32,000,000, infrastructure improvements to the North Campus for approximately $9,300,000, renovations to the 
Marks Meadow School property for approximately $10,000,000, Lederle Graduate Research Center Complex 

A-23



 

repairs and renovations for approximately $41,250,000, a classroom addition to the Isenberg School of Management 
for approximately $20,000,000, new construction of a police facility for approximately $12,500,000, the 
establishment of swing space either through renovation or new construction for approximately $50,000,000, 
renovation, modernization, and expansion of the Student Center for approximately $70,000,000; (b) at the Boston 
campus, the construction of an Integrated Science Complex for approximately $152,000,000, stabilization of the 
campus substructure and related deferred maintenance projects for approximately $33,120,000,  construction of a 
1,200 vehicle parking garage for $35,000,000, the construction of a two new academic buildings for approximately 
$200,000,000, the construction of a 1,000-bed Living and Learning Center for $88,000,000, fire protection 
improvements in the Healey Library for approximately $7,000,000, renovation and modernization work to existing 
campus buildings for approximately $75,000,000 and the construction of the Edward M. Kennedy Institute for the 
United States Senate for approximately $50,000,000; (c) at the Dartmouth campus, the construction of a 
Biomanufacturing Building for approximately $15,000,000, classroom and laboratory upgrades and learning space 
improvements for approximately $7,440,000, extensive renovation and modernization to the Carney Library for 
approximately $43,000,000, a comprehensive energy/water conservation project for approximately $40,000,000, 
repairing the four oldest residence halls for approximately $75,000,000, basic infrastructure repairs for 
approximately $61,702,000, new construction of an Administrative Services Center for approximately $12,690,000, 
acquisition of the Advanced Technology Manufacturing Center for approximately $11,400,000, Phase II 
construction at the Charlton College of Business for approximately $14,000,000, the construction of a 
SMAST/Marine Fisheries Building for approximately $20,000,000, the construction of a Campus Entrance Building 
for approximately $40,000,000, a two-phase renovation project for the Dion Engineering Building for approximately 
$41,600,000, and the construction/rehabilitation of a multipurpose field house for approximately $20,800,000; (d) at 
the Lowell campus, the construction of a South Campus Academic Building for approximately $40,000,000, the 
construction of a new management building for approximately $50,000,000, the construction of a new parking 
garage (UML North) for approximately $15,000,000, the construction of The Emerging Technology Innovation 
Center for approximately $70,000,000, the purchase and establishment of the Inn and Conference Center for 
approximately $21,200,000, renewal program for auxiliary service buildings for approximately $50,000,000, 
building rehabilitation of Wannalancit Mills for approximately $15,500,000, construction of a residential hall on the 
east campus for approximately $50,000,000, campus-wide modernization of academic buildings for approximately 
$54,250,000 comprehensive renovation of Ball Hall for $45,500,000, property acquisitions totaling approximately 
$20,000,000, renewal of Coburn Hall for approximately $24,000,000, the construction of 800 additional residential 
beds for approximately $90,000,000, an Energy Services Contract for approximately $40,000,000, and renovations 
to modernize the North Campus Quad area for approximately $11,300,000; and (e) at the Worcester campus, 
construction of the Sherman Center for approximately $320,000,000, expansion of the existing Power Plant for 
approximately $42,000,000, new construction of the Advanced Education and Clinical Practice Center for 
approximately $120,000,000,, basic deferred maintenance repairs at the Jamaica Plain Campus for approximately 
16,020,000,  construction of a data center for approximately $16,000,000, HVAC upgrades and replacements for 
approximately $30,000,000, purchase of the BioTech IV Property for approximately $17,000,000 and construction 
of a new parking garage for approximately $28,000,000.  

 
The University is committed to continuing to move forward with its five-year capital plan for fiscal years 

2010-2014.  However, due to the current challenging economic times, the University continues to reassess its capital 
priorities and implementation schedule in order to get the most impact out of any capital dollars spent.   

 
Beginning in the late 1990s, the University enhanced its program to address deferred maintenance needs at 

its campuses.  As a result, the University has made investments to repair and renovate facilities at the University’s 
campuses from a combination of University sources, including bonds issued by the Authority and bonds issued by 
MHEFA, and direct Commonwealth support.  Addressing deferred maintenance remains a priority within the 
University’s capital plan.  The University's 2010-2014 capital plan includes approximately $691,000,000 of deferred 
maintenance projects. 
 
Budget Process 
 

The University’s fiscal year, like that of the Commonwealth, is from July 1 through June 30.  A key source 
of University revenues is the annual state appropriation determined in the Commonwealth’s annual budget process.  
This process begins approximately one year in advance of each fiscal year.  The University prepares its consolidated 
state budget request and forwards it to the Governor and the House and Senate Committees on Ways and Means.  A 
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copy of the University’s request is also forwarded to the DHE, which incorporates the University’s request in whole 
or in part into its state budget request for the entire public higher education system.  The Governor makes funding 
recommendations to the Legislature.  The Legislature in turn appropriates funds to the University Trustees, who 
distribute the funds to the five campuses. 
 

The Commonwealth budget process, however, is only one of several ongoing budgetary and review 
processes that culminate in production and presentation to the University Trustees of the overall annual University 
operating budget.  For purposes of the operating budget, the University’s revenues are divided into three separate 
components: General Operations, Sales and Services, and Restricted Funds. Annual budgeted revenues and 
expenditures not related to Commonwealth appropriations are reviewed and approved by the University Trustees 
prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 
 
  General Operations 
 

Revenues from general operations are derived from a variety of sources and may be expended on activities 
furthering the general education, research, and public service mission of the University, including teaching and 
related student support services, research, public service, institutional support, and general maintenance activities.  
Funding sources for this category include state appropriations, general student fees, interest income, unrestricted 
giving and administrative overhead.   
 

Sales and Services (Designated Funds) 
 

Revenues generated from certain sales and/or services are presented in the budget separately from general 
operations and by law may be used to support only the operations of those services.  An example of a designated 
fund is a trust fund established to receive revenues from a parking garage.  By law, this revenue may be used only 
for expenses relating to parking and transportation.  Other examples in this category are: auxiliary enterprises such 
as dining halls, dormitories, and bookstores; student fee-based activities (other than the general student fee), such as 
continuing education and international programs; and educational activities such as counseling services. 

 
Restricted Funds 

 
In addition to the two foregoing categories of revenue, the University receives revenue from non-campus 

sources, which, like the designated funds, are limited in their uses.  These funds include: state and federal student 
financial aid funds; state, federal and private grants and contracts; restricted endowment and scholarship funds; and 
land grant funds for the Amherst campus.  Generally, these funds are available for debt service, except to the extent 
they are earmarked or restricted as to use by the grantor or donor. 
 
Management of Appropriated Funds 
 
 All Commonwealth appropriated funds are managed through the Massachusetts Management Accounting 
and Reporting System (“MMARS”).  MMARS is a complete financial management system specifically designed to 
support the financial functions performed by the Commonwealth for all appropriations.  The State Comptroller 
exercises oversight over MMARS.  Approximately 27 percent of the University’s operating and non-operating 
revenues are currently monitored through MMARS. 
 

Unless otherwise permitted by the Massachusetts Legislature, the University is required to remit tuition 
collected by it to the Commonwealth.  Therefore, the University collects student tuition on behalf of the 
Commonwealth and remits it to the Commonwealth’s General Fund.  There is no direct connection between the 
amount of tuition revenues collected by the University and the amount of state funds appropriated in any given year.  
Beginning in fiscal year 2004, the Amherst campus was permitted by the Commonwealth to retain tuition for non-
resident students.  In fiscal year 2006, fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2008, the Amherst campus retained 
approximately $27,800,000, $31,100,000, and $32,700,000, respectively, of tuition.   
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The following details the Commonwealth appropriations received by the University for fiscal years ended 
June 30 (in thousands of dollars):  

 
 2004** 2005** 2006** 2007** 2008** 
      
Gross Commonwealth     
Appropriations 

$365,086 $413,779 $450,324 $474,909 $485,199 

Plus: Fringe Benefits* 85,348 114,173 123,949 151,106 178,236 
Less: Tuition Remitted* (52,280) (49,139) (47,524) (46,599) (46,164) 
Net Commonwealth Appropriations $398,154 $478,813 $526,749 $579,416 $617,271 

________________________ 
 

*The Commonwealth pays the fringe benefit cost for University employees paid from Commonwealth appropriations.  Therefore, such 
fringe benefit support is added to the “State Appropriations” financial statement line item as presented in the above table.  The University 
pays the Commonwealth for the fringe benefit cost of the employees paid from funding sources other than Commonwealth appropriations.  
The University includes tuition collected in the line item in its financial statements captioned “Tuition and Fees” under “Combined 
Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets” and removes the equal amount from the “State Appropriations” line item 
through the netting process presented in the above table. 
 
**Beginning with the fiscal year 2004 State Budget, the Massachusetts Legislature allowed the Amherst campus to retain tuition for non-
resident students.  The state appropriation was reduced by $28,005,556 to compensate for the program.   
   

 
In fiscal year 2008, the net state appropriation increased $37.9 million over fiscal year 2007 amounts.  This 

increase is attributed to the state funding of collective bargaining agreements, increased state fringe benefit support 
as well as an increase for general operations.  The fiscal year 2008 state budget passed in July 2007 included an 
increase of approximately 2.8% to the University’s base state appropriation.  The University also received 
approximately $15 million of supplemental appropriations from the state in fiscal year 2008 to fund collective 
bargaining agreements. 

 
The fiscal year 2009 budget initially passed by the Massachusetts Legislature and signed by Governor 

Deval Patrick in July 2008 increased the University’s base state appropriation by $8.3 million, 1.7% over the fiscal 
year 2008 appropriations including the collective bargaining funds received.  However, deteriorating economic 
circumstances resulted in state revenues falling below the estimates used to develop the Commonwealth’s fiscal year 
2009 budget.  Therefore, Governor Patrick utilized his executive “9C” authority to implement targeted spending 
reductions in October and January of fiscal year 2009.  The University’s base state appropriation was reduced by 
$24.6 million in October 2008 and $2.8 million in January 2009.  As a result, the University’s fiscal year 2009 base 
state appropriation declined by approximately 5.6% in comparison to fiscal year 2008.   

 
The fiscal year 2010 budget finalized on June 29, 2009 decreased the University’s base state appropriation 

by approximately $80.3 million over the budget initially approved for fiscal year 2009. The fiscal year 2010 budget 
also removed line item funding specific to University projects effectively reducing the state appropriation by an 
additional $10.2 million. When the state appropriation reduction is factored in with the corresponding loss of state-
funded employee fringe benefits, the University is projecting that state funding will be $102 million lower in fiscal 
year 2010 than in fiscal year 2008. 

 
In August 2008, the Massachusetts Legislature passed a higher education bond bill that was filed by 

Governor Patrick.  The Higher Education Improvement Act authorized $2.2 billion for capital improvement 
spending over the next ten years at community colleges, state colleges, and the University.  More than $1 billion of 
these funds are directed to University projects exclusively.  In addition, a major state effort to assist the 
Commonwealth in increasing its competitive position in the life sciences was signed into law by the Governor on 
June 16, 2008.  The $1 billion Life Sciences Industry Investment Act authorized $500 million of capital funding 
over ten years.  It is anticipated that some portion of this funding, possibly as much as $242 million, will be used to 
support facility improvements at the University including a major research complex at the Medical School in 
Worcester, a major research facility at the Amherst Campus, and significant capital investments in collaborative 
facilities and programs involving the Boston, Dartmouth, and Lowell campuses.  In addition to capital funding, the 
life sciences initiative provides a number of opportunities for the University to participate in the planning and 
program implementation of this important economic development effort. 
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The Higher Education Improvement Act and the Life Sciences Industry Investment Act are statutory 

authorizations necessary to allow the Commonwealth to spend state general obligation bond proceeds on University 
projects.  EOAF and DCAMM are the state agencies that develop the state’s capital plan, file bond bills, approve 
projects that will receive state funding, and allocate funds to approved projects.  DCAMM is responsible for 
designing and constructing public facilities and improvements.  Accordingly, DCAMM has recognized the 
importance and scale of the authorized higher education investment program and has reorganized itself in 
anticipation of increased activity at the Commonwealth’s colleges and the University. 

  
Management of Non-Appropriated Funds 
 

All non-appropriated funds are managed and grouped for budgetary purposes into several trust funds.  Non-
appropriated funds include, for example, student fees, gifts, grants, contracts, and sponsored programs.  The 
University Trustees establish and collect certain student fees and charges, including charges for room and board.  
Non-appropriated funds are retained by the University.  Approximately 73 percent of the University's operating and 
non-operating revenues for fiscal year 2008 were non-appropriated. 
 

University trust funds are financial accounts that are established by the University Trustees under authority 
granted by the legislature in connection with self-supporting operations, such as student services, parking, and 
certain research and public service activities.  Revenues received from these self-supporting activities are expended 
by law for the purpose for which the fund was established.  The University Trustees exercise oversight and control 
over these funds through official policy guidelines, annual budget review and approval and periodic internal audits 
of certain accounts.  Beginning with fiscal year 1992, the University Trustees have required that external audits of 
the accounts and fund groups be performed by certified public accountants on a combined basis. 
 

The University's financial operations consist of two major expense categories: Educational and General, and 
Auxiliary Enterprises. The Educational and General expense budget includes research, academic programs, public 
service programs, student services programs, academic and institutional support programs, physical plant operations 
and financial aid.  These activities are funded from student fees (not tuition), Commonwealth appropriations, the 
federal government and certain unrestricted grants and contracts. Auxiliary enterprises are a set of self-sufficient 
services ancillary to the general educational mission of the University.  These include such items as dining and 
residence halls, student health services, and parking facilities.  The Auxiliary Enterprises budget is a revenue-based 
trust fund.  No assurance can be given that future trust fund revenues will continue to be sufficient to support self-
amortizing projects or other Auxiliary Enterprises. 

 
Fiscal Year 2009, Fiscal Year 2010 and Beyond 

 
The University responded to fiscal year 2009 mid-year rescissions with necessary and strategic cutbacks, 

reducing its expenses while protecting its fundamental commitment to educating its students.  Cost cutting measures 
included reductions in force, office consolidations, hiring and salary freezes, furloughs, and travel restrictions. 
Emphasis was placed on reducing discretionary spending and achieving cost savings by implementing programs 
targeting energy savings.  

 
In addition to the expenditure reductions, the University was able to handle the mid-year state appropriation 

reductions by its continued strong performance in increasing other revenue sources.  Gross revenue from the 
University’s online programs has increased by approximately 23% from academic year 2008 to academic year 2009.  
Revenue from the University’s Commercial Ventures and Intellectual Property rose by more than $35 million to 
approximately $73 million in fiscal year 2009 and sales and services from Public Service Activities at the Medical 
School are anticipated to be greater than $630 million in fiscal year 2009. The University also benefited from the 
apparent increased demand for its products.  Difficult economic conditions in the Commonwealth resulted in 
increased student enrollment across the University leading to greater revenue from student charges.   

 
 Through sound management, the University effectively weathered these reductions in state support without 

significantly tapping into reserves or compromising its core commitments.  The significant additional reduction in 
state appropriations for fiscal year 2010 will be addressed through the reliance on education stabilization funds 
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provided by ARRA and through additional revenue generated by the mandatory student fee increase approved for 
fiscal year 2010.    

 
 The Commonwealth has transferred $118.6 million of ARRA education stabilization funds to the 
University in fiscal year 2010, which effectively returns the state appropriation level to the amount originally 
allocated to the University at the beginning of fiscal year 2009.  The $118.6 million distribution of ARRA funding is 
a one-time event for fiscal year 2010. The Commonwealth has already distributed 87.5% of its education 
stabilization funds, of which the University has received approximately 17%.  There remains the possibility that the 
University will receive an additional allocation of education stabilization funds in either fiscal year 2010 or fiscal 
year 2011, but the Commonwealth only has $102 million remaining to be allocated among all education 
departments.    
 
 The $1,500 increase in mandatory student charges approved in February 2009 was expected to generate 
$68.7 million in gross new revenue for fiscal year 2010. Due to the receipt of the $118.6 million of stabilization 
funds, the University is following through on the Board of Trustee vote to rebate a portion of the student charge 
increase.  For fiscal year 2010, the University will issue a $1,100 rebate to in-state undergraduate students.  With 
this rebate, the additional revenue provided to the University from the student charge increase will be approximately 
$45.1 million in gross revenue. The University’s campuses have already begun implementing the rebate for the fall 
semester and the rebate program will continue for the remainder of fiscal year 2010 as long as there are no mid-year 
reductions in the University’s state appropriation.  The mandatory charges approved for fiscal year 2010 remain in 
place and will serve as the base amount when the University reviews its student charges for fiscal year 2011. 

 
 The receipt of the federal stimulus funds temporarily obviated the need for a second phase of major 
spending reductions in fiscal year 2010, but this does not remove the requirement for additional expenditure 
reductions to prepare the University for the anticipated drop in revenue for fiscal year 2011 when the stimulus 
funding will no longer be available to supplement the projected reduced level of state support.  In addition to the 
staff reductions and cost-cutting measures implemented in fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2010, the University is 
examining budget restructuring, consolidation of administrative functions, further reductions in force, and 
programmatic adjustments in order to prepare for modest state support in fiscal years 2011 and 2012.    Under these 
challenging economic conditions, the University is confident that it will be able to maintain its core service levels 
without depleting reserves. 
 

The University also benefits from having diverse revenue streams.  Grant and contract revenues have 
grown consistently over the years and, in part because of the significant increases in federal research dollars 
included in ARRA, the University anticipates continued strong revenue in this area. As of September 2009, the 
University has already received 86 ARRA funded grants and contracts totaling over $62.4 million.  Modest 
increases and room and board rates also will generate additional revenues for auxiliary operations.  All of these 
revenue sources contribute to the University’s fiscal position.   
 
Basis of Presentation 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. These statements are reported on a 
combined basis, and all intra-University transactions are eliminated. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, 
the University follows all applicable GASB pronouncements. In addition, the University applies all applicable 
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") pronouncements Issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless 
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The University has elected not to apply 
FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. 

 
Operating revenues consist of tuition and fees, grants and contracts, sales and services of educational 

activities (including royalties from licensing agreements) and auxiliary enterprise revenues. Operating expenses 
include salaries, wages, fringe benefits, utilities, subcontracts on grants and contracts, supplies and services, and 
depreciation and amortization. All other revenues and expenses of the University are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses including state general appropriations, non-capital gifts, short term investment income, 
endowment income used in operations, interest expense, and capital additions and deductions. Capital items 
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represent all other changes in long term plant and endowment net assets. Revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred with the exception of revenue earned on certain public service activities. 
Restricted grant revenue is recognized only when all eligibility requirements have been met, that is to the extent 
grant revenues are expended or in the case of fixed price contracts, when the contract terms are met or completed. 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give (pledges) for non-endowment or non-capital purposes, are 
recognized as revenues in the period received. Promises of additions to non-expendable endowments are not 
recognized until cash or other assets are received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become 
unconditional, that is when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. The University applies 
restricted net assets first when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net assets are available. 

 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingencies at the date of the financial statements and revenues and 
expenditures recognized during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the accrual for employee 
compensated absences, the accrual for workers' compensation liability, the allowance for doubtful accounts, 
valuation of certain investments and depreciation expense. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
The University reports its financial statements as a "business-type activity" ("BTA") under GASB 

Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges 

and Universities (GASB 35). BTAs are defined as those that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties for goods or services. 

 
In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of available resources, the 

accounts of the University are maintained internally in accordance with the principles of "fund accounting". This is 
the procedure by which resources for various purposes are maintained in separate funds in accordance with the 
activities or objectives specified. GASB 35 requires that external financial statements to be reported on a 
consolidated basis and establishes standards for external financial reporting by public colleges and universities that 
resources be classified into the following net asset categories: 

 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt:  Capital assets, at historical cost, or fair market value 
on date of gift, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

 

• Restricted Nonexpendable:  Net assets subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by the University. 

   

• Restricted Expendable:  Net assets whose use by the University is subject to externally imposed 
stipulations.  Such assets include restricted grants and contracts, the accumulated net gains/losses on 
true endowment funds, as well as restricted funds loaned to students, restricted gifts and endowment 
income, and other similar restricted funds. 

 

• Unrestricted:  Net assets that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations.  Substantially all 
unrestricted net assets are designated to support academic, research, auxiliary enterprises or 
unrestricted funds functioning as endowments, or are committed to capital construction projects. 

 
Revenues are reported net of discounts and allowances. As a result, student financial aid expenditures are 

reported as an allowance against tuition and fees revenue while stipends and other payments made directly to 
students are recorded as scholarship and fellowship expenditures on the statement of revenues, expenses, and other 
changes to net assets, and included in supplies and services on the statement of cash flows. Discounts and 
allowances for tuition and fees and auxiliary enterprises are calculated using the Alternate Method. 

 
 For more detailed information, including the Statement of Cash Flows, see the University’s financial 
statements included as Appendix C to this Official Statement. 

A-29



 

Summary of Operations 
 

Combined and Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
As of June 30 (in thousands of dollars) 

 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

ASSETS University University University University University 

Current Assets $464,582 $526,739 $504,691 $475,147 $494,957 

Noncurrent Assets      

    Investment in Plant Net of Accumulated Depreciation             1,163,700 1,330,410 1,499,607 1,719,316 1,918,770 

    All Other Noncurrent Assets 929,967 891,988 900,789 964,875 1,119,528 

           Total Assets $2,558,249 $2,749,137 $2,905,087 $3,159,338 $3,533,255 

      

LIABILITIES      

Current Liabilities $348,643 $383,772 $508,972 $472,682 $431,664 

Noncurrent Liabilities 1,040,976 1,073,836 1,046,337 1,122,339 1,448,144 

           Total Liabilities $1,389,619 $1,457,608 $1,555,309 $1,595,021 $1,879,808 

      

NET ASSETS      

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt $713,903 $739,312 $804,053 $884,138 $1,027,045 

Restricted      

    Nonexpendable 14,433 15,559 16,136 16,264 16,605 

    Expendable 124,272 160,116 146,903 212,302 161,732 

Unrestricted 316,022 376,542 382,686 451,613 448,065 

           Total Net Assets $1,168,630 $1,291,529 $1,349,778 $1,564,317 $1,653,447 

 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets  
For The Years Ended June 30 (in thousands of dollars) 
 

REVENUES 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

 Operating Revenues University University University  University  University 
Tuition and Fees (net of scholarship allowances of $113,738 
at June 30, 2008, $105,414 at June 30, 2007, $88,628 at June 
30, 2006, $66,887 at June 30, 2005, and $63,185 at June 30, 
2004) 

$361,762 $388,385 $401,636 $429,528 $458,439 

Federal Grants and Contracts 277,166 289,527 300,685 297,647 318,288 

State Grants and Contracts 53,788 59,142 66,172 66,775 72,034 

Local Grants and Contracts 3,123 3,266 3,746 2,815 2,507 
Private Grants and Contracts 67,673 72,249 82,234 92,653 99,342 

Sales & Service, Educational 15,978 17,284 17,780 17,150 20,657 

Auxiliary Enterprises 163,894 172,745 196,957 205,312 231,306 
Other Operating Revenues      

Sales & Service, Independent Operations 61,245 66,346 78,899 99,344 65,588 

Sales & Service, Public Service Activities 249,950 399,958 333,997 381,214 325,758 
Other 35,362 41,125 44,142 59,570 58,765 

Total Operating Revenues $1,289,941 $1,510,027 $1,526,248 $1,652,008 $1,652,684 
 
Source: Annual Audited Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2004-2008.  (Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to 
conform with the current year presentation.) 

________________ 
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(continued) 
Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Years Ended June 30 (in thousands of dollars) (continued) 

 

EXPENSES 2004 2005  2006       2007       2008 

 Operating Expenses University University University University University 
Educational and General      

Instruction $401,307 $452,409 $499,403 $526,781 $548,850 
Research 276,595 301,422 316,667 320,889 342,109 
Public Service 59,581 63,327 76,867 75,058 79,213 
Academic Support 86,976 103,803 112,021 120,240 130,293 
Student Services 70,848 75,724 79,229 87,085 91,157 
Institutional Support 116,043 131,470 153,071 156,014 174,358 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 121,698 134,246 157,683 166,082 178,940 
Depreciation and Amortization 101,465 118,649 121,567 141,360 126,896 
Scholarships and Fellowships 26,743 29,832 26,590 25,714 28,111 

Auxiliary Enterprises 126,602 151,113 149,986 162,134 182,379 
Other Expenditures      

Independent Operations 25,757 37,329 46,546 66,870 49,562 
Public Service Activities 207,967 327,416 316,854 330,331 267,199 

Total Operating Expenses $1,621,582 $1,926,740 $2,056,484 $2,178,558 $2,199,067 

Operating Loss ($331,641) ($416,713) ($530,236) ($526,550) ($546,383) 
      
NONOPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)      

Federal Appropriations $6,849 $7,016 $7,044 $5,777 $7,099 
State Appropriations 398,154 478,813 526,749 579,416 617,271 
Gifts 16,731 25,289 25,646 18,621 20,654 
Investment Income 26,806 35,072 42,981 87,106 7,494 
Endowment Income 1,047 1,661 5,903 7,031 11,036 
Interest on Indebtedness (30,230) (37,077) (39,331) (36,737) (40,990) 
Other Nonoperating Income 13,373 10,721 8,967 9,639 11,484 

Net Nonoperating Revenues $432,730 $521,495 $577,959 $670,853 $634,048 

Income/(Loss) Before Other Revenues, 

Expenses, Gains and Losses 

 
$101,089 

 
$104,782 

 
$47,723       

 
$144,303       

 
$87,665       

      
Capital Appropriations $19,135 $27,417 $27,147 $73,590 $21,170 
Capital Grants and Contracts    4,000 1,500 
University Related Organization Transactions 676  593   
Disposal of Plant Facilities (14,099) (11,990) (11,276) (6,964) (10,462) 
Other Additions/Deductions 7,131 2,690 (5,938) (390) (10,743) 

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, and Losses $12,843 $18,117 $10,526 $70,236 $1,465 

Total Increase in Net Assets $113,932 $122,899 $58,249 $214,539 $89,130 
      
NET ASSETS      

Net Assets at Beginning of Year $1,054,698 $1,168,630 $1,291,529 $1,349,778 $1,564,317 

Net Assets at End of Year $1,168,630 $1,291,529 $1,349,778 $1,564,317 $1,653,447 
 
Source: Annual Audited Financial Report for Fiscal Years 2004-2008.  (Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to 
conform with the current year presentation.) 

________________ 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS, FISCAL YEARS 2006 THROUGH 2008 
 
The following is a summary of the financial results for fiscal years 2006 through 2008.  For information 

about fiscal years 2009 and 2010, see “TUITION AND FEES”, “UNIVERSITY REVENUES AND BUDGETING 
– Management of Appropriated Funds” and “UNIVERSITY REVENUES AND BUDGETING – Fiscal Year 2009, 
Fiscal Year 2010 and Beyond”  herein. 
 
Fiscal Year 2008 

 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The University’s net assets (not including University Related Organizations) increased approximately 
$89,100,000 from $1.56 billion in fiscal year 2007 to approximately $1.65 billion in fiscal year 2008.  The major 
components of this increase relate to positive operating margins due primarily to increased student fee revenues as a 
result of increased enrollment and fees along with significant physical plant improvements. 
 

The University expended approximately $179,000,000 on plant operations and maintenance activities 
during fiscal year 2008. 
 
Summary of Assets and Liabilities 
 

At June 30, 2008, the University’s total assets (not including University Related Organizations) were 
approximately $3.5 billion, an increase of approximately $374,000,000 over the approximately $3.2 billion in assets 
recorded for fiscal year 2007. The University’s largest asset continues to be its net investment in its physical plant of 
approximately $1.92 billion at June 30, 2008 (approximately $1.72 billion in fiscal year 2007).  Other significant 
University assets include current and noncurrent investments and cash and securities held by the University 
Trustees.   
 
 University liabilities (not including University Related Organizations) totaled approximately $1.9 billion at 
June 30, 2008, an increase of approximately $284,800,000 over fiscal year 2007.  Long-term debt largely consists of 
bonds payable and capitalized lease obligations amounting to approximately $1.4 billion at June 30, 2008.  This 
represents a increase of approximately $328,300,000 over long-term debt obligations of approximately $1.1 billion 
in fiscal year 2007.  This increase reflects new debt issued by the Authority. 
 
 The University’s current assets of approximately $495,000,000 were sufficient to cover current liabilities of 
approximately $431,700,000, as the current ratio was 1.15 dollars in assets to every one-dollar in liabilities. In fiscal 
year 2007 the current ratio was 1.01 (approximately $475,100,000 in current assets and $472,700,000 in current 
liabilities).   
     
 The University’s unrestricted and restricted expendable net assets totaled approximately $609,800,000, 
which represents approximately 27.7 percent of total operating expenditures of approximately $2.2 billion during 
fiscal year 2008.   
 
 In fiscal year 2008, the University’s unrestricted net assets (referred to as Expendable Fund Balance under 
the Former Financial Reporting Model) totaled approximately $448,100,000.  Substantially all unrestricted net 
assets are designated to support academic, research, auxiliary enterprises or unrestricted funds functioning as 
endowments, or are committed to capital construction projects. 
 
Summary of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenditures 
 

The University’s total operating revenues for fiscal year 2008 were approximately $1.65 billion.  This is 
consistent with the $1.65 billion in operating revenues in fiscal year 2007.  The most significant sources of revenue 
for the University are tuition and fees of approximately $458,400,000, grants and contracts of approximately 
$492,200,000, and auxiliary services of approximately $231,300,000.  Tuition and fees, grants and contracts, and 
auxiliary services represent 28 percent, 30 percent and 14 percent, respectively, of total operating revenues.   
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 In fiscal year 2008, University operating expenditures, including depreciation and amortization of 
approximately $126,900,000, totaled approximately $2.2 billion.  Of this total, approximately $1.1 billion or 50 
percent was used to support the academic core activities of the University, including approximately $342,100,000 in 
research. 
 
State Appropriations 
 

State appropriations represent approximately 27 percent of all operating and non-operating revenues.  The 
level of state support is a key factor influencing the University’s overall financial condition.  Although the state 
appropriation is unrestricted revenue, nearly 100% of the state appropriation supports payroll and benefits for 
University employees. 
 
 In fiscal year 2008, the net state appropriation increased $37,855,000 over fiscal year 2007 amounts.  This 
increase is attributed to increased state fringe benefit support as well as an increase for general operations. 
 
Fiscal Year 2007 

 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The University’s net assets (not including University Related Organizations) increased approximately 
$214,540,000 from $1.35 billion in fiscal year 2006 to approximately $1.56 billion in fiscal year 2007.  The major 
components of these increases relate to increases in student fee revenues across the University campuses and 
physical plant improvements. 
 

The University expended approximately $166,000,000 on plant operations and maintenance activities 
during fiscal year 2007. 
 
Summary of Assets and Liabilities 
 

At June 30, 2007, the University’s total assets (not including University Related Organizations) were 
approximately $3.2 billion, an increase of approximately $254,000,000 over the approximately $2.9 billion in assets 
recorded for fiscal year 2006. The University’s largest asset continues to be its net investment in its physical plant of 
approximately $1.72 billion at June 30, 2007 (approximately $1.50 billion in fiscal year 2006).  Other significant 
University assets include current and noncurrent investments and cash and securities held by the University 
Trustees.   
 
 University liabilities (not including University Related Organizations) totaled approximately $1.60 billion 
at June 30, 2007, an increase of approximately $39,700,000 over fiscal year 2006.  Long-term debt largely consists 
of bonds payable and capitalized lease obligations amounting to approximately $1.1 billion at June 30, 2007.  This 
represents a increase of approximately $91,100,000 over long-term debt obligations of approximately $1.01 billion 
in fiscal year 2006.  This increase reflects new debt issued through MHEFA. 
 
 The University’s current assets of approximately $475,100,000 were sufficient to cover current liabilities of 
approximately $472,700,000, as the current ratio was 1.01 dollars in assets to every one-dollar in liabilities. In fiscal 
year 2006 the current ratio was 0.99 (approximately $504,700,000 in current assets and $509,000,000 in current 
liabilities).   
     
 The University’s unrestricted and restricted expendable net assets totaled approximately $663,900,000, 
which represents approximately 30.5 percent of total operating expenditures of approximately $2.18 billion during 
fiscal year 2007.   
 
 In fiscal year 2007, the University’s unrestricted net assets (referred to as Expendable Fund Balance under 
the Former Financial Reporting Model) totaled approximately $451,600,000.  Substantially all unrestricted net 
assets are designated to support academic, research, auxiliary enterprises or unrestricted funds functioning as 
endowments, or are committed to capital construction projects. 
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Summary of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenditures 
 

The University’s total operating revenues for fiscal year 2007 were approximately $1.65 billion.  This is an 
increase of approximately $125,800,000 over fiscal year 2006 operating revenues of $1.53 billion.  The most 
significant sources of revenue for the University are tuition and fees of approximately $429,500,000, grants and 
contracts of approximately $459,900,000, and auxiliary services of approximately $205,300,000.  Tuition and fees, 
grants and contracts, and auxiliary services represent 26 percent, 28 percent and 12 percent, respectively, of total 
operating revenues.   
 
 In fiscal year 2007, University operating expenditures, including depreciation and amortization of 
approximately $141,400,000, totaled approximately $2.18 billion.  Of this total, approximately $1.04 billion or 48 
percent was used to support the academic core activities of the University, including approximately $320,900,000 in 
research. 
 
State Appropriations 
 

State appropriations represent approximately 25 percent of all operating and non-operating revenues.  The 
level of state support is a key factor influencing the University’s overall financial condition.  Although the state 
appropriation is unrestricted revenue, nearly 100% of the state appropriation supports payroll and benefits for 
University employees, 
 
 In fiscal year 2007, the net state appropriation increased $52,700,000 over fiscal year 2006 amounts.  This 
increase is attributed to the state funding of collective bargaining agreements, increased state fringe benefit support 
as well as an increase for general operations.   

 
Fiscal Year 2006 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The University’s net assets (not including University Related Organizations) increased approximately 
$58,250,000 from $1.29 billion in fiscal year 2005 to approximately $1.35 billion in fiscal year 2006.  The major 
components of these increases relate to increases in student fee revenues across the University campuses and 
physical plant improvements. 
 

The University expended approximately $158,000,000 on plant operations and maintenance activities 
during fiscal year 2006. 
 
Summary of Assets and Liabilities 
 

At June 30, 2006, the University’s total assets (not including University Related Organizations) were 
approximately $2.9 billion, an increase of approximately $156,000,000 over the approximately $2.7 billion in assets 
recorded for fiscal year 2005. The University’s largest asset continues to be its net investment in its physical plant of 
approximately $1.50 billion at June 30, 2006 (approximately $1.33 billion in fiscal year 2005).  Other significant 
University assets include current and noncurrent investments and cash and securities held by the University 
Trustees.   
 
 University liabilities (not including University Related Organizations) totaled approximately $1.56 billion 
at June 30, 2006, an increase of approximately $97,700,000 over fiscal year 2005.  Long-term debt largely consists 
of bonds payable and capitalized lease obligations amounting to approximately $1.01 billion at June 30, 2006.  This 
represents a decrease of approximately $15,100,000 over long-term debt obligations of approximately $1.02 billion 
in fiscal year 2005.  This decrease reflects the pay down in debt through debt service payments. 
 
 The University’s had current assets of approximately $504,700,000 and current liabilities of approximately 
$509,000,000.  The current ratio was 0.99 dollars in assets to every one-dollar in liabilities. In fiscal year 2005 the 
current ratio was 1.37 (approximately $526,700,000 in current assets and $383,800,000 in current liabilities).   
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 The University’s unrestricted and restricted expendable net assets totaled approximately $529,600,000, 
which represents approximately 25.7 percent of total operating expenditures of approximately $2.06 billion during 
fiscal year 2006.   
 
 In fiscal year 2006, the University’s unrestricted net assets (referred to as Expendable Fund Balance under 
the Former Financial Reporting Model) totaled approximately $382,700,000.  Substantially all unrestricted net 
assets are designated to support academic, research, auxiliary enterprises or unrestricted funds functioning as 
endowments, or are committed to capital construction projects. 
 
Summary of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenditures 
 

The University’s total operating revenues for fiscal year 2006 were approximately $1.53 billion.  This is an 
increase of approximately $20,000,000 over fiscal year 2005 operating revenues of $1.51 billion.  The most 
significant sources of revenue for the University are tuition and fees of approximately $401,600,000, grants and 
contracts of approximately $452,800,000, and auxiliary services of approximately $197,000,000.  Tuition and fees, 
grants and contracts, and auxiliary services represent 26 percent, 30 percent and 13 percent, respectively, of total 
operating revenues.   
 
 In fiscal year 2006, University operating expenditures, including depreciation and amortization of 
approximately $121,600,000, totaled approximately $2.06 billion.  Of this total, approximately $1.0 billion or 49 
percent was used to support the academic core activities of the University, including approximately $316,600,000 in 
research. 
 
State Appropriations 
 

State appropriations represent approximately 25 percent of all operating and non-operating revenues.  The 
level of state support is a key factor influencing the University’s overall financial condition.  Although the state 
appropriation is unrestricted revenue, nearly 100% of the state appropriation supports payroll and benefits for 
University employees, 
 
 In fiscal year 2006, the net state appropriation increased $47,900,000 over fiscal year 2005 amounts.  This 
increase is attributed to the state funding of collective bargaining agreements, increased state fringe benefit support 
as well as an increase for general operations.  Beginning in late fiscal year 2004, state appropriations to the 
University increased after three years of cuts.  
 
Endowment and Fundraising 
 

The combined University and Foundation endowment has increased to approximately $391,000,000 at June 
30, 2008, from approximately $372,000,000 at June 30, 2007. The University raised approximately $94,212,266 in 
cash, pledges, gifts-in-kind, and private research grants in fiscal year 2008.  The number of endowed chairs has 
grown from four in 1995 to approximately 61 in 2008, enhancing the University's academic reputation.   
 
 The Foundation’s total investment return for fiscal year 2008, including realized and unrealized activity 
was a net loss of approximately $1,237,000.  The University contributed $51,970,000 and $40,000,000 to the quasi-
endowment in fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The Foundation utilizes the pooled investment concept 
whereby all invested funds are included in one investment pool, except for investments of certain funds that are 
otherwise restricted.  Additions, redemptions and transfers to pooled investment funds are assigned a number of 
shares based upon their market value at the date of receipt or withdrawal.  The actual spending rate for Foundation 
endowment funds was four percent for fiscal year 2008, which represents less than one percent of the University’s 
total operating and non-operating revenues. 
 
 As of June 30, 2009, the estimated market value of the University and Foundation endowment was 
approximately $367,000,000, which is a decline of approximately $24,000,000 compared to the June 30, 2008 value.   
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The University realized significant increases in endowment assets over the last five years.  The following 
details the University and Foundation endowment assets (excluding the University of Massachusetts Dartmouth 
Foundation, Inc. endowments) at June 30 (in thousands): 

 
University and Foundation Endowment Assets* 

 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

     
$197,505 $226,410 $260,961 $371,599 $390,875 

     
*The above presentation of total University and Foundation Endowment Assets has been changed to no longer include current funds. 

 
INDEBTEDNESS OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 
The University is obligated, under various contractual arrangements, to make payments on indebtedness 

issued on its behalf. 
 
The Authority 
 

As of June 30, 2008, the Authority had outstanding bonds of approximately $978,000,000 for which the 
University is contractually obligated to provide for the payment of debt service or act as the Authority’s agent to 
collect rates, rents, fees and other charges.  Approximately $806,070,000 principal amount of the Authority’s bonds 
are payable from, in addition to other moneys, all funds of the University permitted by law to be applied thereto.  
With respect to these bonds, the University has contracted with the Authority annually to set aside moneys from its 
unrestricted net assets to cover debt service and other expenses not otherwise paid.   
 

Certain of the revenues reported on the University's audited financial statements are pledged to secure its 
contractual obligations to the Authority. Such revenues include: (i) mandatory fees on graduate and undergraduate 
students (with certain exceptions) at the Amherst campus of the University, which amounted to approximately 
$3,050,000 in the 12-months ended June 30, 2008; (ii) amounts paid on account of the engineering building on the 
Amherst campus from monies in the research trust fund at the Amherst campus, which amounted to approximately 
$629,000 in the 12-months ended June 30, 2008; (iii) parking fees assessed for users of the Worcester parking 
facilities financed by the Authority, which amounted to approximately $3,800,000 in the 12-months ended June 30, 
2008; and (iv) revenues of a research building, a student union, a health center and dormitory, dining facility 
projects, and residence halls at the Lowell and Dartmouth campuses, which aggregated approximately $45,100,000 
for the 12-months ended June 30, 2008.   
 
 2003-1 Bonds 

 
On August 7, 2003, the Authority issued its $137,970,000 Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2003-1 

Bonds.  The projects to be financed by these bonds consisted primarily of the construction of parking garages at the 
Boston and Lowell campuses, the renovation of a building for the Charlton College of Business and the 
improvements of the athletic fields at the Dartmouth campus, and the construction of an integrated science facility 
and swing space/art building along with many other improvements and renovations at the Amherst campus. 
 
 2004-1, 2004-A and 2004-2 Bonds 

 
On May 25, 2004, the Authority issued its $183,965,000 Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior 

Series 2004-1 (the “2004-1 Bonds”), $96,025,000 Facilities Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2004-A (the “2004-A 
Bonds”), and $25,875,000 Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2004-2 (the “Taxable 2004-2 Bonds”).  
The projects to be financed by the 2004-1 Bonds consisted primarily of the construction of new residence halls and 
the renovation and equipping of the Health Center at the Amherst campus, the renovation and construction of an 
addition to a research facility and the construction of a new building for the Charlton College of Business at the 
Dartmouth campus, completion of the parking garage at the Lowell campus and a number of renovations at the 
Boston campus.  The 2004-A Bonds were used to finance the construction of new residence halls at the Dartmouth 
campus. 
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 2005-1 Bonds 

 
In conjunction with the issuance of the 2004-1 Bonds, the 2004-A Bonds and the Taxable 2004-2 Bonds, 

the Authority issued its $25,595,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2005-1 (the “2005-1 Delayed 
Delivery Bonds”) on February 3, 2005.  The proceeds of the 2005-1 Delayed Delivery Bonds were used to refund 
the Taxable 2004-2 Bonds. 

 
2005-2 Bonds 

 
On August 3, 2005, the Authority issued its $212,550,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2005-

2, which refunded a portion of several series of the Authority’s outstanding bonds. 
 
2006-1 and  2006-2 Bonds 

 
On April 20, 2006, the Authority issued its $243,830,000 Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior 

Series 2006-1 (the “2006-1 Bonds”), and its $21,240,000 Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2006-2 
(the “2006-2 Bonds”).  The 2006-1 Bonds were issued to refund certain outstanding bonds of the Authority and to 
finance the construction of a science and technology research room, assessment of the present network infrastructure 
and the repair, renovation and equipping of various facilities all at the Lowell campus of the University, and other 
projects which meet certain conditions set forth in the Series Resolution (collectively, the “2006-1 Projects”).  The 
2006-2 Bonds were issued to refund certain outstanding bonds of the Authority. The 2006-1 Bonds were variable 
rate demand obligations insured by Ambac Assurance Corporation (“Ambac”), subject to optional and mandatory 
tender for purchase under certain circumstances.  The 2006-1 Bonds were redeemed on June 10, 2008 from the 
proceeds of the $138,635,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-3 (the “2008-3 Bonds”), and its 
$104,000,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-4 (the “2008-4 Bonds”) (described below).   

 
 2008-1 and 2008-A Bonds 

 
On April 24, 2008, the Authority issued its $232,545,000 Project Revenue Bonds Senior Series 2008-1 (the 

“2008-1 Bonds”), and its $26,580,000 Facilities Revenue Bonds Senior Series 2008-A (the “2008-A Bonds”).  The 
2008-1 Bonds were issued to finance the construction, renovation, and repair of various projects at the Amherst and 
Lowell campuses.  A list of these projects can be found in the Series Resolution (collectively, the “2008-1 
Projects”).  The 2008-A Bonds were issued to finance the Research Building Extension and the Cedar Dell Hall 
renovation at the Dartmouth campus as well as the East Dormitory at the Lowell campus.  The 2008-1 Bonds are 
variable rate demand obligations, supported by a letter of credit issued by Lloyds TSB Bank plc through April 23, 
2013.  In connection with the issuance of the 2008-1 Bonds, the Authority entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement with UBS AG in a notional amount equal to the principal amount of the 2008-1 Bonds, pursuant to which 
the Authority pays to UBS AG an amount equal to 3.388% per annum of the notional amount and receives from 
UBS AG the floating rate based on 70% of one-month LIBOR.  The swap agreement is intended to hedge against 
the variable rate exposure on the 2008-1 Bonds, with the amounts paid to the Authority from UBS AG offsetting the 
variable rate payments to the holders of the 2008-1 Bonds.  The 2008-A Bonds are variable rate demand obligations, 
guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, supported by a standby purchase agreement from Bank of 
America, N.A. through April 23, 2013.  In connection with the issuance of the 2008-A Bonds, the Authority entered 
into an interest rate swap agreement with Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. (“Lehman”), in a notional amount 
equal to the principal amount of the 2008-A Bonds, pursuant to which the Authority pays to Lehman an amount 
equal to 3.378% per annum of the notional amount and receives from Lehman the floating rate based on 70% of 
one-month LIBOR.  The swap agreement is intended to hedge against the variable rate exposure on the 2008-A 
Bonds, with the amounts paid to the Authority from Lehman offsetting the variable rate payments to the holders of 
the 2008-A Bonds. On November 18, 2008, the Authority’s swap agreement with Lehman was terminated by the 
Authority as a result of the bankruptcy filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. Simultaneously with such 
termination the Authority entered into a new swap agreement on substantially the same terms with Deutsche Bank 
AG. 
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2008-3 and 2008-4 Bonds 

 
On June 10, 2008, the Authority issued its 2008-3 Bonds and its 2008-4 Bonds. As described above, the 

proceeds from the 2008-3 and the 2008-4 Bonds were used to redeem the 2006-1 Bonds.  In connection with the 
issuance of the 2006-1 Bonds, the Authority entered into an interest rate swap agreement with Citibank, N.A. 
("Citi") in a notional amount equal to the principal amount of the 2006-1 Bonds, pursuant to which the Authority 
pays to Citi an amount equal to 3.482% per annum of the notional amount and receives from Citi the product of (a) 
the sum of 60% of one-month LIBOR plus 0.18%, times (b) the notional amount.  The swap agreement was 
originally intended to hedge against the variable rate exposure on the 2006-1 Bonds, with the amounts paid to the 
Authority from Citi offsetting the variable rate payments to the holders of the 2006-1 Bonds.  The swap agreement 
has remained in place following the issuance of the 2008-3 and 2008-4 Bonds and is now intended to hedge against 
the variable rate exposure on $240,820,000 principal amount of such bonds. The $1,815,000 balance of the 2008-3 
Bonds is unhedged.  The 2008-3 and 2008-4 Bonds are initially uninsured, but the Authority obtained a forward 
commitment from Ambac to insure such bonds commencing upon expiration in 2011 of the Bank of America, N.A. 
letter of credit and standby bond purchase agreement supporting the 2008-3 Bonds and the 2008-4 Bonds, 
respectively. 
 
 2008-2 Bonds 

 

 On June 30, 2008, the Authority issued its $120,560,000 Project Revenue Bonds Senior Series 2008-2 (the 
“2008-2 Bonds”).  The projects to be financed by these bonds are expected to consist of the construction, renovation 
and repair of certain University facilities and buildings at its Worcester and Amherst campuses.  
 
  2009-1, 2009-2 and 2009-3 Bonds 

 
The Series 2009-1, 2009-2 and 2009-3 Bonds are being issued in the principal amount and for the purposes 

and are payable from the sources described in the forepart of this Official Statement.  See “APPLICATION OF 
PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS,” and “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS,” in the 
forepart of this Official Statement. 

 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
 
 Remarketed University of Massachusetts Series A 

 

 On March 27, 2009, MHEFA remarketed $20,000,000 of its Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 
University of Massachusetts Issue, Series A (the “Remarketed Series A Bonds”).  The original $40,000,000 MHEFA 
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, University of Massachusetts Issue, Series A (the “Series A Bonds”), which 
are defined below, were subject to mandatory purchase on March 27, 2009 due to the expiration of the liquidity 
facility supporting the Series A Bonds and the conversion of the bonds from a weekly rate period to a long-term rate 
period.  See “Mandatory Purchase of University of Massachusetts Series A” below for additional information about 
the Series A Bonds. The Remarketed Series A Bonds bear interest at the initial long-term rate of 0.85%.  The initial 
long-term rate of 0.85% will end on March 31, 2010 and the Remarketed Series A Bonds will be subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase on April 1, 2010.  The Remarketed Series A Bonds are considered a reissuance for 
federal tax purposes.  The Remarketed Series A Bonds are not supported by any insurance policy, liquidity facility 
or other credit enhancement.  The Remarketed Series A Bonds are a general obligation of the University payable 
from all funds of the University permitted to be applied thereto.  The University’s unrestricted net assets, previously 
referred to as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of the University with respect to the Remarketed 
Series A Bonds.  The University is required to certify annually that there are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net 
assets to cover the debt service on the Remarketed Series A Bonds.   
  
 University of Massachusetts Series D 

 

 In January 2007, MHEFA issued its $10,435,000 Revenue Bonds, University of Massachusetts Issue, 
Series D (the “Series D Bonds”) for the purpose of partially refunding the University of Massachusetts Issue, Series 
B (the “Series B Bonds”) (defined below).  The Series D Bonds are a general obligation of the University payable 
from all funds of the University permitted to be applied thereto.  The University’s unrestricted net assets, previously 
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referred to as the expendable fund balance sheet, secure the obligations of the University with respect to the Series D 
Bonds.  The University is required to certify annually that there are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to 
cover the debt service on the Series D Bonds.   

 

 University of Massachusetts Series C 

 
 In June 2002, MHEFA issued its $35,000,000 Revenue Bonds, University of Massachusetts Issue, Series C 
(the “Series C Bonds”) for the purpose of financing a portion of the construction and related costs of a new campus 
center on the Boston campus.  DCAMM managed the project and the Commonwealth provided funding for the 
project in addition to the Series C Bonds.  The campus center opened in April 2004. The Series C Bonds are a 
general obligation of the University payable from all funds of the University permitted to be applied thereto.  The 
University’s unrestricted net assets, previously referred to as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of 
the University with respect to the Series C Bonds.  The University is required to certify annually that there are 
sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to cover the debt service on the Series C Bonds.   
 
 University of Massachusetts Series B 

 
In June 2001, MHEFA issued its $11,970,000 Revenue Bonds, University of Massachusetts Issue, Series B 

(the “Series B Bonds”) for the purpose of constructing and equipping a new student center on the Lowell campus.  
The facility opened in September 2002.  DCAMM managed the project and the Commonwealth provided funding 
for the project in addition to the Series B Bonds.  The Series B Bonds are a general obligation of the University 
payable from all funds of the University permitted to be applied thereto.  The University’s unrestricted net assets, 
previously referred to as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of the University with respect to the 
Series B Bonds. The University is required to certify annually that there are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net 
assets to cover the debt service on the Series B Bonds. As described above, a portion of the Series B Bonds (the 
“Series B Refunded Bonds”) were advance refunded by the Series D Bonds in January 2007.  Pursuant to and as 
specified in the Refunding Trust Agreement, dated as September 12, 2006, by and between MHEFA and Flagship 
Bank and Trust Company (now Institutional Trust People’s United Bank), (the “Refunded Bond Trustee”), there are 
held by the Refunded Bond Trustee, Government or Equivalent Obligations which will mature and bear interest 
payable in such amounts and at such times as will be sufficient, together with any uninvested moneys, to pay when 
due the principal, interest and redemption premium, as applicable, on the Series B Refunded Bonds on and until 
their respective maturity or redemption dates.   

 

 Mandatory Purchase of University of Massachusetts Series A 

 

 In March 2000, MHEFA issued its $40,000,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, University of 
Massachusetts Issue, Series A (the “Series A Bonds”) for the purpose of loaning the proceeds to the University to 
create a pool of funds from which the University finances and refinances the acquisition of telecommunications, 
electronic, computer, office, research, equipment and administrative systems and related renovation costs at the 
various University campuses on a revolving basis throughout the term of the pool. On March 27, 2009, the Series A 
Bonds were subject to mandatory purchase and only $20,000,000 was remarketed.  See “Remarketed University of 
Massachusetts Series A” above for additional information.  
 
 WCCC Series F 

 

 In January 2007, MHEFA issued its $101,745,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation 
Issue (University of Massachusetts Project), Series F (the “WCCC Series F Bonds”) for the purpose of refunding the 
outstanding amount of the WCCC Series C Bonds (defined below).  See “Defeasance of WCCC Series C” below for 
additional information.  The proceeds will also finance and/or refinance the construction and equipping of a four-
story, 180,000 square-foot building containing wet research and development laboratories, vivarium and office 
space and a structured parking facility to be located on the parcel of land in the city of Boston, Massachusetts, 
known as Lot 3A on the West Campus of the former Boston State Hospital.  WCCC entered into a sublease with the 
University that requires the University to make semi-annual rental payments sufficient to pay, among other things, 
debt service on the WCCC Series F Bonds.  The University’s rental payments to WCCC are payable from any funds 
legally available for application thereto other than moneys appropriated by Massachusetts legislature.  The 
obligations of WCCC to make payments under the Series F Loan and Trust Agreement (including, without 
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limitation, payments to MHEFA, the Paying Agent and the Trustee) shall be a special obligation of WCCC, payable 
only from Project Revenues.    

 

 WCCC Series E 

 

 In January 2007, MHEFA issued its $118,750,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation 
Issue (University of Massachusetts Project), Series E (the “WCCC Series E Bonds”) for the purpose of partially 
refunding the WCCC Series B Bonds (defined below).  The proceeds will also finance and/or refinance the 
construction of a seven-story, approximately 260,000 square-foot advanced education and clinical practice center to 
be located at the Institution’s facility at 55 Lake Avenue in Worcester, Massachusetts.  The obligations of WCCC to 
make payments under the Series E Loan and Trust Agreement (including, without limitation, payments to MHEFA, 
the Paying Agent and Trustee) shall be absolute and unconditional, shall be binding and enforceable in all 
circumstances whatsoever, shall not be subject to abatement, offset, diminution, setoff, recoupment or counterclaim 
and shall be a general obligation of WCCC to which the full faith and credit of WCCC is pledged.  The University is 
obligated under certain financing agreements with MHEFA to make payments from any funds of the University 
permitted to be applied thereto of amounts due on the WCCC Series E Bonds otherwise unpaid by WCCC.  The 
University’s unrestricted net assets, previously referred to as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of 
the University with respect to the Series E Bonds.  The University is required to certify annually that there are 
sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to cover the debt service on the Series E Bonds.  The University is 
required to certify annually that there are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to cover the debt service not 
otherwise paid on the WCCC E Bonds.   
 
 WCCC Series D 

 

In April 2005, MHEFA issued its $99,325,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation Issue 
(University of Massachusetts Project), Series D (the “WCCC Series D Bonds”) for the purpose of refunding the 
outstanding amount of the WCCC Series A Bonds (defined below). The University is obligated under certain 
financing agreements with MHEFA to make payments from any funds of the University permitted to be applied 
thereto of amounts due on the WCCC Series D Bonds otherwise unpaid by WCCC. The trust agreement securing the 
WCCC Series D Bonds provides that the trustee may declare all of the WCCC Series D Bonds due and payable prior 
to maturity, at par plus accrued interest, upon the occurrence of an event of default under such trust agreement.  
However, the University’s obligation under the aforesaid financing agreements to make payments on account of the 
WCCC Series D Bonds is not subject to acceleration.  The University’s unrestricted net assets, previously referred to 
as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of the University with respect to the WCCC Series D Bonds.  
The University is required to certify annually that there are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to cover the 
debt service not otherwise paid on the WCCC Series D Bonds.  See “Defeasance of WCCC Series A” below for 
additional information.   

 
 Defeasance of WCCC Series C 

 

 In April 2002, MHEFA issued its $70,000,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation Issue 
(University of Massachusetts Project), Series C (the “WCCC Series C Bonds”) for the purpose of constructing and 
equipping an approximately 75,000-square foot aseptic filling and manufacturing facility to be located on the former 
Boston State Hospital site in Mattapan.  The WCCC Series C Bonds were advance refunded and legally defeased 
with the issuance of the above-described WCCC Series F Bonds.  Pursuant to and as specified in the Refunding 
Trust Agreement, dated as September 12, 2006, by and between MHEFA and Flagship Bank and Trust Company 
(now Institutional Trust People’s United Bank), (the “Refunded Bond Trustee”), there are held by the Refunded 
Bond Trustee, Government or Equivalent Obligations which will mature and bear interest payable in such amounts 
and at such times as will be sufficient, together with any uninvested moneys, to pay when due the principal, interest 
and redemption premium, as applicable, on the WCCC Series C Refunded Bonds on and until their respective 
maturity or redemption dates.   
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 WCCC Series B 

 
 In June 2001, MHEFA issued its $52,020,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation Issue 
(University of Massachusetts Project), Series B (the “WCCC Series B Bonds”).  Concurrently with the issuance of 
the WCCC Series B Bonds, the Foundation transferred ownership of its medical research facility (“Biotech II”) to 
WCCC.  In exchange for Biotech II, WCCC assumed from the Foundation the remaining debt of  $17.8 million, net 
(the “Foundation Bonds”), and acquired the related debt service funds associated with Biotech II.  WCCC deposited 
approximately $17 million of the proceeds of the WCCC Series B Bonds in an irrevocable trust fund, which was 
used to provide for the payment of interest and principal on the Foundation Bonds through their redemption date of 
July 1, 2002.  The remaining approximately $35 million of the WCCC Series B Bonds financed the construction of a 
parking garage and the acquisition and installation of equipment at the Worcester campus.  The University is 
obligated under certain financing agreements with MHEFA to make payments from any funds of the University 
permitted to be applied thereto of amounts due on the WCCC Series B Bonds otherwise unpaid by WCCC.  The 
University’s unrestricted net assets, previously referred to as the expendable fund balance, secure the obligations of 
the University with respect to the WCCC Series B Bonds.  The University is required to certify annually that there 
are sufficient funds in the unrestricted net assets to cover the debt service not otherwise paid on the WCCC Series B 
Bonds. As described above, a portion of the WCCC Series B Bonds (the “WCCC Series B Refunded Bonds”) were 
advance refunded by the WCCC Series E Bonds in January 2007. Pursuant to and as specified in the Refunding 
Trust Agreement, dated as September 12, 2006, by and between MHEFA and Flagship Bank and Trust Company 
(now Institutional Trust People’s United Bank), (the “Refunded Bond Trustee”), there are held by the Refunded 
Bond Trustee, Government or Equivalent Obligations which will mature and bear interest payable in such amounts 
and at such times as will be sufficient, together with any uninvested moneys, to pay when due the principal, interest 
and redemption premium, as applicable, on the WCCC Series B Refunded Bonds on and until their respective 
maturity or redemption dates.   

 

 Defeasance of WCCC Series A 

 
In March 2000, MHEFA issued its $100,000,000 Revenue Bonds, Worcester City Campus Corporation 

Issue (University of Massachusetts Project), Series A (the “WCCC Series A Bonds”) for the purpose of financing 
the site development, construction and equipping of an approximately 362,000 gross square foot research facility 
located on the University’s Medical School campus in Worcester. The WCCC Series A Bonds were advance 
refunded and legally defeased with the issuance of the above-described WCCC Series D Bonds.  Pursuant to and as 
specified in the Refunding Trust Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2005, by and between MHEFA and J.P. Morgan 
Trust Company, National Association (now the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.) (the “Refunded 
Bond Trustee”), there are held by the Refunded Bond Trustee, Government Obligations which will mature and bear 
interest payable in such amounts and at such times as will be sufficient, together with any uninvested moneys, to pay 
when due the principal, interest and redemption premium, as applicable, on the WCCC Series A Refunded Bonds on 
and until their respective maturity or redemption dates.  

 
Interest Rate Swap Agreements 
 
 As mentioned above, the Authority has entered into three separate interest rate swap agreements (the 
“Swaps”) with respect to its 2008-1 Bonds, 2008-3 Bonds, 2008-4 Bonds and 2008-A Bonds.  The Swaps are 
subject to periodic “mark-to-market” valuations and may have a negative impact on the financial statements of the 
University.  In addition, the counterparty to each Swap may be able to terminate its respective Swap upon certain 
events of default under such Swap, in which case the University could be required to make a material termination 
payment to the counterparty.  In addition, the University may be exposed to basis risk (imperfect correlation 
between interest rates), and the amounts received from the counterparty under each Swap may be less than the 
University’s total interest cost on indebtedness that corresponds to the notional amount of such Swap.   
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Unrestricted Net Assets   
(Referred to as Expendable Fund Balance Under the Former Financial Reporting Model) 
 

As of June 30, 2008, the outstanding principal amount of Authority and MHEFA debt secured by the 
University’s unrestricted net assets was approximately $1.1 billion.  The chart below details the University’s 
unrestricted net assets (not including University Related Organizations) in fiscal years 2004-2008. 

 

 
Fiscal Year 2004  2005 2006  2007                   2008 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets      $316,022,000   $376,542,000 $382,686,000        $451,613,000     $448,065,000 

 
Additional Indebtedness 

 
 Under the terms of the trust agreements and financing agreements securing the above-referenced 
indebtedness issued by MHEFA, the University may, without limit, issue additional indebtedness or request the 
Authority or MHEFA to issue additional indebtedness on behalf of the University so long as such indebtedness is 
payable from all funds of the University permitted by law to be applied thereto.  With certain exceptions described 
below, the University may not pledge, or permit to exist any lien on, any of its funds or revenues.  The University 
may request the Authority to issue additional indebtedness on behalf of the University that is not payable from all 
funds of the University permitted by law to be applied thereto, provided (i) the additional indebtedness is secured by 
(a) pledged revenues derived from the project or projects being financed, (b) new or increased student fees whether 
imposed by the University or the Authority, (c) existing pledged revenues, or (d) any combination of the foregoing, 
and (ii) the maximum annual debt service on all revenue indebtedness then outstanding, including the proposed 
additional indebtedness, does not exceed 10% of the amount shown in the then most recent audited financial 
statements of the University as total available revenues.  Indebtedness of the University may not be subject to 
acceleration. 
 
Capitalized Leases 
 

The University is also obligated under certain capital lease agreements, primarily relating to 
telecommunications, software and co-generation systems, for future minimum capital lease payments having a 
present value of approximately $42,400,000 at June 30, 2008.  

 
INSURANCE 

 
 The University, as an agency of the Commonwealth, is self-insured for property loss exposure, subject to 
appropriation from the state legislature.  However, properties owned by the Authority located on a campus of the 
University, such as the Mullins Center, dining commons, and most dormitories, are insured by the Authority.  In 
addition, certain properties owned by other University Related Organizations and leased to the University are 
insured by the related organization. The University and its employees are protected against tort claims through 
sovereign immunity under Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General Laws.  The University maintains certain 
liability insurance policies, including Commercial General Liability, leased Automotive Liability, Directors and 
Officers and Comprehensive Crime policies.  Employees of the University are covered for Worker’s Compensation 
protection under Chapter 152 of the Massachusetts General Laws. 
 

TECHNOLOGICAL INITIATIVES 
 

The University has completed the final phase of its complex, multi-year project to replace its legacy 
mainframe-based Student and Administration and Finance systems with “PeopleSoft” application systems.  The 
campuses and the President’s Office have undertaken a variety of planning and organizing activities designed to 
establish project structures, roles and responsibilities, and collaborative plans and processes for the University.  In 
July 2004, the University added the Asset Management system to its Human Resources/Payroll (“HR”) application 
(the HR application was implemented in March 2002) and to its financial system (the new financial system was 
implemented July 2002).  The University completed the implementation of the final phase of the Student 
Administration suite for Boston, Dartmouth and Lowell campuses in March 2006.  In addition, the University will 
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continue to secure these assets by staying as current as fiscally feasible with vendor releases, i.e., upgrades that will 
enable additional functionality and incorporate major changes in functionality and technology.  As such, the 
University initiated in May 2005 and completed in January 2007 the upgrade of its financial systems to the latest 
release and concurrently implements the PeopleSoft e-procurement product suite as well as the new Grants 
Management product suite.  These systems are expected to continue to enhance business functions by further 
consolidating processing, streamlining operations, and increasing utilization through new features and self-service 
offerings.  A major focus in fiscal year 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 has been upgrading the Human Resource 
(completed May 2009) and Student Administration applications (targeted for Q1 2010) and consolidating the 
University’s Advancement applications to one common platform (targeted for Q1 2011), as well as increasing the 
reporting services and capabilities of the University’s systems to better support operational and management 
planning efforts through a significant Business Intelligence initiative. 

 
In 2009, UMassOnline upgraded its Blackboard Vista learning management system enabling students and 

faculty to benefit from increased functionality, improved performance and a consistent look and feel for the 
University’s growing customer base (over 40,020 course enrollments in fiscal year 2009). This robust platform 
solution in conjunction with 24x7 support infrastructures managed by UMassOnline has enabled the e-learning 
offering for the University to maintain a leadership position in the distance education marketplace. 

 
During fiscal year 2008, the University continued to invest in existing infrastructure to address growth and 

obsolescence. These areas include additional investments in its existing storage solutions, retirement of aged servers 
and services, and upgrades to key systems.  The University has begun a multiyear shift in the underlying 
application/web server and database architectures that will improve performance, availability and the disaster 
recovery profile of core applications for the University.  Additionally, the supporting network infrastructure 
supporting the centralized office hosted applications has begun to be implemented in a temporary primary data 
center in the Shrewsbury facility, that will eventually be moved to the University’s enterprise data center targeted to 
open in January 2010 for production services.  Planning that began in fiscal year 2007 is currently being 
implemented.  During fiscal year 2009, the University implemented the Human Resources, Identity Management 
and Advancement applications onto the new infrastructure in the temporary Shrewsbury data center.  A disaster 
recovery infrastructure has also begun to become operational with the completion of the Human Capital 
Management application upgrade earlier this year.  During fiscal year 2010, UMassOnline, Student Administration 
and Financial Services are planned to migrate to the new infrastructure.  

 
The University continues to enhance the inter-campus wide area network, known as the Massachusetts 

Information Turnpike Initiative (“MITI”). During the past year, the University has installed new edge devices that 
connect customers to its backbone as well as several more minor upgrades.  Additionally, to further protect from 
loss of connectivity especially between the two University data centers, special high speed circuits were ordered 
from Verizon for each location.  Internet bandwidth continues to rise, and in order to keep pace, a 10 Gigabit link 
was ordered from one of the University’s ISP vendors, with a second one ordered from another vendor by the end of 
the year.  

  
LITIGATION 

 
The University is a defendant in various lawsuits; however, University management is of the opinion that 

the ultimate outcome of all such litigation will not have any material effect on the financial position or financial 
results of the University. 

 
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 

 
 The University employs approximately 16,561 full and part-time faculty, professional and clerical support 
staff, of which approximately 9,075 are covered by collective bargaining units (not including graduate employees 
and undergraduate resident assistants).  Of those covered, approximately 2,769 are faculty, approximately 2,398 are 
professional staff, approximately 3,750 are clerical and maintenance support staff, and approximately 158 are police 
officers.  In total, the University has 33 collective bargaining units (including three graduate employee units and one 
undergraduate resident assistants unit). The majority of the University’s collective bargaining contracts expired on 
June 30, 2008, but their terms remain in effect pending the execution of new agreements. The University has 
reached agreement with most of its employee unions on collective bargaining agreements that cover the period from 
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July 2009 through June 2012.  The faculty and maintenance units (MFT) at Dartmouth, and the 
maintenance/physical plant unit (AFSCME) at Amherst have not settled.  To date these contracts have not been 
funded by the Commonwealth.  Employees covered by University collective bargaining units cannot strike under 
Massachusetts law. The Commonwealth appropriates supplemental funds to support collective bargaining wage 
increases and other economic benefits for state funded employees. 
 

University employees are covered by a contributory Massachusetts retirement system set up by Chapter 32 
of the Massachusetts General Laws.  The state retirement plan provides retirement benefits based upon age at 
retirement, years and months of service, and the average of the highest three consecutive years of base salary.  
Employees can also participate in various optional supplemental retirement programs, such as the University of 
Massachusetts 403(b) and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 457(b) programs. 

 
Employees generally are eligible to participate in various fringe benefit plans such as the dependent care 

assistance program and the health, dental, life and disability insurance plans. 
 
 
 

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 
        By:       /s/ David J. Gray                                                                    
                   Senior Vice President for   
                   Administration, Finance and  
                   Technology, and Treasurer 
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This section of the annual financial statements of the University of Massachusetts Building Authority 
(the Authority) presents a discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial activity for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.  This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in 
conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by the Authority’s financial statements and related note 
disclosures. 

Introduction 
 
The Authority is an independent body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the Commonwealth), which was created by Chapter 773 of the Acts 
of 1960 of the Commonwealth, as amended (the Enabling Act).  The Authority was created with the 
general purposes of providing dormitories, dining commons and other buildings and structures for use 
by the University of Massachusetts (the University), its students, staff and their dependents and other 
entities associated with the University as specified in the Enabling Act, as requested by authority of the 
Trustees of the University (the Trustees). 
 
The Authority is empowered to acquire, construct, remove, demolish, add to, alter, enlarge, reconstruct, 
remodel and do other work upon any building or structure and to provide and install furnishings, 
furniture, machinery, equipment, approaches, driveways, walkways, parking areas, planting, landscaping 
and other facilities therein.  The Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to acquire property from the 
Commonwealth or others (but the Authority has no eminent domain power), to rent or lease as lessor or 
lessee any portion of a project, to operate projects, to employ experts and other persons, to enter into 
contracts, to borrow money to finance and refinance projects it undertakes, and to issue and sell its 
revenue bonds and notes therefore which are payable solely from its revenues.  The Authority’s assets 
and projects are located on all five campuses of the University.  The 11 members of the Authority are 
appointed by the Governor.  Five of the members must be Trustees. Two of the other members must be 
graduates of the University.  Non-trustee members serve terms of approximately six years.  Trustee 
members serve as long as they are Trustees.  Members whose terms expire continue as members until 
they are reappointed or replaced. 

Financial Highlights 
 

• Net assets of the Authority continued to grow, reaching $217,195,514 in fiscal 2008 and 
$199,972,715 in fiscal 2007. 

 
• The Authority completed three new bond offerings providing approximately $375,000,000 in new 

project funds spread over four University campuses in fiscal 2008. 
 

• In FY 2008 the Authority currently refunded its Series 2006-1 bonds with the Series 2008-3 and 
Series 2008-4 bonds to remove the downgraded AMBAC Insurance. 

Continued – 
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Financial Highlights (Continued) 
 

• The Authority closed a $35 million tax-exempt revolving line-of-credit with Bank of America in 
fiscal 2007, providing the Authority with short-term, inexpensive liquidity to bridge the 
financing needs between issues of long-term bonds.  In FY 2008 the Authority renewed the line 
and reduced the maximum outstanding amount to $30 million. 

 
• The Authority opened a new parking garage on the Lowell campus adding parking for 630 cars, 

opened the first new on campus housing since the early 1970’s on the Amherst campus and 
completed an award winning renovation of the Berkshire Dinning Hall at the Amherst campus in 
fiscal 2007. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial 
statements. The Authority’s financial statements comprise two primary components: 1) the financial 
statements and 2) the notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

The Financial Statements 
The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s 
finances and are comprised of three basic statements. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets presents information that shows how 
the Authority’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., the payments to vendors after year end for 
services prior to year end). 
 
The statement of cash flows is reported on the direct method.  The direct method of cash flow 
reporting portrays net cash flows from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g., income 
from contracts) and disbursements (e.g., cash paid to vendors for services). The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements 34 and 35 require this method to be used. 
 
The financial statements can be found on pages 13 to 16 of this report. 

Continued – 
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Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
The Authority reports its activity as a business-type activity using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. The Authority is a blended component 
unit of the University. Therefore, the results of the Authority’s operations, its net assets and cash 
flows are also summarized in the University’s financial statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 
in the financial statements. The notes provide information regarding the accounting policies the 
Authority has adopted as well as additional details of certain amounts contained in the financial 
statements.  
 
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 17 to 43 of this report. 

Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial 
position. In the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $217,195,514 at the close of the most 
recent fiscal year. 
 
A portion of the Authority’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. buildings, equipment 
and furnishings) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding for the most 
recent fiscal year.  The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to students, faculty and 
administration; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the 
Authority’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  The Authority’s primary sources of funds 
needed to repay the debt are receipts related to the Authority’s financial contracts with the University. 
 

University of Massachusetts Building Authority’s Net Assets 
 

        June 30, 2008      June 30, 2007      June 30, 2006
Current assets $    12,628,373 $  22,270,644 $  30,787,984
Non-current assets 1,219,528,402    837,530,840    799,377,188
  Total assets 1,232,156,775    859,801,484    830,165,172
     

74,007,926 61,471,102 72,086,416Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities    940,953,335   598,357,667   627,695,895
  Total liabilities 1,014,961,261    659,828,769    699,782,311
   

 
  

Continued – 
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Financial Analysis (Continued) 
 

University of Massachusetts Building Authority’s Net Assets (Continued) 
 

        June 30, 2008      June 30, 2007      June 30, 2006
Net Assets:   
 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 148,475,368 $   60,966,292 $  42,700,333
 Restricted 59,791,130 122,125,622 63,158,486
 Unrestricted       8,929,016     16,880,801     24,524,042
  Total net assets $217,195,514 $199,972,715 $130,382,861
 
Restricted net assets primarily relates to assets restricted to capital projects and debt service.  The capital 
project restricted net assets are funds provided, primarily, by debt financing for the completion of 
University projects.  The debt service restricted net assets are funds provided, primarily, as additional 
collateral to the bond holders (e.g. debt service reserve funds). 
 
Current assets have decreased in recent years as the Authority has expended funds related to former 
bond reserves toward campus directed initiatives. The funds were accumulated in the past by the 
Authority as restrictions on bond reserves were released due to bond refundings.  Non-current assets 
increased in fiscal 2008 primarily due to the issuance of new bonds that provided additional new funds 
for projects and significantly increased the amount of unamortized bond issuance expenses.  Non-current 
assets increased between FY 2006 and FY 2007 primarily due to two cash appropriations from the 
Commonwealth to the Authority totaling $54,000,000. 
 
Current liabilities increased from FY 2007 to FY 2008 primarily due to an increase in the current portion 
of bonds payable from year-to-year of $10,300,000.  Current liabilities decreased from FY 2006 to FY 
2007 primarily due to a drop in amounts due to construction vendors at the end of FY 2007.  This 
decrease was somewhat offset by an increase in due to Bank of America representing draws under the 
Authority’s line of credit with the bank. 
 
Non-current liabilities increased substantially in FY 2008 due to the issuance of new bonds for projects 
at several of the University’s campuses.  The new bond issues had little impact on the Authority’s net 
assets as the additional liabilities are mostly offset by increases in cash and investments. 
 

Continued – 
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Financial Analysis (Continued) 
 
During fiscal 2008 the Authority was involved in several large construction projects for the University.  
As funds were spent on the projects, the nature of the net asset related to these funds changed from 
restricted to invested in capital assets.  This increase is shown in the substantial increase in that category 
of net assets in FY 2008.  The large increase in restricted net assets in FY 2007 primarily relates to the 
$54,000,000 in appropriations received during the year. Bond related restricted net assets continued to 
be converted into net assets invested in capital assets as the Authority’s construction projects come into 
operations.   
 

University of Massachusetts Building Authority’s Changes in Net Assets 
 

   For the year  For the year For the year 
   ended  ended Ended 
   June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006
Operating revenues:    
   Income from contracts and other income $  55,443,852     $  50,293,320  $  49,802,526   
   Grants from HUD            75,684            75,684            75,682
  Total operating revenues     55,519,536     50,369,004     49,878,208
 
Operating expenses:  
   Facilities operating costs 5,642,677  8,629,772 9,973,358 
  Depreciation and amortization 18,762,549 15,554,131 12,253,434 
  Insurance 839,974 861,925 838,171 
  Professional fees 405,609 527,472 404,425 
  Office, administration and other           90,845           38,991           22,216
   Total operating expenses    25,741,654    25,612,291    23,491,604

                  Net operating income    29,777,882    24,756,713    26,386,604
   
Non-operating revenues (expenses)   
 State appropriations             -   54,000,000                   -    
 Interest income    9,690,829 15,213,242 17,104,694 
 Realized and unrealized losses on   
  investments       306,570  1,274,261 (1,518,020) 
 Interest expense, net  (26,527,260) (22,893,893) (24,364,838) 
  U.S. Treasury rebate expense            (25,222)          (25,568)       (431,723)
  Total non-operating  
     revenues (expenses)   (16,555,083)    47,568,042    (9,209,887)

 
 

Continued - 
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Financial Analysis (Continued) 
 

University of Massachusetts Building Authority’s Changes in Net Assets (Continued) 
  

 

For the year 
Ended 

June 30, 2008

For the year 
Ended 

June 30, 2007   

For the year 
Ended 

June 30, 2006

Capital Contribution – University of   
     Massachusetts $     4,000,000  $                -__ $                 -__
    
Special Item    
 Removal of certain campus operating    

activities                   -__    (2,734,901)   (3,773,253)
    
Change in net assets  17,222,799  69,589,854  13,403,464 
    
Net assets at the beginning of the year   199,972,715   130,382,861    116,979,397
    
Net assets at the end of the year $217,195,514 $199,972,715 $130,382,861 
 
Income from contracts is primarily related to contracts the Authority has with the University.  The 
amounts fluctuate based on the debt service requirements on Authority bonds in any particular year.   
 
Facility operating costs primarily reflect the operations of the Authority owned dormitories and dining 
facilities on the campuses of the University and the operations of the UMass Club. Certain bonds were 
refunded in FY 2006 and that refunding allowed the Authority to discontinue reflecting the operations of 
those dormitories and dining halls. 
 
In FY 2008 depreciation increased as more assets were placed into service during the year.  Investment 
related activity decreased during the year as invested capital was used to pay for project costs.  
Investments from the new bond issues were not purchased until the final months of the year and had 
little impact on the revenues of the Authority. 
 
The Authority received two state appropriations in FY 2007.  The first, for $50,000,000, represented 
funds designated for deferred maintenance issues at the University.  The second, for $21,000,000, was 
designated for the construction of a nano-bio manufacturing facility on the Lowell campus.  $4,000,000 
of this appropriation was paid to the Authority in fiscal 2007.  The Authority received no additional 
funding for this project from the Commonwealth in fiscal 2008. 
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Capital Assets and Debts of the Authority 
The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2008 amounts to $702,401,740 net of 
accumulated depreciation.  This investment in capital assets includes buildings (including 
improvements), furnishings and equipment.  Capital assets increased during the year by $135,564,591 or 
24% in fiscal 2008.  This increase was due to capital improvements and construction in progress 
outpacing depreciation expenses as follows: 
 

• Construction in progress increased by $75,795,428 from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008. 
 
• Buildings and improvements increased by $76,949,697 in fiscal 2008 as the Authority placed new 

buildings in service at the Amherst and Dartmouth campuses. 
 
• Furnishings and equipment increased by $1,171,176 in fiscal 2008. 

 
The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2007 amounts to $566,837,149 net of 
accumulated depreciation.  This investment in capital assets includes buildings (including 
improvements), furnishings and equipment.  Capital assets increased during the year by $164,839,193 or 
41% in fiscal 2007. This increase was due to capital improvements and construction in progress 
outpacing depreciation expenses as follows: 
 

• Buildings and improvements increased by $151,218,960 in fiscal 2007 as the Authority placed two 
new buildings in service. 

 
• Construction in progress increased by $23,273,999 from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 
 
• Furnishings and equipment increased by $4,828,338 in fiscal 2007 

 
The Authority carries debt in the form of bond obligations and a revolving line-of-credit.  These debts 
totaled $978,045,570 and $629,125,364 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The increase in the 
amounts outstanding for FY 2008 relates to three new bond obligations issued by the Authority during 
the year. These new issues generated $375,000,000 in project funds covering projects on four campuses. 
Additionally, the Authority records a liability to the U.S. Treasury related to rebate of interest earned on 
bond proceeds in excess of the allowable or arbitrage yield.  The liability at June 30, 2008 and 2007 was 
$517,986 and $492,763, respectively.   
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Market Dislocation and the Authority’s 2006-1 Bonds 

During fiscal 2008 a number of economic factors caused unusual events in the capital markets of the 
United States and abroad.  Chief among these factors was the slow down in the U.S. housing market.  
Normally, this slowdown would have little direct impact on the Authority.  However, the decrease in 
market values of certain housing assets raised questions related to the companies that provided insurance 
related to those investments.  During calendar 2008 the nationally known rating agencies began issuing 
negative reports relating to these insurance companies, which also insured tax-exempt bonds.  Bonds 
insured by these companies began trading unfavorably in the secondary markets when compared to 
uninsured bonds or bonds supported by non-insurance credit enhancements.  Long-term bonds issued at 
a fixed rate of interest declined in value during this time but, while detrimental to the bondholders, 
generally did not directly impact bond issuers.  Short-term variable rate or auction rate bonds, which 
trade generally at par, were also impacted as their interest rates began to rise.  This increase in interest 
rates directly raised the cost of debt to bond issuers. 

In fiscal 2006 the Authority issued its Series 2006-1 bonds.  The bonds were issued in a variable-rate 
mode with interest rates reset each week.  To hedge against interest rate fluctuations, the Authority 
entered into an interest rate swap whereby it agreed to pay a fixed rate of interest to the swap 
counterparty and received a variable rate equal to 60% of the 3-month LIBOR rate plus .18%.  The 
primary purpose for the bond issue was to refund certain outstanding fixed rate bonds.  The net-present-
value savings from this refunding was in excess of $15 million. 
 
In January, 2008 the variable rate due to the 2006-1 bondholders increased significantly when Fitch, 
Inc., one of the nationally known rating agencies, downgraded the 2006-1 bond insurer, Ambac 
Assurance Corporation (AMBAC).  In addition to facing higher interest costs, the Authority also was 
required to pay higher fees for the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (SBPA) for the bonds with Depfa 
Bank plc (DEPFA).  At the same time overall interest rates began to decrease and the variable rate 
payments due from the swap counterparty, Citigroup, based on the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR), also decreased, further widening the Authority’s exposure. 
 
The chart on the next page illustrates the increased costs of the debt obligations related to the market 
conditions. 
 
 
 
 

Continued –  
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Market Dislocation and the Authority’s 2006-1 Bonds (Continued) 

 
 
In March of 2008 the Bond Trustee informed the Authority that some of the 2006-1 bonds had been 
tendered by the bondholders and the remarketing agent had been unable to remarket the bonds.  Under 
the SBPA, the bonds were then purchased by the standby bank, DEPFA.  During the month of March a 
total of $40,445,000 in bonds were tendered to the bank.  While the bonds were held by the bank the 
interest on the bank’s bonds, per the terms of the SBPA, was the bank’s prime interest rate.  The 
remarketing agent was able to successfully remarket all of the bank bonds prior to the current refunding 
of the 2006-1 bonds. 
 
 

Continued –  
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Market Dislocation and the Authority’s 2006-1 Bonds (Continued) 
 
In June of 2008, due to the ongoing issues with the bond insurer, the Authority currently refunded the 
2006-1 bonds by issuing its Series 2008-3 and Series 2008-4 bonds.  The Series 2008-3 bonds are credit 
enhanced by a Letter of Credit from Bank of America, N.A. while the Series 2008-4 bonds are backed 
by the Authority’s available Commonwealth Guarantee.  The Commonwealth Guarantee, as explained in 
Note 10, allows the Authority to issue bonds that receive the credit rating of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. 
 
Additionally, the Series 2008-3 and Series 2008-4 bonds may be insure by AMBAC three years after the 
issue date at the option of the Authority.  The cost of the insurance policy, if the option is exercised, will 
be paid out of the unused premium paid at the closing of the 2006-1 bond issue. 
 
The Authority estimates that the cost of the “AMBAC penalty” to the Authority was approximately 
$1,786,000.  This amount does not include the additional amount borrowed over and above the 
outstanding par amount of the 2006-1 bonds at the time of the refunding.  This additional amount totaled 
$1,815,000. 
  

The University of Massachusetts Club 
 
During fiscal 2006 the Authority opened the University of Massachusetts Club (the Club).  The Club is a 
private club open to membership for alumni, faculty, staff and friends of the University and is located on 
the 33rd floor of 225 Franklin Street in downtown Boston, Massachusetts.  The club is managed by 
UMass Club Management, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of ClubCorp USA, a nationally known 
business club management company.  More information can be found on the Club’s web site, 
www.umassclub.com. 

Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all those 
with an interest in them.  Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, University of 
Massachusetts Building Authority, 225 Franklin Street, 12th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts, 02110.  
Additional information on the Authority can be found on its web site, www.umassba.net.
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Assets 

       2008     2007 
Current assets    
 Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 3) $  6,895,491  $   10,842,654 
 Investments, (Notes 2 and 3)  3,081,801   8,534,151 
 Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $6,500 and $5,100, respectively 1,119,481  269,329 
 Interest receivable 1,325,010  2,329,497 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets           206,590           295,013 
  Total current assets      12,628,373      22,270,644 
        
Non-current assets    
 Restricted    
  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 3) 267,418,237  192,761,756 
  Investments, (Notes 2 and 3) 237,467,722  69,021,674 
  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (Note 4) 702,401,740  566,837,149 
  Bond issuance costs, net of amortization of $1,381,400 and $970,600    
   respectively 12,133,415  8,802,973 
  Other assets             107,288             107,288  
       1,219,528,402    837,530,840 

Total assets  1,232,156,775    859,801,484 
        

Liabilities    
Current liabilities    
 Accounts payable 21,257,162  16,094,780 
 Retainage payable to contractors 8,550,394  7,820,215 
 Bonds payable, current portion (Note 5) 37,490,000  27,190,000 
 Due to Bank of America (Note 6)    120,221  4,070,460 
 Accrued bond interest payable 5,006,947  4,598,727 
 Other liabilities        1,583,202        1,696,920 
  Total current liabilities      74,007,926      61,471,102 
        
Non-current liabilities    
 Bonds payable, net of current portion, unamortized bond    
   premium and deferred amount from refundings (Note 5) 940,435,349  597,864,904 
 U.S. Treasury rebate payable          517,986           492,763 
       940,953,335    598,357,667 

Total liabilities  1,014,961,261    659,828,769 
        

    Net Assets (Note 7) 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 148,475,368  60,966,292 
 Restricted for:    
  Capital projects 58,206,461  120,207,736 
  Debt service 1,584,669  1,917,886 
Unrestricted         8,929,016        16,880,801 
        
Total net assets $ 217,195,514  $ 199,972,715                                                                                                                         

See notes to financial statements.
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           2008     2007 
Operating revenues    
 Income from contracts for financial assistance, management and    
   services and other income $ 55,443,852  $ 50,293,320 
 HUD grant           75,684           75,684 
        
Total operating revenues   55,519,536    50,369,004 
        
Operating expenses    
 Facility operating costs 5,642,677   8,629,772 
 Depreciation and amortization 18,762,549  15,554,131 
 Insurance 839,974  861,925 
 Professional fees 405,609  527,472 
 Office, administration and miscellaneous           90,845           38,991 
        
Total operating expenses   25.741,654    25,612,291 
        
Net operating income    29,777,882    24,756,713 
        
Non-operating revenues and expenses    
 State appropriations (Note 9) -           54,000,000 
 Interest income 9,690,829  15,213,242 
 Realized and unrealized gains on investments 306,570  1,274,261 
 Interest expense (26,527,260)  (22,893,893) 
 U.S. Treasury rebate          (25,222)         (25,568) 
        
Net non-operating revenues (expenses)    (16,555,083)    47,568,042 
        
Capital Contribution – University of Massachusetts        4,000,000                 -__    

Change in net assets before special item 17,222,799  72,324,755 
        
Special item    
 Removal of certain campus operating activities (Note 14)                 -__        (2,734,901) 
        
Change in net assets     17,222,799      69,589,854 
       
Net assets at beginning of year   199,972,715    130,382,861 
       
Net assets at end of year $217,195,514  $199,972,715 
 
 

See notes to financial statements.
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           2008     2007 
Cash flows from operating revenues    
 Cash received from contracts for financial assistance, management    
   and services and other income $     55,443,852 $ 50,347,350 
 HUD grant received 75,684 75,684 
 Payments to vendors and suppliers (5,228,358) (8,265,333) 
 Payments of salaries and benefits      (1,735,218)        (1,404,104) 
       
Net cash provided by operating activities     48,555,960        40,753,597 
       
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities   
 State appropriations                  -__        54,000,000 
       
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities    
 Capital asset expenditures (148,914,721)  (200,042,312) 
 Repayment of line of credit obligations (17,430,844)  -    
 Repayment of bond obligations (27,190,000)  (20,950,000) 
 Bond Issuance expenses paid (1,129,142)   
 Proceeds from capital contribution 4,000,000  -    
 Proceeds from line of credit obligation 13,480,605  4,070,460 
 Proceeds from bond obligations 379,555,927  -    
 Interest paid on bond obligations    (28,226,656)     (26,024,633) 
        
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities   174,145,169  (242,946,485) 
        
Cash flows from investing activities    
 Purchase of investments (238,248,736)  (2,660,653) 
 Proceeds from sale of investments 75,589,838  302,207,655 
 Interest earned from investments    10,667,087      16,779,097 
        
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities  (151,991,811)     316,326,099 
        
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents before special item 70,709,318  168,133,211 
        
Cash reduction as a result of charge for special item                  -__         (2,769,210) 
        
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 70,709,318  165,364,001 
        
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year    203,604,410     38,240,409 
        
Cash and cash equivalents – end of year $274,313,728  $203,604,410                                                                                                              

 
Continued – 

See notes to financial statements
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           2008     2007 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by    
 operating activities:    
 Net operating income $ 29,777,882  $ 24,756,713 
 Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net cash    
   provided by operating activities:    
  Depreciation and amortization 18,762,544  15,554,131 
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of special    
   item charge:    
   (Increase) decrease in:    
    Prepaid expenses 88,423  1,013 
    Accounts receivable (850,152)  54,030 
   Increase (decrease) in:    
    Accounts payable – non-construction related 890,981  (94,930) 
    Other liabilities       (113,718)          482,640 
        
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 48,555,960  $ 40,753,597 
        
        
        
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:  

 
  

 Non-cash capital and related financing activities:    
  Bond issuance costs paid $  2,612,134  $              -    

 
 
 
 
 
 



UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS BUILDING AUTHORITY 
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS) 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2008 and 2007 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 - 17 -

1. Operations of the Authority 
 

The University of Massachusetts Building Authority (the Authority or UMBA) is a body politic and 
corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the 
Commonwealth) and was created by Chapter 773 of the Acts of 1960 of the Commonwealth, as 
amended (the Enabling Act).  The purposes of the Authority are to provide dormitories, dining 
commons and other buildings and structures for use by the University of Massachusetts (the 
University), its students, staff and their dependents and other entities associated with the University 
as requested by authority of the Trustees of the University (the Trustees).   

The Authority’s financial statements are included by the University in its financial statements as a 
blended component unit. 
 
The Enabling Act provides that the Authority shall have eleven members, five of whom shall also be 
trustees of the University.  Members of the Authority are appointed by the Governor of the 
Commonwealth.  Non-trustee members serve terms of approximately six years while trustee members 
serve until they are no longer trustees of the University.  Members whose terms have expired continue 
to be members until reappointed or replaced. 
 
The major functions of the Authority include the issuance of bonds to finance projects requested by the 
Trustees; the planning and construction or renovations related to those projects; the setting and 
collection of fees, rents, rates and other charges related to such projects; debt service administration; and 
maintenance and repair of its projects.  In conjunction with its financings, the Authority has entered into 
contracts with the Commonwealth, acting by and through the Trustees, with respect to its projects that 
provide for payments for debt service and other costs of the financings as well as the operating costs of 
the Authority and its projects. 
 
As stated in the Enabling Act, the Authority may sell bonds and notes, in either a public or private 
sale, at a price and with such terms as it may determine are in the best interest of the Authority, 
provided that the bonds of each issue mature no later than fifty years from their date and the sale and 
terms thereof have been approved by the Treasurer and Receiver-General and the Secretary of 
Administration and Finance of the Commonwealth or their designees. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant of the 
Authority’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flow takes place.  
 
The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating revenues and 
expenses.  Operating revenues and expenses result primarily from providing, operating and 
maintaining Authority facilities for use by the University.  The principal sources of operating 
revenues are income from contracts for financial assistance, management and services and 
various grants.  Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the grantor have been met.  Operating expenses include facility operating costs, 
depreciation of capital assets, professional fees and other administrative costs.  All revenues and 
expenses not categorized as operating revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating, and 
these relate primarily to interest and other investment income and interest expense.  
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the 
Authority applies all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as all Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do 
not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

 
Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the Authority’s bonds as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is 
limited by applicable bond trust agreements. 
 

 
 

 
Continued – 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Restricted Assets (Continued) 

The following sets forth the cash and cash equivalent and investment balances in the above 
restricted funds as of June 30, 2008 and 2007: 

 
    

            2008        2007 
Cash and cash equivalents  
    Capital projects fund $267,283,145 $192,663,983
    Debt service fund          135,092            97,773
 $267,418,237 $192,761,756
Investments  
    Capital projects fund $231,068,194 $  62,660,868
    Debt service fund       6,399,528       6,360,806
 $237,467,722 $  69,021,674

  

Capital Assets and Depreciation 
Buildings and equipment are stated at historical cost.  Construction in progress is included as a 
capital asset. Construction in progress is stated at cost, which includes direct construction costs and 
other expenditures related to construction including capitalized interest, if any.  All construction 
costs related to projects which are not yet completed are charged to construction in progress until 
such time as the projects are completed and placed in operation.  Depreciation is computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets from the date the property is placed 
in operation.  The useful lives applicable to the Authority are as follows: 
 

Buildings   20 to 50 years 
Building and leasehold improvements   10 to 20 years 
Equipment   5 to 10 years 
Furnishings   3 years 

 
Capitalized Interest 

The Authority capitalizes interest costs incurred during the construction period of qualifying 
property assets.  The amount of interest costs capitalized on qualifying assets acquired with 
proceeds of tax-exempt borrowings consists of all interest costs of the borrowing less any interest 
earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with proceeds of the related tax-exempt 
borrowings from the date of the borrowing until the assets are ready for their intended use.  
Interest capitalized during the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 totaled approximately 
$2,880,700 and $3,240,000, respectively, net of interest income of $3,796,600 and $3,201,000, 
respectively. 

Continued – 
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances maintained in checking accounts, overnight 
repurchase agreements and amounts held by the University in the University’s cash pool on behalf 
of the Authority. 

 
Contracts with the University 

The Authority has entered into various contracts with the Commonwealth, acting by and through the 
Trustees, related to the management of certain Authority projects and the payment to the Authority 
of certain fees and operating costs.  The Authority fixes fees, rents, rates and other charges for the 
use of its projects in amounts sufficient to provide for the debt service and other payments related to 
the Authority’s obligations and for the Authority’s operating expenses.  These contracts generally 
call for the Trustees to bill and collect all revenue derived from the projects and remit to the 
Authority or to the trustee under the Authority’s trust agreements (the Bond Trustee) funds 
sufficient to cover debt service on its bonds and its costs of operations and financial obligations with 
respect to the projects. 
  

Investments 
  Investments in marketable securities are stated at fair value. 

 
Investments in repurchase agreements are non-participating interest earning investment contracts 
and are recorded at cost.  These repurchase agreements are secured by cash or investments with a 
fair market value between 100% and 105% of the repurchase price, depending on the type of asset 
used as security and the specific repurchase agreement.  These repurchase agreements can be 
redeemed at any time for the repurchase price provided the redemption proceeds are used for a 
purpose permitted by the respective repurchase agreement.   

 
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments include the net changes in the fair value of 
investments. 

 
Net Assets 

Net assets are reported in three categories: 
 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debts - This category consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt that 
are attributed to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

 
Restricted net assets - This category consists of net assets whose use is restricted either through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors and the like, or through restrictions 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Continued – 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Net Assets (Continued) 

Unrestricted net assets - This category consists of net assets which do not meet the definition of the 
two preceding categories.   
 

Grants and Capital Contributions 
Grants for capital asset acquisition, facility development and long-term planning studies are 
reported in the statements of revenues, expenses and change in net assets after non-operating 
revenues and expenses as capital contributions. 
 

Risk Management 
Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major programs.  There have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage, and settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance 
coverage, for the current year or the two prior years. 
 

Reclassifications 
 Certain amounts from fiscal 2007 have been reclassified for consistent presentation. 

 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

3. Cash Deposits and Investments 
 

Cash Deposits – Custodial Credit Risk 
 
The Authority holds a majority of its cash and cash equivalents in high quality money market mutual 
funds that invest in securities that are permitted investments under the Authority’s Enabling Act or 
in money market mutual funds that have been specifically permitted by state legislation.  The 
Authority’s cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of June 30, 2008 and 2007: 

 
             2008           2007 
  
Fully insured bank accounts $          23,805 $         115,629
Permitted money market accounts (MMA)   274,289,923   203,488,781
 $274,313,728 $203,604,410
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3. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able to 
recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  The Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.  As of June 30, 
2008 and 2007, the Authority’s cash deposits of $23,805 and $115,629, respectively, were not 
subject to custodial credit risk as they were fully insured.  For purposes of disclosure under GASB 
Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, money market accounts investing in 
debt securities and the University of Massachusetts cash pool are considered investments and 
therefore, are included in the investment disclosures that follow. 

 
Investments 

 
As of June 30, 2008, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following: 

 
                                                                            Investment Maturities (in Years)                                               _ 
     Fair     Less      More 
Investment type     value     than 1     1 to 5     6 to 10     than 10 
   Debt Securities      
      US Treasuries $    4,521,427 $    4,521,427 $                   - $                - $                - 
      US Agencies  3,081,801 - - 3,081,801 - 
      Repurchase Agreements 232,946,295  - 227,628,239 - 5,318,056 
      MMA   148,027,765  148,027,765                    -                  -                 - 

 $388,577,288 $152,549,192 $227,628,239 $3,081,801 $5,318,056   
 
As of June 30, 2007, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following: 
 
                                                                             Investment Maturities (in Years)                                            _ 
     Fair     Less      More 
Investment type     value     than 1     1 to 5     6 to 10     than 10 
   Debt Securities      
      US Treasuries $  13,122,993 $   1,674,547 $  11,448,446 $              - $             -  
      US Agencies 59,114,776 43,353,632 10,502,510 5,258,634 - 
     Repurchase Agreements   5,318,056 - - - 5,318,056 
      MMA   203,488,781   203,488,781                    -                -                - 
 

$281,044,606 $248,516,960 $  21,950,956 $5,258,634   $5,318,056  
 
 

Because money market funds are highly liquid, they are presented as investments with maturities of 
less than one year. 
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3. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Risk 
 
The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Generally, the 
Authority holds its investments until maturity. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  The risk is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. 
 
The Enabling Act specifies the permitted investments of the Authority.  They include direct 
obligations of or obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America 
(Treasuries), obligations of an agency or organization created pursuant to an act of Congress of the 
United States as an agency or instrumentality thereof (Agencies), time deposits or certificates of 
deposits fully secured by Treasuries or Agencies, and Treasuries and Agencies subject to repurchase 
agreements.  Other legislation allows the Authority to invest in the Massachusetts Municipal 
Depository Trust (MMDT), a money market account sponsored by the Treasurer of the 
Commonwealth and managed by Fidelity Investments.  Additionally, the Authority’s Bond Trustee 
invests some of the Authority’s funds in money market accounts that are permitted and are 
collateralized by Treasuries. 
 
No credit risk disclosures are required under GASB 40 related to the Authority’s investment in 
Treasuries.  The Authority’s investments in Agencies are rated at the highest level by Standard & 
Poor’s Rating Services and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.  The Authority’s investments in repurchase 
agreements are fully collateralized by Treasuries and Agencies but are not themselves rated. The 
MMDT is unrated. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 
  
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to 
a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities 
that are in the possession of an outside party.  The Authority’s Enabling Act does not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk except that interest-
bearing time deposits or certificates of deposit of banking institutions or trust companies must be 
continuously and fully secured by Treasuries or Agencies. 
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3. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 

Custodial Credit Risk (Continued) 
  
Custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or 
government investment pools (such as MMDT).  Direct investments in marketable securities are held 
by the Authority’s Bond Trustee as the Authority’s agent.  In accordance with the Authority’s 
repurchase agreements, collateral for the agreements is held in segregated accounts with market 
values between 100% and 105% of the repurchase price, depending on the type of asset used as 
security and the specific repurchase agreement. 
 
Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 
The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer.  As of June 30, 2008 and 
2007 there were no investments in any one issuer greater than 10% of its total investments.  

 
 

4. Changes in Capital Assets 
 

 A summary of changes in capital assets follows: 
 

 Balance Additions/ Balance Additions/ Balance 
 June 30, 2006 Transfers June 30, 2007 Transfers June 30, 2008 
      
Buildings $365,959,287 $112,789,853 $478,749,140 $  53,371,334 $532,120,474 
Building improvements 73,365,506 38,429,107 111,794,613 23,578,363 135,372,976 
Equipment and furnishings 13,028,603 4,828,338 17,856,941 1,171,176 19,028,117 
Construction in progress   155,220,863   23,273,399    178,494,262     75,795,428    254,289,690 
 607,574,259 179,320,697 786,894,956 153,916,301 940,811,257 
Less: accumulated       
     depreciation   205,576,303   14,481,504   220,057,807     18,351,710   238,409,517 

 $401,997,956 $ 164,839,193 $566,837,149 $135,564,591 $702,401,740 
 

The Authority has outstanding purchase commitments with contractors for the construction of 
certain facilities as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 of approximately $360,200,000 and $473,900,000, 
respectively. 
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5. Bonds Payable 
 

The following is a summary of bond transactions of the Authority for the years ended June 30, 2008 
and 2007: 

          Unamortized     Unamortized  
         original issue     deferred amount  

        Bonds payable        premiums      from refundings    Total 
     
Beginning balance – July 1, 2006 $665,700,000 $ 27,233,221 $ (44,754,522) $648,178,699 
    Decreases      20,950,000      2,779,046                605,251    23,123,795 
Ending balance – June 30, 2007 $644,750,000 $ 24,454,175 $(44,149,271)  625,054,904 
Less: Due within one year      27,190,000 
    $597,864,904 
     
Beginning balance – July 1, 2007 $644,750,000 $ 24,454,175 $(44,149,271) $625,054,904 
    Increases 381,500,000 668,061 -   382,168,061 
    Decreases     27,190,000     2,779,042                 671,426     29,297,616 
Ending balance – June 30, 2008 $999,060,000 $22,343,194 $(43,477,845) 977,925,349 
Less: Due within one year        37,490,000 
    $940,435,349 

 
 

Aggregate annual maturities of principal and interest on long-term debt as of June 30, 2008 are as 
follows: 
 

Year Ending    
  June 30,            Principal       Interest          Total 
  
   2009 $  37,490,000 $   39,507,399 $    76,997,399
   2010 38,085,000 39,709,757 77,794,757
   2011 40,295,000 38,083,633 78,378,633
   2012 41,570,000 36,285,594 77,855,594
   2013 42,175,000 34,403,099 76,578,099
   2014-2018 209,900,000 142,910,845 352,810,845
   2019-2023 219,645,000 93,988,281 313,633,281
   2024-2028 187,225,000 54,758,139 241,983,139
   2029-2033 141,085,000 23,544,141 164,629,141
   2034-2038     41,590,000       4,753,355        46,343,355
 $999,060,000 $507,944,243 $1,507,004,243
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 
Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2000-1 

In fiscal year 2001 UMBA issued its Series 2000-1 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$24,145,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $3,290,000 and 
$4,300,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2010.  The 
bonds carry interest rates that range from 4.50% to 5.25%. In fiscal year 2004 $8,185,000 of these 
bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2004-1 bonds (described below). In fiscal year 2006 
$7,000,000 of these bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2005-2 bonds (described below). 
The bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth (see Note 10).   
 

Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2000-2 
In fiscal year 2001 UMBA issued its Series 2000-2 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$132,155,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $16,245,000 and 
$21,150,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2010.  The 
bonds carry interest rates that range from 4.50% to 5.50%. In fiscal year 2006 $78,155,000 of these 
bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2005-2 bonds (described below). Principal and interest 
payments on the bonds have been insured by Ambac Assurance Corporation (AMBAC). 

 
Facilities Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2000-A  

In fiscal year 2001 UMBA issued its Series 2000-A bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$46,980,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $6,140,000 and 
$7,525,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2011.  The 
bonds carry interest rates that range from 4.60% to 5.25% and are callable beginning November 1, 
2010 at par. In fiscal year 2006 $34,520,000 of these bonds were advance refunded by the Series 
2005-2 bonds (described below). The bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth (see Note 10).  
 

Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2003-1 
In fiscal year 2004 UMBA issued its Series 2003-1 bonds. The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$137,970,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University. As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $38,020,000 and 
$42,740,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2014.  The 
bonds carry interest rates that range from 2.625% to 5.25% and are callable beginning November 1, 
2013 at par.  The Authority was paid a premium of $5,274,910 for these bonds. In fiscal year 2006 
$36,105,000 and $49,965,000 of these bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2005-2 bonds 
and the Series 2006-1 bonds (described below), respectively. The principal and interest payments on 
the bonds have been insured by AMBAC. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2004-1 
In fiscal year 2004 UMBA issued its Series 2004-1 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$183,965,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University and to advance refund the SMUBA Refunding Revenue Bonds, 1986 Series B, the 
ULBA Facilities Bonds, Fourth Series B, the ULBA Fifth Series A bonds (partial refunding), the 
UMBA Project Revenue Bonds, Series 1995-A and the Series 2000-1 bonds (partial refunding).  As 
of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $57,265,000 and $62,645,000, 
respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2016.  The bonds carry 
interest rates that range from 3.125% to 5.375% and are callable beginning November 1, 2014 at 
par.  The Authority was paid a premium of $5,077,137 for the bonds.  In fiscal year 2006 
$24,545,000 and $91,665,000 of these bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2005-2 bonds 
and the Series 2006-1 bonds (described below), respectively.  The principal and interest payments 
on the bonds have been insured by AMBAC. 

 
Facilities Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2004-A  

In fiscal year 2004 UMBA issued its Series 2004-A bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$96,025,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction projects for the University. 
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $16,225,000 and $17,940,000, 
respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on November 1 through 2015.  The bonds carry 
interest rates that range from 3.125% to 4.50% and are callable beginning November 1, 2014 at par. 
The Authority was paid a premium of $119,872 for the bonds. In fiscal year 2006 $16,130,000 and 
$61,955,000 of these bonds were advance refunded by the Series 2005-2 bonds and the Series 2006-
1 bonds (described below), respectively. The bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth (see Note 
10).  Additionally, the principal and interest payments on the bonds have been insured by MBIA. 
 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2005-1 
In fiscal year 2005 UMBA issued its Series 2005-1 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$25,595,000 and the proceeds were used to refund the UMBA Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Senior Series 2004-2.  As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $19,030,000 
and $20,935,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on May 1 through 2016.  The bonds 
carry an interest rate of 5.00% and are callable beginning May 1, 2015 at par. The Authority was 
paid a premium of $505,125 for the bonds.  The principal and interest payments on the bonds have 
been insured by AMBAC. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2005-2 
In fiscal year 2006 UMBA issued its Series 2005-2 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$212,550,000 and the proceeds were used to advance refund the ULBA Fifth Series A bonds and 
partially refund the Series 2000-1 bonds, the Series 2000-2 bonds, the Series 2000-A bonds, the 
Series 2003-1 bonds, the Series 2004-1 bonds and the Series 2004-A bonds.  As of June 30, 2008 
and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $204,210,000 and $206,109,000, respectively.  The bonds 
are payable annually on November 1 through 2025.  The bonds carry interest rates that range from 
3.00% to 5.25% and are callable beginning November 1, 2015 at par.  The Authority was paid a 
premium of $20,341,561 for the bonds.  The principal and interest payments on the bonds have been 
insured by AMBAC. 
 

Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2006-1 
In fiscal year 2006 UMBA issued its Series 2006-1 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$243,830,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University at its Lowell campus and to partially advance refund the Series 2003-1 bonds, the 
Series 2004-1 bonds and the Series 2004-A bonds.  As of June 30, 2007 the bonds payable amount 
was $242,470,000.  In June 2008 the Authority used the proceeds of its Series 2008-3 and 2008-4 
bonds (described below) to currently refund the Series 2006-1 Bonds.  Therefore as of June 30, 
2008 there were no bonds outstanding.   

 
The bonds carried a variable interest rate and were callable at any time at par.  The principal and 
interest payments on the bonds were insured by AMBAC. The Authority also entered into a 
standby bond purchase agreement with Depfa Bank plc (DEPFA) which required DEPFA to 
purchase bonds tendered and not remarketed in an amount not to exceed the principal on the 
bonds plus accrued interest up to 190 days at an annual interest rate not to exceed 12 percent. 
Under this agreement, the Authority was required to pay DEPFA in quarterly installments a 
facility fee in the amount of 9.5 (or higher under certain circumstances) basis points of the 
commitment amount. Fees accrued by the Authority in connection with the standby bond 
purchase agreement totaled $270,600 and $248,600 for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. At the time of the bond closing the Authority entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement with Citigroup, N.A., as swap counterparty for the term of the bond issue.  The 
agreement calls for the Authority to pay a fixed rate of 3.482% and receive a floating rate based on a 
percentage of London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), plus a spread (see below).  The interest rate 
swap remains in place with an allocable portion going to the 2008-3 and 2008-4 bonds, respectively 
(see below). 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Taxable Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2006-2 
In fiscal year 2006 UMBA issued its Series 2006-2 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$21,240,000 and the proceeds were used to advance refund the UMBA Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1995-B.  As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the bonds payable amount was $16,315,000 and 
$18,855,000, respectively.  The bonds are payable annually on May 1 through 2014.  The bonds 
carry interest rates that range from 5.29% to 5.49% and are not callable.  The principal and interest 
payments on the bonds have been insured by AMBAC. 

 
Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-1 

In fiscal year 2008 UMBA issued its Series 2008-1 bonds. The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$232,545,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University at the Amherst and Lowell campuses. As of June 30, 2008 the bonds payable amount 
was $232,545,000.  The bonds are payable annually on May 1 through 2038.  The bonds carry a 
variable interest rate and are callable at any time at par.  The bonds are supported with an 
irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the Lloyds LOC) issued by Lloyds TSB Bank plc (Lloyds).  
The Lloyds LOC, upon presentation of required documentation, will pay the Bond Trustee the 
amount necessary to pay the principal and accrued interest on the bonds.  The Lloyds LOC expires 
in 2013 and may be extended at the option of Lloyds. Under the terms of the Lloyds LOC, the 
Authority is required to pay Lloyds in quarterly installments a facility fee in the amount of 26.5 
basis points (or higher, under certain circumstances) of the  commitment amount.  Fees accrued 
by the Authority in connection with the Lloyds LOC totaled $65,800 for the year ended June 30, 
2008.  In December 2007 the Authority entered into an interest rate swap agreement with UBS AG, 
as swap counterparty, beginning May 1, 2008 and extending for the term of the bond issue.  The 
agreement calls for the Authority to pay a fixed rate of 3.388% and receive a floating rate based on a 
percentage of LIBOR (see below). 

 
Facilities Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-A 

In fiscal year 2008 UMBA issued its Series 2008-A bonds. The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$26,580,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University at the Dartmouth and Lowell campuses. As of June 30, 2008 the bonds payable 
amount was $26,580,000.  The bonds are payable annually on May 1 through 2038.  The bonds 
carry a variable interest rate and are callable at any time at par.  The bonds are guaranteed by the 
Commonwealth (see Note 10). The Authority also entered into a standby bond purchase 
agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (BofA) which requires BofA to purchase bonds tendered 
and not remarketed in an amount not to exceed the principal on the bonds plus accrued interest 
up to 184 days at an annual interest rate not to exceed 12 percent. Under this agreement, the 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Facilities Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-A (Continued) 
Authority is required to pay BofA in quarterly installments a facility fee in the amount of 12 
basis points of the initial commitment. The initial commitment under the agreement was set at 
$28 million but is subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance with the provisions of 
the agreement. The agreement expires in 2013 and may be extended at the option of the BofA. 
Fees accrued by the Authority in connection with the standby bond purchase agreement totaled 
$1,900 for the year ended June 30, 2008.  In December 2007 the Authority entered into an interest 
rate swap agreement with Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. (LBSF) (see Note 17), as swap 
counterparty, beginning May 1, 2008 and extending for the term of the bond issue.  The agreement 
calls for the Authority to pay a fixed rate of 3.378% and receive a floating rate based on a 
percentage of LIBOR (see below). 
 

Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-2 
In fiscal year 2008 UMBA issued its Series 2008-2 bonds. The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$120,560,000 and the proceeds were to be used for various construction and renovation projects for 
the University’s Amherst and Worcester campuses. As of June 30, 2008 the bonds payable amount 
was $120,560,000.  The bonds are payable annually on May 1 through 2038. The bonds carry 
interest rates that range from 4% to 5% and are callable beginning May 1, 2018 at par.  The 
Authority was paid a premium of $668,100 for these bonds. Some of the principal and interest 
payments on the bonds have been insured by Financial Security Assurance Inc. (FSA). 
 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-3 
In fiscal year 2008 UMBA issued its Series 2008-3 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$138,635,000 and the proceeds were used to currently refund a portion of the 2006-1 bonds.  As of 
June 30, 2008 the bonds payable amount was $138,635,000.  The bonds are payable annually on 
November 1 through 2034.  The bonds carry a variable interest rate and are callable at any time at 
par.  The bonds are supported with an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit (the BofA LOC) issued 
by Bank of America NA (BofA).  The BofA LOC, upon presentation of required documentation, 
will pay the Bond Trustee the amount necessary to pay the principal and accrued interest on the 
bonds.  The BofA LOC expires in 2011 and may be extended at the option of BofA. Under the 
terms of the BofA LOC, the Authority is required to pay BofA in quarterly installments a facility 
fee in the amount of 55 basis points (or higher, under certain circumstances) of the  commitment 
amount.  Fees accrued by the Authority in connection with the BofA LOC totaled $47,500 for 
the years ended June 30, 2008.  The original interest rate swap with Citigroup from the 2006-1 
bonds remains in place, with an allocable portion assigned to the 2008-3 bonds. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-4 

In fiscal year 2008 UMBA issued its Series 2008-4 bonds.  The bonds were issued in the amount of 
$104,000,000 and the proceeds were used to currently refund a portion of the 2006-1 bonds.  As of 
June 30, 2008 the bonds payable amount was $104,000,000.  The bonds are payable annually on 
November 1 through 2034.  The bonds carry a variable interest rate and are callable at any time at 
par. The bonds are guaranteed by the Commonwealth (see Note 10). The Authority also entered 
into a standby bond purchase agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (BofA) which requires 
BofA to purchase bonds tendered and not remarketed in an amount not to exceed the principal on 
the bonds plus accrued interest up to 184 days at an annual interest rate not to exceed 12 percent. 
Under this agreement, the Authority is required to pay BofA in quarterly installments a facility 
fee in the amount of 35 basis points of the initial commitment. The initial commitment under the 
agreement was set at $110 million but is subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance 
with the provisions of the agreement.  
 

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2008-4 (Continued) 
The agreement expires in 2011 and may be extended at the option of the BofA. Fees accrued by 
the Authority in connection with the standby bond purchase agreement totaled $21,400 for the 
year ended June 30, 2008.  The original interest rate swap with Citigroup from the 2006-1 bonds 
remains in place, with an allocable portion assigned to the 2008-4 bonds. 
 

Bond Refundings 
In fiscal year 2008, the Authority currently refunded the UMBA Project and Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Senior Series 2006-1 bonds.  The variable rate bonds were called on an interest payment 
date and immediately retired. 
 
In fiscal year 2006, the Authority refunded the ULBA Fifth Series A bonds and the UMBA 
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1995-B and partially refunded the following bond issues: the 
Series 2000-1 bonds, the Series 2000-2 bonds, the Series 2000-A bonds, the Series 2003-1 Bonds, 
the Series 2004-1 Bonds and the Series 2004-A bonds.  Accordingly, the Authority deposited into 
trust accounts funds sufficient to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  
Assets held in the trust accounts had an aggregate market value of approximately $450,439,200 and 
$455,326,000 as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The unpaid principal amount of the 
refunded bonds totaled approximately $415,125,000 and $417,385,000 as of June 30, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. 
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5.  Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Bond Refundings (Continued) 
In fiscal year 2004, the Authority refunded the following bond issues: the SMUBA Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1986-B; the ULBA Facilities Bonds, Fourth Series B; the UMBA Project 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995-A; the UMBA Series 2000-1 bonds (partial refunding); the ULBA 
Fifth Series A bonds (partial refunding) and the SMUBA Refunding Revenue Bonds 1995 Series A.  
Accordingly, the Authority deposited into trust accounts funds sufficient to provide for all future 
debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  Assets held in the trust accounts had an aggregate 
market value of approximately $8,323,700 and $8,375,800 as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.  The unpaid principal amount of the refunded bonds totaled $8,185,000 as of June 30, 
2008 and 2007.  
 
In fiscal year 1984, the Authority refunded all outstanding bonds issued by the Authority prior to 
May 1, 1984 and deposited into a trust account funds sufficient to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the refunded bonds.  Assets held in the trusts accounts had an aggregate market value 
of approximately $4,564,300 and $5,780,900 at June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.  The 
outstanding amount of the refunded bonds at June 30, 2008 and 2007 totaled $4,945,000 and 
$6,370,000, respectively.   
 
Refunded bonds are considered defeased and, accordingly, the liability for the bonds payable and 
the assets held to repay the debt have not been recorded in the Authority’s financial statements. 

 
Bond Premium, Issuance Expenses and Deferred Amount on Refundings 

In connection with the Authority’s Series 2003-1, Series 2004-1, Series 2004-A, Series 2005-1, 
Series 2005-2 and Series 2008-2 bond issues, the Authority received premiums at issuance totaling 
approximately $31,986,700.  The Authority will amortize the premiums received on each issue as a 
reduction in interest expense over the life of the respective bond issue. 
 
In connection with the Authority’s Series 2003-1, Series 2004-1, Series 2004-A, Series 2005-1, 
Series 2005-2, Series 2006-1, Series 2006-2, Series 2008-1, Series 2008-A, Series 2008-2, Series 
2008-3 and Series 2008-4 bonds, the Authority incurred certain issuance costs associated with the 
bond offerings totaling approximately $13,529,300.  These issuance costs have been capitalized by 
the Authority and will be amortized over the life of the applicable bond issues. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 
 Bond Premium, Issuance Expenses and Deferred Amount on Refundings (Continued) 

In connection with the Authority’s bond refundings undertaken in fiscal 2006 as noted above, the 
Authority recorded a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 
old debt of approximately $42,622,000.  This difference is being reported as a reduction from bonds 
payable and will be amortized as an increase in interest expense over the original life of the 
refunded bonds.  The refundings reduced the Authority’s debt service payments in future years by 
approximately $24,240,000 and resulted in an economic gain (the present value of the savings) of 
approximately $15,235,100. 
 
In connection with the Authority’s bond refundings undertaken in fiscal 2004 and 2005 as noted 
above, the Authority recorded a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the old debt of approximately $2,840,000.  This difference is being reported as a 
reduction from bonds payable and will be amortized as an increase in interest expense over the 
original life of the refunded bonds.  The refundings reduced the Authority’s debt service payments 
in future years by approximately $1,966,000 and resulted in an economic gain (the present value of 
the savings) of approximately $786,000. 
 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2008-1 Swap 
In connection with the Authority’s Series 2008-1 bonds, the Authority entered into an interest rate 
swap (the 2008-1 Swap).  The intention of the swap is to effectively change the Authority’s variable 
interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.388%. 
 
Terms.  The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on May 1, 2038, and the swap’s notional 
amount of $232,545,000 matches the amount of the variable rate bonds.  The swap was entered in 
December 2007 with a start date of May 1, 2008.  The notional value of the swap and the principal 
amount of the associated debt decline over time as the bond principal payments are made to the 
bondholders.  Under the swap, the Authority pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 3.388% and 
receives a variable payment computed as 70% of the one-month LIBOR.  Conversely, the variable 
interest rate on the bonds is based on actual weekly remarketing rates which are expected to roughly 
track the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap IndexTM (SIFMA) 
as successor to the Bond Market Association Municipal Swap IndexTM (BMA). 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2008-1 Swap (Continued) 
Fair value.  As of June 30, 2008 the 2008-1 Swap had a negative fair market value of approximately 
$1,208,000 due to a decrease in interest rates since execution of the swap.  Because the Authority’s 
variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a corresponding fair 
value decrease.  The fair value was estimated using the zero-coupon method.  This method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current 
forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates.  These 
payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. 
 
Credit risk.  As of June 30, 2008 the Authority was exposed to credit risk in the amount of the 2008-
1 Swap’s fair value.  The swap’s counterparty, UBS AG, was rated Aa1, AA- and AA- by Moody’s 
Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings, respectively, as of June 30, 2008.  To 
mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the counterparty’s credit quality falls below A3/A/A, the fair 
value of the swap will be fully collateralized by the counterparty with U.S. Government Securities 
or U. S. Government Agency Securities.  Collateral posted by the counterparty will be held by a 
third-party custodian. 

 
Basis risk.  The 2008-1 Swap exposes the Authority to basis risk should the relationship between 
LIBOR and SIFMA converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds.  The effect of this 
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rate (3.388%) and 
the synthetic rate as of June 30, 2008 (3.098%).  If a change occurs that results in the rates’ moving 
to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be realized.  As of June 30, 2008, the SIFMA 
rate was 1.55%, whereas 70% of the one-month LIBOR was 1.74%.  
 
Termination risk. The Authority or the counterparty may terminate the 2008-1 Swap if the other 
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  The swap may be terminated by the Authority 
if the counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below BBB+ as issued by Standard & Poor’s Rating 
Service or Fitch Inc. or if the counterparty fails to have such a rating.  If the swap is terminated, the 
variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate.  Also, if at the time of the 
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Authority would be liable to the counterparty for 
a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2008-A Swap 
In connection with the Authority’s Series 2008-A bonds, the Authority entered into an interest rate 
swap (the 2008-A Swap).  The intention of the swap is to effectively change the Authority’s 
variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.378%. 
 
Terms.  The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on May 1, 2038, and the swap’s notional 
amount of $26,580,000 matches the amount of the variable rate bonds.  The swap was entered in 
December 2007 with a start date of May 1, 2008.  The notional value of the swap and the principal 
amount of the associated debt decline over time as the bond principal payments are made to the 
bondholders.  Under the swap, the Authority pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 3.378% and 
receives a variable payment computed as 70% of the one-month LIBOR.  Conversely, the variable 
interest rate on the bonds is based on actual weekly remarketing rates which are expected to roughly 
track SIFMA. 
 
Fair value.  As of June 30, 2008 the 2008-A Swap had a negative fair market value of 
approximately $119,000 due to a decrease in interest rates since execution of the swap.  Because the 
Authority’s variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a 
corresponding fair value decrease.  The fair value was estimated using the zero-coupon method.  
This method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that 
the current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates.  
These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. 
 
Credit risk.  As of June 30, 2008 the Authority was exposed to credit risk in the amount of the 2008-
A Swap’s fair value.  The swap’s counterparty, LBSF, (see Note 17) was rated A1, A and A+ by 
Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings, respectively, as of June 30, 
2008.  To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the counterparty’s credit quality falls below 
A3/A/A, the fair value of the swap will be fully collateralized by the counterparty with U.S. 
Government Securities or U. S. Government Agency Securities.  Collateral posted by the 
counterparty will be held by a third-party custodian. 
 
Basis risk.  The 2008-A Swap exposes the Authority to basis risk should the relationship between 
LIBOR and SIFMA converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds.  The effect of this 
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rate (3.378%) and 
the synthetic rate as of June 30, 2008 (3.088%).  If a change occurs that results in the rates’ moving 
to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be realized.  As of June 30, 2008, the SIFMA 
rate was 1.55%, whereas 70% of the one-month LIBOR was 1.74%. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2008-A Swap (Continued) 
Termination risk. The Authority or the counterparty may terminate the 2008-1 Swap if the other 
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  The swap may be terminated by the Authority 
if the counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below BBB+ as issued by Standard & Poor’s Rating 
Service or Baa1 as issued by Moody’s Investor’s Service or if the counterparty fails to have such a 
rating.  If the swap is terminated, the variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest 
rate.  Also, if at the time of the termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Authority would 
be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2006-1 Swap 
In connection with the Authority’s Series 2006-1 bonds, the Authority entered into an interest rate 
swap (the 2006-1 Swap).  The intention of the swap is to effectively change the Authority’s variable 
interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.482%.  In fiscal 2008 the Authority currently 
refunded the Authority’s Series 2006-1 bonds with the Authority’s Series 2008-3 and 2008-4 bonds.  
The interest swap remains outstanding and is matched on a pro-rata basis with the Series 2008-3 and 
2008-4 bonds. 

 
Terms.  The bonds and the related swap agreement mature on November 1, 2034, and the swap’s 
notional amount of $243,830,000 matches most of the amount of the variable rate bonds.  The swap 
was entered at approximately the same time the bonds were issued (April 2006).  The notional value 
of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline as principal payments are made 
to the bondholders over time.  Under the swap, the Authority pays the counterparty a fixed payment 
of 3.482% and receives a variable payment computed as 60% of the three-month LIBOR plus .18%.  
Conversely, the variable interest rate on the bonds is based on actual weekly remarketing rates 
which are expected to roughly track SIFMA. 
 
Fair value.  As of June 30, 2008, the 2006-1 Swap had a negative fair market value of 
approximately $11,283,100. As of June 30, 2007, the swap had a positive fair market value of 
approximately $2,387,300.  The change in fair value of the swap is due to interest rates changes 
since execution of the swap.  If interest rates increase over time from the date of issuance the swap 
will have a positive fair value while if rates fall the fair value will be negative.  Because the 
Authority’s variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have a 
corresponding fair value decrease.  The fair value was estimated using the zero-coupon method.  
This method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that 
the current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates.  
These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap. 
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Swaps – Series 2006-1 Swap (Continued) 
Credit risk.  As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the Authority was exposed to credit risk in the amount of 
the 2006-1 Swap’s fair value.  The swap’s counterparty, Citibank, N.A., was rated Aa1, AA and 
AA+ by Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings, respectively, as of June 
30, 2008.  To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the counterparty’s credit quality falls below 
A2/A, the fair value of the swap will be fully collateralized by the counterparty with U.S. 
Government Securities or U. S. Government Agency Securities.  Collateral posted by the 
counterparty will be held by a third-party custodian. 
 
Basis risk.  The 2006-1 Swap exposes the Authority to basis risk should the relationship between 
LIBOR and SIFMA converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds.  The effect of this 
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rate (3.482%) and 
the synthetic rate as of June 30, 2008 (3.152%) and  2007 (3.826%).  If a change occurs that results 
in the rates’ moving to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be realized.  As of June 30, 
2008, the SIFMA rate was 3.73%, whereas 60% of the three-month LIBOR plus .18% was 3.40%.  
As of June 30, 2007, the SIFMA rate was 1.55%, whereas 60% of  the three-month LIBOR plus 
.18% was 1.87%. 
 
Termination risk. The Authority or the counterparty may terminate the 2006-1 Swap if the other 
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  The swap may be terminated by the Authority 
if the counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below Baa1 as issued by Moody’s Investor Service or 
BBB+ as issued by Standard & Poor’s or if the counterparty fails to have such a rating.  If the swap 
is terminated, the variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate.  Also, if at the 
time of the termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Authority would be liable to the 
counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. 
 

Interest Rate Swap (Consolidated) 
Swap payments and associated debt.  Using rates as of June 30, 2008, the debt service requirements 
of the variable-rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same 
for their term, were as follows.  As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap 
payments will vary.  
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5. Bonds Payable (Continued) 
 

Interest Rate Swap (Consolidated) (Continued) 
 
                                              Variable-Rate Bonds____      

Fiscal Year             Interest Rate  
Ending June 30              Principal             Interest           Swaps, Net          Total 

  
2009 $    7,810,000 $    7,954,316 $    8,124,806 $   23,889,122
2010 8,120,000 7,837,104 8,007,488 23,964,592
2011 8,980,000 7,703,865 7,873,860 24,557,725
2012 9,325,000 7,566,809 7,736,673 24,628,482
2013 9,680,000 7,393,214 7,562,134 24,635,348

2014-2018 54,720,000 34,501,754 35,338,148 124,559,902
2019-2023 116,785,000 28,556,381 29,317,441 174,658,822
2024-2028 155,640,000 16,822,096 17,272,417 189,734,513
2029-2033 112,390,000 5,927,251 5,979,214 124,296,465
2034-2038     16,495,000          561,391          400,045     17,456,436

Total $499,945,000 $124,824,181 $127,612,226 $752,381,407
 
 
6.   Due to Bank of America 
  
 On January 2007 the Authority closed on a $35,000,000 Revolving Line of Credit (the Line) with Bank 

of America, N.A (the Bank).  The Line matures on the first anniversary of the date of the agreement and 
can be extended or renewed at the option of the Bank.  At the time of each draw on the Line the 
Authority must elect to have the interest on the draw calculated based on (a) 75% of the one-month, 
two-month or three-month LIBOR rate (LIBOR Rate) or (b) 75% of the higher of the Federal Funds 
Rate plus .5% or 75% the Bank’s “prime rate” (Base Rate).  Interest is due at the end of the one, two or 
three month period under a LIBOR Rate draw, the first business day of the calendar quarter for Base 
Rate draws or the Line’s maturity date, whichever comes first, except at the Line’s maturity date, the 
Authority can elect to have the interest charges incorporated into a subsequent draw. 

 
 In November 2007 the Authority renewed the Line for an additional 12 months.  At the time of the 

renewal the total of the Line was reduced to $30,000,000 and the LIBOR Rate and Base Rate factor was 
increased from 75% to 77%. 
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6.   Due to Bank of America (Continued) 
 
 At the time Line was closed the Authority entered into a contract with the University that obligates the 

University to make payments to the Authority sufficient to cover the costs of the Line.  The Authority 
expects to pay all principal and interest charges related to the Line by issuing long-term bonds at the 
appropriate time. 

 
 As of June 30, 2008 the Authority had $120,221 outstanding under the Line. The interest terms on the 

draws were one-month LIBOR and the interest rates ranged from 1.84% to 4.37% during the year.  
 
 As of June 30, 2007 the Authority had $4,070,460 outstanding under the Line in four separate draws. 

The interest terms on the draws were either one-month or three-month LIBOR and the interest rates 
ranged from 3.99% to 4.02% during the year.  

 
7. Net Assets 
 

At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the net asset category “Invested in capital assets, net of related debt” is 
comprised of the following components: 
 

      2008     2007 
  
Cost of capital assets acquired $940,811,257 $786,894,956
Less: Accumulated depreciation 238,409,517 220,057,807
Less: Outstanding debt related to capital assets   553,926,372   505,870,857
 $148,475,368 $  60,966,292

 
The remaining outstanding debt is netted against the related proceeds which have not been expended in 
the computation of net assets restricted for capital projects. 

 
8. Grant from the University of Massachusetts 
 
 During fiscal 2008 the Authority received a grant from the University of $4,000,000.  Under the terms 

of the Memorandum of Understanding between the Lowell campus and the Authority, the funds are to 
be used to develop a Life Sciences Innovation Facility which will serve as the location for the 
Massachusetts Medical Device Development Center (M2D2) to be located on the Lowell campus.  As 
per the Authority’s policy, the grant is shown on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets as a capital contribution. 
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9. State Appropriations 
 
During fiscal 2007 the Authority received two appropriations from the Commonwealth totaling 
$54,000,000.  The first, for $50,000,000 and authorized in November 2006, represented funds 
designated for rehabilitation, renovation and maintenance of infrastructure across the University’s 
campuses.  The second, for $4,000,000 and authorized in May 2007, represented funds designated for 
the construction of facilities to promote nano-manufacturing and bio-manufacturing at the Lowell 
campus.   
 

10. Guaranty of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 
 Section 10 of the Enabling Act authorizes the Commonwealth, acting by and through the Trustees, to 

enter into contracts with the Authority for state financial assistance in the form of a guaranty by the 
Commonwealth of the payment of the principal and interest as they become due and payable up to a 
maximum of two hundred million dollars principal amount of outstanding bonds and notes of the 
Authority.  The full faith and credit of the Commonwealth are pledged for the payment of the guaranty.  
As is generally the case with other full faith and credit obligations of the Commonwealth, funds with 
which to honor such guaranty are to be provided by appropriation. 

 
11. Contingencies 
 

The Authority is contesting certain tax liens and fees from government bodies.  In the opinion of 
management the ultimate liability, if any, from these lawsuits and contested liens and fees would not 
have a material effect on the financial position of the Authority. 
 

12. Lease Obligations 
 

The Authority has executed long-term leases with the Commonwealth, acting by and through the 
Trustees, covering the land on which facilities owned by the Authority are located on the University’s 
campuses.  These leases call for nominal annual payments to the Commonwealth.  Certain of these 
leases renew automatically for subsequent five or ten year periods unless the Authority notifies the 
University that it does not wish to renew.  Other leases require the Authority to notify the University of 
its desire to renew.  As of June 30, 2008 all leases with the Commonwealth were in good standing and 
any leases requiring action by the Authority during the year to facilitate their renewals were properly 
renewed. 
 
As provided in the Enabling Act, each of the above-referenced leases also terminates when the 
Authority no longer has any bonds outstanding, at which time all Authority property becomes the 
property of the Commonwealth.   
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12. Lease Obligations (Continued) 
 

The Authority entered into a sublease agreement, as lessee, dated December 14, 2004 with SSB 
Realty, LLC, as lessor (the Lessor), for space at 225 Franklin Street, Boston, Massachusetts to be 
used primarily by the University, the Authority,  The University of Massachusetts Foundation, Inc. 
and The University of Massachusetts Club.  The agreement requires the Authority to pay a base rent 
plus a proportionate share of any increase over the base year of the Lessor’s costs and taxes.  The 
lease began April 1, 2005 and ends December 15, 2015 and includes an initial three month period of 
no rental payments.   In July 2007 SSB Realty, LLC notified the Authority that the lease with the 
Authority had been assigned to Equity Office Management, LLC (Equity) and that Equity had 
assumed all rights under the lease. 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, lease operating costs were approximately $1,517,900 
and $1,480,000, respectively, which are included in facility operating costs in the accompanying 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.  

 
The Authority also executed (in the capacity of paying agent for the lessee), a lease agreement dated as 
of September 1, 2003 between Baystate Medical Center, Inc., as lessor, and Pioneer Valley Life 
Sciences Institute of Baystate Medical Center and UMass Amherst, Inc., as lessee, for laboratory space 
to be used by the lessee.  The lessee is an entity the activities of which are approved by the Trustees as 
furthering the purposes of the University.  The lease terminated on September 30, 2007 and called for 
the Authority to pay on behalf of the lessee $46,068 per month during the term of the lease plus an 
annual allocation of laboratory costs; but such payments are to be made solely from funds specifically 
provided to the Authority for such purpose by appropriation from the Commonwealth, and not from any 
other source.  Funds totaling $2,500,000 and restricted for these lease payments have been provided by 
the Commonwealth through appropriation.  Lease payments made for the years ended June 30, 2008 
and 2007 totaled approximately $162,800 and $634,000, respectively. 
 
 
Approximate future payments (excluding Lessor’s costs and taxes) under the agreements are as follows: 

 
Year Ending  

June 30,  
2009                     $  1,475,000 
2010 1,520,000
2011 1,654,000
2012 1,654,000
2013 1,654,000

2014-2016     4,065,000
 $12,022,000
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13. The University of Massachusetts Club 
  

In August 2005 the Authority executed a contract with UMass Club Management, LLC (the 
Manager), a wholly owned subsidiary of ClubCorp USA, Inc., to provide management services for 
the University of Massachusetts Club (the Club), a private social club for alumni and friends of the 
University.  The Club, located on the 33rd floor of 225 Franklin Street in Boston Massachusetts, was 
opened on October 31, 2005. 

  
Under the terms of the contract, the Authority, acting as owner of the Club, is responsible for 
approving the budgets and operating plans of the Club as presented by the Manager.  The Authority 
is responsible for any operating shortfall and will benefit from any operating profits.  The contract 
calls for a minimum annual management fee payable to the Manager of $150,000 or four percent of 
the operating revenues, as defined by the contract, whichever is greater.  Additionally, the Manager 
receives a percentage of the Club’s initiation fees and 25% of the operating profits, as defined by the 
contract.  The contract term is 10 years and can be terminated by the Authority after 3 years if the 
Authority decides to close the Club for a minimum of 18 months.  As tenant on the sublease for the 
33rd floor, the Authority would be responsible for the rental charges should it decide to close the 
Club. 
As of June 30, 2008 and 2007 the Authority had provided operating support for the Club of 
approximately $451,600 and $760,300.  
 

14. Special Item – Removal of Certain Campus Operating Activities 
  

During fiscal year 2007 the Authority received an opinion from the Authority’s bond counsel that 
the Authority was no longer required to reflect the campus level activity related to the Authority’s 
dorms at the Dartmouth campus.  These amounts are reflected on the financial statements of the 
University of Massachusetts, of which the Authority is a component unit. The elimination of these 
accounts from the financial statements resulted in a charge to the statement of activities as a special 
item in the amount of $2,734,901. 
 

15. Related Party Transaction 
 

Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2008 is an amount due to the University of Massachusetts – 
Amherst Campus of approximately $291,500, an amount due to the University of Massachusetts – 
Boston Campus of approximately $118,100, an amount due to the University of Massachusetts – 
Dartmouth Campus of approximately $576,400 and an amount due to the University of 
Massachusetts - Lowell Campus of approximately of approximately $9,112,900.  These amounts 
represent costs incurred by the campuses prior to June 30, 2008 on Authority projects but not 
reimbursed to the campuses until fiscal 2009. 
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15. Related Party Transaction (Continued) 
 

Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2007 is an amount due to the University of Massachusetts – 
Lowell Campus of approximately $1,526,000.  This amount represents costs incurred by the campus 
prior to June 30 related to certain operating costs related to Authority projects.  Payment was made 
to the campus for the amount due in July of 2007. 

 
16 Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
 In June 30, 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 

Instruments.  GASB Statement No. 53 addresses the recognition, measurement and disclosure of 
derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. GASB Statement No. 53 is effective 
for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.  The Authority is currently evaluating 
the effect this statement will have on its financial statements. 

 
17 Subsequent Events 
 
 On October 3, 2008 LBSF filed for bankruptcy with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the 

Southern District of New York.  Under the terms of the swap agreement related to the UMBA Series 
2008-A bonds, the Authority has the right to terminate the swap at its option as the filing constitutes a 
default.  At the time of the filing there were no funds owed by LBSF to the Authority.  As of the report 
date of these financial statements the Authority was assessing its options and expected to find an 
acceptable replacement counterparty to LBSF under similar terms to the original agreement. 
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SUMMARY OF LEGAL DOCUMENTS 

 
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE PROJECT TRUST AGREEMENT 

 
 The pledge and assignment made by the Authority in the Trust Agreement secures only bonds issued 

under the Trust Agreement and not bonds issued any other trust agreement.   

 

 The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Trust Agreement. Such summary does not 
purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Trust Agreement for a complete statement of its 
provisions. 
 

Definitions 
 
 Capitalized words or terms used in this Summary of Certain Provisions of the Trust Agreement and 
not defined shall have the meaning given to the applicable word or term elsewhere in this Official Statement.  
 
 “Account” shall mean any account created pursuant to the Agreement.   
 
 “Accreted Amount” shall mean, as of the date of computation and with respect to any Capital 
Appreciation Bond, the original principal amount of such Capital Appreciation Bond upon the initial issuance 
of the Series of Bonds of which such Bond is a part plus the interest accrued on such Bond compounded as 
provided in the applicable Series Resolution.   
 
 “Agreement” shall mean the Trust Agreement.   
 
 “Annual Series Requirement” as applied to a Series of Guaranteed Bonds shall mean one-twelfth of 
the largest amount of Principal and Interest Payments due on account of the Outstanding Guaranteed Bonds of 
such Series of Bonds in any calendar year after the calendar year in which such Series of Guaranteed Bonds 
was issued.   
 
 “Appropriations” shall mean amounts made available for expenditure by the University Trustees 
pursuant to appropriations or other spending authorizations in the Commonwealth's annual operating budgets, 
including without limitation supplementary and deficiency budgets and any tuition retention authorization, and 
amounts otherwise available for expenditure by the University Trustees.    
 
 “Architect” as applied to a Project shall mean the person or firm, if any, employed by the Authority as 
architect for such Project.    
 
 “Authorized Officer” shall mean the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary-Treasurer, Assistant 
Secretary-Treasurer or Executive Director of the Authority or any other person so designated by resolution of 
the Authority.   
 
 “Bond” or “Bonds” shall mean any bond or bonds or all bonds, as the case may be, issued under the 
Agreement and authorized by a Series Resolution.    
 
 “Bond Counsel” shall mean any firm of nationally recognized municipal bond attorneys selected by 
the Authority and experienced in the issuance of municipal bonds and matters relating to the exclusion of the 
interest thereon from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. 
 
 “Bond Registrar” shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. 
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 “Capital Appreciation Bond” shall mean any Bond so identified in the Series Resolution applicable 
thereto and on which interest is compounded and is payable only at maturity or upon earlier redemption of 
such Bond.   
 
 “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. References to provisions of the 
Code include applicable successor provisions of the Code or applicable successor provisions of any 
recodification of the internal revenue laws of the United States.   
 
 “Commonwealth” shall mean The Commonwealth of Massachusetts.   
 
 “Commonwealth Guaranty” shall mean the guaranty by the Commonwealth pursuant to the Enabling 
Act of the payment of principal of and interest on Bonds so guaranteed. “Commonwealth Guaranty” shall not 
include a Credit Facility.   
 
 “Contract” shall mean each contract for financial assistance, management and services, and any 
amendments thereto, and each contract for management and services, and any amendments thereto, which may 
be entered into pursuant to the Enabling Act among the Authority, the Commonwealth, acting by and through 
the University Trustees, and the University Trustees with respect to the financing of one or more Projects or 
with respect to Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding and (a) in the case of a contract for financial 
assistance, management and services, providing financial assistance in the form of a Commonwealth Guaranty 
of the Bonds specified thereunder as entitled to the Commonwealth Guaranty or the pledge of Appropriations 
or Trust Funds, and (b) in the case of a contract for financial assistance, management and services or a contract 
for management and services, (i) providing, among other things, for the University Trustees to make available 
to the Authority the services of officers and employees of the University and office space and facilities in the 
University for billing and collecting rents, fees, rates and other charges for the use and occupancy of such one 
or more Projects (or the Project or Projects to which refunding Bonds pertain), or of .any facility or service 
provided by such one or more Projects (or the Project or Projects to which refunding Bonds pertain), renting 
and leasing rooms and other accommodations in the buildings and structures included in such one or more 
Projects (or the Project or Projects to which refunding Bonds pertain) and cleaning, heating, operation of and 
repairs to and maintenance of and keeping books of account with respect to such one or more Projects (or the 
Project or Projects to which refunding Bonds pertain) or (ii) containing such other provisions pertaining to the 
management of or services with respect to such one or more Projects (or the Project or Project to which 
refunding Bonds pertain) as may be permitted by the Enabling Act.   
 
 “Cost of the Project” as applied to a Project shall mean and include, without intending hereby to limit 
or restrict any definition of such term under the Enabling Act (as in effect on the date of the Agreement and as 
it may be amended from time to time), the cost, whenever incurred, of carrying out the Project and placing it in 
operation, including, but not limited to, the cost of construction of new buildings or structures and the cost of 
acquiring, adding to, altering, enlarging, leasing, reconstructing, remodeling and doing other work in or upon 
or respecting existing buildings and structures, if any, included in the Project, the cost of providing and 
installing in or in respect of any such building or structure furniture, furnishings, machinery, equipment, 
facilities, approaches, driveways, walkways, parking areas, planting and landscaping, the cost of leasing or 
otherwise acquiring land, other property, rights, easements and interests acquired for or in respect to any of the 
foregoing, the cost of demolishing or removing any buildings or structures on land so acquired or interests in 
which are so acquired and the cost of site preparation; the cost of architectural and engineering services, plans, 
specifications, surveys, estimates of cost and of revenues; other expenses necessary or incident to determining 
the feasibility or practicability of the Project; administrative expense, legal expense and such other expenses, 
including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) of the 
Trustee, fees and expenses of financial advisers and other experts, printing and advertising costs and the like, 
taxes and other governmental charges lawfully levied or assessed, the cost of preliminary architectural and 
engineering services, plans, specifications, surveys, estimates of cost and revenues, other expenses necessary 
or incident to determine the feasibility or practicability of other projects for which written requests shall have 
been made by authority of the University Trustees and premiums for policies of insurance, fidelity bonds and 
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the like covering property and risks of and related to the Project, as may be necessary or incident to the 
aforesaid, to the financing or refinancing thereof and to the issuance therefor of notes or Bonds or both under 
the provisions of the Enabling Act and interest for such period as the Authority may deem advisable but ending 
not later than eighteen months after the University Trustees shall have accepted the project for occupancy on 
money borrowed to pay all or part of the Cost of the Project.   
 
 “Counsel” shall mean an attorney or firm of attorneys admitted to practice law in the highest court of 
any state in the United States of America or in the District of Columbia.   
 
 “Counsel's Opinion” shall mean an opinion signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys (who may be 
general or special counsel to the Authority or bond counsel to the Authority) selected by the Authority and 
satisfactory to the Trustee.   
 
 “Credit Facility” shall mean any instrument, including without limitation a letter of credit, guaranty, 
standby loan commitment, insurance policy or surety bond, or any combination thereof, under which the 
Authority or the Trustee is entitled to receive moneys for the payment of one or more of principal of, 
Redemption Price of and interest on any Bond, fees and expenses of the Trustee, amounts payable from any 
reserve fund established pursuant to the Agreement, amounts for the replenishment of any reserve fund 
established pursuant to this Agreement, the purchase price of Bonds tendered pursuant to the applicable Series 
Resolution and any other amounts which the Authority or the Trustee is entitled to receive under such 
instrument. “Credit Facility” shall not include the Commonwealth Guaranty or Derivatives.   
 
 “Current Expenses” as applied to a Project shall mean and include (a) the fees and expenses 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) of the Trustee under the Agreement and of any escrow or 
like agent appointed by the Authority with respect to the payment of bonds or Bonds issued to finance the 
Project or to refund any bonds or Bonds issued for such purpose or for the purpose of refunding other 
refunding bonds or Bonds related to such Project, exclusive of such fees and expenses as are included in the 
Cost of the Project; (b) the rent, not included in the Cost of the Project, payable by the Authority under any 
lease of property included in the Project, as such lease may be amended or extended; (c) premiums (or accruals 
on account thereof), not included in the Cost of the Project, for policies of insurance maintained in force by the 
Authority with respect to the Project (or a proportionate part of such premiums in the event that a single policy 
or policies of insurance shall cover property or risks pertaining to more than one Project (or shall include one 
or more Other Projects) of the Authority); and (d) that portion of the general operating and administrative 
expenses of the Authority as the Authority shall deem properly allocable to the Project, which general 
operating and administrative expenses shall include, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any 
amount required to be rebated by the Authority (or by any other entity with respect to moneys held by the 
Authority) to the United States of America by the Code or other applicable law and not provided by other 
moneys of the Authority available therefor, legal and other professional expenses of the Authority, expenses 
incurred as Bond Registrar under the Agreement and reasonable payments to governmental or other benefit or 
retirement funds for the benefit of its employees, provided, however, that the total amount which may be so 
allocated in any year shall not exceed such limitation, if any, as may be imposed by the Contract pertaining to 
the Project; but such term shall not include (x) Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses; (y) any reserves 
for extraordinary maintenance or repair of the Project or any allowance for depreciation, or (z) any deposits or 
transfers to the credit of the special funds created by the Agreement and designated “Debt Service Fund,” 
“Rate Stabilization Fund,” “Section 10 Reserve Fund” and “Property Fund” or to the credit of any reserve fund 
created pursuant to the Agreement by a Series Resolution 
 
 “Current Interest Bond” shall mean any Bond other than a Capital Appreciation Bond. 
 
 “Debt Service Reserve Fund” shall mean any fund established by a Series Resolution to provide a 
reserve for the payment of one or more of principal of, Sinking Fund Installments premium and interest on a 
Series of Bonds and the purchase price of Bonds of such Series tendered pursuant to the applicable Series 
Resolution.  Debt Service Reserve Fund shall not mean a Section 10 Reserve Fund. 



 

 

D-4 

 
 “Debt Service Reserve Requirement” shall mean, with respect to a Debt Service Reserve Fund, the 
Debt Service Reserve Requirement established for such Debt Service Reserve Fund by the Series Resolution 
creating such Debt Service Reserve Fund. 
 
 “Derivative” shall mean contracts that derive their value from the value, or changes in value, of 
another financial instrument or index and shall include without limitation (a) interest rate swaps, swaptions, 
forward swaps, interest rate caps, interest rate floors, options, puts, calls and other contracts to hedge payment, 
rate spread or similar exposure, (b) forwards and (c) contracts to exchange cash flows or a series of payments. 
“Derivatives” shall not include a Credit Facility. 
 
 “Enabling Act” shall mean Chapter 773 of the Acts of 1960 of the Commonwealth, as amended.  
 
 “Engineer” as applied to a Project shall mean the person or firm, if any, employed by the Authority as 
engineer for such Project. 
 
 “Expendable Fund Balance” shall mean the accumulation of excess unrestricted revenues over 
expenditures with respect to the University for all prior years and for each current year from the unrestricted 
current fund, the quasi endowment fund, the unexpended unrestricted plant fund and the unrestricted renewal 
and replacement plant fund.  (now referred to as Unrestricted Net Assets; see definition of “Unrestricted Net 

Assets”).   

 
 “fiscal year” shall mean the twelve-month period beginning on each July 1, or any other twelve-
month period designated by the Authority from time to time as its fiscal year. 
 
 “Fixed Rate Bond” shall mean a Bond bearing interest at a rate fixed to the stated maturity of such 
Bond, including any such Bond the interest rate on which has been converted to a rate fixed to the maturity 
thereof from a rate that is subject to adjustment from time to time. 
 
 “Fund” shall mean any Fund created pursuant to the Agreement. 
 
 “Guaranteed Bonds” shall mean Bonds that are guaranteed by the Commonwealth Guaranty. 
 
 “interest” unless otherwise indicated, shall mean with respect to any Bond (a) the interest on any 
Current Interest Bond and (b) the interest on any Capital Appreciation Bond, which interest is expressed as the 
difference between the applicable Accreted Amount on any applicable date and the principal amount of such 
Capital Appreciation Bond on the date of initial issuance of the Series of Bonds of which such Capital 
Appreciation Bond is a part. 
 
 “Interest Payment Date” shall mean any date on which a scheduled payment of interest on any Bond 
is due; provided, that such dates with respect to a Fixed Rate Bond shall be May 1 and November 1 of each 
year, commencing on May 1, 2010. 
 
 “interest rate,” “rate of interest,” “bear interest at the rate” or other like expressions shall mean the 
rate of interest on any Current Interest Bond and the rate (expressed as a yield to maturity) at which interest 
accrues on any Capital Appreciation Bond. 
 
 “Investment Obligations” shall mean and include any of the following: (a) direct obligations of, or 
obligations the payment of the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United 
States of America; (b) obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Government National 
Mortgage Association, the Federal Financing Bank, the Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Federal Banks for 
Cooperatives, Federal Land Banks, Federal Home Loan Banks, Farmers Home Administration and Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or of any other agency or corporation which has been or is hereafter 
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created pursuant to an act of the Congress of the United States as an agency or instrumentality thereof; (c) 
interest-bearing time deposits or certificates of deposit of banking institutions or trust companies (including the 
Trustee) organized under the laws of any state of the United States or any national banking association, 
provided that such deposits or certificates shall be continuously and fully (a) insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation or any successor thereof, or (b) secured by obligations described in clauses (a) and (b) 
having a market value, exclusive of accrued interest, at least equal to the aggregate amount of such deposits or 
certificates; (d) any of the securities described in clauses (a) and (b) which are subject to repurchase 
agreements with any bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States or any 
national banking association; (e) any other investment in which funds of the Authority are permitted from time 
to time to be invested by the Enabling Act; and (f) any subcategories of any of the investments described in 
clauses (a), (b), (c), (d) or (e) above that may be required by the issuer of a Credit Facility. 
 
 “Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses” as applied to a Project or Other Project shall mean 
and include any reasonable and necessary expenses for services, facilities, supplies, materials and utilities 
necessary for or incident to the maintenance, repair and operation of the Project or Other Project and the 
facilities and services provided thereby, billing and collecting fees, rents, rates and other charges for the use of 
the Project or Other Project or any room or accommodation therein or facility or service provided thereby and 
keeping books of account with respect to such maintenance, repair and operation.  The term may also, if the 
Contract with respect to a Project or Other Project shall provide for application of Revenues therefrom to pay 
for the following costs, include the costs incurred in maintaining those activities which, and associations and 
organizations which, or the activities of which, are a part of the activities at the University and are subject to 
regulation by the University Trustees and which take place, use or are performed in a building or structure 
included in such Project or Other Project or are a part of a general program of the University including such 
activities, associations or organizations which take place, use or are performed in such building or structure.  
The term shall also include reserves for the foregoing expenses and costs if and to the extent that the Contract 
in effect with respect to a Project, if any, or a resolution of the Authority with respect to a Project or Other 
Project provides for such reserves.  The term shall not include Current Expenses.  
 
 “Moody's” shall mean Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or 
liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody's” shall be deemed to 
refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Authority by notice to the 
Trustee, with the consent of the Insurer.  
 
 “Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund” shall have the same meaning as the term Debt Service 
Reserve Fund, except that a Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund shall secure more than one Series of 
Bonds (and any one or more of such Series so secured may be issued at different times or under different 
Series Resolutions from one or more other such Series so secured).  
 
 “Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement” shall mean, with respect to a Multi-Series Debt 
Service Reserve Fund, the Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement established for such Multi-Series 
Debt Service Reserve Fund by the Series Resolution creating such Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund.  
 
 “Non-Guaranteed Bonds” shall mean Bonds that are not guaranteed by the Commonwealth Guaranty.  
 
 “Other Project” shall have the same meaning as the word “Project” except that Other Project shall 
apply to a project with respect to which a Series of Bonds shall not have been issued under the Agreement.  
 
 “Outstanding,” when used with reference to Bonds, shall mean, as of any date, Bonds theretofore or 
thereupon being authenticated and delivered under the Agreement except: (a) any Bonds cancelled by the 
Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation at or prior to such date; (b) Bonds (or portions of Bonds) 
for the payment or redemption of which moneys, equal to the principal amount or Redemption Price thereof, as 
the case may be, with interest to the date of maturity or redemption date, shall be held in trust under the 
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Agreement and set aside for such payment or redemption (whether at or prior to the maturity or redemption 
date), provided that if such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) are to be redeemed, notice of such redemption shall 
have been given in accordance or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of 
such notice; (c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been authenticated and 
delivered pursuant to the Agreement; and (d) Bonds deemed to have been paid as provided in the Agreement.  
 
 “Person” shall include associations, corporations and other entities, including public bodies, as well 
as natural persons.  
 
 “Pledged Funds” shall mean one or both of (a) Trust Funds of the University pledged to secure (i) all 
or a portion of one or more Series of Bonds and (b) the payment of other amounts specified in the Contract or 
other document by which such pledge is made as secured by such Trust Funds, and (b) Appropriations pledged 
to secure (i) all or a portion of one or more Series of Bonds and (ii) the payment of other amounts specified in 
the Contract or other document by which such pledge is made as secured by such Appropriations.  
 
 “principal” and “principal amount,” unless otherwise indicated, shall mean with respect to any Bond 
(a) the principal amount of any Current Interest Bond and (b) the principal amount on the date of initial 
issuance of the applicable Series of any Capital Appreciation Bond (and after such date of initial issuance the 
word “principal” and the term “principal amount” shall mean with respect to a Capital Appreciation Bond the 
portion of the applicable Accreted Amount not constituting interest). Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, when the word “principal” or the term “principal amount” is followed by a reference to the 
Accreted Amount, the word “principal” or the term “principal amount” shall mean the principal amount of any 
Current Interest Bond.  The word “principal” and the term “principal amount” shall mean, with respect to any 
obligation other than a Bond, any amount constituting principal, however expressed, of such obligation.  
 
 “Principal and Interest Payments” as applied to a Series of Bonds for a particular time period or as of 
a particular date shall mean the principal amount of and interest on the Bonds of such Series Outstanding 
which is due to be paid during such period or on such date, such amount to be determined in accordance with 
the following when applicable: if the Authority shall by the resolution authorizing the issue of a Series of 
Bonds authorize the issue of all or any of such Bonds as Term Bonds, such principal amount of Bonds as will 
be paid or prepaid from a Sinking Fund Installment shall be treated as if it matured on the date such Sinking 
Fund Installment is required to be made and not on the maturity date of such Bonds.  
 
 “Principal Office” or “principal office” shall mean, when used with respect to the Trustee, the 
principal corporate trust office of the Trustee in Boston, Massachusetts, or, if the Trustee shall no longer 
perform its duties under the Trust Agreement at such office, the corporate trust office where at the applicable 
time the Trustee performs its duties under the Trust Agreement.  
 
 “Project” or “Projects” shall mean the construction of new buildings or structures and the 
acquisition, addition to, alteration, enlargement, reconstruction, remodeling and other work in or upon or 
respecting existing buildings or structures, the provision and installation therein or in respect thereof of 
furnishings, furniture, machinery, equipment, facilities, approaches, driveways, walkways, parking areas, 
planting and landscaping, the acquisition of land, other property, rights, easements and interests acquired for or 
in respect to any thereof, the demolition or removal of any buildings or structures, including buildings or 
structures owned by the Commonwealth, on land so acquired or interests in which are so acquired and site 
preparation, with respect to which a Series of Bonds shall be issued under the Agreement.  The word shall also 
mean whenever appropriate, such land, buildings or structures and such appurtenances.  
 
 “purchaser” shall mean the person or persons, one or more, named as the purchaser or purchasers of a 
Series of Bonds in the Series Resolution and any successors to its or their business. If a named or successor 
purchaser shall discontinue its business without a successor, the word thereafter shall mean the remaining 
purchaser or purchasers, whether named or successor.  
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 “Record Date” shall mean, for each Series of Bonds, such date or dates as may be set forth as a 
Record Date in the applicable Series Resolution.  
 
 “Redemption Price” shall mean, (a) with respect to any Current Interest Bond, the principal amount 
thereof, plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof pursuant to the Agreement and 
the applicable Series Resolution, and (b) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted Amount 
thereof on the redemption date, plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof pursuant 
to the Agreement and the applicable Series Resolution.  
 
 “Registered Owner” shall mean the person shown from time to time as registered owner of a Bond in 
the books kept by the Trustee as Bond Registrar.  
 
 “Revenues” as applied to a Project shall mean (a) all moneys received or receivable by the Authority 
in payment of fees, rents, rates and other charges for the use and occupancy of, and for the services and 
facilities provided by, the Project including, without limitation, the moneys which the University Trustees are 
required to remit to the Authority or the Trustee under a Contract, and all other income derived by the 
Authority from the operation, ownership or control thereof.  The word Revenues shall also include any other 
revenues or Secondary Revenues pledged as security for the Bonds.  The word Revenues shall not include (a) 
Pledged Funds, (b) any amount paid or payable under the Commonwealth Guaranty or (c) any amount paid or 
payable under a Credit Facility or a Derivative.  
 
 “Secondary Revenues” shall mean all revenues received by the Authority from Other Projects or the 
property financed by bonds issued by the Authority under the Enabling Act under a trust agreement other than 
the Agreement which revenues are pledged under such trust agreement, upon and after the payment in full of 
all bonds, including refunding bonds, issued under such trust agreement and of all other sums, if any, then 
payable to the trustee under the provisions of the trust agreement securing such bonds, or upon deposit by the 
Authority with such trustee of funds or securities sufficient and in trust to pay, or to provide for the payment 
when due, of such amounts.  
 
 “Section 10 Reserve Fund” shall mean the Section 10 Reserve Fund established by the Agreement.  
 
 “Section 19C Payments” shall mean any amount required by Section 19C of the Enabling Act to be 
paid by the Authority to the Treasurer and Receiver-General of the Commonwealth from Revenues.  
 
 “Senior Bonds” shall mean all Bonds of each Series that is a Senior Series.  
 
 “Senior Series” shall mean any Series designated as a Senior Series in the applicable Series 
Resolution.  
 
 “Series” shall mean the Bonds designated as a Series in a Series Resolution.  
 
 “Sinking Fund Installment” shall mean with respect to Bonds of any particular Series and maturity 
and any payment date on such Bonds, the principal amount thereof required to be redeemed prior to maturity 
on such payment date pursuant to the provisions of the applicable Series Resolution.  
 
 “S&P” shall mean Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., a corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, its successors and assigns, and, if such 
corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating 
agency, “S&P” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated 
by the Authority by notice to the Trustee.  
 
 “Special Record Date” shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.  
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 “Subordinate Series” shall mean any Series designated as a Subordinate Series in the applicable 
Series Resolution.  
 
 “Term Bonds” shall mean Bonds subject to redemption prior to maturity by application of Sinking 
Fund Installments.  
 
 “Trustee” shall mean the Trustee appointed under the Agreement and its successor or successors.  
 
 “Trust Agreement” shall mean the Trust Agreement dated as of  November 1, 2000 between the 
Authority and State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Trustee (which has been succeeded as Trustee by U.S. 
Bank National Association), and each agreement supplemental thereto.  
 
 “Trust Funds” shall mean any funds held by the University Trustees as trust funds under the provision 
of Section 11 of Chapter 75 of the Massachusetts General Laws and any funds administered by the University 
Trustees as gifts, grants or trusts under the provisions of clause (e) of the fifth paragraph of Section 1A of 
Chapter 75 of the Massachusetts General Laws.  
 
 “University” shall mean the University of Massachusetts continuing under Chapter 75 of the 
Massachusetts General Laws.  
 
 “University Trustees” shall mean the board of trustees established by and existing under Section 1A 
of Chapter 75 of the Massachusetts General Laws for the University or, if such board of trustees shall hereafter 
be abolished, the board, body, commission or other entity succeeding to the principal functions thereof or to 
which the powers given by said Chapter 75 with respect to the University shall be given by law.  
 

 “Unrestricted Net Assets” shall mean the accumulation of excess unrestricted revenues over 
expenditures with respect to the University for all prior years and for each current year from the 
unrestricted current fund, the quasi endowment fund, the unexpended unrestricted plant fund and the 
unrestricted renewal and replacement plant fund.  (previously referred to as the “Expendable Fund 
Balance”).   
 
 “Variable Rate Bond” shall mean a Bond the interest rate on which is subject to adjustment from time 
to time and shall include but not be limited to a so-called “multi-modal” Bond, i.e.. a Bond that provides that 
the intervals at which the interest rate on such Bond is adjusted may be changed from time to time.  
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PLEDGE AND ASSIGNMENT OF THE AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO THE AGREEMENT 

 
 Pursuant to the Agreement, the Authority assigns and pledges to the Trustee and grants to the Trustee 
a security interest in: 
 
 (a) all rights of the Authority, including such rights under any Contract, to receive all Revenues 
pledged under the Agreement;  
 
 (b) all moneys paid or payable for deposit in or on deposit in any Fund, Account or subaccount created 
under the Agreement, all investments received or receivable for deposit in or on deposit in any Fund, Account 
or subaccount created under the Agreement and all interest or other income on such investments paid or 
payable for deposit in or on deposit in any Fund, Account or subaccount created under the Agreement and all 
rights of the Authority to receive any such moneys, investments and interest or other income (except that 
moneys and securities on deposit in the Rebate Fund created under the Agreement and all interest or other 
income received thereon are held for the benefit of the United States of America and not for the benefit of the 
Registered Owners and do not secure the Bonds), subject to the application of amounts held in such Funds, 
Accounts and Subaccounts for the purposes and in the manner set forth in the Agreement;  
 
 (c) subject to clause (a) and clause (b) under “Particular Covenants - Payment of Lawful Charges” 
below, (i) the Revenues from each Project and (ii) the Revenues, including without limitation Secondary 
Revenues, derived from Other Projects and from such other property of the Authority, if any, as the Authority 
may hereafter designate by resolution; provided, however, that the assignment and pledge made by the 
Agreement of and the security interest granted by the Agreement in such Revenues from each Project and such 
Revenues, including Secondary Revenues, derived from Other Projects does not include any part thereof to be 
used for Current Expenses or reserves therefor, Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses or reserves 
therefor or Section 19C Payments or reserves therefor; and provided further that the assignment and pledge of 
and security interest in any such Secondary Revenues shall be, first, for (A) the reimbursement to the 
Commonwealth of any amounts theretofore paid by the Commonwealth on account of principal of or interest 
on any Guaranteed Bonds or other bonds of the Authority guaranteed by the Commonwealth under Section 10 
of the Enabling Act and (B), if and only if the Commonwealth has made no such payments or has been 
reimbursed therefor, to the payment of the principal, interest and premium, if any, at maturity or upon 
redemption or purchase, for (1) all Bonds issued under the Agreement, or (2) all bonds of the Authority issued 
other than under the Agreement, or (3) all such Bonds and bonds of the Authority, as the Authority may 
determine, at the time any Revenues from an Other Project become Secondary Revenues, by resolution 
approved by the University Trustees with a view to achieving reasonable uniformity in charges for like rooms, 
accommodations and services at the University, to the extent provided in the Agreement; and  
 
 (d) (i) all Pledged Funds paid or payable and all rights of the Authority to receive such Pledged Funds, 
(ii) all amounts paid or payable under the Commonwealth Guaranty with respect to Guaranteed Bonds and all 
rights of the Authority to receive such amounts, (iii) all amounts paid or payable under any Credit Facility and 
all rights of the Authority to receive such amounts and (iv) all amounts paid or payable under any Derivative 
and all rights of the Authority to receive such amounts.  
 
 The assignment and pledge made by the Agreement and the security interest granted by the 
Agreement shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of all the present and future Registered 
Owners of the Bonds issued and to be issued under the Agreement, without preference, priority or distinction 
as to lien or otherwise, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, of any one Bond over any other Bond, 
and that the Revenues, including any Secondary Revenues, pledged as security for the Bonds shall 
immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge for the benefit of the Trustee and the Registered Owners of 
the Outstanding Bonds as provided in the Agreement without any physical delivery thereof to the Trustee or 
any further act. 
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BONDS PERMITTED TO BE ISSUED UNDER THE AGREEMENT; VARIOUS PROVISIONS OF 
BONDS 

 
 (a) Any bonds the Authority is authorized by the Enabling Act to issue may be issued under the 
Agreement.  The Bonds of each Series may be Fixed Rate Bonds or Variable Rate Bonds, as set forth in the 
applicable Series Resolution.  
 
 (b) As provided in the applicable Series Resolution: 
 

 (i) Bonds may be issued as Guaranteed Bonds or Non-Guaranteed Bonds, but Guaranteed 
Bonds and Non-Guaranteed Bonds shall not be issued as part of the same Series;  
 
 (ii) some or all of the Bonds of a Series may be secured by one or more Credit Facilities, and 
any such Credit Facility may be replaced;  
 
 (iii) Bonds may be issued as Current Interest Bonds or Capital Appreciation Bonds, and a 
Series of Bonds may combine both Current Interest Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds;  
 
 (iv) a Series of Bonds may be (A) a Senior Series, which Senior Series shall not be 
subordinate to any other Series and shall be issued on a parity with each other, if any Senior Series 
previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued, or (B) a Subordinate Series;  
 
 (v) a Subordinate Series shall be subordinate to all Senior Series, may be of any level of 
subordination to other Subordinate Series previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued and 
shall be on a parity with each other, if any, Subordinate Series of the same level previously, 
contemporaneously or subsequently issued; a Subordinate Series shall bear as part of its designation 
(in the form provided in the Agreement) whichever of the following is applicable: (A) “Subordinate 
Series Level 2,” which Subordinate Series shall be (1) subordinate to each other, if any, Senior Series 
previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued, (2) on a parity with each, if any, Subordinate 
Series Level 2 previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued and (3) superior to each other, if 
any, Subordinate Series of a lower level previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued, (B) 
“Subordinate Series Level 3,” which Subordinate Series shall be (1) subordinate to each other, if any, 
Senior Series and Subordinate Series Level 2 previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued, 
(2) on a parity with each other, if any, Subordinate Series Level 3 previously, contemporaneously or 
subsequently issued and (3) superior to each other, if any, Subordinate Series of a lower level 
previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued or (C) “Subordinate Series Level 4” or 
“Subordinate Series Level 5” and so on in ascending numerical order depending on the level or 
subordination of such Subordinate Series, and each such Subordinate Series shall be subordinate to, on 
a parity with and superior to other Series depending on its level of subordination in accordance with 
the pattern described in (A) and (B) above;  
 
 (vi) a Subordinate Series may be any level of subordination, and a Subordinate Series of a 
given level may be issued after or before one or more Series of higher levels of subordination or one 
or more Senior Series are issued (and it is not necessary that any such Series of any higher level of 
subordination or any Senior Series shall ever be issued), but any such Subordinate Series shall not be 
subordinate to any Series but each Senior Series and each Subordinate Series of a higher level of 
subordination previously, contemporaneously or subsequently issued, (e.g., a Subordinate Series Level 
4 may be issued after or before the issuance of a Senior Series or any or all of a Subordinate Series 
Level 2, Level 3 or Level 5, but a Subordinate Series Level 4 shall not be subordinated to any Series 
except Senior Series and Subordinate Series Level 2 and Subordinate Series Level 3);  
 
 (vii) the interest on a Series of Bonds may be excludable from or includable in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes;  
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 (viii) a Series of Bonds may be secured by a Debt Service Reserve Fund or a Multi-Series 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, and all Guaranteed Bonds shall be secured by the Section 10 Reserve 
Fund as provided in the Agreement or by whatever reserve fund may be required by the Enabling Act 
as in existence at the time of the issuance of the applicable Series of Guaranteed Bonds; provided, that 
if at the time a Series of Guaranteed Bonds is issued under the Agreement the Enabling Act does not 
require any reserve fund for such Series, such Series shall not be required to be (but may be) secured 
by a reserve fund;  
 
 (ix) a Series of Bonds may be secured by Pledged Funds;  
 
 (x) the Authority may enter into one or more Derivatives with respect to a Series of Bonds in 
connection with the initial issuance thereof; provided, however, that the Authority may also enter into 
Derivatives with respect to a Series of Bonds after the initial issuance thereof if bond counsel to the 
Authority delivers an opinion to the effect that such action is permitted by the Enabling Act, would 
not adversely affect the interest of any Registered Owner and would not adversely affect the exclusion 
of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes; and  
 
 (xi) more than one Series of Bonds may be issued under a single Series Resolution,  

 
 (c) With respect to the Series of Bonds on a parity with each other:  
 
 If on any date one or more of principal, Sinking Fund Installments and interest are due on such Series 
of Bonds moneys in the applicable subaccount in the Interest Account, the Principal Account, or the Sinking 
Fund Account are insufficient to pay any such amount in full, taking account of any amounts deposited in any 
such subaccount from the Property Fund or the Optional Redemption Account as permitted by the Agreement, 
but without regard to any amount drawn from any Debt Service Reserve Fund, Multi-Series Debt Service 
Reserve Fund or Section 10 Reserve Fund to pay all or a portion of such deficiency or any amount drawn 
under a Credit Facility to pay all or a portion of such deficiency, moneys in any such subaccount in which a 
deficiency exists shall be applied to the applicable amount due from such subaccount pro rata, without regard 
to any amounts to be applied to such deficiency with respect to one or more such Series from any Debt Service 
Reserve Fund, Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund, Section 10 Reserve Fund or Credit Facility; provided, 
however, that (a) any deficiency in any such subaccount resulting from any amount due under a Derivative not 
being paid in full when due shall be allocated only to the payment due on the Series of Bonds to which such 
Derivative pertains and shall not cause a deficiency in the payment due on any other Series of Bonds, (b) any 
moneys that would have been applied in accordance with such pro rata application to any Bonds secured by a 
direct pay Credit Facility that in fact pays all principal of, Sinking Fund Installments and interest then due on 
such Bonds shall be applied to reimburse the issuer of such direct pay Credit Facility for (but not in excess of) 
the amount paid thereunder, and (c) any moneys that would have been applied in accordance with such pro rata 
application to Bonds with respect to which all or a portion of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments or 
interest due on such Bonds was paid pursuant to a Derivative shall be applied pro rata to the payment of (i) any 
amount due from or on account of the Authority pursuant to such Derivative for any such payment of principal, 
Sinking Fund Installment or interest and (ii) the principal, Sinking Fund Installments or interest on such Bonds 
not paid pursuant to such Derivative.   
 
 Each Guaranteed Bond shall have the Commonwealth Guaranty endorsed thereon in the form set forth 
in the applicable Series Resolution and duly executed by the manual or facsimile signature of an officer of the 
University Trustees and shall be entitled to the benefit of the pledge by the Commonwealth of its full faith and 
credit for its guaranty of the payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds as the same become due 
and payable.  
 
 As to any Bond, the Registered Owner thereof shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes, and, except as otherwise provided by law, no one of the Authority, the Trustee or the 
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Bond registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Payment of or on account of the principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of the Registered 
Owner, registered assigns or the legal representative of the Registered Owner. All such payments shall be valid 
and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond including the interest thereon to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid.  
 
 All Bonds paid, redeemed or purchased, either at or before maturity, shall be delivered to the Trustee 
when such payment, redemption or purchase is made, and such Bonds shall thereupon be cancelled. All Bonds 
cancelled under any of the provisions of the Agreement shall be held by the Trustee until the Agreement shall 
be discharged; provided, however, that Bonds so cancelled may at any time be destroyed by the Trustee, if the 
Trustee shall execute a certificate of destruction in duplicate describing the Bonds so destroyed, and one 
executed certificate shall be filed with the Executive Director of the Authority and the other executed 
certificate shall be retained by the Trustee. 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 
 

Redemption of Bonds of any Series 

 
 If and to the extent that the Authority shall so provide in a Series Resolution, the Bonds of any Series 
authorized thereunder may be made redeemable, by application of Sinking Fund Installments or otherwise, at 
the option of the Authority, prior to their respective maturities either in whole or in part, on any date or dates as 
may be fixed in such Series Resolution, from any moneys that may be made available for such purpose, at the 
Redemption Price or Redemption Prices fixed by the Authority in such Series Resolution, together with the 
interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption.  
 
 No optional redemption of less than all of the Outstanding Bonds may be made unless all interest 
accrued on all Outstanding Bonds to the redemption date shall have been paid or set aside for payment.  
 
 If the moneys made available from time to time for the purpose of redeeming Bonds (other than by 
Sinking Fund Installments) are not sufficient to redeem all of the Outstanding Bonds at the Redemption Prices 
then in effect, they shall be applied to Bonds of such Series, maturity and tenor as the Authority, in its 
discretion, may select, unless otherwise provided in any Series Resolution. If less than all the Bonds of a 
particular Series, maturity and tenor are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds and portions of Bonds of such 
Series, maturity and tenor to be redeemed shall be selected at random by the Trustee in such manner as the 
Trustee in its discretion may determine; provided, however, that any Bond may be redeemed in a principal 
amount equal to the minimum denomination in which it may be issued under the applicable Series Resolution 
or any integral multiple thereof, and that, in selecting Bonds for redemption, the Trustee shall treat each Bond 
as representing that number of Bonds which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of each Bond by such 
minimum denomination. 
 
Redemption Notice  

 
 The Trustee shall give notice of the redemption of any Bonds, specifying the date of redemption, the 
portions of the principal amounts thereof to be redeemed, the Redemption Price and any other matters 
specified in the applicable Series Resolution, by mailing, postage prepaid, not more than such number of days 
nor less than such number of days prior to the redemption date as shall be set forth in the applicable Series 
Resolution, copies thereof to the Registered Owners of any Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed and to 
such other persons and at such times as may be set forth in the applicable Series Resolution; provided, 
however, that failure of any Registered Owner to receive such notice so mailed to such Registered Owner or 
any defect therein shall not affect the validity of proceedings for the redemption of any Bonds, and failure to 
mail such notice to any Registered Owner entitled thereto shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the 
redemption of any Bonds as to which no such failure occurred. In case any Bond is to be redeemed in part 
only, the notice of redemption which relates to such Bond shall state also that on or after the redemption date, 
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upon surrender of such Bond, a Bond or Bonds in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion 
of such Bond will be issued described below under “Partial Redemptions.” 
 
Effect of Calling for Redemption 

 
 Notice having been given in the manner and under the conditions described above under “Redemption 
Notice”, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so called for redemption shall, on the redemption date designated in 
such notice, become and be due and payable at the Redemption Price of such Bonds or portions of Bonds on 
such date. On the date so designated for redemption, notice having been given and moneys for payment of the 
Redemption Price of and interest accrued to the date of redemption on the Bonds so called for redemption 
being available therefor, interest on such Bonds shall cease to accrue, such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall 
cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the Agreement, and the Registered Owners of such 
Bonds or portions of Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment of the 
Redemption Price thereof upon presentation and surrender of the same and interest accrued thereon to the date 
of redemption and, to the extent described above in “Redemption Notice,” to receive Bonds for any 
unredeemed portions of Bonds. 
 
Partial Redemptions 

 
 In case part but not all of an Outstanding Bond shall be selected for redemption, the Registered Owner 
thereof or the attorney or legal representative of such Registered Owner shall present and surrender such Bond 
to the Trustee for payment of the Redemption Price of the principal amount thereof so called for redemption, 
and the Authority shall execute (and, if any such Bond is a Guaranteed Bond cause the guaranty of the 
Commonwealth to be endorsed on) and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to or upon the order of such 
Registered Owner or the attorney or legal representative of such Registered Owner, without charge therefor, 
for the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, a Bond or Bonds aggregating 
in principal amount said unredeemed portion. 
 

ESTABLISHMENT AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
 
Funds and Accounts  

 
 The Agreement establishes the following Funds, Accounts and subaccounts to be held by the Trustee:  
 
  (1) Note Payment Fund  
 
  (2) Construction Fund  
 
  (3) Preliminary Expense Fund  
 
  (4) Revenue Fund  
 
  (5) Debt Service Fund  
 

Interest Account  
(and within the Interest Account a single subaccount with respect to all Senior 
Bonds, and if and when the first Subordinate Series of a given level is issued, a single 
subaccount with respect to all Bonds of any Subordinate Series of such level)  

 
Principal Account  
(and within the Principal Account a single subaccount with respect to all Senior 
Bonds, and if and when the first Subordinate Series of a given level is issued, a single 
subaccount with respect to all Bonds of any Subordinate Series of such level)  
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Sinking Fund Account  
(and within the Sinking Fund Account a single subaccount with respect to all Senior 
Bonds, and if and when the first Subordinate Series of a given level is issued, a single 
subaccount with respect to all Bonds of any Subordinate Series of such level)  

 
  Optional Redemption Account  

 
  (6) Section 10 Reserve Fund 
 
  (7) Property Fund  
 

  General Account  
 

  Insurance Proceeds Account  
 

Capital Improvements Reserve Account  
(and within the Capital Improvements Reserve Account a separate subaccount for 
each Project or each group of Projects with respect to which the Authority by 
certificate of an Authorized Officer directs from time to time that a separate 
subaccount be established within the Capital Improvements Reserve Account)  

 
  Multi-Purpose Reserve Account  

 
  (8) Rate Stabilization Fund  
 
  (9) Rebate Fund  
 
 Other Funds, Accounts and subaccounts (including without limitation Accounts within the Funds 
established under the Agreement as set forth in the preceding paragraph and subaccounts within the Accounts 
established under the Agreement as set forth in the preceding paragraph) may from time to time be established 
under the Agreement as directed by a Series Resolution or other resolution of the Authority, and moneys shall 
be deposited in and disbursed from such Funds, Accounts and Subaccounts as provided in such Series 
Resolution or other resolution.  
 
 Without limiting the generality of the previous paragraph, a Series Resolution under which is issued 
one or more Series of Bonds subject to tender for purchase may establish an Account (a “Purchase Account”) 
for each such Series into which moneys (which moneys may but need not include moneys in the Revenue 
Fund) shall be deposited as provided in such Series Resolution to be applied to the payment of the purchase 
price of Bonds of the applicable Series tendered as provided in the Series Resolution.  
 
 If a Series Resolution so provides, moneys (which moneys may but need not include Revenues) may 
be deposited in a Purchase Account prior to being deposited in the Revenue Fund or, if already on deposit in 
the Revenue Fund, prior to being deposited in the Debt Service Fund or in other Funds and Accounts as 
described below in “Revenue Fund.” Moneys in a Purchase Account representing amounts received under a 
Credit Facility or under a Derivative or the proceeds of the remarketing of Bonds tendered for purchase as 
provided in the applicable Series Resolution shall be applied to pay the purchase price only of Bonds of the 
Series to which the applicable Purchase Account pertains. Other moneys in a Purchase Account shall be 
applied as follows: if, on any date on which such moneys in a Purchase Account are to be applied to pay the 
purchase price of Bonds of the Series to which such Purchase Account obtains, any one or more other Purchase 
Accounts pertaining to Bonds of the same level (e.g.. Senior Series, Subordinate Series Level 2) does not 
contain sufficient moneys to pay the purchase price due on such date of Bonds to which such one or more 
other Purchase Accounts pertain, such moneys in all Purchase Accounts pertaining to Bonds of the same level 
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shall be applied pro rate to the payment of the purchase price of such Bonds due on such date. In addition, if 
and to the extent permitted by the applicable Series Resolution, moneys in any Purchase Account may be 
applied to reimburse the issuer of a Credit Facility for amounts received by the Trustee pursuant to such Credit 
Facility to be applied to the payment of the purchase price upon tender as provided in the applicable Series 
Resolution of Bonds for which such Purchase Account was established or to pay any amount due from or on 
account of the Authority under a Derivative for payments made pursuant to such Derivative for the payment of 
the purchase price upon tender as provided in the applicable Series Resolution of Bonds for which such 
Purchase Account was established. 
 
Note Payment Fund  

 
 For each Series of Bonds the proceeds of which are to be applied in whole or in part to the payment of 
notes of the Authority, deposits to the credit of the Note Payment Fund shall be made as required by the 
provisions of the applicable Series Resolution. Monies so deposited in the Note Payment Fund shall be held by 
the Trustee in trust and shall be applied to the payment of the notes referred to in the Series Resolution and, 
pending such application, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the holders of the Bonds Outstanding 
under the Agreement until paid out or transferred as provided in the Agreement. Upon payment in full of such 
notes, the Trustee shall withdraw any excess monies then on deposit in the Note Payment Fund and deposit or 
disburse the same as provided in the applicable Series Resolution. 
 
Construction Fund 

 
 For each Series of Bonds the proceeds of which are to be applied in whole or in part to the Cost of a 
Project (or for moneys held under any other trust agreement entered into by the Authority to be applied to the 
Cost of a Project) there may be established within the Construction Fund a separate Account for each such 
Project (or for two or more or all of such Projects) to the credit of which such deposits shall be made as are 
required by the provisions of the applicable Series Resolution or other resolution of the Authority or as 
designated in a certificate of an Authorized Officer. Any moneys received, other than as Revenues, from any 
other source, including but not limited to all grants and loans received from the federal government or any 
agency thereof for or in aid of the planning, construction or financing of any such Project and all contributions 
of money, property, labor, or other things of value available under the terms of any such grant or contribution, 
for the carrying out of such Project may also be deposited to the credit of the appropriate Account within the 
Construction Fund (or a subaccount therein) or otherwise be held in trust and be disbursed and applied, all as 
the Authority may determine.  
 
 The moneys in each such Account within the Construction Fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust 
and shall be applied to the payment of the Cost of the Project and, pending such application, shall be subject to 
a lien and charge in favor of the Registered Owners of the Outstanding Bonds of the Series the proceeds of 
which are on deposit in such Account until paid out or transferred as provided in the Agreement. The 
Agreement contains various requirements for disbursement of moneys from Accounts or subaccounts within 
the Construction Fund, including without limitation requisitions containing certifications with respect to the 
use of such moneys in accordance with applicable requirements of the Code.  
 
 The Trustee shall upon receipt of written instructions from an Authorized Officer (which instructions 
and any prior modification thereof may be modified from time to time by further written instructions of an 
Authorized Officer delivered to the Trustee) and without requisition from the Authority or other further 
authority than is contained herein, on such date or dates as may be specified in the most recent such 
instructions delivered by such Authorized Officer, withdraw from any Account within the Construction Fund 
such amounts as may therein be specified to be withdrawn on the applicable date for payment of interest on the 
Bonds then Outstanding and shall deposit such amount to the credit of the applicable subaccount in the Interest 
Account. 
 



 

 

D-16 

Preliminary Expense Fund 

 

 For each Series of Bonds from the proceeds of which an amount is specified in the Series Resolution 
authorizing such Series of Bonds to be applied to the cost of architectural and engineering services, plans, 
specifications, surveys, estimates of cost and of revenues and other expenses necessary or incident to 
determine the feasibility or practicability of projects for which written requests shall have been made by 
authority of the University Trustees, the amount so specified shall be deposited to the credit of the Preliminary 
Expense Fund.  The moneys in the Preliminary Expense Fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust and, pending 
the application thereof, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the Registered Owners of the Bonds 
from the proceeds of which such deposits were made until paid out or transferred as provided in the 
Agreement.  
 
 Upon receipt of a certificate of an Authorized Officer directing that all or a portion of the moneys in 
the Preliminary Expense Fund be transferred to any Account or Accounts with the Construction Fund, 
accompanied by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that such transfer is permitted by the 
Enabling Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, the Trustee shall withdraw moneys then on deposit to the credit of the Preliminary 
Expense Fund in the amounts specified in such certificate and deposit the same to the credit of the appropriate 
Account or Accounts within the Construction Fund in the amount or amounts specified in such certificate.  
 
 Upon receipt of a certificate of an Authorized Officer stating that all or a portion of the moneys in the 
Preliminary Expense Fund are not needed either for the purposes specified in the first paragraph under 
“Preliminary Expense Fund” or for transfer to any Account or Accounts within the Construction Fund and 
directing the withdrawal of such moneys from the Preliminary Expense Fund for the payment or deposit for or 
other application to the purposes specified in such certificate, and upon receipt an opinion of bond counsel to 
the Authority to the effect that the application of the moneys to be withdrawn to the purposes set forth in such 
certificate is permitted by the Enabling Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Trustee shall withdraw from then the Preliminary 
Expense Fund the amount specified in such certificate and pay, deposit or apply the same as specified in such 
certificate. 
 
Completion of a Project 

 
 When the construction of a Project the Cost of which shall have been paid in part or in whole from the 
proceeds of Bonds shall have been completed, or when for any other reason amounts on deposit in a particular 
Account within the Construction Fund are no longer needed to pay for the Cost of one or more Projects for 
which it was established, written notice thereof shall be promptly given to the Trustee by a certificate of an 
Authorized Officer. Any such notice with respect to the completion of a Project shall state the date of 
completion of the Project, the cost of the Project and the amount, if any, to be reserved for the payment of any 
remaining part of the Cost of the Project and the Cost of other Projects to be paid from such Account, and shall 
be accompanied by a Counsel's Opinion to the effect that there are no uncancelled mechanics', laborers', 
contractors' or materialmen's liens on any property pertaining to the Project in existence or on file in any public 
office where the same should be filed in order to be valid liens against any part of such property, and that, in 
the opinion of the signer, the time within which such liens can be created or filed has expired.  
 
 Upon receipt of such notice and, if applicable, such Counsel's Opinion, the balance in the applicable 
Account within the Construction Fund, not reserved by the Authority for the payment of any remaining part of 
the Cost of the Project or Projects, shall be withdrawn by the Trustee and applied or deposited as follows: (a) 
at the Authority's request, as set forth in such certificate, deposited in the amount set forth in such certificate to 
the credit of any other Account or Accounts existing within the Construction Fund for one or more Projects 
(including such an Account established simultaneously with the giving of such notice) which the applicable 
Series of Bonds was issued to finance, if the Authority shall by a certificate of an Authorized Officer certify 
that the amounts then on deposit in such other Account or Accounts are not sufficient to pay in full the 
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projected costs of the applicable Project or Projects and if such certificate is accompanied by an opinion of 
bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that such deposit of such moneys is permitted by the Enabling Act 
and will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes; (b) deposited or applied in the amounts and for the purposes as otherwise set forth in such 
certificate, provided that such certificate is accompanied by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the 
effect that the deposit or application of such moneys as provided in such certificate is permitted by the 
Enabling Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes; and (c) so much thereof as is not deposited pursuant to (a) or (b) shall be 
deposited to the credit of the Optional Redemption Account. 
 
Revenue Fund 

 
 All Revenues received by the Trustee shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund immediately upon 
receipt by the Trustee; provided, however, that Revenues designated in writing by an Authorized Officer to be 
applied to Current Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses or Section 19C Payments may be 
deposited in any account of the Authority designated in writing by such Authorized Officer.  The moneys in 
the Revenue Fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust and applied as provided below and, pending such 
application, so much thereof as is not held for Current Expenses or reserves therefor, Maintenance Repair and 
Operating Expenses or reserves therefor or Section 19C Payments or reserves therefor shall be subject to a lien 
and charge in favor of the Registered Owners of the Bonds issued and Outstanding under the Agreement.  
 
 Payments from the Revenue Fund shall be made at any time for Current Expenses, Maintenance, 
Repair and Operating Expenses or Section 19C Payments pursuant to requisitions as provided in the 
Agreement.  
 
 On the fifteenth day of each month (or if such fifteenth day is not a business day, on the next 
succeeding business day), and again on the last business day of each month preceding an Interest Payment 
Date, and on each other date provided in any Series Resolution, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Revenue 
Fund all moneys held for the credit of the Revenue Fund on the day of such withdrawal in excess of the 
amount required on the date of such withdrawal as a reserve for Current Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and 
Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments. The amount so required as a reserve for Current Expenses, 
Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments shall be as directed by the Authority 
but not more than the excess of (a) the amount stated in the then current Annual Schedule for such Current 
Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments filed by the Authority with 
the Trustee as described below in “Particular Covenants - Annual Schedule of Projected Expenses,” over (b) 
the aggregate of the payments made by the Trustee from the Revenue Fund on account of such amounts during 
the period commencing with the July 1 next preceding the applicable withdrawal pursuant to the preceding 
sentence and ending with the last day of the month preceding such withdrawal.   
 
 The Trustee shall deposit the moneys withdrawn from the Revenue Fund as aforesaid to the credit of 
the Accounts and Funds as follows:  
 
 first, with respect to the Senior Bonds, in the following order of priority:  
 
  (a) to the credit of the subaccount established for Senior Bonds in the Interest Account in the 
Debt Service Fund so much, or the whole if required, of the moneys so withdrawn from the Revenue Fund, 
until the amount on the deposit in the such subaccount, plus any amount to be withdrawn from any 
Construction Fund as described above in the last paragraph in “Construction Fund” and deposited in such 
subaccount to be applied to the payment of interest due on any Series of Senior Bonds on the next following 
Interest Payment Date, shall equal (i) the interest payable on such Interest Payment Date on all Senior Bonds 
then Outstanding and (ii) the aggregate of all other amounts, if any, required to be on deposit in such 
subaccount on such Interest Payment Date by each Series Resolution containing such a requirement applicable 
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to Outstanding Senior Bonds; provided, however, that no deposit need be made to the credit of such 
subaccount with respect to any amount of such interest payable pursuant to a Derivative;  
 
  (b) to the credit of the subaccount established for Senior Bonds in the Principal Account in 
the Debt Service Fund so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of the moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund until the amount on deposit in such subaccount, (a) if the withdrawal is made during a six-
month period next preceding a November 1, shall equal (i) the aggregate principal amount of Senior Bonds 
maturing on such November 1, plus (ii) one-half of the aggregate principal amount of Senior Bonds maturing 
on the next May 1, plus (iii) the aggregate of all other amounts, if any, required to be on deposit in such 
subaccount on such November 1 by each Series Resolution containing such a requirement applicable to 
Outstanding Senior Bonds, or (b) if the withdrawal is made during a six-month period preceding a May 1, shall 
equal (i) the aggregate principal amount of Senior Bonds maturing on such May 1, plus (ii) one-half of the 
aggregate principal amount of Senior Bonds maturing on the next November 1, plus (iii) the aggregate of all 
other amounts, if any, required to be on deposit in such subaccount on such May 1 by each Series Resolution 
continuing such a requirement applicable to Outstanding Senior Bonds;  
 
  (c) To the credit of the subaccount established for Senior Bonds in the Sinking Fund Account 
in the Debt Service Fund so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund until the amount, determined after taking into account as provided in the Agreement the 
principal amount of Term Bonds constituting Senior Bonds theretofore purchased, on deposit to the credit of 
such subaccount, (a) if the withdrawal is made during a six-month period next preceding a November 1, shall 
equal (i) the Sinking Fund Installments on Senior Bonds due on such November 1, plus (ii) one-half of the 
Sinking Fund Installments on Senior bonds due on the next May 1, plus (iii) the aggregate of all other 
amounts, if any required to be on deposit in such subaccount on such November 1, by each Series Resolution 
continuing such a requirement applicable to Outstanding Senior Bonds, or (b) if the withdrawal is made during 
a six-month period preceding a May 1, shall equal (i) the Sinking Fund Installments of Senior Bonds due on 
such May 1, plus (ii) one-half of the Sinking Fund Installments due on Senior Bonds on the next November 1, 
plus (iii) the aggregate of all other amounts, if any, required to be on deposit in such subaccount on such May 
1 by each Series Resolution continuing such a requirement applicable to Outstanding Senior Bonds;  
 
  (d) in each calendar year commencing with the first full calendar year succeeding the calendar 
year in which the first Series of Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds shall be issued under the 
Agreement, to the credit of the Section 10 Reserve Fund so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of 
the moneys so withdrawn from the Revenue Fund until the amount withdrawn and deposited to the credit of 
the Section 10 Reserve Fund in such calendar year shall equal the aggregate of the Annual Series 
Requirements in effect for such calendar year in respect of all Series of Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior 
Bonds Outstanding on the first day of such calendar year, plus, or, at the option of the Authority, minus, as the 
case may be, the deficiency or excess of the amount on deposit to the credit of the Section 10 Reserve Fund on 
the first day of such calendar year, including in such amount interest accrued but unpaid on Investment 
Obligations in which such amount may then be invested, under or over the aggregate of all Annual Series 
Requirements in effect for prior calendar years in respect of such Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds. 
No deposit need be made with respect to any Annual Series Requirement or portion thereof deposited pursuant 
to the applicable Series Resolution out of the proceeds of a Series of Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior 
Bonds. If there shall have been any prior application of moneys held in the Section 10 Reserve Fund to the 
payment of principal of or Sinking Fund Installments or interest on Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior 
Bonds, the amount of any deficiency in the amount thereafter on deposit to the credit of the Section 10 Reserve 
Fund resulting from such application shall be taken into account in computing the amount required to be 
deposited to the credit of the Section 10 Reserve Fund in any calendar year thereafter only to the extent that it 
is, in the judgment of the Authority, practicable to do so.  The Annual Series Requirement as to any Series of 
Guaranteed Bonds shall be in effect for and only for the twelve calendar years next succeeding the calendar 
year in which Guaranteed Bonds of such Series were initially issued; for each calendar year thereafter on the 
first day of which Guaranteed Bonds of such Series shall be Outstanding, the aggregate of such prior Annual 
Series Requirements shall be included in the measure of the amount required to be on deposit to the credit of 
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the Section 10 Reserve Fund with respect to such calendar year but no additional deposit shall be required with 
respect to such prior Annual Series Requirements except as may be required to restore any deficiency as 
aforesaid. If on the first day of any calendar year the amount on deposit in the Section 10 Reserve Fund equals 
or exceeds the sum of (i) the aggregate of all Annual Series Requirements in effect for prior calendar years, 
plus (ii) the Annual Series Requirements for such calendar year, in each case in respect of all Series of 
Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds of which Guaranteed Bonds are Outstanding, no deposit need be 
made under this clause (d) with respect to Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds;  
 
  (e) pro rata. to the credit of each Debt Service Reserve Fund securing Senior Bonds and each 
Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund securing Senior Bonds, (i) with respect to amounts other than 
amounts to replenish any withdrawal made for the payment of principal or Redemption Price of or interest on 
any Senior Bonds, so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of the moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund until the amount deposited in each thereof in the fiscal year in which the applicable withdrawal 
from the Revenue Fund is made equals the amount, if any, required to be so deposited in such fiscal year by 
the one or more applicable Series Resolutions, and (ii) with respect to amounts to replenish any withdrawal 
made from any thereof for the payment of principal or Redemption Price of or Interest on any Senior Bonds, so 
much, or the whole if required, of the balance of the moneys so withdrawn from the Revenue Fund, until the 
amount on deposit in each thereof from which any withdrawal for such purpose has been made, equals the 
applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement or Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Requirement, as the case 
may be, of each thereof;  
 
 second, with respect to the Bonds, if any, of all Subordinate Series Level 2 (“Level 2 Bonds”), in the 
order of priority provided in first above (except that in depositing moneys under this second, the term “Level 2 
Bonds” shall be substituted for the term “Senior Bonds” in first above; and  
 
 third, with respect to the Bonds, if any, of all Subordinate Series Level 3 (“Level 3 Bonds”), in the 
order of priority provided in first above (except that in depositing moneys under this third, the term “Level 3 
Bonds” shall be substituted for the term “Senior Bonds” in first above;  
 
 and so on for the Bonds, if any, of each other Subordinate Series, in descending order, (i.e.. 
Subordinate Series Level 4, and then Subordinate Series Level 5 and so on), substituting in each case the 
appropriate designation of the Bonds (e.g.. “Level 4 Bonds” or “Level 5 Bonds”) on account of which the 
deposit is being made for the term “Senior Bonds” in first above.  
 
 After deposits have been so made with respect to all Series of Bonds issued under the Agreement as 
provided above, the balance of moneys, if any, withdrawn from the Revenue Fund as aforesaid shall be 
deposited to the credit of the following Funds and Accounts in the following order of priority;  
 
  (f) so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund, to the credit of such Account or Accounts in the Property Fund as may have been established 
for any reserve or reserves mentioned below in clause (d) in “Particular Covenants - Rate Covenant,” pro rata. 
until the amount deposited in each such Account in the fiscal year in which the applicable withdrawal is made 
from the Revenue Fund equals the amount, if any, set forth in a certificate of an Authorized Officer to be 
deposited in such Account or Accounts during such fiscal year;  
 
  (g) so much, or the whole if required, of the balance of moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund, to the credit of each other Account in the Property Fund (other than the Multi-Purpose Reserve 
Account), pro rata. until the amount on deposit in each such Account in the fiscal year in which the applicable 
withdrawal is made from the Revenue Fund equals the amount, if any, set forth in a certificate of an 
Authorized Officer to be on deposit in such Account during such fiscal year;  
 
  (h) so much, or the whole, if required, of the balance of the moneys so withdrawn from the 
Revenue Fund, to the credit of the Multi-Purpose Reserve Account, until the amount deposited in such 
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Account in the fiscal year in which the applicable withdrawal is made from the Revenue Fund equals the 
amount, if any, set forth in a certificate of an Authorized Officer to be deposited in such Account during such 
fiscal year; provided, that the Authority may also deposit in the Multi-Purpose Reserve Account from time to 
time any other moneys of the Authority not required to be otherwise deposited; 
 
  (i) to the credit of the Rate Stabilization Fund, so much, or the whole if required, of the 
balance of moneys so withdrawn from the Revenue Fund as may be specified from time to time in a certificate 
of an Authorized Officer; and  
 
  (j) the remainder, if any, to the credit of the Optional Redemption Account. 
 
Debt Service Fund 

 
 The moneys in each Account in the Debt Service Fund shall be held in trust and applied as provided in 
the Agreement and in the applicable Series Resolution and, pending such application, are pledged to, and shall 
be subject to a lien and charge in favor of, the Registered Owners of the Bonds issued and Outstanding under 
the Agreement.  The Trustee shall apply the moneys held from time to time for the credit of the Accounts in 
the Debt Service Fund as follows:  
 
  (a) as to moneys held in each subaccount in the Interest Account, to the payment of interest 
on the Bonds with respect to which the applicable subaccount was established, on or after the date when due to 
each Registered Owner of such Bonds as of the applicable Record Date or Special Record Date, as such 
interest becomes due and payable;  
 
  (b) as to moneys held in each subaccount in the Principal Account, to the payment, on or after 
the date when due, of the principal of all matured Bonds with respect to which the applicable subaccount was 
established;  
 
  (c) as to moneys held in each subaccount in the Sinking Fund Account, to the application on 
the due date of each Sinking Fund Installment to the redemption of the Term Bonds with respect to which the 
applicable subaccount was established, to the extent the same are then subject to redemption by application of 
Sinking Fund Installments, in the manner provided by the applicable Series Resolution and the Agreement; and  
   
  (d) as to moneys held in the Optional Redemption Account, to the redemption or purchase of 
Bonds as provided below.  
 
 The Trustee upon the written direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority shall apply moneys 
held in any subaccount in the Sinking Fund Account to the purchase of Term Bonds with respect to which the 
applicable subaccount was established whenever such Bonds may, with reasonable diligence, be purchasable at 
prices not exceeding the Redemption Price payable for such Bonds on the next Sinking Fund Installment due 
date for such Bonds; provided, however, that no such purchase shall be made within the period of forty-five 
(45) days next preceding the next Sinking Fund Installment due date for such Bonds.   
 
 The Trustee upon the written direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority shall also apply 
moneys held in the Optional Redemption Account to the purchase, arranged as is mutually agreeable to the 
Trustee and the Authority, of Bonds then Outstanding at a price not to exceed (a) the Redemption Price 
payable to the holders of such Bonds on the next redemption date if such Bonds shall have been called for 
redemption on such date, or, (b) if such Bonds have not been called for redemption on such date, (i) the 
Redemption Price applicable on such date to Bonds subject to optional redemption on such date, and (ii) as to 
Bonds not subject to optional redemption on such date, the Redemption Price applicable to such Bonds on the 
first date such Bonds are subject to optional redemption.  
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 Notwithstanding the foregoing provision, no such purchase shall be made at any time when the 
amounts on deposit to the credit of the Interest Account, the Principal Account and the Sinking Fund Account 
are less then the amounts then respectively required to be on deposit therein, and provided further, that no such 
purchase of any Term Bond shall be made within the period of forty-five (45) days next preceding the next 
Sinking Fund Installment due date with respect to such Term Bond and no such purchase of any other Bond 
shall be made within the period of ten (10) days next preceding any date upon which notice of redemption of 
such Bonds is scheduled to be mailed.   
 
 The principal amount of all Term Bonds purchased as aforesaid shall be deemed to constitute deposits 
in the applicable subaccount in the Sinking Fund Account and shall be applied, first, against the amounts of 
such Sinking Fund Installments with respect to such Term Bonds theretofore due and not paid as the Authority 
shall designate by a certificate of an Authorized Officer, and second, against one or more such Sinking Fund 
Installments (including any portion of any such Sinking Fund Installment) not yet due as the Authority shall 
designate by a certificate of an Authorized Officer.  
 
 If a Series Resolution shall provide for the redemption at the option of the Authority of any Series of 
Bonds authorized thereunder, and if at any time on or after the earliest date specified in such Series Resolution 
for such redemption the amounts on deposit to the credit of the Interest Account, the Principal Account and the 
Sinking Fund Account shall be equal to or greater than the amounts then respectively required to be so on 
deposit with respect to any Series of which Bonds will be redeemed, and if the moneys held in the Optional 
Redemption Account shall equal or exceed (a) the Redemption Price of all Bonds theretofore called for 
redemption and not redeemed, plus (b) the Redemption Price payable at the next redemption date of Bonds in 
the aggregate principal amount or Accreted Amount equal to not less than the smallest authorized 
denomination of the Bonds subject to redemption, plus (c) all necessary and proper expenses to be incurred in 
connection with the redemption of Bonds on such date, the Trustee shall, if the Authority shall so direct by 
Certificate of an Authorized Officer (which certificate shall set forth the Series, maturities and principal 
amounts or Accreted Amounts of each maturity of the Bonds to be redeemed), call Bonds as set forth in such 
certificate for redemption on the next available redemption date; provided, however, that the aggregate 
principal amount and Accreted Amount of Bonds to be redeemed set forth in such certificate shall not be 
greater than the aggregate principal amount and Accreted Amount which will most nearly exhaust the moneys 
so held in the Optional Redemption Account; and provided further that Bonds shall not be designated for 
redemption in such certificate unless such Bonds are subject to redemption on the applicable redemption date. 
Such call and the redemption of Bonds and portions of Bonds so called shall be made pursuant to the 
provisions of the Agreement.  
 
 Interest on Bonds redeemed from moneys in the Optional Redemption Account shall be paid from 
moneys on deposit in the applicable subaccount in the Interest Account.  
 
 If on the date for application of moneys held in the Principal Account or in the Sinking Fund Account, 
the moneys so held are less then the amount required for application under whichever applies of clauses (b) or 
(c) of the first paragraph above in “Debt Service Fund,” or if by a Certificate of an Authorized Officer the 
Authority directs that some or all of the moneys in the Optional Redemption Account be applied to the 
payment of principal or Sinking Fund Installments due on the Bonds, the Trustee shall apply moneys then held 
in the Optional Redemption Account (except such moneys as to which notice of redemption has already been 
given) by transfer to the Principal Account or to the Sinking Fund Account, as the case may be, to the extent of 
the deficiency therein or as directed by such certificate, whichever is applicable; provided that bond counsel to 
the Authority delivers an opinion to the effect that such application of such moneys is permitted by the 
Enabling Act and will not jeopardize the exclusion of interest or the Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  
 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, if and to the extent permitted by the applicable 
Series Resolution, (a) moneys in any subaccount in the Interest Account, Principal Account or Sinking Fund 
Account may be applied to reimburse the issuer of a Credit Facility for amounts received by the Trustee 
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pursuant to such Credit Facility to be applied to the payment of, respectively, interest on, principal of or any 
Sinking Fund Installment on the Bonds for which subaccount was established or to pay any amount due from 
or on account of the Authority under a Derivative for payments made pursuant to such Derivative to be applied 
to the payment of, respectively, interest on, principal of or any Sinking Fund Installment on the Bonds for 
which such subaccount was established, and (b) moneys in the Optional Redemption Account may be applied 
to reimburse the issuer of a Credit Facility for amounts received by the Trustee pursuant to such Credit Facility 
to be applied to the payment of all or any potion of the Redemption Price of Bonds redeemed on account of 
moneys in the Optional Redemption Account or to pay any amounts due from or on account of the Authority 
under any Derivative for payments pursuant to such Derivative to be applied to the payment of all or any 
portion of the Redemption Price of bonds redeemed on account of moneys in the Optional Redemption 
Account. 
 
Section 10 Reserve Fund; Other Reserve Funds; Moneys Received Pursuant to the Commonwealth Guaranty 

or a Credit Facility; Pledged Funds  

 
 (a) The moneys in the Section 10 Reserve Fund shall be held in trust and applied as provided 
below and, pending such application, are pledged to, and shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of, the 
Registered Owners of the Guaranteed Bonds Outstanding.   
 
 The Trustee shall apply the moneys held from time to time for the credit of the Section 10 Reserve 
Fund to the payment to the appropriate subaccount in the Debt Service Fund of an amount equal to the excess 
of (a) the aggregate of amounts required at any Interest Payment Date to pay interest then due on Guaranteed 
Bonds and, if such date is also a maturity date or a Sinking Fund Installment due date for any Guaranteed 
Bonds, the principal of all such Guaranteed Bonds then matured or the amount of the Sinking Fund Installment 
then due with respect to Guaranteed Bonds, as the case may be, over (b) moneys then held for the credit of the 
appropriate subaccount or subaccounts in the Debt Service Fund, after any transfer thereto from the Optional 
Redemption Account, or from the Property Fund or from the Rate Stabilization Fund or from all of the 
foregoing, and available for the payment of such interest, principal or Sinking Fund Installment, respectively. 
If moneys in the Section 10 Reserve Fund are insufficient to pay in full the amounts specified above, such 
moneys shall be paid, first, to Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds, and second to Guaranteed Bonds 
constituting Level 2 Bonds, and third to Guaranteed Bonds constituting Level 3 Bonds, and so on in 
descending level of subordination. If moneys in the Section 10 Reserve Fund are insufficient to pay in full the 
amounts to be paid with respect to all Guaranteed Bonds constituting Senior Bonds, or all Guaranteed Bonds 
of any applicable level of subordination, such moneys shall be applied to all Guaranteed Bonds of all Senior 
Series or all Guaranteed Bonds of all Series of the applicable level of subordination, as the case may be, as 
described below in “Defaults; Remedies - Application of Funds.”  
 
 If on the first day of any calendar year or at any other time the amount on deposit in the Section 10 
Reserve Fund exceeds the aggregate of the Annual Series Requirements for the present year and all prior years 
with respect to all Guaranteed Bonds Outstanding, the Authority may by a certificate of an Authorized Officer 
direct that all or a portion of such excess (other than any part of such excess consisting of interest received and 
profits realized in excess of losses from investments of moneys held in the Section 10 Reserve Fund, which 
shall be applied as described below in “Security for Deposits and Investments of Funds - Investments”) be 
withdrawn from the Section 10 Reserve Fund and deposited in the Revenue Fund to be applied to the payment 
of interest coming due in such year on such Guaranteed Bonds, provided that such certificate is accompanied 
by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority that such application or payment is permitted by applicable law 
and will not adversely affect the exemption from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest 
on the Bonds.  
 
 At any time when the amount on deposit in the Section 10 Reserve Fund equals or exceeds (a) the 
aggregate of the twelve Annual Series Requirements to be in effect with respect to any particular Series of 
Guaranteed Bonds of which Bonds are then Outstanding plus (b) all Annual Series Requirements in effect for 
all prior years and for the then current year with respect to all Series of Guaranteed Bonds of which Bonds are 
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Outstanding, and when such aggregate plus any other moneys held under the Agreement available for the 
purpose shall equal or exceed the aggregate amount required to pay in full the principal and Redemption Price 
of and interest on all Bonds of such particular Series then Outstanding (and, if the Bonds of such particular 
Series are to be redeemed, the necessary and proper expenses to be incurred in connection with such 
redemption), the Authority may by a certificate of an Authorized Officer direct the Trustee to apply to such 
payment an amount from the Section 10 Reserve Fund not exceeding such aggregate; provided, however that 
moneys “available for the purpose” as such phrase is used above in this paragraph shall mean, (x) as to moneys 
in the subaccounts applicable to such particular Series in the Interest Account, Principal Account and Sinking 
Fund Account, moneys in excess of the amount then required to be on deposit in each of such subaccounts 
with respect to all outstanding Guaranteed Bonds to which such subaccounts apply other than Guaranteed 
Bonds of such particular Series and (y) as to moneys in the Optional Redemption Account, any Account in the 
Property Fund and the Rate Stabilization Fund, moneys in any such Fund or Account described in a Certificate 
of an Authorized Officer to be so applied (such direction to be in accordance with the provisions of the 
Agreement with respect to the use of the moneys in any such Fund, Account or subaccount).  
 
 All deposits to the Section 10 Reserve Fund shall be apportioned if directed by a certificate of an 
Authorized Officer to separate Accounts to be created therein, one account for each Series of Guaranteed 
Bonds Outstanding (the “Section 10 Series Accounts”), for purposes of compliance by the Authority with the 
Code and to such subaccounts, as so directed, as are necessary or desirable to comply with the Code.  The 
portion of each deposit attributed to the Account of a particular Series will be the proportion of the total 
deposit that the Annual Series Requirement for such Series bears to the aggregate Annual Series Requirements 
for all Series of Guaranteed Bonds of the same level (i.e., Senior Bonds, Subordinate Series Level 2, etc.).  
 
 Any withdrawal from the Section 10 Reserve Fund shall be made in portions taken from all Section 10 
Series Accounts in such proportion from each such Account as each such Account bears to the total balance of 
the Section 10 Reserve Fund prior to the making of such withdrawal, unless otherwise directed by a certificate 
of an Authorized Officer accompanied by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that the 
instructions for withdrawal set forth in such certificate will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 
income for federal tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds.  
 
 (b) Moneys in any Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund shall 
be applied as set forth in the one or more applicable Series Resolutions.  
 
 (c)  Moneys received pursuant to the Commonwealth Guaranty shall be held in a separate 
Account and applied as promptly as practicable to the payment of principal and interest due on the Guaranteed 
Bonds on account of which such moneys were received.  
 
 (d) Moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to a Credit Facility shall be held in a separate 
Account and shall be applied as provided in the one or more applicable Series Resolutions or in such Credit 
Facility.  
 
 (e) Pledged Funds received by the Trustee shall be held in a separate Account and applied as 
provided in the one or more applicable Series Resolutions. 
 
Property Fund 

 
 In addition to the Accounts and subaccounts established in the Property Fund described above in 
“Funds and Accounts,” the Agreement establishes and authorizes to be established Accounts in the Property 
Fund for such reserves as the Authority may establish as described below in clause (d) in “Particular 
Covenants - Rate Covenant.” Subject to the following paragraph, the Trustee shall credit all moneys deposited 
in the Property Fund to such Account therein (or, as to the Capital Improvements Reserve Account, to such 
subaccount or subaccounts therein) as the Authority may by certificate of an Authorized Officer direct and, in 
the absence of such a certificate, to the General Account.   
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 The Trustee shall deposit in the Insurance Proceeds Account all proceeds of an insurance policy or 
policies upon any Project paid by reason of any insured casualty, except that if the Project to which the 
proceeds apply has not yet reached completion, such proceeds shall be deposited to the related Account of the 
Construction Fund; provided, that any such proceeds which are proceeds of “use or occupancy” insurance, so-
called, or any other insurance providing for payments in place of income or for operating expenses, in either 
case as certified by an Authorized Officer, shall be deemed Revenues and be deposited to the credit of the 
Revenue Fund.   
 
 The moneys held in each Account in the Property Fund shall be held in trust and applied as provided 
below and, pending such application, are pledged to, and shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of, the 
Registered Owners of the Bonds issued and Outstanding under the Agreement.   
 
 The Trustee shall apply the moneys held from time to time for the credit of each Account in the 
Property Fund as follows:  
 
  (a) as to any Account created for a reserve as described below in clause (d) in “Particular 
Covenants - Rate Covenants,” to the payment from time to time of amounts as provided by the pertinent 
resolution of the Authority and for the purposes therein provided in accordance with a certificate of an 
Authorized Officer;  
 
  (b) as to the General Account, to the payment from time to time as deemed appropriate by the 
Authority of Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses of any Project not otherwise provided for;  
 
  (c) as to the Insurance Proceeds Account, to payment, in accordance with the provisions 
described below in “Particular Covenants - Insurance on Projects,” for the repair, restoration or reconstruction 
of the damage or destruction on account of which the funds were received, or for the doing of such other work 
in respect of such Project as the Authority may determine in accordance with the provisions described below 
under “Particular Covenants - Insurance on Projects”;  
 
  (d) as to any subaccount in the Capital Improvements Reserve Account, to the payment from 
time to time of the costs of capital improvements or capital repairs with respect to any Project to which the 
applicable subaccount pertains;  
 
  (e) as to the Multi-Purpose Reserve Account, to any lawful purpose for which the Authority 
may expend funds (and the Trustee may rely on a statement to such effect in the certificate of an Authorized 
Officer directing such application that the amounts set forth in such certificate will be so applied); 
 
  (f) to the extent of moneys so held in any Account in the Property Fund which are not the 
proceeds of any insurance policy or policies or investment earnings on such proceeds, to transfer to any one or 
more subaccounts in the Interest Account, the Principal Account or the Sinking Fund Account, one or more, as 
the case may be, in the Debt Service Fund if and to the extent that moneys held in any such subaccount on a 
date for application thereof, together with money available in the Rate Stabilization Fund, shall be less than the 
amount then required for application from such subaccount; and  
 
  (g) to the extent of moneys so held in any Account in the Property Fund which are not the 
proceeds of any insurance policy or policies or investment earnings on such proceeds, to the redemption of 
Bonds as may be directed from time to time by a certificate of an Authorized Officer.   
 
 The Authority may, by a certificate of an Authorized Officer approved by the University Trustees and 
accompanied by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that the instructions in such 
certificate are permitted by the Enabling Act and will not adversely affect the exclusion of the interest on the 
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, direct that amounts be transferred from any one or 
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more subaccounts in the Capital Improvements Reserve Account to any other one or more subaccounts in the 
Capital Improvements Reserve Account or to one or more Capital Improvements Reserve Accounts or like 
accounts (or, if applicable, one or more subaccounts in any such Capital Improvements Reserve Account or 
like account) established under any other trust agreement under which the Authority has issued bonds). 
 
Rate Stabilization Fund 

 
 Amounts shall be deposited in the Rate Stabilization Fund from the Revenue Fund in the Authority's 
discretion as provided in the Agreement in order to minimize the variation over time in the fees, rents, rates 
and other charges fixed in accordance with the provisions described below in “Particular Covenants — Rate 
Covenant.” At any time, upon the direction of the Authority as evidenced by a Certificate of an Authorized 
Officer, amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund may be withdrawn and deposited in the Revenue 
Fund or applied to the redemption of Bonds.  
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if at any time the amounts on deposit and available therefor 
in the Debt Service Fund are insufficient to pay the principal and Redemption Price of and interest on the 
Bonds then due, the Trustee shall withdraw from the Rate Stabilization Fund and deposit in the appropriate 
subaccount within the Debt Service Fund the amount necessary to meet such deficiency. 
 
Rebate Fund 

 
 For each Series of Bonds subject to the rebate requirements of the Code, there shall be established 
within the Rebate Fund a separate account, for the benefit of the United States of America, and such 
subaccounts therein as are provided in the applicable Series Resolution, as amended from time to time, or as 
may be directed by a certificate of an Authorized Officer.  
 
 The Trustee shall deposit in the applicable account in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required 
pursuant to such Series Resolution, invest the same as set forth therein, and keep such records as shall enable 
the Authority to satisfy its rebate obligations for such Series under the Code.  The Authority shall direct the 
Trustee to pay to the United States from the Rebate Fund on the Authority's behalf such amounts as are 
required to be paid pursuant to the Code, all as set forth in the applicable Series Resolution, provided that any 
deficiency in the amounts required to be deposited into the Rebate Fund, or in any required payment from the 
Rebate Fund to the United States, shall be made up by the Authority, and provided further that no amount in 
the Rebate Fund shall be paid to the Authority or transferred to any other Fund or Account except as permitted 
by the Agreement, the Series Resolution and the Code.  
 
 The provisions described in this paragraph, as modified by the applicable Series Resolution, shall 
survive the defeasance of the Agreement, or of any Series of Bonds to which such provisions apply, and such 
provisions and the provisions pertaining to rebate in any Series Resolution shall be subject to amendment 
without the consent of any Registered Owner to reflect any applicable amendment to the Code with respect to 
rebate.  
 

SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS OF FUNDS 
 
Deposits with Trustee 

 
 All moneys deposited under the Agreement with the Trustee shall be held in trust and applied in 
accordance with the provisions of the Agreement, and shall not be subject to lien or attachment by any creditor 
of the Authority or the Trustee.  
 
 All moneys deposited with the Trustee under the Agreement shall be continuously secured, for the 
benefit of the Authority and the Registered Owners of the Bonds in such manner as may then be required or 
permitted by applicable state or federal laws and regulations regarding the security for, or granting a preference 



 

 

D-26 

in the case of, the deposit of trust funds; provided, however, that it shall not be necessary for the Trustee to 
give security for any moneys which shall be invested in Investment Obligations.  
 
 All moneys deposited with the Trustee shall be credited to the particular Fund, Account or subaccount 
to which such moneys belong.  
 
Investments  

 
 Moneys held for the credit of the Note Payment Fund shall, as nearly as may be practicable, be 
continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Obligations which shall mature, or which 
shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, not later than the day or days 
preceding the date or dates of payment of the notes for the payment of which such moneys in the Note 
Payment Fund are held.  
 
 Moneys held for the credit of each Account within the Construction Fund shall, as nearly as may be 
practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Obligations which shall 
mature, or which shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, not later 
than the respective dates as set forth in a schedule furnished by an Authorized Officer of the Authority to the 
Trustee at the time moneys are first deposited in such Account, as such schedule may thereafter be amended, 
when moneys held for the credit of such Account will be required for the purposes intended.  
 
 Moneys held for the credit of the Revenue Fund shall, as nearly as may be practicable, be 
continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Obligations which shall mature, or which 
shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, as to moneys not in excess of 
the amount then required as the reserve for Current Expenses, not later than the day or days preceding the date 
or dates upon which moneys are to be applied to the payment of Current Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and 
Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments as set forth in a schedule filed by the Authority with the 
Trustee, or, as to moneys held in the Revenue Fund and to be transferred to other Funds, Accounts and 
subaccounts as described above in “Establishment and Application of Funds and Accounts - Revenue Fund,” 
not later than the day preceding the date of such transfer.  
 
 Moneys held for the credit of each subaccount in the Debt Service Fund shall, as nearly as may be 
practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Obligations which shall 
mature, or which shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holder thereof, as to moneys so held in any 
subaccount in the Interest Account in an amount not in excess of the amount payable as interest from such 
subaccount at the next Interest Payment Date, not later than the day prior to such Interest Payment Date, or, as 
to moneys so held in any subaccount in the Principal and Sinking Fund Accounts, in amounts not respectively 
in excess of the amount payable from such subaccount as principal of Bonds maturing at the next maturity date 
or of the amount of the Sinking Fund Installment next falling due, not later than the day prior to the date of 
such maturity or such due date, as the ease may be, or, as to other moneys, if any, so held, not later than twelve 
(12) months after the date of any such investment. 
 
 Moneys held for the credit of the Section 10 Reserve Fund and the Rate Stabilization Fund shall, as 
nearly as may be practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment 
Obligations, provided that amounts on deposit in the Section 10 Series Account for any Series of Outstanding 
Guaranteed Bonds, or in any subaccounts, shall not be invested in excess of the yield or yields as set forth in 
the investment instructions delivered to the Trustee from time to time by an Authorized Officer, except as 
permitted by an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that investments may be made at the 
yield or yields set forth in such opinion without adversely affecting the exclusion from gross income of the 
interest on such Series of Guaranteed Bonds or any other Bonds.  
 
 Moneys in any Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be 
invested as provided in the one or more applicable Series Resolutions.  
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 Moneys held for the credit of each Account or subaccount in the Property Fund shall, as nearly as may 
be practicable, be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee in Investment Obligations which shall 
mature, or which shall be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, on the dates 
specified from time to time in certificate of an Authorized Officer delivered to the Trustee.  
 
 Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement, the Authority may at any time deliver to the 
Trustee by a certificate of an Authorized Officer additional or different instructions from those set forth above 
regarding the investment of moneys held under the Agreement, provided that such instructions do not 
jeopardize the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on any Bond (as to 
which the Authority may rely on an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority), and provided that such 
additional or different instructions do not violate the requirements of the issuer of any Credit Facility with 
respect to the moneys to which such instructions apply. The Trustee shall comply with such instructions if (a) 
the Authority certifies in such certificate that such instructions do not jeopardize the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on any Bond; (b) no investment is directed to be made 
in any investments other than Investment Obligations; (c) the Authority certifies in such certificate that such 
instructions do not violate the requirements of the issuer of any Credit Facility with respect to the moneys to 
which such instructions apply; and (d) the Trustee's liability as set forth in the Agreement is not modified.  
 
 Investment Obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in any Fund, Account or subaccount 
may be purchased and held with Investment Obligations purchased as an investment of moneys in any other 
Fund, Account or subaccount as a part of a single investment fund but shall be deemed at all times to be a part 
of the Fund, Account or subaccount for which they were purchased, and the interest accruing thereon and any 
profit or loss realized from such investments shall be charged pro rate to each such Fund, Account or 
subaccount; provided, however, (a) that interest received and profits realized in excess of losses realized in any 
fiscal year from investments of moneys held in the Note Payment Fund shall be deemed to be proceeds of the 
corresponding Series of Bonds and, except to the extent provided in the Series Resolution authorizing the 
issuance of such Bonds to be applied to the payment of notes issued by the Authority, shall be transferred, 
upon the first to occur of (i) payment in full of the pertinent notes or (ii) the end of a fiscal year, to the 
corresponding Account within the Construction Fund, (b) that, subject to the provisions described above in 
“Establishment and Application of Funds and Accounts - Rebate Fund,” all such interest and profits from the 
investment of moneys held in Construction Fund Accounts shall be retained in such Accounts, (c) that, subject 
to the provisions described above in “Establishment and Application of Funds and Accounts - Rebate Fund,” 
all such interest and profits from the investment of moneys held in any Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-
Series Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be applied as provided in the one or more Series Resolutions 
governing the application of moneys held in the applicable Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-Series Debt 
Service Reserve Fund and (d) that, subject to the provisions described above in “Establishment and 
Application of Funds and Accounts - Rebate Fund,” such interest and profits from investments of moneys held 
in any other Fund, Account or subaccount, except as otherwise provided in a Series Resolution or in the 
Agreement, shall constitute Revenues and shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund. Such interest received and 
profits realized in excess of losses realized in any calendar year from investments of moneys held in the 
Section 10 Reserve Fund shall, subject to the provisions described above in “Establishment and Application of 
Funds and Accounts - Rebate Fund,” and if and only if the amount on deposit to the credit of the Section 10 
Reserve Fund on the first day of such calendar year (or on any other date of such calendar year if bond counsel 
to the Authority delivers an opinion to the effect that such is permitted by the Enabling Act) exceeds the 
aggregate of all Annual Series Requirements in effect for the Guaranteed Bonds then Outstanding for all 
calendar years through and including such calendar year, constitute Revenues to the extent of the amount of 
such excess and shall be transferred as received to the Revenue Fund to be applied to the payment of interest 
on Guaranteed Bonds, unless a certificate of an Authorized Officer directs that any such interest or profits be 
held in the Section 10 Reserve Fund. Interest and profits derived from the investment of moneys, which 
interest and profits are held in the Revenue Fund or which are not subject to being transferred thereto, shall, to 
the extent available, be deemed to be included among the amounts first requisitioned or otherwise withdrawn 
and expended from any Fund, Account or subaccount.  The Trustee shall sell at the best price obtainable or 
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present for redemption any obligations so purchased whenever it shall be necessary so to do in order to provide 
moneys to meet any payment or transfer from any such Fund, Account or subaccount. Neither the Trustee nor 
the Authority shall, in the absence of bad faith, be liable on account of or responsible for the results of any 
such investment.  
 
 In computing the amount in any Fund, Account or subaccount held by the Trustee under the 
Agreement, Investment Obligations shall be valued at par if purchased at par or at amortized value if 
purchased at other than par. Amortized value, when used with respect to an obligation purchased at a premium 
above or a discount below par, means the value as of any given time obtained by dividing the total premium or 
discount at which such obligation was purchased by the number of days remaining to maturity on such 
obligation at the date of such purchase and by multiplying the amount thus calculated by the number of days 
having passed since such purchase; and (1) in the case of an obligation purchased at a premium by deducting 
the product thus obtained from the purchase price; and (2) in the case of any obligation purchased at a discount 
by adding the product thus obtained to the purchase price. Valuation on any particular date shall include the 
amount of interest then earned or accrued to such date on any Investment Obligations. 
 
Investment Advice  

 
 The Authority shall direct all investments of moneys held under the Agreement, or the Authority may, 
at its expense, appoint as an investment adviser a person registered under the federal Investment Advisers Act 
of 1940 and having a favorable reputation for competence and experience in investing in Investment 
Obligations to instruct the Trustee with respect to investment and reinvestment of all or a portion of the 
moneys held under the Agreement.  The Trustee shall have no liability of any kind to the Authority, to any 
Registered Owner or to any other person for or on account of any investment transaction it shall carry out in 
accordance with investment instructions given as provided in the Agreement.  The Trustee may carry out all 
investment transactions through its own facilities. 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS 
 
Rate Covenant  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will establish and revise rules and regulations to insure the use and 
occupancy of, and will fix, revise, adjust and collect fees, rents, rates and other charges for the use of, each 
Project and of all Other Projects and other property of the Authority the Revenues from which are pledged 
under the Agreement, in such manner and at such levels as may be necessary so that the aggregate of (i) the 
proceeds from such fees, rents, rates and other charges for the use of all Projects, Other Projects and other 
property the Revenues from which are pledged under the Agreement, (ii) all other Revenues from such Project, 
Other Projects and property and (iii) all appropriations, contributions, gifts and grants received by the 
Authority or made for the benefit of the Authority or any such Project, Other Project or property and available 
and applied for the purpose, will provide Revenues sufficient in each fiscal year  
 
 (a) to pay the Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses of such Projects, Other Projects and 
property, provided, that in the case of a Project with respect to which a Contract is in effect that includes 
undertakings by the University Trustees respecting maintenance, repair and operation thereof, such 
undertakings shall be deemed to fulfill the covenant of the Authority as to the sufficiency of Revenues 
therefor;  
 
 (b) (i)  to provide for making deposits to the credit of the appropriate Accounts in the Debt Service 
Fund in amounts in such fiscal year equal in the aggregate to the total of (A) all interest becoming due and 
payable in such fiscal year on all Bonds then Outstanding, (B) the principal amount of all such Bonds maturing 
in such fiscal year, (C) the Sinking Fund Installments, if any, becoming due in such fiscal year in respect of all 
such Bonds and (D) other amounts, if any, payable in such fiscal year on the account of all such Bonds or 
required to be deposited in such Fiscal Year to any Account in the Debt Service Fund, and (ii) to provide for 
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the payment of the purchase price of Bonds tendered as provided in the one or more applicable Series 
Resolutions;  
 
 (c) to pay the Current Expenses of the Authority properly allocable to such Projects, Other 
Projects and property;  
 
 (d) to create and maintain such funds, accounts and reserves, if any, as may be provided for in 
any Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of Bonds or in a resolution thereafter adopted;  
 
 (e) to pay the amounts of any Section 19C Payments to be paid in such fiscal year; and  
 
 (f) to provide for making deposits to the credit of (i) the Section 10 Reserve Fund in amounts 
which, together with amounts deposited in the preceding fiscal year for such purpose or to be deposited in the 
subsequent fiscal year for such purpose will equal in the aggregate the reserve required by Section 10 of the 
Enabling Act to be established and maintained in such Fund in respect of each calendar year constituting a 
portion of such fiscal year and (ii) each Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-Series Debt Service Reserve Fund 
in amounts, if any, required by the one or more applicable Series Resolutions;  
 
except that  
 
 (g) as to any Project or Other Projects the Bonds or other indebtedness issued by the Authority to 
finance or refinance which shall have been paid or provided for in full, as described below in “Defeasance,” 
such Revenues need only be sufficient to pay the amounts required under clauses (a), (c), (d) and (e) above;  
 
and, so far as consistent with the foregoing requirements, so as to maintain reasonable uniformity of charges 
for like rooms or other accommodations, facilities and services at the University whether or not contained in or 
provided by a Project of the Authority.   
 
 The Authority covenants that if the amounts deposited to the credit of any Account in the Debt Service 
Fund, in the Section 10 Reserve Fund and any other reserve fund securing any Bonds in any fiscal year shall 
be less than the amounts respectively referred to above for such fiscal year, it will revise and adjust the 
aforesaid fees, rents, rates and other charges so as to provide funds sufficient, with all other moneys available 
for the purpose, to provide the payments and deposits specified above to be made from Revenues.  
 
 To the extent provided in the Enabling Act, any establishment or revision of said rules and regulations 
and any fixing, revision or adjustment of said fees, rents, rates or other charges by the Authority shall require 
the approval of the University Trustees, and the Authority covenants that it will use its best efforts to obtain 
such approval whenever required.  
 
Annual Schedule of Projected Expenses  

 
 The Authority shall file with the Trustee an annual schedule of projected expenses (the “Annual 
Schedule of Projected Expenses” or “Schedule”) as follows:  
 
 (a) With or before the first remittance to the Trustee of moneys to be deposited in the Revenue 
Fund, the Authority shall file with the Trustee an initial Schedule signed by an Authorized Officer setting forth 
the amount estimated by the Authority to be payable from the Revenue Fund as Current Expenses, 
Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments during the period commencing with 
the date thereof and ending on the next following June 30.  
 
 (b) On or before each June 15, commencing with the June 15 next preceding the end of the period 
covered by said initial Schedule, the Authority shall file with the Trustee a Schedule similarly signed setting 
forth the amount estimated by the Authority to be payable from the Revenue Fund as Current Expenses, 
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Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses and Section 20 Payments during the period commencing on the 
next following July 1 and ending twelve months thereafter.  
 
 (c) If at any time prior to June 30 in any period covered by the initial or any subsequent 
Schedule, as the same may have theretofore been amended, the aggregate of the amounts paid from the 
Revenue Fund since and including the next preceding July 1 as Current Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and 
operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments shall exceed the amount set forth in such Schedule, the 
Authority shall file an amended Schedule similarly signed increasing accordingly the estimated amount to be 
payable as Current Expenses, Maintenance, Repair and Operating Expenses and Section 19C Payments during 
the balance of such period. Each amended Schedule filed by the Authority under this clause shall supersede all 
initial, annual and amended Schedules filed prior thereto. 
 
Debt Service Payments and Payment of Purchase Price  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on every Bond and 
the purchase price of every Bond tendered as provided in the applicable Series Resolution at the place, on the 
dates and in the manner provided in the Agreement and in said Bond and Series Resolution, and any premium 
required for the retirement of said Bond by purchase or redemption, according to the true intent and meaning 
thereof. Except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, such principal, interest, purchase price and premium 
are payable solely from Revenues and Funds pledged under the Agreement.   
 
 The Authority covenants that it will perform and observe each and every agreement, condition, 
covenant and obligation on its part to be performed and observed under each Contract providing for the 
Commonwealth Guaranty to the end that the Commonwealth Guaranty therein provided and the pledge of the 
full faith and credit of the Commonwealth for such Commonwealth Guaranty shall remain in full force and 
effect and binding upon the Commonwealth as authorized by the Enabling Act and provided by such Contract, 
said Commonwealth Guaranty and pledge being evidenced by the guaranty executed on each applicable 
Guaranteed Bond by an officer of the University Trustees. 
 
Completion of Projects  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will with reasonable expedition complete each Project in conformity 
with law and all requirements of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction thereover.  The Authority 
further covenants that upon completion or occupancy of each Project financed by a Series of Bonds issued 
under the Agreement, if and to the extent that there is no obligation of the University Trustees under a Contract 
to undertake the operation and maintenance of any such Project, the Authority will thereafter operate and 
maintain, or otherwise provide for the operation and maintenance of, such Project.   
 
Land Covenant 

 
 (a) The Authority covenants that each Project constructed or acquired by it is or will be located 
on lands as to which either (i) the same are leased by the Authority from the Commonwealth for the purpose 
by a good and valid lease or leases continuing or renewable at the option of the Authority for a term not shorter 
than the last maturity of any Bond of the Series pertaining to such Project, or (ii) good and marketable title to 
which is owned by the Authority in fee simple or the right to use and occupy which is vested in the Authority 
by valid franchises, licenses, easements, rights of way or other rights expiring not earlier than the last maturity 
of any such Bond.   
 
 (b) The foregoing covenant shall not apply to a Project consisting of the construction, alteration, 
enlargement, reconstruction, rehabilitation, remodeling and other work on any building, structure or other 
facility (including without limitation parking lots) not owned or leased by the Authority as lessee or sublessee 
and not involving the acquisition of such building, structure or facility by the Authority. 
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Compliance with Contracts  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will perform and observe each and every agreement, condition, 
covenant and obligation on its part to be performed and observed under each Contract, and will use its best 
efforts to enforce like performance and observation on the part of the Commonwealth and the University 
Trustees, to the end that the obligation of the Commonwealth and the University Trustees thereunder, among 
other things, to remit to the Authority or to the Trustee Revenues, to operate and maintain the Project and to 
make necessary repairs to and restoration and reconstruction of the same shall continue in full force and effect.  
The Authority covenants that, from and to the extent of, but not in excess of, the Revenues of each Project 
owned by it and any other funds available to it for the purpose, it will cure any deficiencies in the maintenance 
of such Project and will make all necessary repairs, restoration and reconstruction not made by the 
Commonwealth pursuant to the applicable Contract and that it will observe and perform all of the terms and 
conditions contained in the Enabling Act. 
 
Payment of Lawful Charges  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will not create or suffer to be created any lien or charge upon any 
Project or any part thereof or upon the Revenues therefrom except the lien and charge upon such Revenues 
under the Agreement, and that, from the same or other available funds, it will pay or cause to be discharged, or 
will make adequate provision to satisfy and discharge, as promptly as possible after the same shall accrue, all 
lawful claims and demands for labor, materials, supplies or other objects which, if unpaid, might by law 
become a lien upon any Project or any part thereof or the Revenues therefrom; provided, however, that nothing 
in the foregoing provisions in this subsection shall (a) require the Authority to pay or cause to be discharged, 
or make provision for, any such lien or charge so long as the validity thereof shall be contested in good faith, 
or (b) prohibit (i) the University Trustees or the University from using any funds of the University in 
accordance with law and in compliance with any Contract or any other agreement applicable to the University 
Trustees or the University or (ii) the Expendable Fund Balance of the University from being used in 
accordance with law and in compliance with any Contract or any other agreement applicable to the University 
Trustees; and provided, further, that if on any date the Authority holds or there is held for the account of the 
Authority Revenues in excess of the Revenues required by the provisions described above in “Rate Covenant” 
for the remainder of the fiscal year in which such date occurs, the Authority may apply such excess to any 
lawful purpose of the Authority as the Authority may from time to time determine. 
 
Use of Other Funds for Projects; Sale of Projects 

 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, the Authority may permit the Commonwealth 
or any of its agencies, departments or political subdivisions, to pay the cost of maintaining, repairing and 
operating any Project out of funds other than Revenues of such Project whether pursuant to the pertinent 
Contract or otherwise.   
 
 The Authority may also, if and to the extent now or hereafter permitted by law, sell any Project owned 
by the Authority or any portion thereof; provided, that if such sale is of an entire Project, the proceeds 
therefrom shall be in an amount sufficient, with all other moneys then held by the Trustee hereunder and 
available for the purpose, (a) to pay or provide for the payment in full at the first date upon which such 
payment may be made of all amounts then required for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of 
and interest on the Bonds then Outstanding issued to finance or refinance the cost of such Project (and the 
determination of which Bonds of the applicable Series were so issued shall be made by the Authority in any 
reasonable manner if the Project was financed or refinanced by Bonds issued as part of a Series that financed 
or refinanced more than one Project and shall be evidenced to the Trustee by a certificate of an Authorized 
Officer) and (b) to pay all necessary and proper expenses payable in connection with such payment; provided, 
further, that if such sale is of a portion of a Project, the proceeds therefrom shall be an amount sufficient, with 
any other moneys then held by the Trustee under the Agreement and available for the purpose, (a) to pay or 
provide for the payment in full at the first date upon which such payment may be made of the principal or 
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Redemption Price of and interest on a principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding of the Series issued to 
finance or refinance the Cost of such Project bearing the same proportion to the principal amount of all such 
Bonds then Outstanding that (as reasonably determined by the Authority and evidenced to the Trustee by a 
Certificate of an Authorized Officer) the Cost of the portion of such Project to be sold bore to the Cost of the 
Project and (b) to pay all necessary and proper expenses payable in connection with such payment.  The 
proceeds of any such sale shall be deposited by the Authority with the Trustee and shall be deposited by the 
Trustee to the credit of the Optional Redemption Account. 
 
Insurance on Projects  

 
 The Authority covenants that (a) during the construction, alteration, enlargement, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation or remodeling of or other work upon each Project it will carry such builder's risk insurance, if 
any, as it may deem reasonable therefor, and (b) from and after the time when the contractors or any of them 
engaged in constructing any part of each Project shall cease to be responsible, pursuant to the provisions of the 
respective contracts for the construction of such part, for loss or damage to such part occurring from any cause, 
it will insure and at all times keep such part insured with a responsible insurance company or companies, 
qualified to assume the risk thereof, against physical loss or damage however caused, with such exemptions as 
are ordinarily required by insurers of buildings, structures or facilities of similar type and in similar locations, 
in such amount as it shall determine to be reasonable and in any event at least sufficient to comply with any 
legal or contractual requirement which, if breached, would result in assumption by the Authority of a portion 
of any loss or damage as a co-insurer; provided, however, that (i) if at any time the Authority shall be unable to 
obtain such insurance to the extent above required, either as to the amount of such insurance or as to the risks 
covered thereby, it will not constitute an event of default under the Agreement if the Authority shall maintain 
such insurance to the extent reasonably obtainable; (ii) such insurance may be provided by a policy or policies 
covering all insurable portions of such Project as a whole together with other insurable property of the 
Authority; and (iii) the requirements set forth in clause (b) above of this paragraph shall not apply to any 
Project owned by the Commonwealth (but the Authority may from time to time provide such insurance of the 
kind described in such clause (b) for any Project owned by the Commonwealth as the Authority may determine 
in its discretion).  
 
 All such policies shall be for the benefit of the Trustee and the Authority as their interests shall appear, 
shall be made payable to the Trustee (by means of the standard mortgagee clause without contribution, if 
obtainable) and shall be deposited with the Trustee.  The proceeds of any and all such insurance shall be 
deposited with the Trustee, and the Trustee shall have the sole right to receive the proceeds of such insurance 
and to collect claims thereunder and receipt therefor.  The proceeds of any and all such insurance shall be 
deposited to the credit of the Insurance Proceeds Account in the Property Fund.   
 
 The Authority covenants that, immediately after any damage to or destruction of any part of any 
Project the estimated cost to repair, restore or reconstruct which exceeds One Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($100,000), it will, if necessary, prepare or cause the Architect or Engineer, as the case may be, for the Project 
to prepare plans and specifications for repairing, restoring or reconstructing the damaged or destroyed 
property, and in any event it will proceed with all reasonable promptness as may be required to accomplish 
such repair, restoration or reconstruction in accordance with the original design or to do such other work as 
may be advised in writing by the University Trustees.  
 
 The proceeds of all insurance referred to in this subsection shall be available for, and shall to the 
extent necessary be applied to, the repair, restoration or reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed property, 
or the doing of other work with respect thereto as the Authority may determine by resolution adopted upon 
advice in writing from the University Trustees, and shall be disbursed by the Trustee upon receipt of copies, 
certified by an Authorized Officer, of the resolution adopted by the Authority authorizing such repair, 
restoration and reconstruction and of such written advice and otherwise in the manner and upon the showings 
provided in the Agreement for payments from the Construction Fund. If such proceeds shall be insufficient for 
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such purpose, the deficiency shall be supplied from any other moneys available for the purpose in the 
appropriate reserve Account or in the General Account in the Property Fund.  
 
 Upon completion of the work authorized by such resolution the Authority shall cause to be filed with 
the Trustee a notice and a Counsel's Opinion with respect thereto executed, approved and including statements 
substantially to the same effect as those provided in the Agreement for completion of construction of a Project.  
  
 Any balance of such proceeds remaining after such certificate shall have been filed shall be held by 
the Trustee in the Insurance Proceeds Account in the Property Fund and applied as provided herein or, if the 
Authority shall so direct by a certificate of an Authorized Officer, shall be transferred to one or more of the 
Revenue Fund, the Optional Redemption Account in the Debt Service Fund, to any Account within the 
Construction Fund or to the Multi-Purpose Reserve Account.  
 
Use, Occupancy and Other Insurance  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will at all times carry with a responsible insurance company or 
companies or companies qualified to assume the risk thereof:  
 
 (a) use and occupancy insurance covering loss of Revenues from each Project by reason of 
necessary interruption, total or partial, in the use thereof resulting from damage or destruction of any part 
thereof however caused, with such exceptions as are ordinarily required by insurers providing similar 
insurance, in such amount as the Authority shall estimate is sufficient to provide a full equivalent of Revenues 
for the fiscal year of the Authority respecting which such insurance is carried; provided, that if at any time the 
Authority shall be unable to obtain such insurance to the extent above required, either as to the amount of such 
insurance or as to the risks covered thereby, it will not constitute an event of default under the Agreement if the 
Authority shall carry such insurance to the extent reasonably obtainable; provided, however, that the Authority 
need not (but may) provide the insurance described in this subparagraph with respect to any Project owned by 
the Commonwealth; and  
 
 (b) such worker's compensation or employers' liability insurance as may be required by law and 
such public liability and property damage insurance as the Authority shall deem reasonable.  
 
 All policies providing use and occupancy insurance shall be made payable to and deposited with the 
Trustee, and the Trustee shall have the sole right to receive any proceeds of such policies and to collect claims 
thereunder. Any proceeds of use and occupancy insurance paid to the Trustee shall be deposited by it forthwith 
to the credit of the Revenue Fund.  
 
 Any appraisement or adjustment of any loss or damage under any policy payable to the Trustee and 
any settlement or payment of indemnity under any such policy shall be agreed upon between the Authority and 
any insurer and shall be evidenced to the Trustee by a certificate, signed by an Authorized Officer of the 
Authority, which certificate may be relied upon by the Trustee as conclusive.  The Trustee shall in no way be 
liable or responsible for the collection of insurance moneys in case of any loss or damage.  
 
No Inconsistent Action by Authority 

 
 The Authority covenants and agrees that none of the Revenues of any Project will be used for any 
purpose other than as provided in the Agreement and no contract or contracts will be entered into or any action 
taken which shall be inconsistent with the provisions of the Agreement. 
 
Further Instruments and Actions  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will, from time to time, execute and deliver such further instruments 
and take such further action as may be required to carry out the purposes of the Agreement. 



 

 

 D-34 

 
Records, Reports and Audits  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will keep an accurate record of the total cost of each Project, of the 
Revenues collected or derived from such Project, and of the application of such Revenues collected or derived 
from such Project. Such records shall be open at all reasonable times to the inspection of the Trustee.  The 
Authority covenants that it will cause any reports or audits relating to each Project to be made as required by 
law and that it will furnish to the Trustee a copy of each such report and audit forthwith upon receipt thereof by 
the Authority. 
 
Release of Land; Sale of Equipment 

 
 The Authority may from time to time (a) release to the University Trustees any land leased by the 
University Trustees to the Authority if permitted by a lease entered into between the University Trustees and 
the Authority and if such release will not adversely affect Revenues, (b) sell or otherwise dispose of any 
machinery, fixtures, apparatus, tools, instruments or other movable property acquired by it from the proceeds 
of Bonds or from the Revenues of a Project, if the Authority shall reasonably determine that such articles are 
no longer useful or appropriate in connection with the construction or operation and maintenance of such 
Project, and that such sale or disposition, taking account of the application of any proceeds received from such 
sale or disposition and any replacement to be made of or any substitution to be made for any of the properties 
so sold or disposed of, shall not adversely affect the Revenues from such Project. 
 
Covenant as to Exclusion of Interest from Gross Income  

 
 The Authority covenants that it will not take any action or fail to take any action that would adversely 
affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
 
Notice of Default; Financial Statements  

 
 The Authority covenants that (a) forthwith upon any officer of the Authority's obtaining knowledge of 
any condition or event which constitutes or, after notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute an “event of 
default” as defined in the Agreement, it will file with the Trustee a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer 
specifying the nature and period of existence thereof, and what action the Authority has taken, is taking or 
proposes to take with respect thereto; (b) on or before the 15th day of each July it will file with the Trustee a 
certificate signed by an Authorized Officer stating that, so far as is known to the signer of the certificate, the 
Authority is not in default under any covenant, agreement or condition contained in the Agreement and that no 
event has occurred which constitutes or, after notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute such an event of 
default or, if the Authority shall be in default, or any such event has occurred, specifying each such default and 
event and the nature and period of existence thereof of which the signer may have knowledge and what action, 
if any, the Authority has taken, is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto; and (c) it will cause an 
examination of its financial statements as of the end of and for each fiscal year during which Bonds shall be 
Outstanding under the Agreement to be made by independent certified public accountants and within one 
hundred eighty (180) days after the end of each fiscal year will file with the Trustee a copy of such financial 
statements together with the signed opinion of such independent certified public accountants with respect 
thereto. 
 
Defaults; Remedies 
 
Extended Interest 

 
 In case the time for the payment of the interest on any Bond shall be extended, whether or not such 
extension be by or with the consent of the Authority, such interest so extended shall not be entitled in case of 
default under the Agreement to the benefit or security of the Agreement except subject to the prior payment in 
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full of the principal of all Bonds then Outstanding and of all interest the time for the payment of which shall 
not have been extended. 
 
Events of Default 

 
 Each of the following events is an “event of default” under the Agreement:  
 
 (a) payment of the principal and premium, if any, of any of the Bonds shall not be made when the 
same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by required proceedings for redemption or otherwise, 
or payment of the purchase price of any Bond tendered as provided in the applicable Series Resolution shall 
not be made when such purchase price shall become due and payable; or  
 
 (b) payment of any installment of interest on the Bonds shall not be made when due and payable; 
or 
 
 (c) the Authority shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under the 
Agreement; or  
 
 (d) an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the Authority, 
appointing a receiver or receivers of any Project or any part thereof or of the Revenues thereof, or if such order 
or decree, having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the Authority, shall not be vacated or 
discharged or stayed on appeal within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the entry thereof; or  
 
 (e) any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Authority, for the 
purpose of effecting a composition between the Authority and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the 
claims of such creditors, pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such 
creditors are under any circumstances payable from the Revenues of any Project; or  
 
 (f) the Authority shall default in the due and punctual performance of any of the covenants, 
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in the Agreement on the part of the Authority 
to be performed in connection with the Bonds or any Project financed or refinanced by the Bonds, and such 
default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be 
remedied shall have been given to the Authority by the Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion 
and shall give such notice at the written request of the Registered Owners of not less than twenty per cent 
(20%) in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding.  
 
 For all purposes of the Agreement, any event of default specified in subparagraph (a) or subparagraph 
(b) of the preceding paragraph with respect to any one or more Bonds shall be deemed to be such an event of 
default on all other Outstanding Bonds of the same level or levels as the Bond or Bonds with respect to which 
such event of default occurred, i.e.. any such event of default with respect to one or more Senior Bonds shall 
be deemed to be such an event of default on all other Outstanding Senior Bonds, any such event of default with 
respect to one or more Bonds of any Subordinate Series, Level 2 shall be deemed to be such an event of default 
on all Outstanding Bonds of all Subordinate Series, Level 2, and so on. 
 
No Acceleration 

 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement to the contrary, the Bonds shall not be subject 
to acceleration, and all provisions with respect to events of default under the Agreement and with respect to 
remedies available under the Agreement shall be subject to such prohibition. 
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Remedies 

 
 Upon the happening and continuance of any event of default under the Agreement, then and in every 
such case the Trustee may proceed, and upon the written request of the Registered Owners of not less than 
twenty per centum (20%) in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding (or, in the case of an event of 
default under clause (a) or clause (b) above in “Events of Default,” not less than twenty per cent (20%) in 
principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding as to which such event of default has occurred) shall proceed, 
subject to being indemnified as provided in the Agreement, to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of 
the Registered Owners of the Bonds under the laws of the Commonwealth or under the Agreement by such 
suits, actions or proceedings in equity or at law, or by proceedings in the office of any board or officer having 
jurisdiction, either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained in the Agreement or in 
aid or execution of any power herein granted or for the enforcement of any proper legal or equitable remedy, 
as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce such rights.  
 
 In the enforcement of any remedy under the Agreement the Trustee shall be entitled to sue for, enforce 
payment of and receive any and all amounts then or during any default becoming, and at any time remaining, 
due from the Authority for principal, interest or otherwise under any of the provisions of the Agreement or of 
the Bonds, with interest on overdue payments at the rate or rates of interest borne by the applicable Bonds, 
together with any and all costs and expenses of collection and of all proceedings under the Agreement and 
under the Bonds, without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Trustee or of the Registered Owners, 
and to recover and enforce any judgment or decree against the Authority, but solely as provided in the 
Agreement and in the Bonds, for any portion of such amounts remaining unpaid, with interest, costs and 
expenses, and to collect (but solely 'from moneys in the Debt Service Fund, the Section 10 Reserve Fund, any 
other reserve fund securing any Bond, the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Property Fund and any other 
moneys available for such purpose) in any manner provided by law, the moneys adjudged or decreed to be 
payable. 
 
Application of Funds 

 
 (a) Anything in the Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if at any time the moneys in the Debt 
Service Fund, in the Section 10 Reserve Fund, in any other reserve fund securing any Bond, in the Rate 
Stabilization Fund and in the Property Fund, and any other moneys available for the purpose shall not be 
sufficient to pay the principal and Redemption Price of or the interest on the Bonds as the same shall become 
due and payable or the purchase price of any Bond tendered as provided in the applicable Series Resolution, 
such moneys, together with any moneys then available or thereafter becoming available for such purpose, 
whether through the exercise of the remedies described in this section of this Summary or otherwise, shall be 
applied as provided in paragraph (b) below, any such application to be made, first to all Outstanding Senior 
Bonds, until all principal, Redemption Price and interest then due on such Senior Bonds have been paid, and 
second, to all Outstanding Level 2 Bonds, until all principal, Redemption Price and interest then due on such 
Level 2 Bonds have been paid, and third, to all Outstanding Level 3 Bonds, until all principal, Redemption 
Price and interest then due on such Level 3 Bonds have been paid, and so on in descending order of 
subordination. Any such application shall also be subject to the following:  
 
  (i) moneys received under the Commonwealth Guaranty shall be applied only to the 
 Guaranteed Bonds on account of which such moneys are received and shall not be applied to the 
 payment of the fees and expenses of the Trustee;  
 
  (ii) moneys in the Section 10 Reserve Fund shall be applied only to Guaranteed Bonds 
 and shall not be applied to fees and expenses of the Trustee;  
 

 (iii) moneys received under any Credit Facility or Derivative shall be applied only to the 
payment of amounts which are due on the Bonds secured by such Credit Facility or to which such 
Derivative applies and to which moneys received under such Credit Facility or such Derivative are 
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permitted to be applied and shall be applied to the  fees and expenses of the Trustee only if such 
application is explicitly permitted under the applicable Credit Facility or the applicable Derivative and 
only in amounts not in excess of the amounts permitted by such Credit Facility or such Derivative to 
be so applied;  
 
 (iv) moneys in any reserve fund other than the Section 10 Reserve Fund shall be applied 
only as provided in the one or more applicable Series Resolutions and shall be applied to fees and 
expenses of the Trustee only if such application is explicitly permitted by the applicable Series 
Resolution;  
 
 (v) amounts due to the issuer of a Credit Facility for reimbursement of any amount paid 
under such Credit Facility for payment of principal or Redemption Price of or interest on any Bond or 
the purchase price of any Bond tendered as provided in the applicable Series Resolution (but not 
including interest on any such amount) shall, to the extent and under the conditions set forth in the 
applicable Series Resolution or reimbursement agreement with the issuer of such Credit Facility, be 
deemed for purposes of paragraph (b) below to be payments of principal or Redemption Price of or 
interest on such Bond and shall be paid to such issuer in connection with the application of moneys 
under such paragraph, and  
 
 (vi) amounts due from or on account of the Authority under a Derivative for amounts 
paid made under such Derivative for payment of principal or Redemption Price of or interest on any 
Bond (but not including interest on any such amount) shall, to the extent and under the conditions set 
forth in the applicable Series Resolution or in such Derivative, be deemed for purposes of paragraph 
(b) below to be payments of principal or Redemption Price of or interest on such Bond and shall be 
paid as provided in such Derivative in connection with the application of moneys under such 
paragraph.  
 
(b) All such moneys shall be applied (subject to paragraph (a) above):  
 
 first: to the payment to the Trustee of its unpaid fees and expenses, to the extent of moneys 
available therefor as provided in paragraph (a) above;  
 
 second: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest on Bonds 
then due, in the order of the maturity of the installments of such interest, and, if the amounts available 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according 
to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or 
preference except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest specified in the Bonds and 
except as provided in paragraph (a) above; 
 
  third: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal and Redemption 
Price of any of the Bonds which shall have become due (other than Bonds called for redemption for 
the payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement), in the order of 
their due dates, with interest upon such Bonds from the respective dates upon which they became due, 
and the unpaid purchase price of any Bond tendered in accordance with the applicable Series 
Resolution, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the principal and 
Redemption Price of Bonds due on any particular date, together with such interest, and such purchase 
price, then to the payment first of such interest, ratably according to the amount of such interest due 
on such date, and then to the payment of such principal, Redemption Price and purchase price, ratably 
according to the amount of such principal and purchase price due on such date, to the persons entitled 
thereto, and in either case without any discrimination or preference, except as provided in paragraph 
(a) above; and  
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 fourth: to the payment of the interest on and the principal and Redemption Price of the Bonds, 
to the purchase and retirement of Bonds and to the redemption of Bonds, all in accordance with the 
provisions described above under “Establishment and Application of Funds and Accounts” (and as 
provided in paragraph (a) above).  
 

 (c) Whenever moneys are to be applied by the Trustee pursuant to the above provisions, such moneys 
shall be applied by the Trustee at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee in its sole discretion shall 
determine, having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of 
additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future; and the Trustee shall incur no liability 
whatsoever to the Authority, to any Registered Owner or to any other person for any delay in applying any 
such moneys, so long as the Trustee acts with reasonable diligence, having due regard to the circumstances, 
and ultimately applies the same in accordance with such provisions of the Agreement as may be applicable at 
the time of application by the Trustee. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise such discretion in applying such 
moneys, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless the Trustee shall deem another 
date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made and upon such date interest on the amounts of 
principal to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue.  
 
 The Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date, and shall 
not be required to make payment to the Registered Owner of any Bond until such Bond shall be surrendered to 
the Trustee for appropriate endorsement, or for cancellation if fully paid. 
 
Discontinuance of Proceedings 

 
 In the event that any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account of any default under the Agreement 
shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, then and in every such case the Authority, the 
Trustee and the Registered Owners shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the Agreement, 
respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Trustee shall continue as though no such 
proceeding had been taken. 
 
Control of Proceedings 

 
 Anything in the Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the registered Owners of a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding (or, with respect to an event of default described in clause (a) 
or clause (b) above in “Events of Default,” the Registered Owners of a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds Outstanding as to which such event of default has occurred) shall have the right, subject to the Trustee's 
being indemnified as provided in the Agreement, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing 
executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the method of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken 
by the Trustee under the Agreement in connection with the Bonds, provided that such direction shall not be 
otherwise than in accordance with law or the provisions of the Agreement. 
 
Restrictions upon Actions by a Registered Owner 

 
 No Registered Owner shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law 
for the execution of any trust under the Agreement or for any other remedy under the Agreement unless such 
Registered Owner previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of the event of default on account 
of which such suit, action or proceeding is to be instituted, and unless also the Registered Owners of not less 
than twenty per cent (20%) in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding (or, with respect to an event of 
default described in clause (a) or clause (b) above in “Events of Default,” the Registered Owners of not less 
than twenty per cent (20%) principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding as to which such event of default has 
occurred) shall have made written request of the Trustee after the right to exercise such powers of right of 
action, as the case may be, shall have accrued, and shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity 
either to proceed to exercise the powers granted by the Agreement or to institute such action, suit or 
proceeding in its or their name, and unless, also, there shall have been offered to the Trustee reasonable 
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security and indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and the 
Trustee shall have refused or neglected to comply with such request within a reasonable time; and such 
notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in such every case, at the option of the Trustee, 
to be conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trusts of the Agreement or for any other remedy 
under the Agreement. No one or more Registered Owners of the Bonds shall have any right in any manner 
whatever by action of such Registered Owner or Owners to affect, disturb or prejudice the security of the 
Agreement, or to enforce any right under the Agreement except in the manner provided in the Agreement, that 
all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the 
Agreement and for the benefit of all Registered Owners of the Outstanding Bonds, and that any individual 
rights of action or other right given to one or more of such Registered Owners by law are restricted by the 
Agreement to the rights and remedies provided in the Agreement.  
 
 Nothing in the Agreement or in the Bonds shall, however, affect or impair the absolute, unconditional 
and unalterable obligation of the Authority to pay when due (whether due on account of stated maturities, 
scheduled payments, call for redemption or otherwise) the principal and Redemption Price of and interest on 
the Bonds and the purchase price of any Bond tendered as provided in the applicable Series Resolution, or 
affect the right of any Registered Owner of a Bond to institute or require the institution of any action or 
proceeding against the Authority for the enforcement of such payment, or against the Commonwealth for the 
enforcement of its guaranty of Guaranteed Bonds. 
 
Actions by Trustee 

 
 All rights of action under the Agreement or under any of the Bonds, enforceable by the Trustee, may 
be enforced by it without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof on the trial or other 
proceeding relative thereto, and any such suit, action or proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in 
its name for the benefit of all of the Registered Owners, subject to the provisions of the Agreement. 
 
No Remedy Exclusive 

 
 No remedy conferred by the Agreement upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Registered Owners is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies provided by the Agreement, and each and every such 
remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under the Agreement. 
 
No Delay or Omission Construed as Waiver 

 
 No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Registered Owner to exercise any right or power 
accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such 
default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given by the Agreement to the Trustee and the 
Registered Owners of the Bonds, respectively, with respect to events of default, may be exercised from time to 
time as often as may be deemed expedient.   
 
 The Trustee may, and upon written request of the Registered Owners of not less than a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall, waive any default which in its opinion shall have been 
remedied before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted by it under 
the provisions of the Agreement or before the completion of the enforcement of any other remedy under the 
Agreement, but no such waiver shall extend to or affect any other existing or any subsequent default of 
defaults or impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon. 
 
Notice of Default 

 
 The Trustee shall mail to all Registered Owners of Bonds then Outstanding at their addresses as they 
appear on the registration books written notice of the occurrence of any event of default described in clause (a) 
or clause (b) above in “Events of Default” promptly upon the occurrence thereof and of any other event of 
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default described under “Events of Default” within thirty (30) days after the Trustee shall have received 
written notice that any such event of default has occurred and any applicable grace period shall have expired.  
The Trustee shall not, however, be subject to any liability to any Registered Owner by reason of its failure to 
mail any such notice. 
 

CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 
 
Indemnity  

 
 The Trustee shall be under no obligation to institute any suit, or to take any remedial proceeding under 
the Agreement, or to enter any appearance or in any way defend in any suit in which it may be made 
defendant, or to take any steps in the execution of the trusts created by the Agreement or in the enforcement of 
any rights and powers under the Agreement, until it shall be indemnified to its satisfaction against any and all 
costs and expenses, outlays and counsel fees and disbursements and other reasonable disbursements, and 
against all liability; the Trustee may, nevertheless, begin suit, or appear in and defend suit, or do anything else 
in its judgment proper to be done by it as such Trustee, without indemnity, and in such case the Authority shall 
reimburse the Trustee from the Revenues of any Project for all costs and expenses, outlays and counsel fees 
and disbursements and other reasonable disbursements properly incurred in connection therewith. If the 
Authority shall fail to make such reimbursement, the Trustee may reimburse itself from any moneys in its 
possession under the provisions of the Agreement from which the payment of fees and expenses of the Trustee 
is not prohibited by the Agreement and shall have a first and prior lien on such moneys for that purpose over 
any of the Bonds Outstanding under the Agreement. 
 
Limitation on Obligations  

 
 The Trustee shall be under no obligation to effect or maintain insurance or to renew any policies of 
insurance or to inquire as to the sufficiency of any policies of insurance carried by the Authority, or to report, 
or make or file claims or proof of loss for, any loss or damage insured against or which may occur, or to keep 
itself informed or advised as to the payment of any taxes or assessments, or to require any such payment to be 
made.  The Trustee shall have no responsibility in respect of the construction or operation of any Project, the 
validity or sufficiency of the Agreement or the due execution or acknowledgment thereof, or in respect of the 
validity of the Bonds or the due execution or issuance thereof except as represented by its own authentication, 
or in respect of the validity or enforceability of the guaranty by the Commonwealth executed on any 
Guaranteed Bond.  The Trustee shall be under no obligation, except as otherwise expressly required in the 
Agreement, to see that any duties herein imposed upon the Authority, the Architect, the Engineer, any 
investment adviser appointed by the Authority, or any party other than itself, or any covenants in the 
Agreement on the part of any party other than itself to be performed, shall be done or performed, and the 
Trustee shall be under no obligation for failure to see that any such duties or covenants are so done or 
performed. 
 
Notice of Default 

 
 In addition to any other notices required to be given by the Trustee under the Agreement, if on the 
fifteenth day of the month (or, if such fifteenth day is not a business day, on the next succeeding business day) 
before the date which shall be one or more of a due date for a payment of interest on Guaranteed Bonds or of a 
Sinking Fund Installment respecting Guaranteed Bonds or a maturity date for Guaranteed Bonds then 
Outstanding, the moneys held by the Trustee for or to be deposited prior to such due date to the credit of any 
subaccount of the Interest Account, any subaccount of the Sinking Fund Account or any subaccount of the 
Principal Account shall be less than the amount required on such date respectively to pay in full such interest 
then due, to pay such Sinking Fund Installment then due or to pay the principal of all such Guaranteed Bonds 
then maturing, all as the case may be, the Trustee shall on such fifteenth day (or next succeeding business day) 
deliver or cause to be delivered to the offices of the Secretary of Administration and Finance and of the 
Treasurer and Receiver-General of the Commonwealth a notice addressed to said officials and shall give 
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copies thereof to the Authority and to the purchasers in the manner provided in the Agreement. Such notice 
shall state (a) the amount or amounts to become due, the nature thereof and the due date, (b) the amount or 
amounts of moneys held by the Trustee on such business day for the credit of the pertinent Account or 
Accounts and subaccount or subaccounts, (c) the amount or amounts of moneys held by the Trustee on such 
business day for the credit of the Section 10 Reserve Fund, each Debt Service Reserve Fund or Multi-Series 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Optional Redemption Account, the Rate Stabilization Fund, and any Account 
in the Property Fund which are available for the payment of such interest, such Sinking Fund Installment or 
such maturing principal amount, all as the case may be.  
 
 If the University Trustees shall be obligated to pay any such amount from Pledged Funds, the Trustee 
shall include in its notice a request that the University Trustees transfer or cause to be transferred applicable 
Pledged Funds forthwith, unless such request is otherwise required to be made by any applicable Series 
Resolution. If (a) the University Trustees shall be obliged by the Contract or Contracts respecting Outstanding 
Guaranteed Bonds to give a notice respecting the availability of moneys for said purposes by said dates and (b) 
such notice has been given and (c) such notice states that moneys are not expected to be available by said dates 
in amounts sufficient to meet such purposes in full and (d) the moneys held by the Trustee as stated in the last 
sentence of the first paragraph above in “Notice of Default” are not sufficient, when added to whatever 
available amount is stated in such notice from the University Trustees, to meet such purposes in full, then the 
Trustee shall include in the notice to be given by it a request that the Commonwealth make funds available to 
honor the Commonwealth Guaranty under all such Contracts.  
 
 Except as provided above, the Trustee shall not be obliged to take notice or be deemed to have notice 
of any prospective event of default under the Agreement.  The Trustee shall not be obliged to take notice or be 
deemed to have knowledge of any event of default under the Agreement, except for events of default described 
in clause (a) or clause (b) above in “Defaults; Remedies - Events of Default,” unless an officer in the corporate 
trust department of the Trustee has received written notice of such event of default by the Authority or the 
Registered Owners of not less than twenty per cent (20%) in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding. 
 
Resignation  

 
 The Trustee may resign at any time and thereby become discharged from the trusts created by the 
Agreement by notice in writing to be given to the Authority and the Registered Owners at least thirty (30) days 
before such resignation is to take effect, but such resignation shall take effect immediately upon the 
appointment of a new Trustee under the Agreement, if such new Trustee shall be appointed before the time 
limited by such notice and shall then accept the trusts of the Agreement. 
 
Removal  

 
 The Trustee may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, 
signed by the Registered Owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding 
and filed with the Authority (and the Authority shall promptly deliver to the Trustee a reproduction copy of 
each such instrument) or by resolution of the Authority.  
 
 The Trustee may also be removed at any time for any breach of trust or violation of the Agreement by 
any court of competent jurisdiction upon application by the Registered Owners of not less than five per cent 
(5%) in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 
 
Appointment of Successor Trustee 

 
 If at any time the Trustee shall resign, be removed, be dissolved or otherwise become incapable of 
acting, or the bank or trust company acting as Trustee shall be taken over by any governmental official, 
agency, department or board, the position of Trustee shall thereupon become vacant. If at any time moneys on 
deposit with the Trustee shall not be secured as required by the Agreement, a vacancy in the position of 
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Trustee may be declared by a resolution duly passed by the Authority. If the position of Trustee shall become 
vacant for any of the foregoing reasons or for any other reason, the Authority shall appoint a Trustee to fill 
such vacancy.  The Authority shall send written notice of any such appointment to the Registered Owners, and 
the Trustee whose position is being filled shall make available to the Authority at all times during normal 
business hours its registration books and permit the Authority to copy such registration books.  
 
 At any time within one year after any such vacancy shall have occurred, the Registered Owners of a 
majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in 
writing, signed by such Registered Owners or their attorneys in fact or legal representatives and filed with the 
Authority, may appoint a successor Trustee which shall supersede any Trustee theretofore appointed by the 
Authority. Copies of such instrument shall be delivered promptly by the Authority to the predecessor Trustee 
and to the Trustee so appointed by the Registered Owners.  
 
 If no appointment of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the 
Registered Owner of any Outstanding Bond or any retiring Trustee may apply to any court of competent 
jurisdiction to appoint a successor Trustee. Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as such court 
may deem proper and prescribe, appoint a successor Trustee.  
 
 Any Trustee hereafter appointed shall be a bank or trust company within the Commonwealth (as the 
words “within the Commonwealth” are used in the Enabling Act) duly authorized to exercise corporate trust 
powers and subject to examination by federal or state authority, of good standing, having a combined capital 
and surplus aggregating not less than One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000).  
 
 The Trustee shall not be required to be “within the Commonwealth” if the Enabling Act no longer 
contains such requirement. 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS 
 
Supplemental Agreements without Consent of Registered Owners  

 
 The Authority and the Trustee may, from time to time and at any time, without the consent of the 
Registered Owners, enter into agreements supplemental to the Agreement as shall not be inconsistent with the 
terms and provisions of the Agreement (which supplemental agreements shall thereafter form a part of the 
Agreement)  
 
 (a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Agreement or in any supplemental 
agreement, or  
 
 (b) to grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Registered Owners any additional 
rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered 
Owners or the Trustee, or  
 
 (c) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Authority other covenants and agreements 
thereafter to be observed by the Authority which shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of the 
Agreement or to surrender any right or power reserved to or conferred upon the Authority in the Agreement, or  
 
 (d) any amendment described in “Establishment and Application of Funds and Accounts — 
Rebate Fund,” or  
 
 (e) for any other purpose, provided that (i) such supplemental agreement (A) does not adversely 
affect the interest of any Registered Owner and (B) does not make any change in the Agreement prohibited by 
clauses (a) through (e) below in “Modification of Agreement” and (ii) the Authority and the Trustee receive an 
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opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect that such supplemental agreement complies with 
subclauses (A) and (B) of this clause.   
 
 If the interest on obligations issued in bearer form should at any time qualify for exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes, or if the Authority desires to issue obligations the interest on which is 
not excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and if in either case applicable law permits 
the issuance by the Authority of obligations in bearer form, the Agreement may be amended without the 
consent of the registered Owners to permit the issuance under the Agreement of obligations in such form, 
provided that the Authority and the Trustee receive an opinion of bond counsel to the Authority to the effect 
that applicable law permits the issuance by the Authority of obligations in bearer form and that such 
amendment will not affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on 
any Bond previously issued under the Agreement.  
 
 Any provision of the Agreement with respect to any Series of Bonds secured by a Credit Facility may 
be amended by the Series Resolution authorizing such Series to take into account the requirements or 
reasonable requests of the issuer of such Credit Facility. Such amendments may include, but not be limited to, 
amendments with respect to the exercise of rights of the Registered Owner of the Bonds of such Series by the 
issuer of such Credit Facility and subrogation of the issuer of such Credit Facility to the rights of such 
Registered Owners. 
 
Modification of Agreement  

 
 The Registered Owners of not less than fifty-one percent (51%) in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to consent to and approve the execution by the 
Authority and the Trustee of such agreement or agreements supplemental to the Agreement as shall be deemed 
necessary or desirable by the Authority for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or 
rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in the Agreement or in any supplemental 
agreement; provided, however, that nothing contained in the Agreement shall permit, or be construed as 
permitting (a) an extension of the maturity of the principal of, the due date of any Sinking Fund Installment or 
respecting the due date of any interest payment due on any Bond, or (b) a reduction in the principal amount of 
any Bond or the Redemption Price thereof or the rate of interest thereon, or (c) the creation of a lien or pledge 
of Revenues ranking prior to or on a parity with the lien or pledge created by the Agreement, or (d) a 
preference or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or Bonds other than as provided in the 
Agreement or (e) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent to such 
supplemental agreement. Nothing contained in the Agreement, however, shall be construed as making 
necessary the approval by Registered Owners of the execution of any supplemental agreement or agreements 
described above in “Supplemental Agreements without Consent of Registered Owners.”  
 
 If the Registered Owners of not less than fifty-one per cent (51%) in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds Outstanding at the time of the execution of such supplemental agreement shall have consented to and 
approved the execution thereof as provided in the Agreement, no Registered Owner shall have any right to 
object to the execution of such supplemental agreement, or to object to any of the terms and provisions 
contained therein or the operation thereof, or in by manner to question the propriety of the execution thereof, 
or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the Authority from executing the same or from taking any action pursuant 
to the provisions thereof. 
 
Responsibilities of Trustee  

 
 In each and every case provided for in this section “Supplemental Agreements”, the Trustee shall be 
entitled to exercise its discretion in determining whether or not any proposed supplemental agreement, or any 
term or provision therein contained, is proper or desirable, having in view the purposes of such instrument, the 
needs of the Authority, the rights and interests of the Registered Owners, and the rights, obligations and 
interests of the Trustee, and the Trustee shall not be under any responsibility or liability to the Authority or to 
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any Registered Owner or to anyone whomsoever for its refusal in good faith to enter into any such 
supplemental agreement if such agreement is deemed by it to be contrary to the provisions of this section.  The 
Trustee shall be entitled to receive, and shall be fully protected in relying upon, the opinion of any counsel 
approved by it, who may be counsel for the Authority, as conclusive evidence that any such proposed 
supplemental agreement does or does not comply with the provisions of the Agreement, and that it is or is not 
proper for it under the applicable provisions of the Agreement, to join in the execution of such supplemental 
agreement. 
 

DEFEASANCE 
 
Release of Agreement 

 
 If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid, to the Registered 
Owners of all Bonds the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due 
thereon, at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in the Agreement, or if all Outstanding Bonds 
shall be deemed to be paid as provided in the following paragraph, and if all other sums, if any, then payable to 
the Trustee under the shall be paid, or the payment of such sums shall be provided for to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the Trustee, then the pledge of any Revenues and other moneys and securities pledged under the 
Agreement and all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the Authority to the Registered Owners, 
shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In such event, the Trustee 
shall cause an accounting for such period or period as shall be requested by the Authority to be prepared and 
filed with the Authority and, upon the request of the Authority, shall execute and deliver to the Authority all 
such instruments as may be desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the Trustee shall pay 
over or deliver to the Authority all moneys or securities held by it pursuant to the Agreement which are not 
required for the payment of principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, of or interest on Bonds not 
theretofore surrendered for such payment or redemption, and for the payment of such other amounts. If the 
Authority shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid, to the Registered Owners of any 
Outstanding Bonds the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due thereon, 
at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in the Agreement, or if any Outstanding Bonds shall be 
deemed to be paid as provided in the following paragraph, such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, 
benefit or security under the Agreement, and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the Authority to the 
Registered Owners of such Bonds shall thereupon cease, terminated and become void and be discharged and 
satisfied.  
 
 Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be deemed to have been 
paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the previous paragraph if (a) in case any of said 
Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the Authority shall have given to the trustee in 
form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to give notice of redemption of such Bonds on said date, (b) 
there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or 
Investment Obligations (including any Investment Obligations issued or held in book-entry form on the books 
of the Department of the Treasury of the United States, which are irrevocably payable to the Trustee and in 
form satisfactory to the Trustee) the principal of and the interest on which when due will provide the Trustee 
with moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with the Trustee at the same time, shall be 
sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become 
due on said Bonds on and prior to the redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in 
the event said Bonds will not be redeemed within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the Authority shall have 
given the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to give notice, in the manner and at the time 
specified in the Agreement, that the deposit required by (b) above has been made with the Trustee and that said 
Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this paragraph and stating such maturity or 
redemption date or dates upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if applicable, on said Bonds. None of Investment Obligations, moneys deposited with the 
Trustee pursuant to this paragraph or principal or interest payments on any such Investment Obligations shall 
be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the principal or 
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Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on said Bonds; provided that any cash received from such 
principal or interest payments on such Investment Obligation deposited with the Trustee, if not needed for such 
purpose, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in Investment Obligation maturing at times and in 
amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest to become 
due on said Bonds on and prior to such redemption date or maturity date, as the case may be, and interest 
earned from such reinvestment shall be paid over to the Authority, as received by the Trustee, free and clear of 
any trust, lien or pledge. For the purposes of this paragraph, Investment Obligations shall mean and include 
only such securities as are described in clause (a) of the definition of “Investment Obligations” in 
“Definitions” which shall not be subject to redemption prior to their maturity.  
 
 Anything in the Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Trustee shall notify the Authority in 
writing of any moneys held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of any of the Bonds which 
remain unclaimed six months prior to the date when such moneys would escheat under applicable law and 
shall, at the written request of the Authority, pay such moneys to the Authority as its absolute property and free 
from trust, or, if the Authority does not so request in writing, or if such payment is not permitted under 
applicable escheat law, shall apply such moneys as provided by such applicable law, and the Trustee shall 
upon such payment or application be released and discharged with respect thereto and the Registered Owners 
shall look only to the Authority or as such applicable law may provide for the payment of such Bonds, the 
Authority or any other entity being liable only to the extent of funds received from the Trustee (without regard 
to any interest thereon received from the Trustee) and having no liability for interest on any such funds.  
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Rights under Agreement 

 
 Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement, nothing in the Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation other than the parties 
hereto and the Registered Owners any right, remedy or claim, legal or equitable, under or by reason of the 
Agreement or any provisions hereof, the Agreement and all its provisions being intended to be and being for 
the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and the Registered Owners. 
 
Effect of Partial Invalidity 

 
 In case any one or more of the provisions of the Agreement or of the Bonds shall for any reason be 
held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of the Agreement 
or of the Bonds, but the Agreement and the Bonds shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid 
provision has not been contained therein. In case any covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained 
in the Bonds or in the Agreement shall for any reason be held to be in violation of law, then such covenant, 
stipulation, obligation or agreement shall be deemed to be the covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of 
the Authority to the full extent permitted by law.  
 
Effect of Covenants, etc.  
  
 All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Authority contained in the Agreement 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Authority to the full extent 
permitted by law. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in the Agreement shall be 
deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any present or future member, officer, agent 
or employee of the Authority in his individual capacity, and neither any member of the Authority nor any 
officer thereof executing the Bonds shall be liable personally on the Bonds or be subject to any personal 
liability by reason of the issuance thereof. No member, officer, agent or employee of the Authority shall incur 
any liability in acting or proceeding or in not acting or not proceeding, in good faith, reasonably and in 
accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Enabling Act.  
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 The Agreement is executed with the intent that the laws of the Commonwealth shall govern its 
construction. 
 
Reference to Interest as Excludable from Gross Income 

 
 All references in the Agreement with respect to the exclusion, excludability, inclusion or includability 
or the like of interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes shall apply only to Bonds and the 
interest thereon as to which an opinion of counsel has been rendered to the effect that interest on such Bonds is 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CONTRACT 
 

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, capitalized terms shall be used as defined in the Trust 

Agreement. 
 
The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Contract for Management and Services dated 

as of October 27, 2009 (the “Contract”) by and among the University, acting by and through the University 
Trustees, the University of Massachusetts Building Authority (the “Authority”) and the Commonwealth, 
acting by and through the University Trustees. 
 
Issuance of Bonds; Projects  (Section 2) 
 

The Authority shall issue the Bonds, consisting of Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the 
“2009-1 Bonds”), Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds-
Direct Payment to Issuer) (the “2009-2 Bonds”) and Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally 
Taxable) (the “2009-3 Bonds” and together with the 2009-1 Bonds and the 2009-2 Bonds, the “Bonds”) to 
achieve its corporate purposes in undertaking the Projects and related expenses.  The Authority shall apply the 
proceeds of the Bonds as set forth in the Act, the Trust Agreement, the applicable Series Resolutions and this 
Contract, including the payment of costs of the Projects, as defined in the Act.   

 
Undertaking and Completion of Projects  (Section 4) 
 
 The Authority shall proceed with all reasonable speed to undertake, plan, construct, and complete the 
Projects in accordance with the written requests authorized by the  University Trustees, subject to such further 
approvals by the University Trustees and other officials as may be required by the Act or the Contract.  The 
Authority may use any mode of procurement of design and construction with regard to each Project that is 
from time to time permitted by the Act or other applicable law. 
 
 The Authority may engage such consulting architects, engineers, and other experts as it deems 
advisable in connection with the Projects.  The plans and specifications for each of the Projects shall comply, 
or provide for compliance, with all applicable building codes, laws relating to health, safety and access and 
other applicable laws and with all applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by any 
governmental authority.  Upon award of a contract or contracts for the doing of any work included in the 
Projects, the Authority shall provide and maintain competent and adequate architectural and engineering 
observation of the Projects as the Authority deems appropriate until acceptance thereof by the University 
Trustees for occupancy.  The Authority and the University Trustees shall permit each other free access to the 
Project at all times.  The Authority shall permit the University Trustees to examine such records of the 
Authority pertaining to the Projects as the University Trustees may desire, and the University Trustees shall 
permit the Authority to examine such records of the University Trustees pertaining to the Projects as the 
Authority may desire. 
 
 The Authority and the University Trustees shall use their best efforts to cause the Projects to be 
completed so as to be ready for use (and, where applicable, occupancy) as promptly as reasonably possible 
and, upon completion of all work in connection with any of the Projects, the Authority shall furnish the 
University Trustees with a certificate or certificates to the effect that such work has been completed free from 
defects and inadequacies and otherwise in conformity with the working drawings and detail specifications as 
amended or modified by any change order or additional work authorizations, that no mechanics’, laborers’, 
materialmen’s or other liens exist or can be created on the Projects on account of such work, and that the 
Authority has made payment in full for the doing of the work in question, or has made other proper 
arrangements so that it is not longer liable for any claims for payment for such work or materials or supplies 
furnished to such portion of the Projects. 
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Operation, Maintenance and Repair of Projects  (Section 5)  
 
The Authority shall administer and operate each of the Projects in accordance with the Act, the 

Contract and the Trust Agreement.  The Authority shall establish and revise rules and regulations to insure the 
use (and, where applicable, occupancy) of, and fix and revise fees, rents, rates and other charges for the use of, 
the Projects as set forth in the Contract. 

 
Such rules and regulations and such fees, rents, rates and other charges shall be so fixed and adjusted 

in respect of the aggregate of all revenues from the Projects and from any other projects or property the 
revenues from which are pledged under the Trust Agreement (collectively, the “Revenues”) (1) so as to 
maintain, so far as consistent with the requirements of the Contract, a reasonable uniformity in charges for like 
rooms and other accommodations at the University whether or not contained in a project of the Authority and 
(2) so as to provide Revenues sufficient to: 

 
(a) pay the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating the Projects and such other projects and 

property, if any, to the extent that the University Trustees have not undertaken to provide such maintenance, 
repair and operation, 

 
(b) pay the fees and expenses of the Trustee, fees and expenses of any paying or fiscal agent 

appointed by the Authority in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or any other notes or bonds secured or 
provided for under the Trust Agreement, premiums of insurance maintained by the Authority with respect to 
the Projects and such other projects and property and rentals payable by the Authority under any lease or leases 
of land on which the Projects or any other such project or property may be located, 

 
(c) pay the principal of (including Sinking Fund Installments) and the interest on the Bonds and 

notes and bonds issued to finance or refinance such other projects or property, as such principal and interest 
shall become due and payable, 

 
(d) pay such portions of the operating and administrative expenses of the Authority (which shall 

include any amount (the “Rebate Amount”) required by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or 
other applicable law to be rebated by the Authority with respect to the Bonds, as applicable, to the United 
States of America and not provided from other funds of the Authority) as the Authority shall deem properly 
allocable to the Projects and such other projects and property, 

 
(e) pay amounts payable by the Authority under the Series Resolutions or any other contract or 

other arrangement with respect to the Bonds, 
 
(f) create or maintain reserves, if any, for such of the foregoing purposes as may be provided for 

in any resolution of the Authority as required or permitted by the Trust Agreement, 
 
(g) pay the amount, if any, required by Section 19C of the Act to be paid to the Treasurer and 

Receiver-General of the Commonwealth out of such revenues, and 
 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing paragraph (the “General Paragraph”), with respect to 

Specific Revenue Projects, such rules and regulations and such fees, rents, rates and other charges shall be so 
fixed and adjusted so as to provide Revenues for each such Project at least sufficient to (a) pay the reasonable 
and necessary costs of (i) services, facilities, supplies, materials and utilities necessary for or incident to the 
maintenance, repair (including reconstruction, rehabilitation, replacement and restoration) and operation of 
each such Project and the facilities and services provided thereby, (ii) billing and collecting fees, rents, rates 
and other charges for the use of each such Project or any facility or service provided thereby and (iii) keeping 
books of account with respect to such maintenance, repair and operation (such costs hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “Specific Revenue Projects Expenses”), and (b) pay such amounts described in clause (b), 
clause (c), clause (d) clause (e), clause (f)  and clause (g) of the General Paragraph as the Authority shall deem 
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properly allocable to each such Project.  If the Authority should on any one or more occasions determine that 
all or any portion of any amount described above in this paragraph shall be paid from University Eligible Gifts, 
Authority Eligible Gifts, other available Authority revenues or all funds of the University permitted by law to 
be applied thereto, the Authority may deduct from the amount of such Revenues required to be provided above 
in this paragraph the amount that the Authority has determined shall be so paid. 

 
The foregoing paragraph is subject to the qualification that any of the amounts referred to therein that 

are payable from amounts receivable by the Authority pursuant to the Prior Contracts need not be included in 
the fees, rents, rates and other charges with respect to the Projects fixed and adjusted pursuant to the Contract. 

 
Any establishment or revision of rules and regulations insuring use and occupancy and any fixing, 

revising or adjustment of fees, rents, rates or other charges by the Authority as aforesaid shall require the 
approval of the University Trustees as provided in the Act.   

 
With respect to the fixing of fees, rents, rates or other charges in respect of the maintenance, repair 

and operation of the Projects, other than the Specific Revenue Projects, the undertakings by the University 
Trustees herein to perform such maintenance, repair and operation shall constitute such fees, rents, rates and 
other charges. 

 
The Authority shall at all times conduct its business and affairs in such manner that: 
 
(1) each of the Projects will be separately and distinctly accounted for relative to any other 

project or enterprise developed, administered or engaged in by the Authority; 
 
(2) such portion of the office and general administrative expenses of the Authority as is charged 

to each of the Projects and the basis upon which the same is apportioned can be readily determined; and 
 
(3) all revenues, income, reserves and funds, from whatever source, received or held by the 

Authority for purposes of, or in connection with, the undertaking, completion, operation or maintenance of the 
Projects or for any of the purposes set forth in any resolution authorizing the issue of the Bonds or in the 
Bonds or in the Trust Agreement or received by or for the account of the Authority as proceeds of insurance 
upon or as damages award for the taking or condemnation of any of the Projects or any portion thereof, shall at 
all times be separately accounted for from all funds of the Authority allocable to projects and property of the 
Authority respecting which the Authority has issued notes or bonds or other than bonds issued under the Trust 
Agreement and notes to be refunded by bonds issued under the Trust Agreement; provided that the Authority 
may, except as the Trust Agreement or any resolution of the Authority authorizing any issue of notes to be 
refunded by bonds to be issued under the Trust Agreement may otherwise provide as to proceeds of such notes 
or of bonds issued thereunder, mingle all revenues, income, reserves and funds, from whatever source, 
received or held by the Authority for the purposes of or in connection with the undertaking, completion, 
operation or maintenance of any project financed or to be financed or refinanced by bonds secured by the Trust 
Agreement or for like purposes of or in connection with any other project or property of the Authority the 
revenues from which are pledged or assigned by the Trust Agreement. 

The Authority hereby authorizes and directs the University Trustees to make and revise rules and 
regulations concerning the conduct of persons while on or in the Projects and the bringing into or onto, 
keeping in or on and removal from the Projects of property of others than the Authority, to enforce such rules 
and regulations and to establish and impose penalties for violation of the same.  All such rules,  regulations and 
penalties shall be subject to the approval of the Authority, which shall not be reasonably withheld, shall 
comply with the Act, the Contract, any other contract or agreement between the Authority and the University 
Trustees relating to the Projects and the Trust Agreement, and, shall be made and revised so as to be nearly 
identical as possible with rules, regulations and penalties from time to time promulgated by the University 
Trustees respecting other like facilities under their control. 
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The obligation of the University Trustees under the Contract to operate the Projects, keep them in 
good order and repair and maintain them shall include, but not be limited to, the furnishing of all supplies and 
materials needed or desirable for such operation, keeping in good order and repair, and maintenance, the 
making of all interior and exterior repairs to the buildings and structures included in the Projects and all repairs 
to other improvements and to equipment and furnishings included in the Projects, the maintenance of the 
Projects and the replacement, restoration and reconstruction of any structure, improvement or item of 
equipment or furnishings or portion thereof worn out, damaged or destroyed by whatever cause. 

Expenses incurred by the University Trustees in connection with the repair and maintenance of the 
Projects shall be paid for or reimbursed to the University Trustees from Revenues. The Authority, in its 
discretion, may (a) authorize the University Trustees to deduct from Revenues, prior to remittance of Revenue 
to the Trustee, amounts equal to amounts budgeted by the Authority for such expenses, or (b) instruct the 
University Trustees to certify to the Authority the amount of such expenses, if any, incurred by the University 
Trustees and not authorized to be deducted, such amounts to be reimbursed to the University Trustees from 
Revenues transmitted to the Trustee. Any amount deducted by the University Trustees pursuant to (a) and not 
expended for such expenses during the period for which it was budgeted by the Authority shall be certified to 
the Authority by the University Trustees within 30 days and shall be retained by the University Trustees and 
used solely for expenses of repair and maintenance of the Projects. In the event the Authority incurs an 
expense for repair or maintenance of the Projects, the University Trustees shall remit to the Authority such 
portion of the Revenues deducted under (a) as is necessary to reimburse the Authority. 

Taking or Condemnation of the Projects  (Section 6) 

The Commonwealth hereby assigns to the Authority all of the rights which it may now or hereafter 
have on account of any taking or condemnation of any Project owned by the Authority or leased by the 
Authority as lessee or sublessee from any entity other than the Commonwealth or any taking or condemnation 
of any portion of any such Project. 

Authority’s Annual Certification to University Trustees  (Section 7) 

On or before December 1, 2009 (for the period through October 31, 2009), and each March 1 
thereafter for the twelve-month period commencing the next succeeding November 1, the Authority shall 
certify in writing to the University Trustees (and provide a copy to the Trustee) the amount estimated for each 
component of the Projects, detailing (i) the Authority's projected debt service costs and fees and expenses 
related to the Bonds, (ii) the Authority's projected operating and administrative costs, (iii) any projected 
required deposits to reserves, (iv) any projected payments to the Commonwealth pursuant to Section 19C of 
the Act, (v) any additional reserves it may propose to create or augment consistent with the Trust Agreement 
and (vi) the amount, if any, payable to the University Trustees to reimburse Specific Revenue Project expenses 
incurred by the University Trustees (collectively, the “Certified Amount”). Such certificate, which may be 
revised from time to time as necessary, shall state the dates within such period when any portion of the 
Certified Amount shall be due, the portion of the Certified Amount due on such dates, the payee of such 
amount and payment instructions, the source of such payments and the amount payable from each source. The 
Certified Amount shall also detail the fees, rents, rates and other charges proposed for the use of the Projects, 
which shall be fixed so as to be sufficient, in the aggregate, together with other available moneys, to cover all 
of the costs and transfers to reserves as aforesaid allocable to the Projects.  

Pledge of Trust Funds and Other Available Funds  (Section 8) 

The University Trustees, in the name and on behalf of the Commonwealth, hereby pledge to the 
making of payments required by Section 12 any funds held as trust funds under the provisions of Section 11 of 
Chapter 75 of the Massachusetts General Laws and any funds administered by the University Trustees as gifts, 
grants or trusts under the provisions of clause (e) of the fifth paragraph of Section 1A of Chapter 75 of the 
Massachusetts General Laws permitted by law to be pledged for such purpose (collectively, “Trust Funds”). 
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The University Trustees hereby pledge to the making of payments required by Section 12 all available funds of 
the University (collectively with the Trust Funds, the “Pledged Funds”). 

All Revenues collected or received by the Commonwealth or the University, from whatever source, as 
payment of fees, rents, rates or other charges for the use and occupancy of a Project, including without 
limitation Revenues from Specific Revenue Projects and from the Unrestricted Net Assets, shall be held in 
trust for the Authority separate from all other moneys, held by the University or the Commonwealth.  Such 
Pledged Funds shall be applied solely as provided in the Act, the Contract (including the Certified Amount), 
the Series Resolutions or the Trust Agreement and shall be remitted by the University Trustees to the Trustee 
under the Trust Agreement at such times and in such amounts as may be directed in writing by the Authority in 
accordance with the Authority’s annual Certified Amount. 

Pledged Funds  (Section 11) 
 
Pledged funds are and will be free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or 

with respect thereto prior to the pledge created by the Contract and the University Trustees shall take all 
actions necessary to protect and effectuate such pledge provided, however, that nothing in this Section shall be 
deemed to limit the right of the University Trustees, to the extent permitted by law, to create a pledge, lien or 
other charge on any or all such Pledge Funds junior and subordinate to the pledge created hereby.   

Payments from Pledged Funds  (Section 12) 

The Certified Amount shall be paid from Revenues generated from Specific Revenue Projects, 
University Eligible Gifts, Authority Eligible Gifts, other available Revenues of the Authority and all funds of 
the University permitted by law to be applied thereto, including without limitation amounts available in the 
University’s Unrestricted Net Assets.  

“University Eligible Gifts” shall consist of gifts, grants and other contributions made to the 
University, the University of Massachusetts Foundation, Inc. (or its successors), the University of 
Massachusetts Dartmouth Foundation, Inc. (or its successors), the University of Massachusetts Amherst 
Foundation, Inc. (or its successors) or any other entity (other than the Authority) on behalf of the University 
required or permitted to be applied to pay all or a portion of the Certified Amount and determined by the 
University from time to time to be so applied (any such determination to be in compliance with any 
requirements of the University Eligible Gifts and to designate each Project all or a portion of the Certified 
Amount allocable to which is to be paid from one or more University Eligible Gifts and the amount of each 
University Eligible Gift to be applied to the payment of the Certified Amount allocable to each such Project).  

“Authority Eligible Gifts” shall consist of gifts, grants and other contributions made to the Authority 
or any other entity on behalf of the Authority required or permitted to be applied to pay all or a portion of the 
Certified Amount and determined by the Authority from time to time to be so applied (any such determination 
to be in compliance with any requirements of the Authority Eligible Gifts and to designate each Project all or a 
portion of the Certified Amount allocable to which is to be paid from one or more Authority Eligible Gifts and 
the amount of each Authority Eligible Gift to be applied to the payment of the Certified Amount allocable to 
each such Project).  

“Unrestricted Net Assets” means the accumulation of excess unrestricted revenues over expenditures 
with respect to the University for all prior years and for each current year from the unrestricted current fund, 
the quasi endowment fund, the unexpended unrestricted plant fund and the unrestricted renewal and 
replacement plant fund. Prior to fiscal year 2002, such amounts were referred to as the “Expendable Fund 
Balance.”  
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The University shall cause to be available in the Unrestricted Net Assets at all times amounts 
sufficient to pay such portion of the Certified Amount required to be paid therefrom and to provide for any 
other payments required under the Prior Contracts or under the HEFA Financing Agreements.  

On or before April 1, 2010, and on or before April 1 of each year thereafter, the President of the 
University or the Senior Vice President for Administration, Finance and Technology and University Treasurer 
shall certify in writing to the Authority whether or not there are sufficient funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets 
to pay the amounts so required to be paid therefrom and, if so, that such funds will be held in trust in the 
Unrestricted Net Assets for the equal and ratable benefit of the Authority and each other person or entity for 
whose benefit amounts will be applied to the payment of amounts required to be paid therefrom and will not be 
expended for any other purpose. Such funds will be so held and not expended for any other purpose; provided, 
however, that if any portion of the Certified Amount is paid from University Eligible Gifts, Authority Eligible 
Gifts, other Authority revenues or Revenues from Specific Revenue Projects, then after any such payment an 
amount equal to such portion so paid need no longer be held in the Unrestricted Net Assets. 

In the event of the absence or inability of the President of the University or the Senior Vice President 
for Administration, Finance and Technology and University Treasurer, or in the event that either such office 
should no longer exist, such certification may be made by any other officer of the University knowledgeable 
about the financial affairs of the University.  The University Trustees hereby authorize and, pursuant to 
Chapter 3A of Chapter 75 of the Massachusetts General Laws and every other authority thereunto the 
University Trustees enabling, delegate power to the President of the University, the Senior Vice President for 
Administration, Finance and Technology and University Treasurer and any such other officer to deliver the 
certificate described in the preceding paragraph and to do all other acts and things necessary or desirable to 
cause the University to comply with its obligations under this Section. 

If such certification states that sufficient funds are not available in the Unrestricted Net Assets to pay 
such amounts, such certification shall state the amount of funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets that are 
available to pay a portion of such amounts and a ratable portion of such funds in the Unrestricted Net Assets 
shall be held in trust for the benefit of the Authority to be applied to the payment pro rata of all amounts 
payable to or for the account of the Authority from the Unrestricted Net Assets. The University will continue 
to be obligated to pay any portion (or, if applicable, all) of the Certified Amount payable from all funds of the 
University permitted by law to be applied thereto notwithstanding any shortfall in amounts available in the 
Unrestricted Net Assets. 

If such certification states that sufficient funds are not available in the Unrestricted Net Assets to pay 
such amounts, or if the Authority has not received such certificate as required herein, the Authority will 
promptly adopt or revise mandatory fees, rates, rents and other charges for the use of the Projects and any 
portion thereof to be charged and billed to and collected from students in the University and provide for the 
billing, collection and remittance of such fees rates, rents and other charges by the University Trustees at such 
times and in such manner as in the judgment of the Authority will produce moneys sufficient and available to 
meet the requirements hereof.  The Authority shall promptly notify the University Trustees in writing of the 
matters set forth in the foregoing sentence.  The University Trustees hereby approve, and agree to confirm such 
approval from time to time, all fees, rents, rates and other charges adopted or revised by the Authority pursuant 
to this paragraph and agree to cause the same to be billed to and collected from students in the University as 
the Authority may provide and remitted as the Authority may provide. 

Amounts payable to the Authority pursuant to the Contract from any funds of the University permitted 
by law to be applied thereto shall be paid from an account of the University, unless the Authority shall give its 
prior written consent to another source of payment. 
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The University  (Section 13) 

The University Trustees shall make available to the Authority the services of officers and employees 
of and facilities in the University for the performance of activities with respect to the Projects, including the 
following, in each case, as applicable to the Projects or portions thereof: 

(a) renting, leasing, or otherwise making available rooms, accommodations or other facilities in 
such Projects for use by students or others provided in the Act, the activities of which are a part of the 
activities at the University and are subject to regulation by the University Trustees; 

(b) purchasing, preparing, selling and serving food, beverage or other concession items and such 
other items as may from time to time be appropriate or desirable to be offered for sale in conjunction with 
food, beverages or other concessions; 

(c) operating any dining, kitchen, dishwashing and like facilities, any parking facilities and any 
extra-curricular use facilities included in the Projects and procuring all equipment, materials and supplies 
necessary therefor and consumed thereby; 

(d) billing and collecting rents, fees, rates and other charges as provided in the Contract, which 
billing and collecting may be performed in such manner, and in combination with any other charges in such 
amounts, as the University Trustees in their discretion may deem appropriate, subject to the provisions of 
Section 12; 

(e) within 20 days after the end of each month, certifying in writing to the Authority the 
aggregate amount of Revenues remitted by the University Trustees to the Trustee or otherwise expended by the 
University Trustees from Revenues during the prior month and cumulatively for the then current fiscal year, 
including in particular, with respect to Revenues related to Specific Revenue Projects;  

(f) cleaning the Projects, heating such buildings, and structures therein or portions thereof as may 
require for heat for use, and furnishing steam service, electricity, water, gas and other utilities to the Projects as 
required; 

(g) operating the Projects; and 

(h) keeping the Projects in good order and repair, and maintaining the same, in at least the same 
manner and to at least the same extent as other comparable properties at the University owned by the 
Commonwealth or operated by the University Trustees at the University or, as to any structure or facility not 
comparable to any other such property, in good and safe order and condition. 

In performing the foregoing services the University Trustees may act in the name of the Commonwealth or in 
their name, as may be consistent with law, and, subject to the provisions of Section 12, in their discretion as to 
the manner, method and time of performance. 

During the period the Projects are being undertaken and completed the University Trustees shall also 
furnish to the site thereof (a) steam for temporary heating purposes, (b) electricity for temporary light and 
power and (c) water for construction purposes, such utilities to be furnished at such points and in such manner 
as is set forth in the working drawings and detail specifications approved by the University Trustees for the 
doing of work upon the Projects. 

The University acknowledges that use of the Projects or portions thereof by any individual or entity 
that is not a state, a political subdivision thereof or an integral part of a state or political subdivision thereof 
may jeopardize the tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds.  The University will follow the guidelines to 
avoid such private use of the Projects, as set forth in the University Tax Certificate delivered in connection 
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with the issuance of the Bonds, which would jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. During the time 
that any Bond is outstanding, the University will consult with the Authority and with bond counsel to the 
Authority regarding the impact of any private use of the Projects on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds and 
will not enter into any transaction which might result in a private use without notifying the Authority.  

Defaults by the Authority; Rights of the Commonwealth; Defaults by the University Trustees;  
Rights of the Authority.  (Section 14) 
 

Upon the failure of the Authority to pay debt service on any Bond (other than as a result of the failure of 
the University Trustees under the Contract) or to observe or perform any other agreement or condition under the 
Contract (or failure to cure the same), after 15 days notice thereof to the Authority by the University Trustees, the 
Authority shall be deemed to be in default under the Contract. Thereupon, the Commonwealth may, acting by and 
through the University Trustees, take immediate possession of the Projects and possess and operate the same with 
all the rights and powers, and subject to all the obligations, of the Authority, in the premises until such time as the 
University Trustees may declare the default to be cured.  

Upon the failure of the Authority or the University Trustees to make any payment required under the 
provisions of the Contract, or to observe any other covenant or requirement imposed by the Contract, the 
Authority or the University Trustees, as the case may be, shall be deemed in default under the Contract. 
Thereupon, the Authority or the University Trustees may institute legal proceedings to enforce such covenant or 
requirement or to enforce the pledge and lien granted under the provisions of the Contract and may take such 
other actions or exercise such other remedies as may be available at law or in equity to enforce the provisions of 
the Contract. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the case of an Authority default, the 
Commonwealth may, acting by and through the University Trustees, take immediate possession of the Projects 
and possess and operate the same with all the rights and powers, and subject to all the obligations, of the 
Authority in the premises until such time as the University Trustees may declare the default to be cured, and, in 
the case of the a University Trustees default, the Authority may itself undertake to perform such obligations, and 
may employ such persons or entities and make such expenditures as are reasonably necessary for the performance 
thereof, until such time as the Authority may declare the default to be cured. 

No action by the Authority to enforce the Contract, or any other action of the Authority under the Contract, and 
no default or breach by the University Trustees, shall in any way affect the obligations of the University Trustees 
under the Contract. No action by the University Trustees under the Contract, and no default or breach by the 
Authority, shall in any way affect the obligations of the Commonwealth under the Contract. Whenever a breach 
of the Contract, whether substantial or otherwise, and whether before or after notice of the breach has been given 
to the Authority or the University Trustees, has been corrected, the obligations and rights under the Contract shall 
be reinstated and performance of the Contract shall continue as if such breach had never occurred. 

Insurance  (Section 15) 

 
The Authority shall purchase and maintain in effect with respect to each of its Projects policies of 

insurance and fidelity bonds against such risks and losses and in such amounts as it shall deem to be 
reasonable. Subject to any contrary requirements in the Trust Agreement, the Authority shall use the proceeds 
of any use and occupancy insurance to replace revenues lost by reason of interruption of the use of the 
applicable Project and shall apply insurance proceeds received in respect of damage or destruction to a Project 
to the replacement, restoration or reconstruction of such Project. 
 
Notices and Demands  (Section 16) 
 
 Any notice or demand permitted or required under the Contract to be given or served by any of the 
parties hereto to or upon another party hereto shall be in writing and shall be signed in the name of the party 
giving or serving the same. Such notice or demand shall be mailed by registered mail (postage and registry 



 

 

 D-55 

charges prepaid) or served on the President of the University, if such notice is to the Commonwealth or the 
University Trustees, or otherwise on the Executive Director of the Authority. Notice shall be deemed to have 
been received at the time of actual service or three days after the date of the mailing by registered mail properly 
addressed. The principal office of the President of the University shall be deemed to be 225 Franklin Street, 33

rd
 

Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 or such other place as the University Trustees may designate by written 
notice to the Authority. The principal office of the Authority shall be deemed to be 333 South Street, Suite 450, 
Shrewsbury, MA 01545 or such other place as the Authority may designate by written notice to the President of 
the University. 
 
Liability (Section 17) 
 
 No member, officer or employee of the University Trustees or the University shall be individually liable 
on any obligation assumed by the Commonwealth or the University Trustees under the Contract. No member, 
officer or employee of the Authority shall be individually liable on any obligation assumed by the Authority 
under the Contract, and neither the carrying out of a Project nor the ownership of a Project by the Authority shall 
impose any liability on any such member, officer or employee. 
 
Action by Authorized Officers (Section 18) 
 
 The University Trustees, the University or the Authority may, to the extent authorized by law, act under 
the Contract or authorize an officer or officers to act in their name under the Contract, and the action of any duly 
authorized officer or committee of the University Trustees, the University or the Authority shall be deemed to be 
the action of the Commonwealth, acting by and through the University Trustees, the University or the Authority, 
as the case may be. 
  
Term (Section 19) 
 
 The Contract shall continue in full force and effect until all amounts payable to the Authority with 
respect to the Bonds and the Projects and all other bonds and notes issued under any trust agreement and all other 
amounts payable under any trust agreement shall have been paid in full. Upon such payment the Contract shall 
cease and determine without further liability on the part of any party hereto to another. 
 
Non-Assignability.  (Section 20) 
 
 The Contract is not assignable except that if by act of the General Court the powers, functions, duties and 
property of the University or the Authority are transferred to another political subdivision, agency, board, 
commission, department, authority or institution of the Commonwealth, the rights and obligations of the Contract 
shall be deemed to have been assigned thereby to such transferee, and provided further that the Authority’s rights 
to receive moneys under the Contract and to enforce the provisions of the Contract may be assigned to the 
Trustee. 
 
Amendments.  (Section 21) 
 
 The Contract may be amended only by the execution of an Amendment in writing by the Authority, the 
University Trustees and the Commonwealth, acting by and through the University Trustees, or their successors. 
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       [Closing Date] 
 
University of Massachusetts Building Authority 
225 Franklin Street, 12th Floor 
Boston, MA 02110 
 

Re: University of Massachusetts Building Authority (the “Authority”) Project Revenue 
Bonds, Senior Series 2009-1 (the “Series 2009-1 Bonds), Project Revenue Bonds, Senior 
Series 2009-2 (Federally Taxable-Build America Bonds-Direct Pay to Issuer) (the “Series 
2009-2 Bonds”) and Project Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2009-3 (Federally Taxable) 
(the “Series 2009-3 Bonds” and together with the Series 2009-1 and the Series 2009-2 
Bonds, the “Bonds”) 

 
 
 We have acted as bond counsel to the Authority in connection with the issuance by the 
Authority of the Bonds pursuant to (i) Chapter 773 of the Acts of 1960, as amended (the “Act”), (ii) 
the Trust Agreement dated as of November 1, 2000 (the “Trust Agreement”) between the Authority 
and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”), and (iii) the Series 
Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of the Series 2009-1 Bonds adopted by the Authority on 
September 18, 2009 and October 6, 2009 (the “2009-1 Series Resolution”), the Series Resolution 
Authorizing the Issuance of the Series 2009-2 Bonds adopted by the Authority on September 18, 
2009 (the “2009-2 Series Resolution”) and the Series Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of the 
Series 2009-3 Bonds adopted by the Authority on September 18, 2009 (the “2009-3 Series 
Resolution” and together with the 2009-1 Series Resolution and the 2009-2 Series Resolution, the 
“Series Resolutions”). In such capacity, we have examined the law and such certified proceedings 
and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion, including without 
limitation the Contract for Management and Services dated as of October 27, 2009 (the “Contract”), 
among the Authority, the University of Massachusetts, acting by and through the Board of 
Trustees (the “University Trustees”), and The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the 
“Commonwealth”), acting by and through the University Trustees. Capitalized terms used herein 
shall, unless otherwise specified, have the meanings set forth in the Trust Agreement and the Series 
Resolutions. 
 
 Under the Trust Agreement, the Authority has pledged certain revenues (the “Revenues”) 
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. 
 
 As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the representations of 
the Authority contained in the Trust Agreement and in the certified proceedings and other 
certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by 
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independent investigation. In addition, we have  relied, among other things, on the opinion 
of counsel to the Edward M. Kennedy Institute for the United States Senate (the “Institute”) 
regarding the current qualification of  the Institute as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Code. 
 
 Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, under existing law: 
 
 1.  The Authority is validly existing as a body politic and corporate and public 
instrumentality of the Commonwealth with the power to enter into the Trust Agreement and the 
Series Resolutions, perform the agreements on its part contained therein and issue the Bonds. 
 
 2.  The Trust Agreement, the Series Resolutions and the Contract have been duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and constitute valid and binding obligations of 
the Authority enforceable upon the Authority. 
 
 3. The Contract has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Commonwealth 
and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Commonwealth enforceable upon the 
Commonwealth. 
 
 4.  Pursuant to the Act, the Trust Agreement creates a valid lien on the Revenues and 
other funds pledged by the Trust Agreement for the security of the Bonds issued thereunder on a 
parity with other bonds issued under the Trust Agreement. 
 
 5.  The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and 
are valid and binding limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the Revenues and 
other funds provided therefor in the Trust Agreement. Neither the Commonwealth nor any political 
subdivision or instrumentality thereof, including the Authority, is obligated to pay the principal of 
or redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds except from the Revenues and other funds 
provided therefor as aforesaid in the Trust Agreement and the Series Resolutions, and neither the 
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth nor of any political subdivision or 
instrumentality thereof, including the Authority, is pledged to the payment of the principal of or 
redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. 
  
[For the Series 2009-1 Bonds only: 

 
 6. Interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds will not be included in the gross income of 
the holders of the Series 2009-1 Bonds for federal income tax purposes. This opinion is expressly 
conditioned upon the Authority’s compliance with certain requirements of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, which must be satisfied subsequent to the date of issuance of the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds in order that interest thereon is and continues to be excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements 
could cause interest on the Series 2009-1 Bonds to be included in the gross income of holders of 
the Series 2009-1 Bonds retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. Interest on the Series 
2009-1 Bonds will not constitute a preference item for purposes of computation of the alternative 
minimum tax imposed on certain individuals and corporations and will not be included in the 
“adjusted current earnings” when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income under 
section 56(g) of the Code in the computation of the alternative minimum tax applicable to certain 
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corporations. We express no opinion as to other federal tax consequences resulting from holding 
the 2009-1 Bonds.] 
 
[For the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds only: 

 
 6. Interest on the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds will be 
included in the gross income of the holders of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. We 
express no opinion as to other federal tax consequences resulting from holding the Series 2009-2 
Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds. 
 
 The federal tax advice contained herein is not intended or written to be used, and cannot 
be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed on the 
taxpayer, such federal tax advice is written to support the promotion or marketing of the Series 
2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds, and each purchaser of a Series 2009-2 Bond or a 
Series 2009-3 Bond should seek advice based on such purchaser’s particular circumstances from 
an independent tax advisor.] 
 
 7.  Interest on the Bonds, and any profit made on the sale thereof are exempt from 
Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal 
property taxes. We express no opinion as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with 
respect to the Bonds nor as to the taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws 
of any state other than Massachusetts. 
 
 It is to be understood that the rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the 
Bonds, the Trust Agreement and the Contract may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by 
equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity. 
  
 This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or 
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our 
attention or any changes in law that may hereafter occur. 
 

Very truly yours, 
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APPENDIX F 

SUMMARY OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

The Authority and University Disclosure Agreement 

In the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement the University will undertake, for the benefit of the 
Registered Owners and the beneficial owners of the Bonds, to provide to the Authority not later than 270 days after 
the end of each fiscal year of the University, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the annual 
financial information described below, together with audited financial statements of the University for such fiscal 
year if audited financial statements are then available; provided, however, that if audited financial statements of the 
University are not then available, such audited financial statements shall be delivered to the Authority when they 
become available (but in no event later than 350 days after the end of such fiscal year (the “prior fiscal year”)).  The 
University’s annual financial statements for each fiscal year will be prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time (or as otherwise may be required or permitted 
by law) and will consist of a combined statement of net assets, a combined statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets and the combined statement of cash flows (or such other items as may be required or permitted 
by law or by generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time or by other accounting 
principles as in effect from time to time in accordance with which the financial statements of the University may be 
prepared).  Such financial statements will be audited by a group of certified public accountants appointed by the 
University.  The annual financial information regarding the University to be provided to the Authority shall consist 
of financial and operating data, in each case updated for the prior fiscal year, to the extent there are updates, unless 
otherwise noted, relating to the following information contained in Appendix A – “Letter from the University” to 
this Official Statement and in each case substantially in the same level of detail as is found under the subheading 
under such caption referenced in parentheses after each item: 

1. number of full-time equivalent undergraduates and graduates at each campus of the University as 
of the fall of the prior fiscal year (“Amherst Campus,” “Boston Campus,” “Dartmouth Campus,” “Lowell Campus,” 
“Worcester Campus,” “Center for Professional Education” and “UMass Online”); 

2. degrees and programs offered at each campus of the University (“Amherst Campus,” “Boston 
Campus,” “Dartmouth Campus,” “Lowell Campus,” “Worcester Campus,” “Center for Professional Education” and 
“UMass Online”); 

3. organizations related to the University (“University Related Organizations”); 

4. number and members of the Trustees or other chief governing body of the University and general 
governmental structure (“Board of Trustees”); 

5. number of faculty members and the number of full-time faculty members, the percentage of 
tenured faculty members and the full-time equivalent student to the full-time equivalent faculty ratios for each 
campus of the University (except the Worcester campus) (“Faculty and Staff”); 

6. academic programs (to the extent not covered under 2 above) and accreditation (“Academic 
Programs and Accreditation”); 

7. applicants, acceptances and matriculations each fall shown on a five year comparative basis 
through the fall of the prior fiscal year for first year applicants and transfer students, opening fall head count 
enrollment for each campus shown on a five year comparative basis through the fall of the prior fiscal year and total 
head count enrollment and total full-time equivalent enrollment shown on a five year comparative basis 
(“Enrollment”); 

8. tuition and fees shown on a five (5) year comparative basis through the prior fiscal year for each 
campus of the University (“Tuition and Fees”); 
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9. student financial aid amounts (“Student Financial Aid”); 

10. sources of revenues of the University (“University Revenues and Budgeting,” “General 
Operations,” “Sales and Services (Designated Funds)” and “Restricted Funds”); 

11. modifications to the University’s five (5) year capital plan and status of completion of the 
University’s five (5) year capital plan (“Current and Future Capital Plans”); 

12. modifications to the budget process (“Budget Process”); 

13. management of appropriated funds, including appropriations received by the University shown on 
a five (5) year comparative basis and management of non-appropriated funds (“Management of Appropriated 
Funds” and “Management of Non-Appropriated Funds”); 

14. combined statement of revenues and expenses, including current fund revenues and expenditures 
and other changes (accrual basis) on a five (5) year comparative basis through the prior fiscal year (“New Financial 
Reporting Model” and “Historical Summary of Operations”); 

15. University and Foundation endowment assets shown on a five (5) year comparative basis 
(“Endowment and Fundraising”); 

16. indebtedness of the University (“Indebtedness of the University”); 

17. unrestricted net assets (formerly expendable fund balances); 

18. additional indebtedness (“Additional Indebtedness”); 

19. capitalize leases (“Capitalized Leases”); 

20. insurance (“Insurance”); 

21. technological initiatives (“Technological Initiatives”); 

22. litigation (“Litigation”) and 

23. employee relations (“Employee Relations”). 

The Authority and University Disclosure Agreement also requires the Authority to transmit the financial 
statements of the University and the annual financial information regarding the University to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) pursuant to the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) promptly 
upon the receipt thereof and to give notice to the MSRB of any failure by the University to provide such financial 
statements or annual financial information. 

In the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement the Authority will undertake, for the benefit of the 
Registered Owners and the beneficial owners of the Bonds, to provide to the MSRB no later than 270 days after the 
end of each fiscal year of the Authority, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the annual financial 
information described below, together with audited financial statements of the Authority for such fiscal year if 
audited financial statements are then available; provided, however, that if audited financial statements of the 
Authority are not then available, such audited financial statements shall be delivered to the MSRB when they 
become available (but in no event later than 350 days after the end of such fiscal year (the “prior fiscal year of the 
Authority”)).  The Authority’s annual financial statements for each fiscal year will be prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time (or as 
otherwise may be required or permitted by law) and will consist of a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net assets, and a statement of cash flows.  Such financial statements will be audited by a 
group of independent certified public accountants appointed by the Authority.  The annual financial information to 
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be provided by the Authority shall consist of financial and operating data, in each case updated for the prior fiscal 
year of the Authority, to the extent there are updates, unless otherwise noted, relating to the following information 
contained in this Official Statement and in each case substantially in the same level of detail as is found in the 
section of the Official Statement referenced in parentheses after each item: 

1. any material change in the provisions of the Contract (“Security and Sources of Payment for the 
Bonds – General”); 

2. annual debt service requirements on the Series 2009-1 Bonds, the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the 
Series 2009-3 Bonds (“The Bonds – Annual Debt Service Requirements on the Bonds”); 

3. any material change in the Enabling Act or other law of the Commonwealth with respect to the 
Authority (“The Authority – General”); and 

4. any amendment to the Trust Agreement made with the consent of the registered owners of the 
Series 2009-1 Bonds, the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds and any other amendment to the Trust 
Agreement which, in the opinion of the firm of attorneys serving as bond counsel to the Authority at the time the 
Authority submits the information required by the University and Authority Disclosure Agreement, is material to the 
interests of the registered owners of the Series 2009-1 Bonds, the Series 2009-2 Bonds and the Series 2009-3 Bonds 
(“Summary of Legal Documents”). 

If the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement is amended with respect to the annual financial 
information to be submitted by the University or the Authority thereunder, the annual financial information 
containing the amended financial information will explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the 
impact of the change in the type of financial information being provided.  If the Authority and University Disclosure 
Agreement is amended with respect to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements of 
the University or the Authority, the annual financial information of the University or the Authority, as applicable, 
for the year in which the change is made will present a comparison between the financial statements or information 
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and the financial statements or information prepared on the 
basis of the former accounting principles.  Such comparison will include a qualitative discussion of the differences 
in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the 
financial information, in order to provide information to investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the 
University or the Authority, as applicable, to meet its obligations with respect to the Bonds.  To the extent 
reasonably feasible, the comparison will also be quantitative.  The University will give notice of any change in its 
accounting principles to the Authority as promptly as practicable after such change has been determined, and the 
Authority will submit such information to the MSRB promptly upon the receipt thereof.  The Authority will give 
notice of each change in its accounting principles to the MSRB as promptly as practicable after such change has 
been determined. 

The Authority and University Disclosure Agreement will also require the Authority to submit in a timely 
manner to the MSRB notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2. non-payment related defaults; 

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements, if any, reflecting financial difficulties; 

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, if any, or their failure to perform; 

6. adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Series 2009-1 Bonds; 

7. modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds; 
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8. bond calls; 

9. defeasances; 

10. release, substitution, or sale of property, if any, securing payment of the Bonds; and 

11. rating changes. 

To the extent permitted by law, the provisions of the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement shall 
be enforceable against the University with respect to the obligations of the University thereunder, and against the 
Authority with respect to the obligations of the Authority thereunder, in accordance with the terms thereof by any 
owner of a Bond, including any beneficial owner acting as a third party beneficiary (upon proof of its status as a 
beneficial owner reasonably satisfactory to the University or the Authority, as the case may be).  To the extent 
permitted by law, any such owner shall have the right, for the equal benefit and protection of all owners of Bonds, 
by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity, to enforce its rights against the University or the 
Authority, as applicable, and to compel the University or the Authority as applicable, and any of the officers, agents 
or employees of, as applicable, the University or the Authority, to perform and carry out their duties under such 
provisions of the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement; provided, however, that the sole remedy for a 
violation of the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement shall be limited to an action to compel specific 
performance of the obligations of the University or the Authority, as applicable, under the Authority and University 
Disclosure Agreement and shall not include any rights to monetary damages.  The Authority and University 
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate if no Bonds remain outstanding (without regard to an economic defeasance) 
or if the provisions of the Rule concerning continuing disclosure are no longer in effect, whichever occurs first. 

The Authority and University Disclosure Agreement may be amended, changed or modified by the 
University and the Authority, without the consent of, or notice to, any owners of the Bonds (a) to comply with or 
conform to the provisions of the Rule or any amendments thereto or authoritative interpretations thereof by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff  (whether required or optional), (b) to add a dissemination agent for 
the information required to be provided pursuant to the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement by the 
University or the Authority and to make any necessary or desirable provisions with respect thereto, (c) to add to the 
covenants of the University or the Authority for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, (d) to modify the contents, 
presentation and format of the annual financial information of the University or the Authority from time to time as a 
result of a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, or (e) to otherwise modify the 
duties of the University or the Authority in the Authority and University Disclosure Agreement in a manner 
consistent with or otherwise responding to the requirements of the Rule concerning continuing disclosure; provided, 
however, that in the case of any amendment pursuant to clause (d) or (e), (i) the duties, as amended, would have 
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any 
amendments or authoritative interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, and (ii) the 
amendment does not materially impair the interests of the owners of the Bonds, as determined either by a party 
unaffiliated with the University or the Authority (such as the firm serving at the time as bond counsel to the 
Authority) or by the vote or consent of the Registered Owners of a majority in outstanding principal amount of the 
Bonds affected thereby at or prior to the time of such amendment, which consent shall be obtained as provided in the 
Trust Agreement with respect to consents of Registered Owners. 
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